
 

 
 

 

 To: Councillor Laing, Convener; Councillor Thomson, Vice Convener;  Councillors 
Boulton, Cameron, Carle, Cooney, Crockett, Lesley Dunbar, Greig, Malik, May, 
McCaig, Noble, Samarai, Jennifer Stewart, Stuart, Taylor, Townson and Young; 
and Mr S Duncan (Teacher Representative (Primary Schools)), Mr M Maclean 
(Parent Representative (Secondary Schools)), Reverend E McKenna (Church of 
Scotland Religious Representative), Mr A Nicoll (Parent Representative (Primary 
Schools and ASN)), Mr M Paul (Teacher Representative (Secondary Schools)), 
Mrs I Wischik (Roman Catholic Religious Representative) and Mrs A Tree (Third 
Religious Representative). 
  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN 23 January, 2013 

 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
 

 Members of the EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE are 
requested to meet in the Council Chamber on THURSDAY, 31 JANUARY 2013 at 2pm. 
 
 
  

 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
 HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 MINUTES, COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT AND MOTIONS LIST   
 

 1.1  Minute of the Previous Meeting of 22 November 2012 - for approval  
(Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 1.2  Minute of Meeting of the Culture and Sport Sub Committee of 7 November, 
2012 - for noting  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

 1.3  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 17 - 22) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

2 SERVICE ISSUES   
 

 2.1  Revenue Monitoring  (Pages 23 - 36) 
 

 2.2  Capital Monitoring  (Pages 37 - 40) 
 

3 EDUCATION   
 

 3.1  City Campus Evaluation  (Pages 41 - 46) 
 

 3.2  Primary School Estate Feedback from Engagement Exercise  (Pages 47 - 
102) 
 

 3.3  Science Policy  (Pages 103 - 118) 
 

4 CULTURE   
 

 4.1  Accreditation Status for Museums and Galleries  (Pages 119 - 122) 
 

5 SPORT   
 

 5.1  Tullos Pool - Verbal Report   
 

 5.2  Sports Grants  (Pages 123 - 130) 
 

 5.3  Rubislaw Field Agreement  (Pages 131 - 142) 
 

6 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT   
 

 6.1  Performance Report  (Pages 143 - 172) 
 

 
 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 

To access the Information Bulletins for this Committee please use the following link: 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13009&path=13004 
 
 
 
If you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Rebecka Coull (tel. 
(52)2869 or e-mail rcoull@aberdeencity.gov.uk).    
 



 
EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 

 
 ABERDEEN, 22 November, 2012 – minute of meeting of the EDUCATION, 

CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE.  Present: Councillor Laing 
(Convener); Councillor Thomson (Vice Convener); and Councillors Boulton, 
Cameron, Cooney, Lesley Dunbar, Grant (as substitute for Councillor Malik), 
Greig, Jaffrey (as substitute for Councillor Stuart for articles 1 - 10), 
Lawrence (as substitute for Councillor Crockett), McCaig, May (for articles 1 
- 16), Jean Morrison (as substitute for Councillor Carle), Noble, Samarai, 
Stewart (for articles 1 – 10), Taylor, Townson and Young; and  Mr S Duncan 
(Teacher representative - primary schools – for articles 1 - 9), Mr M Maclean 
(Parent representative – secondary schools), Reverend E McKenna (Church 
of Scotland religious representative), Mr A Nicoll (Parent representative – 
primary schools and ASN), Mr M Paul (Teacher representative – secondary 
schools – for articles 1 - 9), Mrs A Tree (Third religious representative) and 
Mrs I Wischik (Roman Catholic religious representative). 

 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be located at the 
following link:    
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=
2518&Ver=4 
 
 
INTRODUCTION  
 
1. The Convener introduced Mrs Anne Tree (Third religious representative), 
and Reverend Edward McKenna McKenna (Church of Scotland religious 
representative) and welcomed them to their first meeting of the Committee.  
 
 
GOOD NEWS 
 
2. The Convener  advised the Committee as to a number of good news stories 
as follows –  

• Children in Need – the Beach Ballroom had hosted the national Children in 
Need programme on Friday 16 November, 2012, and the event had been a 
huge success.  

• Challenge Mum – the project had secured £1,500 funding from Cash for Kids 
and the Co-op, which had been used to take sixteen families to the Planet 
Energy exhibition at Satrosphere. 

• Primary Science Quality Mark – thirteen of the city’s schools had achieved 
this award as recognition of a high standard of science education.  

• Arts Development – the project had organised an open day as part of 
Luminate (Scotland’s first national Creative Ageing festival), which had 
offered practical suggestions of activities to use in cross generational 
projects.  

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1.1

Page 1



DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS  
 
3. The Convener proposed that the Committee consider those reports identified 
on the agenda as being for determination in private, with the press and public 
excluded.  
 
Councillor McCaig, seconded by Councillor Stewart, moved as a procedural motion: 

that the report at item 9.2 of today’s agenda (Community Centre’s – Current 
Issues – article 17 of this minute refers) be redacted in terms of the 
information relating to recommendation (d) in order that the remainder of the 
report be heard in public on this day.  
 

On a division, the votes cast were as follows: for the procedural motion (11) – 
Councillors Cameron, Greig, Jaffrey, McCaig, May, Noble, Samari, Stewart, and 
Townson, Reverend McKenna and Mrs Tree;  against the procedural motion (13) – 
the Convener, the Vice Convener, and Councillors Boulton, Cooney, Lesley 
Dunbar, Grant, Lawrence, Jean Morrison, Taylor and Young, Mr Maclean, Mr 
Nicoll, and Mrs Wischik; declined to vote (2) – Mr Duncan and Mr Paul.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to 
exclude the press and public from the meeting for items 9.1 and 9.2 of the agenda 
(articles  16 and 17 of this minute) so as to avoid disclosure of information of the 
class described in the following paragraphs of Schedule 7(A) to the Act: article 16 
(paragraph 9), and article 17 (paragraphs 9 and 12). 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATION 
 
4. The Committee had before it a number of requests for deputation as follows: 
 
In relation to item 5.1 of the agenda (Progress towards Implementation of New 
Lease and Management Agreement) –  

 
(1) Andy Cowie and Alex Mess – Powis Community Centre  
(2)  Paul O'Connor – Chair of Inchgarth Community Centre 
(3) Scott Beattie – Vice Chair of Inchgarth Community Centre 
(4)  Phil D'Arcy, Wilma Mackland and Brian Allan - Community Learning Centres 

Forum  
(5) Martin Fraser, Partner – A. C. Morrison & Richards 
(6)  Sylvia Davidson 
(7) David Forbes, Chairman, Future Choices  
(8) Marie Adams, Create Aberdeen 
 
In relation to item 9.2 of the agenda (community centres – Current Issues) –  
 
(9)  Sylvia Davidson 
 
The Committee was advised that requests (6) – (9) as detailed above had not been 
received within the terms outlined in Standing Orders, and received advice from the 
Legal Manager (Advice and Procurement) in relation to request (5) above. The 
Legal Manager advised that as officers was currently negotiating on the issues 
detailed in the report, that it would not be appropriate for members to hear the legal 

Page 2



representative for the community centres, as the negotiations were an operational 
matter.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to agree to hear requests (1) – (4) at the appropriate point in the agenda; 
(ii) to decline to hear Mr Fraser on this day (request (5) above); and  
(iii) to suspend Standing Order 10, and to agree to hear requests (6) – (9) at the 

appropriate point in the agenda.  
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
5. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the minute as a correct record.  
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT  
 
6. The Committee had before it a statement of pending and outstanding 
committee business which had been prepared by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services,   
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i)  to remove items 6 (Pupil Support Assistants) and 10 (Library and Information 

Service – New Ways of Working); and  
(ii)  to otherwise note the updates as contained within the statement. 
 
 
REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING (ECS/12/056) 
 
7. With reference to article 4 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Head of Finance 
which advised members of the current year revenue budget performance to date for 
the Service, and outlined any areas of risk and management action being taken in 
this regard. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i)  to request that officers monitor the long term absence rate of teachers, and 

provide updates on this in future monitoring reports; 
(ii) to request officers to provide an update on status of ECS_E37 (Change the 

Delivery Model of Music Tuition); 
(iii) to note the forecast outturn on the revenue budget and the information on 

areas of risk and management action being taken; and 
(iv) to instruct officers to continue to review budget performance, and report on 

Service strategies. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



CAPITAL MONITORING (EPI/12/213)  
 
8. With reference to article 8 of the minute of its meeting of 23 February, 2012, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport which detailed the capital spend to date for Service projects included within 
the non housing capital programme. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to note the current position.  
 
 
DRUGS ACTION FUNDING (ECS/12/048)  
 
9. The Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Education, 
Culture and Sport which requested approval for a contract to be entered into 
between the Council and Drugs Action, in order for this organisation to provide 
drugs education services in a partnership initiative with the Youth Development 
team. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to approve that Drugs Action be identified as the delivery partner for this 

project due to the specialist nature of the work;  
(ii) to approve that a contract be entered into with Drugs Action without 

obtaining quotes from any other providers; and  
(iii) to approve the expenditure of £14, 918.72 from the Education, Culture and 

Sport budget to be paid to Drugs Action for the period from December, 2012 
until July, 2013.  

 
 
COMMUNITY CENTRES – PROGRESS TOWARDS IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW 
LEASE AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (ECS/12/050)  
 
10. With reference to article 7 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of 
Education, Culture and Sport which updated members (1) in relation to moving 
community centres to the “leased” type model, and (2) on the current position of the 
seven community centres which had leases that were operating on the basis of tacit 
relocation, and were due to come to an end on 28 November, 2012.  
 
With reference to article 4 of this minute, the Committee heard from (1) Andy Cowie 
and Alex Mess – Powis Community Centre, (2) Paul O'Connor – Chair of Inchgarth 
Community Centre, (3) Scott Beattie – Vice Chair of Inchgarth Community 
Centre, (4)  Phil D'Arcy, Wilma Mackland and Brian Allan - Community Learning 
Centres Forum, (5) David Forbes, Chairman, Future Choices, (6) Marie Adams, 
Create Aberdeen, and (7)  Sylvia Davidson (who spoke both in relation to this item 
and item 9.2 of the agenda). At this juncture, Councillor McCaig asked if the 
Convener would consider revisiting the decision to take item 9.2 of the agenda in 
private, depending on the information forthcoming from Mrs Davidson. The 
Convener indicated that this decision would not be revisited.  
 
Mr Cowie and Mr Mess intimated that the personable liability issue was the biggest 
concern for them and asked that the matter be deferred for consideration at a later 
date; Mr O’Connor also raised the issue of personal liability and suggested that he 

Page 4



was being asked to sign a schedule that he had not had sight of; Mr Beattie 
advised that a petition had been set up online, and read out a number of the 
comments which had been logged in this regard; Mr D’Arcy, Ms Mackland and Mr 
Allan asked that all parties get back around the table for further discussions; Mr 
Forbes spoke about the importance of the community centres in relation to the 
disabled community; Ms Adams suggested that the Council was ignoring the needs 
of vulnerable people in the city; and Mrs Davidson requested that members take 
decisions on this day in the best interest of the community centres.  
 
Members asked a number of questions of the deputations. 
 
The Service Manager for Communities introduced the report and circulated a 
supplementary paper which updated members on the position of different centres in 
relation to signing up to the new lease agreements, and legal negotiations which 
had been ongoing. The supplementary paper also advised that in 2011, Ruthrieston 
community centre had become a leased centre, at which time the individuals 
involved decided to set up a new management committee to run the centre. The 
previous management committee, which had been responsible for running the 
centre prior to the transfer to the leased model took a decision at that time to 
dissolve and transfer all their funds to the new management committee.  
 
In working through the paperwork involved in transferring the funds, it had emerged 
that the former management committee did not have a dissolution clause in its 
constitution. In the absence of such a clause, the Education, Culture and Sport 
Committee was (as parent committee of the former management committee) was 
requested to agree to the transfer of funds to the new Ruthrieston management 
committee. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee: 
(a) notes the progress of the Balnagask, Balgownie, Catherine Street, Froghall, 

Inchgarth, Sheddocksley and Tillydrone community centres, where the 
leases are continuing on the basis of tacit relation, onto the new lease and 
management agreement arrangements’; 

(b) in respect of these centres, where the management committee has been 
unable or unwilling to sign up to the new lease and management agreement 
prior to 28 November 2012, for each of these community centres, to either: 

(1) instruct officers to provide a temporary licence for the 
management committee, within the same terms and conditions 
of the new lease and management agreement, through to 31 
January 2013 (with the exception of constitutional 
requirements: the association may still be in the process of 
amending their constitution to one that meets the requirements 
of the lease and management agreement), or 

(2) note that the management committee will cease to be legally 
responsible for, and will have no right to legally occupy the 
community centre from midnight on 28 November 2012, and 
instruct Council officers to take appropriate legal steps to 
terminate the occupancy and arrange to provide an interim 
service from, or mothball that community centre, until such time 
as a new management committee can be put in place, or 

(3) confirm that the management committee will cease to legally 
be responsible for, and will have no right to legally occupy the 

Page 5



community centre from midnight on 28 November 2012, and 
instruct Council officers to take appropriate legal steps to 
terminate the occupancy and arrange to put in place a 
sustainable programme under the responsibility and 
management of the Council, or 

(4) confirm that the management committee will cease to legally 
be responsible for, and will have no right to legally occupy the 
community centre from midnight on 28 November 2012, and 
instruct Council officers to take appropriate legal steps to 
terminate the occupancy and mothball the community centre in 
the interim and report back with recommendations for the 
centre following the conclusion of the community asset review. 

(all of the above subject to clause 5.2.9 in the report – “it is noted that 
there may be a situation whereby officers are instructed to provide a 
temporary licence and the management committee take a decision not to 
sign such a temporary licence. In such a situation, the management 
committee will, by default, cease to be legally responsible for the community 
centre from midnight on 28 November 2012. In these cases, officers will take 
appropriate legal steps to terminate the occupancy and take action to 
provide an interim service from that centre until such time as a new 
management committee can be put in place (option 2 above)”); and  

(c) notes the progress in relation to moving the remaining community centres 
onto the new lease and management agreement. 

 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener, moved –  

that the Committee: 
(I) notes the progress of the following centres, where the leases are continuing 

on the basis of tacit relation, onto the new lease and management 
agreement arrangements: Balnagask, Balgownie, Catherine Street, 
Froghall, Inchgarth, Sheddocksley and Tillydrone community centres; 

(II) in respect of these centres, where the management committee has been 
unable or unwilling to sign up to the new lease and management 
agreement prior to 28 November 2012, for each of these community 
centres, to instruct officers to provide a temporary licence for the 
management committee, within the same terms and conditions of the new 
lease and management agreement, through to 31 January 2013 (with the 
exception of constitutional requirements: the association may still be in the 
process of amending their constitution to one that meets the requirements 
of the lease and management agreement), subject to clause 5.2.9 in the 
report; 

(III) notes the progress in relation to moving the remaining community centres 
onto the new lease and management agreement; 

(IV)   instructs officers to introduce a scheme (including setting criteria) whereby 
Associations will be invited to apply to the Council around about 
November/December for financial assistance/contribution towards any 
outstanding or identified external repairs for which they are liable, but are 
struggling to afford; 

(V) approves the transfer of the funds from the former Ruthrieston 
management committee to the current Ruthrieston management 
committee; and  

(VI) instructs officers to offer management committees who do not wish to sign 
up to the lease and management agreement, an alternative option whereby 
the affected Community Centre would still require to sign a licence to 

Page 6



occupy prior to the 28 November 2012, but once the lease expires on 31 
January 2013, would be operated in the same way as a community centre 
attached to a school: i.e. it would be run and managed by the Council, with 
the management committee inputting into the development of a programme 
at that site. In this situation, the management committee would no longer 
be entitled to a Development Grant (from 1 February 2013 onwards), but 
would still be eligible to receive £625 per year for the purpose of purchasing 
insurance. It is understood that the transition to such a model may require a 
reduction in programme at the affected site. 

 
Councillor Stewart, seconded by Councillor Greig, moved as an amendment –  
that the Committee: 
(A) notes the content of the report; 
(B) instructs officers to continue discussions on the basis the Council will be 

responsible for external maintenance of lease centres;  
(C) agrees to allow community centres to continue to occupy the buildings 

during negotiations on the basis of a licence to occupy until December, 
2013; 

(D) agrees that the Council will not take any action against individual 
community centre members; and further that no personal liability of 
committee members will be incurred or pursued; 

(E) note for clarity, that none of clause 5.2.9 is to be included;  
(F) approves that funding required will be taken from reserves; and  
(G) approves the transfer of the funds from the former Ruthrieston 

management committee to the current Ruthrieston management 
committee. 

 
Councillor Townson, seconded by Councillor McCaig, moved as a further 
amendment –  

that the Committee: 
(i) notes the progress of the Balnagask, Balgownie, Catherine Street, Froghall, 

Inchgarth, Sheddocksley and Tillydrone community centres, where the 
leases are continuing on the basis of tacit relation, onto the new lease and 
management agreement arrangements; 

(ii) in respect of any centres where the management committee have been 
unable to sign up to the new lease and management agreement prior to 28 
November, 2012 because of legal requirements upon them to make 
amendments to the constitution to allow employees to be committee 
member office bearers and where such changes to be effected involves the 
holding of an extraordinary general meeting requiring 28 days notification, 
committee instructs officers to provide a temporary licence for such 
management committee with the same terms and conditions as the new 
lease and management agreement, subject to (iv) below, through to 31 
January, 2013; 

(iii) instructs that the Development Grant should be reinstated for such centres 
through to 31 January, 2013; 

(iv) instructs that the management committee of any leased community centre 
can request the Council to fund a repair; Council can decide if this can be 
afforded by the Council; having full regard to health and safety issues if the 
Council decides not to fund such a repair that neither the management 
committee nor the Association such management committee represents 
shall be legally burdened in any way and shall not have to accept 
responsibility to fund this work but may however choose to fund this work; if 

Page 7



such a repair cannot be afforded by the Council and has implications 
regarding health and safety issues, officers should refer this back to this 
Committee for decision to terminate the lease; 

(v) notes the progress in relation to moving the remaining community centres 
to the new lease and management agreement; and  

(vi) approves the transfer of the funds from the former Ruthrieston management 
committee to the current Ruthrieston management committee. 

 
On a division between the amendment by Councillor Stewart and the amendment 
by Councillor Townson, the votes cast were as follows: amendment by Councillor 
Stewart (2) – Councillors Greig and Stewart; amendment by Councillor Townson (8) 
– Councillors Cameron, Jaffrey, McCaig, May, Noble, Samarai, Townson and 
Reverend McKenna; declined to vote (14) – the Convener, the Vice Convener and 
Councillors Boulton, Cooney, Lesley Dunbar, Grant, Lawrence, Jean Morrison, 
Taylor and Young, Mr Maclean, Mr Nicoll, Mrs Tree, and Mrs Wischik; absent from 
the division (2) – Mr Duncan and Mr Paul.  
 
On a division between the motion and the amendment by Councillor Townson, the 
votes cast were as follows: for the motion (14) – the Convener, the Vice Convener, 
and Councillors Boulton, Cooney, Lesley Dunbar, Grant, Lawrence, Jean Morrison, 
Taylor and Young, Mr Maclean, Mr Nicoll, Mrs Tree, and Mrs Wischik; for the 
amendment (9) – Councillors Cameron, Greig, Jaffrey, McCaig, May, Noble, 
Samarai, Stewart and Townson; declined to vote (1) – Reverend McKenna; absent 
from the division (2) – Mr Duncan and Mr Paul. 

  
The Committee resolved: 
to adopt the successful motion. 
 
In terms of Standing Order 36(3), Councillor McCaig intimated he would like 
to refer this decision to the next meeting of full Council (19 December, 2012) 
for final determination. Councillor McCaig was supported by Councillors 
Cameron, Greig, Jaffrey, McCaig, May, Noble, Samarai, Stewart and Townson.  
 
In terms of Standing Order 36(6), the Convener ruled that such a reference 
would have the effect of depriving the Council of the opportunity to make a 
meaningful or effective determination on the matter of this Committee’s 
decision, due to the timescales involved.  
 
In terms of Standing Order 15(6), Councillors Cameron, Greig, Jaffrey, 
McCaig, May, Noble, Samarai, Stewart and Townson declared dissent in 
relation to the preceding Committee decision.  
 
 
AUDIT OF COMMUNITY LEARNING AND DEVLOPMENT AND LIBRARY 
PROVISION (ECS/12/049)  
 
11. With reference to article 6 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of 
Education, Culture and Sport which updated members on the ongoing work to audit 
the provision of community learning and development within Aberdeen, a 
requirement placed on Aberdeen’s Community Planning Partnership by the Scottish 
Government through the recently published “Strategic Guidance for Community 
Planning Partnerships: Community Learning and Development”.  

Page 8



 
The Committee resolved: 
to note the progress of this project, and to request an update on the outcomes of 
the consultation and other related streams of work in April/May 2013.  
 
 
REVIEW OF INCLUSION: PUPIL SUPPORT ASSISTANTS – IMPACT SURVEY 
(ECS/12/055)  
 
12. With reference to article 17 of the minute of its meeting of 23 February, 
2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Education, 
Culture and Sport which presented the views of teachers, trades unions, pupil 
support assistants, parents and head teachers on the reduction in pupil support 
assistant allocations.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to note the outcome of the impact survey; 
(ii) to note that continuing personal development issues which were identified in 

the previous impact survey were being progressed;  
(iii) to instruct officers (1) to take account of the findings of the review within the 

overarching Review of Inclusion, and (2) to report back to a future meeting; 
and  

(iv) to instruct officers to investigate setting up a central fund to enable  schools 
to apply for additional pupil support assistant resources, subject to the 
Finance and Resources Committee considering this as part of the budget 
process. 

 
 
YOUTH IN ACTION PROGRAMME (ECS/12/051)  
 
13. The Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Education, 
Culture and Sport which advised as to the Council’s role within the newly funded 
Youth in Action Project (Promoting and Empowering Creative Resourceful, 
Enterprising Youngsters in Europe), and outlined the benefits that participating in 
the project would have on the Education, Culture and Sport Service.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
 (i) to approve the Council’s participation in the European Commission Youth in 

Action programme for the project “Creative - Promoting and Empowering 
Creative Resourceful, Enterprising Youngsters in Europe”;  

(ii) to note the success of the Service in drawing down external funding from 
Europe for this initiative; and  

(iii) to request that feedback from those who attend be collated and fed back to 
members of this Committee. 

 
 
SPORTS GRANT (ECS/12/057)  
 
14. With reference to article 12 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of 
Education, Culture and Sport which presented an application for financial 
assistance from Aberdeen Sports Council. 
 

Page 9



The report recommended: 
that the Committee –  
(a) does not award a Sports Grant to Aberdeen Sports Council at this time; 
(b) instructs officers to continue to work with Aberdeen Sports Council to 

develop their capacity to meet the Council’s grant requirements; 
(c) notes that should the identified areas for development be achieved and the 

Council’s requirements be met, Aberdeen Sports Council will be eligible to 
reapply for a Sports Grant; and  

(d)  approves the allocation of £4,500, from the Sports Grants budget, towards a 
Interim Coach and Volunteer Development Grant Programme, to be 
administered by the Council, in order to ensure that this support is 
maintained.  

 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener, moved: 
 that the report’s recommendations be approved.  
 
Councillor Greig, seconded by Councillor McCaig, moved as an amendment: 
 that Aberdeen Sports Council’s request for financial assistance be approved.  
 
On a division, the votes cast were as follows: for the motion (11) – the Convener; 
the Vice Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Cooney, Lesley Dunbar, Lawrence, 
Jean Morrison, Taylor and Young; Mr Maclean and Mr Nicoll; for the amendment 
(7) – Councillors Cameron, Greig, McCaig, May, Noble, Samarai, and Townson; 
declined to vote (3) – Reverend McKenna, Mrs Tree and Mrs Wischik; absent from 
the division (5) – Councillors Grant, Jaffrey and Stewart, Mr Duncan and Mr Paul.  
 
The Committee resolved 
(i) to approve the successful motion; and  
(ii)  to request that in future, external members of the Committee be provided 

with access to all papers placed in the members’ lounge. 
 
 
PERFORMANCE REPORT (ECS/12/058) 
 
15. With reference to article 15 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012, the Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of 
Education, Culture and Sport which provided members with a summary of 
performance of the Service up to 30 September, 2012. 
 
Members were circulated a replacement document for pages 211 and 212 of the 
report, which provided an update on the reports of violence against school staff in 
2011/12.  
 
The Committee resolved 
(i) to approve the performance report for the period up to 30 September, 2012; 
(ii) to approve the briefing note on the Scottish Qualification Authority attainment 

2011/12;  
(iii) to approve the briefing note on violent incidents against Aberdeen city 

school staff in 2011/12; and  
(iv) to request that officers provide members with information on comparator 

authorities.  
 
 

Page 10



In terms of the decision taken at article 3 of this minute, the following items 
were considered with the press and public excluded. 
 
 
PROVISION FOR CHILDREN WITH ADDITIONAL SUPPORT NEEDS 
 
16. With reference to article 16 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012, the Committee heard from the Acting Director of Education, 
Culture and Sport and the General Manager – Asset Manager who provided an 
update on the potential site for the new school with provision for children with 
additional support needs. 
 
Members noted the intention of officers to report to the appropriate committee at 
the earliest possible date.  
 
The Committee resolved 
to note the update provided by the Acting Director and General Manager – Asset 
Management.  
 
 
COMMUNITY CENTRES – CURRENT ISSUES (ECS/12/059)  
 
17. With reference to article 7 of the minute of its previous meeting of 20 
September, 2012, and article 10 of this minute, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Acting Director of Education, Culture and Sport which advised 
members on a number of operational issues in relation to a number of community 
centres.  
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee –  
(a) instructs officers to work with the existing Woodside community centre 

management committee to strengthen their capacity, or if there is no 
evidence of any management committee at this location, to put in place 
support to develop a new management committee which can input into the 
development of the programme within the community wing of Woodside 
Fountain Centre; 

(b) agrees that due to the multiple occupancy of the building, the community 
wing of Woodside Fountain Centre, Woodside community centre, will not 
transfer to the new leased centre model, but will revert to the responsibility of 
the Council, with a local management committee inputting into the 
programming of the community wing within the building; 

(c) agrees that the management committees connected to the Woodside 
community centre will be provided with a grant of £625 per year, for the 
purpose of purchasing indemnity insurance, and public liability and 
employers insurances; 

(d) instructs officers to consult with the management committees for Cummings 
Park community centre and Henry Rae community centre on a proposal to 
merge these two community centres, and report back to this committee on 
the outcome of the consultation; and  

(e) declares Woodside Burgh Hall surplus to the requirements of the Education, 
Culture and Sport Service. 

 
 

Page 11



The Convener, seconded by the Vice Convener, moved: 
 that the report’s recommendations be approved.  
 
Councillor Townson, seconded by Councillor McCaig, moved as an amendment: 
 that the Committee:  

(1) instructs officers to work with the existing Woodside community centre 
management committee and fully support them in transition to the 
new leased model status; 

(2) recognises the successful multiple occupancy of the Woodside 
Fountain Centre and the value of the Woodside community centre 
management committee maximising usage of the majority of the floor 
space in the building and voluntarily running with great enthusiasm 
and commitment, an extensive programme such committee being the 
mainstay of the general running of the building; 

(3) instructs officers to expedite Woodside community centre 
management committee applying for full development grant 
entitlement to ensure continuation of such great voluntary works; 

(4)  in respect of Cumming Park community centre and Henry Rae 
community centre, in the light of serious failings at both centres, to 
instruct officers to support volunteers to rebuild their confidence and 
the capacity of such volunteers to continue to operate as leased 
community centres as separate entities serving their respective 
communities at their existing locations; 

(5) to declare Woodside Burgh Hall surplus to the requirements of the 
Education, Culture and Sport Service. 

 
 
On a division, the votes cast were as follows: for the motion (14) – the Convener, 
the Vice Convener, and Councillors Boulton, Cooney Lesley Dunbar, Lawrence, 
Jean Morrison, Taylor and Young, Mr Maclean, Reverend McKenna, Mr Nicoll, Mrs 
Tree and Mrs Wischik; for the amendment (6) – Councillors Cameron, Greig, 
McCaig, Noble, Samarai and Townson; absent from the division (6) – Councillors 
Grant, Jaffrey, May and Stewart, Mr Duncan and Mr Paul.  
 
The Committee resolved 
to approve the successful motion.  
- JENNIFER LAING, Convener 
 

Page 12



 
CULTURE AND SPORT SUB COMMITTEE 

  
 ABERDEEN, 7 November, 2012 - minute of meeting of the CULTURE AND 

SPORT SUB COMMITTEE.  Present:  Councillor Laing (Convener); and 
Councillors Boulton, Cameron, Jean Morrison (as substitute for Councillor 
Lesley Dunbar), Jennifer Stewart, Thomson and Townson.  

 
 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be accessed at the 
following link: 
http://councilcommittees.acc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=470&MId=27
06&Ver=4 
 
 
CONVENER’S WELCOME 
 
1. The Convener welcomed members and officers to the inaugural meeting of 
the Culture and Sport Committee.  
 
 
ITEM WITHDRAWN 
 
2. Members noted that item 7 of the agenda (Presentation – Review of Arts and 
Sports Organisations) had been withdrawn, and that a report would instead be 
presented at the next meeting.  
 
 
ORDERS OF REFERENCE  
 
3. With reference to article 9 of the minute of meeting of the Education, Culture 
and Sport Committee of 20 September, 2012, members had before them the 
Orders of Reference of the Sub Committee for information.  
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to note the Orders of Reference of the Sub Committee.  
 
 
DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
4. The Sub Committee had before it a list of proposed dates and times of future 
meetings. It was noted that meetings after the summer recess would be scheduled 
as part of the Council diary, which would be agreed by full Council in due course.  
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to agree that the Sub Committee would meet in the Town House at 10 am on the 
following dates –  

• Thursday 10 January, 2013 
• Friday 8 March, 2013 
• Thursday 2 May, 2013.  

 
 

Agenda Item 1.2

Page 13



SCHEDULE OF REPORTS  
 
5. The Sub Committee had before it a report by the Head of Communities, 
Culture and Sport which presented a proposed schedule of reports to be submitted 
to future meetings.  
 
An extensive discussion took place around potential declarations of interest, and 
the clerk to the Sub Committee reminded members to take cognisance of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct at all times, and urged members to seek advice on 
potential declarations of interest at the earliest opportunity.   
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
(i) to approve the schedule as appended to the report; and  
(ii) to instruct officers to request the attendance of the Chief Executives of Sport 

Aberdeen, Aberdeen Performing Arts, and Aberdeen Sports Village to attend 
meetings of this Sub Committee in accordance with the schedule.  

 
 
SPORTS GRANTS  
 
6. The Sub Committee had before it a report by the Head of Communities, 
Culture and Sport which presented applications for financial assistance from five 
sports organisations.  
 
Members requested that in future more detail be provided in the narrative section of 
the report in order that members have all of the information available to them in 
order to make an informed decision on each application.  
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to approve funding to organisations as follows –  
  (1) Aberdeen Secondary Schools Football Association - £1,000 
  (2) Hazlehead Netball Club - £317.50 
  (3) Silver City Blues Swimming Club - £1,700 
  (4) Special Olympics Grampian Area – Ski Group - £4,900 

(5) Wrestlezone - £0. 
 
 
ABERDEEN AQUATICS CENTRE / 50 METRE POOL – BULLETIN REPORT  
 
7. The Sub Committee had before it an information bulletin by the Service 
Manager for Culture and Sport which brought members up to date with progress on 
the construction of the 50 metre pool at Aberdeen Sports Village.  
 
Officers confirmed that they were in active discussion with Aberdeenshire Council 
regarding its contribution to the revenue funding of the 50 metre pool.  
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to note the content of the bulletin.  
 
 
 
 

Page 14



BON ACCORD INDOORE BOWLING CENTRE AND BON ACCORD 2000 
BOWLING CLUB – BULLETIN REPORT 
 
8. The Sub Committee had before it an information bulletin by the Service 
Manager for Culture and Sport which advised as to the wind up of the Bon Accord 
Indoor Bowling Club, and updated members on developments relating to Bon 
Accord Bowing Club and the Skyline restaurant which were leased to the Council.  
 
 
The Sub Committee resolved: 
to note the content of the bulletin.   
 - COUNCILLOR JENNIFER LAING, Convener 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ED
UC

AT
IO

N,
 C

UL
TU

RE
 A

ND
 SP

OR
T  

 
 C

OM
MI

TT
EE

 B
US

IN
ES

S 
 

JA
NU

AR
Y 2

01
3 

 
Ple

as
e n

ote
 th

at 
thi

s s
tat

em
en

t c
on

tai
ns

 a 
no

te 
of 

ev
ery

 re
po

rt 
wh

ich
 ha

s b
ee

n i
ns

tru
cte

d f
or

 su
bm

iss
ion

 to
 th

is 
Co

mm
itte

e. 
Al

l o
the

r a
cti

on
s w

hic
h 

ha
ve

 be
en

 in
str

uc
ted

 by
 th

e C
om

mi
tte

e a
re 

no
t in

clu
de

d, 
as

 th
ey

 ar
e d

ee
me

d t
o b

e o
pe

rat
ion

al 
ma

tte
rs 

aft
er 

the
 po

int
 of

 co
mm

itte
e d

ec
isi

on
. 

 
 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte

e D
ec

isi
on

 
 Up

da
te 

 
Le

ad
 

Of
fic

er(
s) 

Re
po

rt 
Du

e  
(ite

ms
 in

 
bo

ld 
are

 
ov

erd
ue

) 

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

1. 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
07
/06

/12
 

art
icle

 9 

Sc
ho

ol 
Es

tat
es

 R
ev

iew
 

 Of
fic
ers

 w
ere

 in
str
uc
ted

 to
 b

rin
g 

ba
ck
 a

 
fur

the
r r

ep
ort

, s
um

ma
ris
ing

 th
e 

fee
db
ac
k 

fro
m 

the
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
ex
erc

ise
, a

nd
 se

ttin
g 

ou
t d

eta
ile
d o

pti
on
s a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 

for
 a
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 S
ch
oo
l E

sta
te 

Pla
n 
to 

the
 

No
ve
mb

er 
20
12
 E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 C
om

mi
tte
e m

ee
tin
g. 

 

  A 
rep

or
t i

s 
on

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 a

nd
 a

n 
ad

dit
ion

al 
me

eti
ng

 
of 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

is 
be

ing
 h

eld
 o

n 
7 

Fe
br

ua
ry 

on
 th

is 
ma

tte
r. 

He
ad
 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt,
 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

31
/01

/13
 

 

2. 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

  
02
/06

/11
 

art
icle

 12
 

St
rat

eg
ic 

Mu
sic

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 – 
Bi

g N
ois

e: 
Sis

tem
a S

co
tla

nd
 

 Th
e C

om
mi
tte
e r

es
olv

ed
: 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 to
 a

 fu
tur

e 
me

eti
ng
 of

 th
e C

om
mi
tte
e o

n t
he
 pr

op
os
ed
 

bu
sin

es
s 
mo

de
l, 
cri
ter

ia 
for

 id
en
tify

ing
 a
n 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
co
mm

un
ity
, 

an
d 

po
ss
ibl
e 

fun
din

g s
ou
rce

s. 
 

 A 
ve

rb
al 

up
da

te 
wi

ll b
e p

ro
vid

ed
 at

 
the

 m
ee

tin
g. 

   
He

ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

22
/11

/12
 

 

3. 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
24
/03

/11
 

art
icle

 19
 & 

15
/09

/11
 

art
icle

 13
 

Re
du

ce
d 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 
Te

am
 / 

Le
as

ed
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 C
en

tre
s –

  
 to 

ins
tru

ct 
the

 D
ire
cto

r 
of 

Ed
uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 
to 

rev
iew

 th
e n

um
be
r o

f 
co
mm

un
ity
 fa

cili
tie
s 
wit

hin
 A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
, 

as
 
pa
rt 

of 
the

 
wid

er 
se
rvi
ce
 
as
se
t 

A 
rev

iew
 

of 
the

 
nu
mb

er 
of 

co
mm

un
ity
 fa

cili
tie
s 
wil

l b
e 

ca
rrie

d 
ou
t a

s p
art

 of
 th

e a
na
lys

is 
of 

fun
de
d 

ac
tiv
ity
, a

nd
 a
n 

int
eri
m 

rep
ort

 w
as
 

pre
se
nte

d t
o t
he
 m
ee
tin
g o

f 7
 Ju

ne
.  

 An
 in
ter

im
 re

po
rt 
wa

s p
res

en
ted

 la
st 

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

au
tum

n 
20
13
      

 

Agenda Item 1.3

Page 17



 
Mi

nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce

 
  C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 

are
 

ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

  
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
pla

n 
for

 E
du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt. 

 
cy
cle

.   
 Up

da
te:

 
Th

is 
is 
inc

lud
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e r

ev
iew

 
of 

pro
vis

ion
 o
f c

om
mu

nit
y 
lea

rni
ng
 

an
d 
lib
rar

y a
nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n 
se
rvi
ce
s 

as
 ag

ree
d a

t th
e m

ee
tin
g o

f 2
2/1

1/1
2 

an
d 

for
ms

 p
art

 o
f i

tem
 9

 o
n 

thi
s 

sta
tem

en
t. 

 
An

 
up
da
te 

on
 
the

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w

ill 
be
 re

po
rte

d 
to 

the
 

co
mm

itte
e 

in 
Ma

y 
20
13
 a

nd
 f
ull
 

rep
ort

 on
 au

tum
n 2

01
3. 
  

 
 

4. 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
24
/03

/11
 

art
icle

 10
 & 

07
/06

/12
 ar

tic
le 

18
 

Pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r C

hil
dr

en
 W

ith
 A

dd
itio

na
l 

Su
pp

or
t N

ee
ds

 – 
Ra

ed
en

 
 At 

its
 m
ee
tin
g o

f th
e 7

/06
/12

, th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e r

es
olv

ed
: 

(i) 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off
ice

rs 
to 

un
de
rta

ke
 fu

rth
er 

de
tai
led

 
inv

es
tig
ati
on
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 

gro
un
d, 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l a

nd
 e
co
log

ica
l 

su
rve

ys
, a

nd
 to

 e
nte

r i
nto

 d
isc

us
sio

n 
wit

h 
pla

nn
ing

 
off
icia

ls 
on
 

the
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r t
he
 tw

o 
pre

fer
red

 si
tes

 –
 G

ran
ite
hil
l R

oa
d 
an
d 

for
me

r S
mi
thf
iel
d S

ch
oo
l; a

nd
 

(ii)
 to

 in
str
uc
t t
he
 G

en
era

l M
an
ag
er,

 A
ss
et 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
to 

pro
vid

e M
em

be
rs 

wit
h 

co
sts

 a
nd
 ti
me

sc
ale

s 
for

 u
nd
ert

ak
ing

 
the

se
 su

rve
ys
. 

 

 A 
ve
rba

l u
pd
ate

 w
as
 pr

ov
ide

d a
t th

e 
las

t m
ee
tin
g. 
    

He
ad
 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

22
/11

/12
 

 

5. 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
27
/05

/10
 

art
icle

 14
 & 

18
/11

/10
 ar

tic
le 

Pr
og

res
s 

rep
or

t 
on

 
pr

op
os

als
 

to 
red

ev
elo

p 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
Ar

t 
Ga

lle
ry 

an
d 

rep
or

t 
on

 i
mp

ro
vin

g 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

the
 

Mu
se

um
s a

nd
 G

all
eri

es
 co

lle
cti

on
s 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ins
tru

cte
d 

off
ice

rs 
to 

Up
da

te:
 

Ap
pro

va
l w

as
 g

ran
ted

 to
 s

ub
mi
t a

 
fun

din
g 
ap
pli
ca
tio
n 
to 

the
  
He

rita
ge
 

Lo
tte
ry 

Fu
nd
 a
t t
he
 U

rge
nt 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Co
mm

itte
e o

f 2
9 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2. 

An
 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n 
ha
s 
be
en
 s
ub
mi
tte
d 
an
d 

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

 
28
/03

/13
 

Page 18



 
Mi

nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce

 
  C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 

are
 

ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

21
 & 

07
/06

/12
 

art
icle

 19
 

pre
pa
re 

a c
ap
ita
l b

us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 fo

r f
urt

he
r 

co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 a
nd
 re

po
rt 
to 

the
 E
du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 1

6/0
9/1

0, 
an
d F

ina
nc
e a

nd
 R
es
ou
rce

s C
om

mi
tte
e o

n 
28
/09

/10
, t
o 
inc

lud
e 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
s 
on
 

the
 m

os
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

op
tio
n 
to 

red
ev
elo

p 
the

 A
rt G

all
ery

, a
nd
 on

 th
e c

om
mi
tm
en
t th

e 
Co

un
cil 

is 
be
ing

 re
qu
es
ted

 to
 m

ak
e a

t th
at 

sta
ge
. 

At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 
of 

07
/16

/12
, t
he
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

res
olv

ed
: 

to 
rep

ort
 to

 C
om

mi
tte
e 
in 

ad
va
nc
e 
of 

the
 

de
ad
lin
e 

to 
ma

ke
 a

n 
ap
pli
ca
tio
n 

to 
the

 
He

rita
ge
 L

ott
ery

 F
un
d, 

to 
de
ter

mi
ne
 th

e 
Co

un
cil’

s 
fin
an
cia

l a
nd
 w

ide
r c

om
mi
tm
en
t 

to 
the

 ov
era

ll d
ev
elo

pm
en
t. 

 

the
 o

utc
om

e 
is 

ex
pe
cte

d 
in 

Sp
rin
g 

20
13
. 

 

6. 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
24
/03

/11
 

art
icle

 15
 & 

07
/06

/12
 ar

tic
le 

13
 

Mo
ve

 to
 a 

Cu
ltu

ral
 Tr

us
t 

 To
 i
ns
tru

ct 
the

 D
ire
cto

r 
of 

Ed
uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt t

o p
rog

res
s, 
by
 w
ay
 of
 an

 
off
ice

rs’
 

wo
rki
ng
 

gro
up
, 

an
 

op
tio
ns
 

ap
pra

isa
l o

n 
the

 tr
an
sfe

r o
f s

erv
ice

s 
to 

a 
cu
ltu
ral
 tru

st,
 an

d t
ha
t th

e o
pti
on
s a

pp
rai
sa
l 

(1)
 in

clu
de
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 w
hic

h s
erv

ice
s 

co
uld

 
tra

ns
fer

, 
inc

lud
ing

 
the

 
Be

ac
h 

Ba
llro

om
, 

(2)
 

ex
am

ine
 

a 
pre

fer
red

 
go
ve
rna

nc
e 
mo

de
l, i

nc
lud

ing
 th

e 
op
tio
n 
of 

co
mm

un
ity
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of 

as
se
ts,
 an

d (
3) 

to 
req

ue
st 

tha
t t
he
 o
pti
on
s 
ap
pra

isa
l in

clu
de
 

SW
OT

 an
aly

sis
 an

d o
pti
on
s f
or 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
; a

nd
 to

 re
po
rt 
the

 fin
din

gs
 of

 
the

 o
pti
on
s 

ap
pra

isa
l 
to 

Co
mm

itte
e 

by
 

24
/11

/11
.  

 At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 
of 

07
/06

/12
, t
he
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

 Up
da

te:
 

Dis
cu
ss
ion

s 
are

 c
on
tin
uin

g 
wit

h 
ke
y 

pa
rtn

ers
. A

 re
po
rt w

ill b
e s

ub
mi
tte
d t

o 
the

 ne
xt 
co
mm

itte
e. 
 

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

22
/11

/12
 

28
/03

/13
 

Page 19



 
Mi

nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce

 
  C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 

are
 

ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

ag
ree

d: 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 to
 a

 fu
tur

e 
me

eti
ng
 of

 th
e C

om
mi
tte
e o

n t
he
 ou

tco
me

 
of 
 th
e d

isc
us
sio

ns
 an

d a
pp
rai
sa
l. 

 
7. 

Ed
uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
15
/03

/11
 

art
icle

 15
 & 

23
/02

/12
 ar

tic
le 

12
 

Ne
wh

ills
 Pr

im
ary

 Sc
ho

ol 
 

 Th
e C

om
mi
tte
e a

gre
ed
 to

 as
k t

he
 F
ina

nc
e 

an
d 
Re

so
urc

es
 C

om
mi
tte
e 
to 

ea
rm

ark
 th

e 
lan

d 
at 

Ne
wh

ills
 

Sc
ho
ol 

for
 

fut
ure

 
ed
uc
ati
on
al 

us
e, 

su
bje

ct 
to 

the
 S

co
ttis

h 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t a

gre
ein

g 
to 

tra
ns
fer

 th
e 
sit
e 

fro
m 

the
 H

RA
 t
o 

the
 G

en
era

l S
erv

ice
s 

Ac
co
un
t, 

an
d 
to 

rec
eiv

e 
a 
rep

ort
 o
n 
the

 
lon

g t
erm

 us
e, 

da
te 

of 
tra

ns
fer

 an
d t

ran
sfe

r 
va
lue

 of
 th

e s
ite
, o

nc
e a

 bu
sin

es
s c

as
e a

nd
 

fun
din

g w
as
 ap

pro
ve
d f

or 
a n

ew
 sc

ho
ol 

at 
Ne

wh
ills

. 
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 
of 

23
/02

/12
, t
he
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

res
olv

ed
: 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

co
nti
nu
e 
to 

pro
gre

ss
 

the
 m

att
er 

in 
dis

cu
ss
ion

 w
ith
 S

co
ttis

h 
Fu

tur
es
 Tr

us
t, a

nd
 re

po
rt b

ac
k o

n p
rog

res
s 

an
d t
im
eli
ne
s t
o a

 fu
tur

e m
ee
tin
g. 

 

 A 
ve
rba

l u
pd
ate

 w
as
 pr

ov
ide

d a
t th

e 
las

t m
ee
tin
g. 
    

He
ad
 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
/ 

He
ad
 of
 As

se
t 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d 

Op
era

tio
ns
  

22
/11

/12
 

 

8. 
Co

un
cil 

06
/10

/11
 

art
icle

 8 
Pu

pil
 R

ep
res

en
tat

ion
 

 Co
un
cil 

res
olv

ed
: 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

pre
pa
re 

a 
ful
l r
ep
ort

 
int
o 

the
 m

em
be
rsh

ip 
of 

the
 C

om
mi
tte
e 

inc
lud

ing
 
ho
w 

be
st 

to 
ac
hie

ve
 
pu
pil
 

inv
olv

em
en
t. 

 

Up
da

te:
 

A 
Pu

pil
 V
oic

e G
rou

p w
as
 es

tab
lish

ed
 

in 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
12
. 
All
 s

ec
on
da
ry 

sc
ho
ols

 a
re 

rep
res

en
ted

 a
nd
 t

he
 

pu
pil
s 

are
 e

ng
ag
ing

 o
n 

str
ate

gic
 

iss
ue
s a

s w
ell
 a
s p

up
il l
ed
 ci

ty-
wid

e 
pro

jec
ts.
   

 A 
pro

gre
ss
 an

d e
va
lua

tio
n p

ap
er 

wil
l 

be
 pr

es
en
ted

 to
 E
CS

 co
mm

itte
e a

fte
r 

He
ad
 of
 Sc

ho
ols

 
an
d E

du
ca
tio
na
l 

Es
tab

lish
me

nts
  

22
/11

/12
 

 

Page 20



 
Mi

nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce

 
  C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 

are
 

ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

the
 en

d o
f th

is 
ac
ad
em

ic 
se
ss
ion

. 
 

9. 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
22
/11

/12
 

art
icle

 11
 

Au
dit

 
of 

Co
mm

un
ity

 
Le

arn
ing

 
an

d 
De

ve
lop

me
nt,

 an
d L

ibr
ary

 Pr
ov

isi
on

 
 To

 no
te 

the
 pr

og
res

s o
f th

is 
pro

jec
t, a

nd
 to

 
req

ue
st 

an
 up

da
te 

on
 th

e o
utc

om
es
 of

 th
e 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 a
nd
 o
the

r r
ela

ted
 s
tre

am
s 
of 

wo
rk 

in 
Ap

ril/
Ma

y 2
01
3. 
 

    

 
He

ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt  

30
/05

/13
 

 

10
.E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
22
/11

/12
 

art
icle

 12
 

Re
vie

w 
of 

Inc
lus

ion
 –

 P
up

il 
Su

pp
or

t 
As

sis
tan

ts 
 

 To
 in

str
uc
t o

ffic
ers

 (1
) t
o 
tak

e 
ac
co
un
t o

f 
the

 f
ind

ing
s 

of 
the

 r
ev
iew

 w
ith
in 

the
 

ov
era

rch
ing

 R
ev
iew

 of
 In

clu
sio

n, 
an
d (

2) 
to 

rep
ort

 ba
ck
 to
 a 
fut
ure

 m
ee
tin
g. 

 
He

ad
 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

 
 

11
.E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
22
/11

/12
 

art
icle

 17
 

Co
mm

un
ity

 C
en

tre
s –

 C
ur

ren
t Is

su
es

 
 To

 i
ns
tru

ct 
off
ice

rs 
to 

co
ns
ult
 w

ith
 t
he
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
co
mm

itte
es
 f
or 

Cu
mm

ing
s 

Pa
rk 

co
mm

un
ity
 c

en
tre

 a
nd
 H

en
ry 

Ra
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 ce

ntr
e 
on
 a
 p
rop

os
al 

to 
me

rge
 

the
se
 tw

o 
co
mm

un
ity
 c
en
tre

s, 
an
d 
rep

ort
 

ba
ck
 to

 th
is 

co
mm

itte
e 
on
 th

e 
ou
tco

me
 o
f 

the
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
. 

 A 
ve

rb
al 

up
da

te 
wi

ll 
be

 p
ro

vid
ed

 
at 

tod
ay

’s 
me

eti
ng

.  
He

ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

 
 

12
.F

ina
nc
e a

nd
 

Re
so
urc

es
 

06
/11

/12
 ar

tic
le 

21
 

Pr
ov

os
t S

ke
ne

’s 
Ho

us
e  

 To
 in

str
uc
t 
off
ice

rs 
to 

ide
nti
fy 

an
d 

co
st 

ex
ten

de
d o

pe
nin

g h
ou
rs 

at 
oth

er 
mu

se
um

s 
an
d 
the

 A
rt 

Ga
lle
ry,
 a
nd
 to

 u
nd
ert

ak
e 
a 

su
rve

y 
to 

ga
ug
e 

pu
bli
c 

de
ma

nd
 
for

 
ex
ten

de
d 

op
en
 h

ou
rs 

at 
the

se
 lo

ca
tio
ns
, 

Up
da

te:
 

Re
po
rt 

we
nt 

to 
the

 F
ina

nc
e 

an
d 

res
ou
rce

s C
om

mi
tte
e o

f 1
5 J

an
ua
ry.
 

An
 u

pd
ate

 w
ill 

co
me

 t
o 

the
 n

ex
t 

co
mm

itte
e m

ee
tin
g.  

He
ad
 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt  

28
/03

/13
 

 

Page 21



 
Mi

nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce

 
  C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 

are
 

ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

the
rea

fte
r, 
to 

rep
ort

 to
 E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

, a
nd
 F

ina
nc
e 

an
d 

Re
so
urc

es
 

Co
mm

itte
es
, w

ith
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
. 

 
 

Page 22



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Education, Culture and Sport    
 
DATE     31st January 2013  
 
DIRECTOR    Gayle Gorman  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Budget Monitoring 2012/13 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  ECS/13/006     
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to  

i) bring to Committee members notice the current year revenue  
budget performance to date for the services which relate to this 
Committee; and      

ii) advise on any areas of risk and management action. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 

i) Note this report on the forecast out-turn on the revenue budget and the 
information on areas of risk and management action that is contained 
herein;  

ii) Instruct that officers continue to review budget performance and report 
on service strategies. 

 
  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1. The total Education, Culture & Sport revenue budget, amounts to £174m 

net expenditure. This is made up of £187m of gross expenditure, offset by 
£13m of Income and recharges.  

 
3.2. Based upon present forecasts it is anticipated that the financial 

performance of the service will result in a favorable budget underspend of 
£1,292K. This is an improvement of £265K on the position reported to 
committee in November. This position will be reflected in the overall 
financial monitoring for the Council when it is reported to Finance and 
Resources Committee at the end of this Committee cycle. 

 
3.3. Further details of the financial implications are set out in section 5 and the 

appendices attached to this report. 
 

 
  
 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 23



 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Every organisation has to manage the risks inherent in the operation of 

large and complex budgets. These risks are minimised by the regular 
review of financial information by services and corporately by Members.  
This report is part of that framework and has been produced to provide an 
overview of the current operating position. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 This report informs members of the current year revenue budget 

performance to date, for the service budget  and provides high level 
summary for the consideration of Members, to period 8 (end to  November 
2012).  

 
5.2 The service report and associated notes on progress towards 

achievement of the 2012-13 savings targets are attached at Appendices A 
and B. 

 
2012-13 Approved Savings 
There are 17 approved savings, for 2012-2013 totaling £2.7M. These are 
listed at Appendix A. Against each of the savings is a narrative detailing 
the progress to date on each of these.  
The monitoring of the Budgeted Savings is being carried out by the 
Programme Management Office. At this stage, all of the savings are 
forecast to be delivered, or alternative funding has been identified 

 
5.3 Financial Position and Risks Assessment 

The current forecast revenue out-turn is an underspend of £1,292K. The 
following areas of operation are highlighted together with any 
management action being taken. 

 
a) Tullos Pool 
There is budget provision of £200K including capital financing costs within 
the 2012/13 budget.  This will not be required until 2013/14 and this 
underspend is included within the forecast. 
 
b) Out of Authority Placements 
This is an aligned budget with Social Care and Wellbeing which funds 
those costs associated with educating and accommodating children in 
specialist schools not run by Aberdeen City Council. The total aligned 
budget is £5.5M. The Education Culture and Sport part of this budget 
totals £2.4M. 
 
The latest estimate as at 30 November 2012 is that the total aligned 
budget has commitments totaling £5.9M with a net over-commitment of 
£511K.  The Education, Culture and Sport element is an over-commitment 
of £215K, which is little changed from the position reported to committee 
in November.  

Page 24



 
Officers from Education, Culture and Sport and Social Care and Wellbeing 
are continuing to work on short and long term strategies to reduce the 
number and duration of out of authority placements. This includes a series 
of rigorous case reviews and a review of current processes and alternative 
provision It should be noted that this budget is subject to external factors 
out of our direct control: the council is required to fund placements 
instructed by the Children's Panel and needs to respond to the needs of 
children and young people in crisis which will on occasion require services 
outwith the authority. Officers advise that children currently being 
reviewed may require additional resources before the year end. 
 
c) Property Costs 
Rebates of £200K are now expected in relation to pre-paid contractual 
sums covering letting and malicious damage at 3R’s schools. 
A corporate re-allocation of rates budgets has cancelled out the previous 
overspend of £130K for rates at Cults Academy 
 
(d) Letting Income 
Letting income is expected to be £80K greater than budget. This is in line 
with trends over the past year. 
It is estimated income of approximately £100K is due from Grampian 
Police and NHS Grampian in respect of those portions of the 3R’s schools 
which they currently occupy. Officers across a range of services including 
ECS,and EP&I are progressing this with NHS and Grampian Police with a 
view to finalising lease agreements and charges for the shared 
accommodation. Estimated charges have been raised during this interim 
period. 
 
(e) Teachers Long Term Absence Budget 
Expenditure is forecast to be £300K greater than the available budget.   
 
Whilst it is stressed that absence levels have not changed, costs are now 
being more fully attributed to the correct staff category rather than 
showing as an underspend in teaching budgets elsewhere.   
 
The reimbursement rates for internal cover have been reviewed and from 
September, these are now more in line with external costs as these were 
too generous.  It is hoped that this will bring final expenditure more into 
line with budget, but as yet, it is too early to tell. 
 
(f) Payments to Trusts  
A review of commitments against budget has established that there will be 
an underspend of £100k against this heading. 
 
(g) CLD Property Works 
This forecast includes provision of £160K of additional property works at 
Rosemount and Loirston CLD. 
 
(h) Provost Skene House 

Page 25



Approval was given at Finance & Resources Committee to close Provost 
Skene House due to the commencement of further work on the St 
Nicholas House Site. At that time it was intended to close Provost Skene 
House around the end of December.   This is now likely to happened 
during February 2013.  Any additional costs arising from this work in the 
current financial year will be met from within EC&S budgets. These are 
not expected to be of a material nature. 
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
6.1 Corporate – as a recognised top priority, the Council must take the 

necessary measures to balance its budget. Therefore committees and 
Services are required to work within a financial constraint. Every effort is 
being focused on delivering services more efficiently and effectively. 

 
6.2 Public – this report is likely to be of public interest due to the size of the 

budgets involved and the nature of the services provided by Education, 
Culture & Sport, a number of which are front line services delivered 
directly to citizens within the city. 

 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Brian Dow 
Finance Partner 
bdow@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224  346352 

 
Additional contributions to analysis of risks and management action by 
Director & Heads of Service – Education, Culture & Sport 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



D
et
ai
lo
fS
er
vi
ce
O
p
tio
ns
:
20
12
/1
3
-2
01
6/
17

E
D
U
C
A
T
IO
N
,
C
U
L
T
U
R
E
&
S
P
O
R
T

A
pp
en
d
ix
A

It
em
s
A
cc
ep
te
d
A
t
Fe
br
ua
ry
20
12
C
o
m
m
itt
ee

C
o
st

B
en
ef
it

N
et

S
er
vi
ce

B
en
ef
it

P
re
d
ic
te
d

S
av
in
g
s
-

F
u
ll
Y
ea
r

P
o
si
tio
n
S
ta
te
m
en
t

P
B
B
R
ef

P
ro
je
ct
N
am
e

R
es
po
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er

O
u
tli
ne
o
f
O
ri
gi
na
lP
ro
p
os
al
fo
r
A
ch
ie
vi
n
g

S
av
in
g
s

M
on
it
or
ed
/

D
el
iv
er
ed

R
A
G

S
ta
tu
s
£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

B
ri
ef
D
es
cr
ip
ti
on
o
f
C
ur
re
n
tS
ta
tu
s

E
C
S
1_
C
26

R
ed
uc
e
th
e
nu
m
be
ro
fs
pe
ci
al
is
tc
ar
e

pl
ac
em
en
ts
by
re
de
si
gn
an
d
sm
al
l

ad
di
tio
n
to
ex
is
tin
g
lo
ca
ls
er
vi
ce
s

P
at
ric
ia

C
as
si
dy

R
ed
uc
e
th
e
de
m
an
d
fo
r
ou
t-
of
-a
ut
ho
rit
y
re
si
de
nt
ia
l

pl
ac
em
en
ts
by
18
ov
er
th
e
ne
xt
5
ye
ar
s
by
:d
ev
el
op
in
g

a
lo
ca
ls
er
vi
ce
;r
et
ai
n
K
in
co
rt
h
C
hi
ld
re
ns
un
it;
us
e

on
e
sa
tte
lit
e
un
it
an
d
de
ve
lo
p
an
in
te
ns
iv
e
su
pp
or
t

an
d
m
on
ito
rin
g
se
rv
ic
e

M
on
ito
re
d

A
m
be
r

0
(2
40
)

(2
40
)

(2
40
)

T
hi
s
is
a
de
m
an
d
dr
iv
en
bu
dg
et
.
O
ffi
ce
rs
ar
e
co
nt
in
ui
ng
to

m
on
ito
rt
hi
s,
ho
w
ev
er
th
e
re
du
ct
io
n
in
co
st
co
nt
in
ue
s
to
be
at

ris
k.
O
ffi
ce
rs
co
nt
in
ue
to
st
riv
e
to
re
du
ce
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
O
ut

of
A
ut
ho
rit
y
P
la
ce
m
en
ts
th
ou
gh
de
ci
si
on
s
ca
n
be
ta
ke
n
w
hi
ch

ar
e
ou
tw
ith
O
ffi
ce
r
co
nt
ro
l.
T
he
se
de
ci
si
on
s
ha
ve
an
im
pa
ct

on
th
e
co
st
s.

E
C
S
1-
C
3

F
ut
ur
e
D
el
iv
er
y
of
C
ul
tu
ra
lS
er
vi
ce
s

N
ei
lB
ru
ce

T
ra
ns
fe
rt
he
op
er
at
io
n
of
A
rt
G
al
le
ry
an
d
M
us
eu
m
s

fr
om

th
e
C
ou
nc
il
to
a
ch
ar
ita
bl
e
tr
us
t.
R
ev
is
ed

P
ro
p
os
al
fo
r
A
ch
ie
vi
n
g
S
av
in
g
s
S
co
pe
to
in
cl
ud
e

ca
te
rin
g
ve
nu
es
(in
c
B
ea
ch
B
al
lro
om
)a
nd

lib
ra
rie
s.
C
om
bi
ne
d
w
ith
C
22
.S
av
in
g
w
ill
no
tn
ow

be
re
al
is
ed
un
til
20
13
/1
4
bu
th
as
be
en
m
et
fr
om

el
se
w
he
re
w
ith
in
th
e
se
rv
ic
e.

M
on
ito
re
d

G
re
en

0
(8
5)

(8
5)

(8
5)
C
ha
ng
e
co
nt
ro
ld
on
e
to
br
in
g
to
ge
th
er
C
3
an
d
C
22
.
K
P
M
G

ha
s
be
en
co
m
m
is
si
on
ed
to
un
de
rt
ak
e
P
ha
se
2
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

w
or
k
w
ith
R
G
U
an
d
th
e
U
ni
ve
rs
ity
of
A
be
rd
ee
n.

E
C
S
_E
11

C
ity
C
am
pu
s
S
en
io
rP
ha
se

D
er
ek
S
am
so
n

In
ye
ar
on
e
(2
01
1/
12
)
in
tr
od
uc
e
4
tr
av
el
af
te
rn
oo
ns

ea
ch
w
ee
k
fo
r
S
5a
nd
S
6
pu
pi
ls
,w
he
n
pu
pi
ls
w
ou
ld

at
te
nd
an
ot
he
r
es
ta
bl
is
hm
en
tt
o
st
ud
y
a
co
ur
se
.I
n

ye
ar
2(
20
12
/1
3)
co
ns
or
tia
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
w
ill
be

fo
rm
al
is
ed
fo
r
al
ls
ec
on
da
ry
sc
ho
ol
s.
A
co
ns
or
tiu
m

w
ill
co
m
pr
is
e
2
or
3
se
co
nd
ar
y
sc
ho
ol
s
in
a
gi
ve
n

ge
og
ra
ph
ic
ar
ea
.T
he
sc
ho
ol
s
in
th
e
co
ns
or
tia
w
ill

jo
in
tly
pl
an
th
e
sn
rc
ur
ric
ul
um

to
en
su
re
a
br
ea
dt
h
of

ch
oi
ce
an
d
pu
pi
ls
w
ill
tr
av
el
be
tw
ee
n
sc
ho
ol
s
to

ac
ce
ss
pr
ov
is
io
n.
F
ro
m
ye
ar
1
on
w
ar
ds
pl
an
ni
ng
w
ill

be
gi
n
fo
rt
he
in
tr
od
uc
tio
n
of
a
"b
le
nd
ed
le
ar
ni
ng
"

ap
pr
oa
ch
fo
rt
he
ne
w
C
ur
ric
ul
um

fo
r
E
xc
el
le
nc
e
S
5

an
d
S
6
co
ur
se
s.
T
hi
s
ap
pr
oa
ch
in
cl
ud
es
th
e

de
ve
lo
pm
en
to
fe
-le
ar
ni
ng
op
tio
ns
fo
ra
pp
ro
x
20
%
of

ea
ch
ne
w
co
ur
se
.N
ow

co
m
bi
ne
d
w
ith
E
C
S
_4
0

M
on
ito
re
d

G
re
en

55
0

0
55
0

55
0

T
he
de
liv
er
y
of
sa
vi
ng
s
fr
om

Y
ea
r2
on
w
ar
ds
is
at
hi
gh
ris
k

du
e
to
th
e
S
co
tti
sh
G
ov
er
nm
en
tr
eq
ui
re
m
en
tt
o
re
ta
in
te
ac
he
r

nu
m
be
rs
in
lin
e
w
ith
pu
pi
ln
um
be
rs
.T
he
pr
op
os
al
is
st
ill
va
lid

in
th
at
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
w
is
h
to
re
ta
in
a
le
ve
lo
fc
ho
ic
e
fo
r
st
ud
en
ts
,

ho
w
ev
er
th
e
sa
vi
ng
w
ill
no
tb
e
ac
hi
ev
ed
as
th
e
Lo
ca
l

G
ov
er
nm
en
tf
in
an
ci
al
se
ttl
em
en
tr
eq
ui
re
s
te
ac
he
r
nu
m
be
rs
to

be
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d.
C
ha
ng
e
co
nt
ro
lw
ill
be
co
m
pl
et
ed
af
te
r

di
sc
us
si
on
s
w
ith
th
e
C
hi
ef
A
cc
ou
nt
an
t.

E
C
S
1_
C
25

R
IS
K
P
ot
en
tia
ls
ha
re
d
se
rv
ic
es
w
ith

ot
he
r
lo
ca
la
ut
ho
rit
ie
s
(E
C
&
S
)

C
ha
rli
e

P
en
m
an

B
rin
g
to
ge
th
er
se
rv
ic
es
ac
ro
ss
lo
ca
la
ut
ho
rit
ie
s
in

E
du
ca
tio
n,
C
ul
tu
re
an
d
S
po
rt
.N
ow

co
m
bi
ne
d
w
ith

E
C
S
1-
C
17

M
on
ito
re
d

A
m
be
r

0
0

E
C
&
S
S
er
vi
ce
s
co
nt
in
ue
to
w
or
k
w
ith
ot
he
r
lo
ca
la
ut
ho
rit
ie
s
to

de
liv
er
jo
in
t/s
ha
re
d
se
rv
ic
es
.
H
ow
ev
er
si
nc
e
th
is
se
rv
ic
e

op
tio
n
w
as
de
ve
lo
pe
d
bo
th
A
be
rd
ee
ns
hi
re
an
d
M
or
ay

C
ou
nc
ils
ha
ve
ap
po
in
te
d
D
ire
ct
or
s
of
E
du
ca
tio
n
an
d

A
be
rd
ee
n
C
ity
C
ou
nc
il
ha
s
ap
po
in
te
d
a
ne
w
D
ire
ct
or
.
B
ot
h

ot
he
r
C
ou
nc
ils
ha
ve
al
so
ap
po
in
te
d
to
H
ea
ds
of
S
er
vi
ce

po
st
s.
T
he
m
aj
or
ity
of
th
es
e
sa
vi
ng
s
w
er
e
in
re
la
tio
n
to
th
es
e

se
ni
or
po
st
s.

E
C
S
1-
C
17
R
ev
ie
w
of
E
du
ca
tio
na
lP
sy
ch
ol
og
y
S
er
vi
ce
is

in
cl
ud
ed
in
th
is
op
tio
n.
O
ffi
ce
rs
ar
e
ex
pl
or
in
g
op
po
rtu
ni
tie
s
fo
r

jo
in
tw
or
ki
ng
w
ith
A
be
rd
ee
ns
hi
re
C
ou
nc
il.

Y
E
A
R
1
(2
0
1
2
/1
3
)

Page 27



D
et
ai
lo
fS
er
vi
ce
O
p
tio
ns
:
20
12
/1
3
-2
01
6/
17

It
em
s
A
cc
ep
te
d
A
t
Fe
br
ua
ry
20
12
C
o
m
m
itt
ee

C
o
st

B
en
ef
it

N
et

S
er
vi
ce

B
en
ef
it

P
re
d
ic
te
d

S
av
in
g
s
-

F
u
ll
Y
ea
r

P
o
si
tio
n
S
ta
te
m
en
t

P
B
B
R
ef

P
ro
je
ct
N
am
e

R
es
po
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er

O
u
tli
ne
o
f
O
ri
gi
na
lP
ro
p
os
al
fo
r
A
ch
ie
vi
n
g

S
av
in
g
s

M
on
it
or
ed
/

D
el
iv
er
ed

R
A
G

S
ta
tu
s
£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

B
ri
ef
D
es
cr
ip
ti
on
o
f
C
ur
re
n
tS
ta
tu
s

Y
E
A
R
1
(2
0
1
2
/1
3
)

E
C
S
1-
C
10

R
oo
ta
nd
br
an
ch
re
vi
ew

of
co
m
m
is
si
on
ed
ar
ts
an
d
sp
or
ts

se
rv
ic
es

Le
sl
ey

T
ho
m
so
n

R
ev
ie
w
of
al
lc
ur
re
nt
ar
ts
an
d
sp
or
ts
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
w
ith
ex
te
rn
al
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
in
or
de
rt
o

st
im
ul
at
e
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
in
ou
tc
om
es
an
d
to
en
ga
ge

th
e
pu
bl
ic
m
or
e
w
id
el
y
in
th
e
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g
pr
oc
es
s.

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

20
(2
39
)

(2
19
)

(2
19
)
T
hi
s
sa
vi
ng
is
on
ta
rg
et
.

E
C
S
_E
19

R
at
io
na
lis
e
S
ch
oo
lA
dm
in
is
tr
at
io
n

Le
sl
ey
K
irk

C
en
tra
lis
e
sc
ho
ol
ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n
al
on
g
a
m
od
el

si
m
ila
rt
o
th
at
cu
rr
en
tly
be
in
g
in
tr
od
uc
ed
w
ith
in

fin
an
ce
se
ct
io
n
w
he
re
by
(1
)
al
la
dm
in
is
tr
at
iv
e
ro
le
s

w
er
e
lo
ca
te
d
at
1-
2
ke
y
ce
nt
re
s;
(2
)
cu
rr
en
t
S
ch
oo
l

S
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce
s
M
an
ag
er
s
(S
S
S
M
)
w
ou
ld
ta
ke
on

te
am

le
ad
er
ro
le
s
co
-o
rd
in
at
in
g
w
or
k
of
cu
rr
en
t

pr
im
ar
y
A
dm
in
is
tr
at
or
s,
an
d
(3
)
m
os
ta
dm
in
is
tr
at
iv
e

IT
in
ve
st
m
en
tw
ou
ld
be
fo
cu
se
d
at
th
es
e
1-
2

lo
ca
tio
ns
.

R
ev
is
ed
P
ro
p
o
sa
lf
or
A
ch
ie
vi
ng
S
av
in
gs

E
ac
h

sc
ho
ol
ha
s
au
to
no
m
y
on
ho
w
to
re
st
ru
ct
ur
e
th
ei
r

ad
m
in
st
af
f.

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(1
93
)

(1
93
)

(1
93
)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
_E
4

P
ro
vi
de
on
e
nu
rs
er
y
te
ac
he
r
fo
r
ea
ch

sc
ho
ol
-
O
pt
io
n
R
em
ov
ed
,s
av
in
g

de
du
ct
ed
fr
om

gr
an
t

D
av
id
Le
ng

T
ea
ch
er
P
ro
te
ct
io
n
G
ra
nt
re
ce
iv
ed
if
A
ut
ho
rit
y

re
ta
in
s,
as
fa
r
as
po
ss
ib
le
,t
ea
ch
er
nu
m
be
rs
.G
ra
nt

re
du
ce
d
by
th
e
le
ve
lo
ft
hi
s
sa
vi
ng
to
al
lo
w
fo
r

pr
ot
ec
tio
n
of
te
ac
he
r
nu
m
be
rs

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(8
8)

(8
8)

(8
8)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
_E
30
/E
3C
ha
ng
es
to
te
rm
s
of
en
ga
ge
m
en
to
f

ca
su
al
te
ac
he
rs

D
av
id
Le
ng

T
hi
s
pr
op
os
al
is
ba
se
d
on
th
e
pr
em
is
e
th
at
ca
su
al

te
ac
he
rs
ar
e
no
te
m
pl
oy
ed
un
de
r
a
co
nt
ra
ct
of

em
pl
oy
m
en
t,
an
d
th
er
ef
or
e
na
tio
na
lt
er
m
s
an
d

co
nd
iti
on
s
of
em
pl
oy
m
en
td
o
no
ta
pp
ly
.T
he
pr
op
os
al

is
to
pl
ac
e
al
lr
eg
is
te
re
d
ca
su
al
te
ac
he
rs
on
S
ca
le

P
oi
nt
1;
to
ce
as
e
aw
ar
di
ng
in
cr
em
en
ta
ld
rif
tt
o
ca
su
al

te
ac
he
rs
;t
o
up
lif
tt
he
ho
ur
ly
ra
te
by
an
am
ou
nt
w
hi
ch

re
co
gn
is
es
ho
lid
ay
ac
cr
ua
la
tt
he
st
at
ut
or
y
m
in
im
um

(2
8
da
ys
pe
r
an
nu
m
).
T
hi
s
w
ou
ld
br
in
g
ca
su
al

te
ac
he
rs
in
lin
e
w
ith
ot
he
rc
as
ua
lw
or
ke
rs
in
th
e

A
ut
ho
rit
y.

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(1
40
)

(1
40
)

(1
40
)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
_E
5

N
ur
se
ry
nu
rs
es
to
pr
ov
id
e
no
n
cl
as
s

co
nt
ac
tc
ov
er
fo
r
nu
rs
er
y
te
ac
he
rs

Li
z
G
ill
ie
s

In
ea
ch
sc
ho
ol
nu
rs
er
y
se
tti
ng
,u
se
nu
rs
er
y
nu
rs
es
to

pr
ov
id
e
th
e
2.
5
ho
ur
s
pe
r
w
ee
k
no
n
cl
as
s
co
nt
ac
t

co
ve
rt
o
w
hi
ch
ev
er
y
nu
rs
er
y
te
ac
he
ri
s
cu
rr
en
tly

en
tit
ile
d.
Th
is
co
ve
ri
s
cu
rr
en
tly
pr
ov
id
ed
by
a

te
ac
he
r.

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(2
7)

(2
7)

(2
7)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
_E
22

R
ed
uc
e
P
up
il
S
up
po
rt
A
ss
is
ta
nt
s

P
ro
vi
si
on
by
50
%
in
P
rim
ar
y
S
ch
oo
ls

S
oh
ai
lF
ar
uq
i
R
ed
uc
e
P
up
il
S
up
po
rt
A
ss
is
ta
nt
s
by
33
%
in
P
rim
ar
y

S
ch
oo
ls

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(6
22
)

(6
22
)

(6
22
)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

Page 28



D
et
ai
lo
fS
er
vi
ce
O
p
tio
ns
:
20
12
/1
3
-2
01
6/
17

It
em
s
A
cc
ep
te
d
A
t
Fe
br
ua
ry
20
12
C
o
m
m
itt
ee

C
o
st

B
en
ef
it

N
et

S
er
vi
ce

B
en
ef
it

P
re
d
ic
te
d

S
av
in
g
s
-

F
u
ll
Y
ea
r

P
o
si
tio
n
S
ta
te
m
en
t

P
B
B
R
ef

P
ro
je
ct
N
am
e

R
es
po
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er

O
u
tli
ne
o
f
O
ri
gi
na
lP
ro
p
os
al
fo
r
A
ch
ie
vi
n
g

S
av
in
g
s

M
on
it
or
ed
/

D
el
iv
er
ed

R
A
G

S
ta
tu
s
£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

B
ri
ef
D
es
cr
ip
ti
on
o
f
C
ur
re
n
tS
ta
tu
s

Y
E
A
R
1
(2
0
1
2
/1
3
)

E
C
S
_E
17
a
A
dd
iti
on
al
S
up
po
rt
N
ee
ds
:I
nc
re
as
e

te
ac
he
r/p
up
il
ra
tio
s
to
1:
10
-

S
ec
on
da
ry

D
er
ek
S
am
so
n

A
dj
us
tt
ea
ch
er
st
af
fin
g
do
w
n
fr
om

cu
rr
en
tl
ev
el
.T
hi
s

w
ou
ld
m
ea
n
in
cr
ea
si
ng
nu
m
be
rs
of
pu
pi
ls
pe
r

te
ac
he
ri
n
A
S
N
ba
se
s
in
se
co
nd
ar
y
sc
ho
ol
s
fr
om

ex
is
tin
g
pr
ov
is
io
n
of
1:
7
to
e.
g.
1:
10
.T
hi
s
w
ou
ld

m
ea
n
a
re
du
ct
io
n
in
st
af
fin
g
nu
m
be
rs
of
13
.6
fte

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(2
00
)

(2
00
)

(2
00
)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
_E
18
a
A
dd
iti
on
al
S
up
po
rt
N
ee
ds
:I
nc
re
as
e

te
ac
he
r/p
up
il
ra
tio
s
to
1:
10
-
P
rim
ar
y

S
oh
ai
lF
ar
uq
i

A
dj
us
tt
ea
ch
er
st
af
fin
g
do
w
n
fr
om

cu
rr
en
tl
ev
el
.T
hi
s

w
ou
ld
m
ea
n
in
cr
ea
si
ng
nu
m
be
rs
of
pu
pi
ls
pe
r

te
ac
he
ri
n
A
S
N
ba
se
s
in
pr
im
ar
y
sc
ho
ol
s
fro
m

ex
is
tin
g
pr
ov
is
io
n
of
1:
7
to
e.
g.
1:
10
.T
hi
s
w
ou
ld
re
su
lt

in
a
de
cr
ea
se
in
te
ac
he
r
nu
m
be
rs
of
13
.2
fte

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(1
67
)

(1
67
)

(1
67
)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
_E
24

R
ed
uc
e
P
up
il
S
up
po
rt
A
ss
is
ta
nt
s

P
ro
vi
si
on
by
50
%
in
S
ec
on
da
ry

S
ch
oo
ls

D
er
ek
S
am
so
n
R
ed
uc
e
P
up
il
S
up
po
rt
A
ss
is
ta
nt
s
by
33
%
in

S
ec
on
da
ry
S
ch
oo
ls

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(2
18
)

(2
18
)

(2
18
)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
1-
C
1

In
te
gr
at
ed
C
om
m
un
iti
es
S
er
vi
ce

G
ai
lW
oo
dc
oc
k
D
ev
el
op
a
st
re
am
lin
ed
m
an
ag
em
en
ts
tr
uc
tu
re
an
d

m
ov
e
ce
nt
re
s
to
le
as
ed
ce
nt
re
st
at
us
.

D
el
iv
er
ed

G
re
en

0
(8
00
)

(8
00
)

(8
00
)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed

E
C
S
_E
37

C
ha
ng
e
th
e
de
liv
er
y
m
od
el
of
m
us
ic

tu
iti
on

D
er
ek
S
am
so
n
R
es
tr
uc
tu
re
le
ss
on
pl
an
;r
ed
es
ig
n
fe
e
po
lic
y

M
on
ito
re
d

G
re
en

0
(1
70
)

(1
70
)

(1
70
)

O
ffi
ce
rs
ar
e
re
vi
ew
in
g
th
e
fe
e
an
d
st
af
fin
g
st
ru
ct
ur
es
.
O
ne

ar
ea
of
co
nc
er
n
is
th
e
sm
al
ld
iff
er
en
tia
lb
et
w
ee
n
gr
ou
p
tu
iti
on

fe
es
an
d
in
di
vi
du
al
tu
iti
on
fe
es
.
O
ffi
ce
rs
ar
e
co
ns
id
er
in
g

op
tio
ns
an
d
w
ill
re
po
rt
ba
ck
in
du
e
co
ur
se
.

E
C
S
_E
9B

R
ed
es
ig
n
of
se
co
nd
ar
y
sc
ho
ol
es
ta
te

C
ha
rli
e

P
en
m
an

R
ed
es
ig
n
of
sc
ho
ol
es
ta
te
to
re
fle
ct
cu
rr
en
t

de
m
og
ra
ph
ic
s
an
d
po
pu
la
tio
n
ce
nt
re
s.

M
on
ito
re
d

G
re
en

0
0

0
0

20
12
is
th
e
lo
w
po
in
ti
n
pu
pi
ln
um
be
rs
ag
ed
0-
15
.
Th
e
pr
of
ile

of
pu
pi
ln
um
be
rs
20
13
on
w
ar
ds
is
in
cr
ea
si
ng
an
d
th
e

lo
ca
tio
ns
of
fa
m
ili
es
is
al
so
ch
an
gi
ng
.
Th
e
cu
rr
en
tp
ub
lic

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n
on
nu
rs
er
y
an
d
pr
im
ar
y
sc
ho
ol
s
w
ill
be
re
qu
ire
d

to
ta
ke
ac
co
un
to
ft
he
se
ch
an
gi
ng
fa
ct
or
s.
T
hi
s
re
vi
ew

w
ill

co
nt
rib
ut
e
to
th
e
ov
er
al
lr
ev
ie
w
of
ou
r
sc
ho
ol
s
es
ta
te
.D
el
iv
er
y

of
th
is
op
tio
n
is
de
pe
nd
en
to
n
C
ou
nc
il
de
ci
si
on
s.

E
C
S
_C
27

Li
br
ar
y
&
In
fo
rm
at
io
n
S
er
vi
ce
s:
ne
w

w
ay
s
of
w
or
ki
ng

P
at
ric
ia

C
as
si
dy

T
o
un
de
rt
ak
e
a
de
ta
ile
d
op
tio
ns
ap
pr
ai
sa
lo
n
ne
w

w
ay
s
of
w
or
ki
ng
fo
r
th
e
pr
ov
is
io
n
of
lib
ra
ry
an
d

in
fo
rm
at
io
n
se
rv
ic
es
w
ith
in
th
e
C
ity
in
th
e
co
nt
ex
to
f

de
liv
er
in
g
ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
s
an
d
bu
dg
et
sa
vi
ng
s
us
in
g

te
ch
no
lo
gy
an
d
in
cr
ea
si
ng
24
/7
on
-li
ne
se
rv
ic
es
.

T
he
re
w
ill
be
in
iti
al
sa
vi
ng
s
of
£1
3k
fro
m
th
e

w
ith
dr
aw
al
of
th
e
m
ob
ile
lib
ra
ry
an
d
ad
di
tio
na
l

sa
vi
ng
s
to
be
ca
lc
ul
at
ed
th
ro
ug
h
re
co
nf
ig
ur
ed

op
en
in
g
ho
ur
s,
st
af
fr
es
tru
ct
ur
in
g
an
d
re
vi
ew

of
th
e

lib
ra
ry
es
ta
te
.

M
on
ito
re
d

G
re
en

0
(1
3)

(1
3)

(1
3)
S
av
in
g
de
liv
er
ed
.
O
ffi
ce
rs
ar
e
co
nt
in
ui
ng
to
de
ve
lo
p
ne
w

w
ay
s
of
w
or
ki
ng
pr
op
os
al
s
w
hi
ch
w
ill
be
ta
ke
n
to
E
C
&
S

C
om
m
itt
ee
.

E
C
S
_E
34

S
to
p
cu
rr
ic
ul
um

fo
r
E
xc
el
le
nc
e

tr
ai
ni
ng
in
M
od
er
n
Fo
re
ig
n

La
ng
ua
ge
s
in
P
rim
ar
y

D
av
id
Le
ng

T
hi
s
w
as
a
fo
rm
er
na
tio
na
li
ni
tia
tiv
e
to
tra
in
pr
im
ar
y

te
ac
he
rs
fo
r
w
hi
ch
fu
nd
in
g
ce
as
ed
.
G
iv
en
th
e

co
nt
in
ui
ng
em
ph
as
is
on
fo
re
ig
n
la
ng
ua
ge
s
in
th
e

cu
rr
ic
ul
um
,i
tw
as
su
bs
eq
ue
nt
ly
ag
re
ed
to
co
nt
in
ue

fu
nd
in
g
at
a
lo
ca
ll
ev
el
bu
to
n
a
re
du
ce
d
ba
si
s.
T
he

fu
nd
in
g
fo
r
th
is
tra
in
in
g
w
ou
ld
th
er
ef
or
e
ce
as
e.

M
on
ito
re
d

G
re
en

0
(1
00
)

(1
00
)

(1
00
)
T
he
re
is
so
m
e
ris
k
to
th
is
sa
vi
ng
du
e
to
th
e
on
go
in
g

re
qu
ire
m
en
tt
o
tra
in
te
ac
he
rs
de
liv
er
in
g
fo
re
ig
n
la
ng
ua
ge
s.

Page 29



D
et
ai
lo
fS
er
vi
ce
O
p
tio
ns
:
20
12
/1
3
-2
01
6/
17

It
em
s
A
cc
ep
te
d
A
t
Fe
br
ua
ry
20
12
C
o
m
m
itt
ee

C
o
st

B
en
ef
it

N
et

S
er
vi
ce

B
en
ef
it

P
re
d
ic
te
d

S
av
in
g
s
-

F
u
ll
Y
ea
r

P
o
si
tio
n
S
ta
te
m
en
t

P
B
B
R
ef

P
ro
je
ct
N
am
e

R
es
po
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er

O
u
tli
ne
o
f
O
ri
gi
na
lP
ro
p
os
al
fo
r
A
ch
ie
vi
n
g

S
av
in
g
s

M
on
it
or
ed
/

D
el
iv
er
ed

R
A
G

S
ta
tu
s
£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

B
ri
ef
D
es
cr
ip
ti
on
o
f
C
ur
re
n
tS
ta
tu
s

Y
E
A
R
1
(2
0
1
2
/1
3
)

T
o
ta
lA
gr
ee
d
B
y
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

57
0
(3
,3
02
)

(2
,7
32
)

(2
,7
32
)

Page 30



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2013/2013

DIRECTORATE : Education, Culture & Sport

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

32,954 18,335 17,108 (1,227) 32,900 (54) -0.2%

135,194 87,928 84,768 (3,160) 134,372 (822) -0.6%

5,190 2,638 2,009 (629) 4,774 (416) -8.0%

173,338 108,901 103,885 (5,016) 172,046 (1,292) -0.7%
 

TOTAL BUDGET

Year to Date

Head of Service - Communities, Culture & Sport

Head of Service - Schools and Educational Services

Head of Service - Policy & Performance

ACCOUNTING PERIOD  8

Full Year 
Revised 
Budget

Revised 
Budget

Forecast to Year End

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance 
Amount

Forecast 
Actual

Variance 
Amount

Variance 
Percent

As At 30 November 2012 

Page 31



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012/2013

DIRECTORATE :Education Culture & Sport
HEAD OF SERVICE : P Cassidy

REVISED 
BUDGET

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITUR

E
VARIANCE

FORECAST 
ACTUAL

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

12,977 8,651 7,839 (812) 12,578 (399) -3.1% (14)

2,111 1,573 1,512 (61) 2,247 136 6.4% (19)

469 229 213 (16) 459 (10) -2.1% 90

181 121 66 (55) 147 (34) -18.8% (25)

6,541 4,360 2,469 (1,891) 6,453 (88) -1.3% (53)

3,092 2,061 2,256 195 3,265 173 5.6% (50)

9,401 6,267 6,307 40 9,157 (244) -2.6% 0

5,570 0 0 0 5,570 0 0.0% 0

40,342 23,262 20,662 (2,600) 39,876 (466) -1.2% (71)

(776) (517) (644) (127) (719) 57 -7.3% 57

(774) (520) (511) 9 (737) 37 -4.8% (103)

(2,238) (1,490) (1,229) 261 (1,959) 279 -12.5% 157

(360) (240) (220) 20 (330) 30 -8.3% 0

(3,240) (2,160) (950) 1,210 (3,231) 9 -0.3% (36)

(7,388) (4,927) (3,554) 1,373 (6,976) 412 -5.6% 75

32,954 18,335 17,108 (1,227) 32,900 (54) -0.2% 4

YR TO DATE PROJECTED

VARIANCE VARIANCE CHANGE

BUDGET TO DATE  MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000 £'000

Staff Costs
(708) (385) (14)

 
Property Costs

(78) 155 (19)

 
Administration costs

(48) (50) 50

 
(39) (9) (25)

 

(1,624) (35) (33)

65 173 (30)

(201) (244) 0

(57) 0 57

(21) 140 (3)

237 122 57

Income - Recharges
15 30 0

(245) 45 (36)

(2,703) (58) 4

NET EXPENDITURE

FEES & CHARGES

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

TOTAL INCOME

OTHER GRANTS 

RECHARGES 

OTHER INCOME

BUDGET TO DATE PROJECTION TO YEAR END

VARIANCEAs At 30 November 2012 

FULL 
YEAR 

REVISED 
BUDGET

COMMISSIONING SERVICES

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 8

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

STAFF COSTS

PROPERTY COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS: INCOME

TRANSFER PAYMENTS TOTAL

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

Transport costs
A small underspend is projected in relation to travel and subsistence budgets.

Supplies & Services

The year to date and annual forecast  take into account timing issues in relation to the  operation of Creches. 
This is offset by reduced income in respect of fees and charges for these creches.
 

The year to date underspend reflects property repairs which will not be charged until later in the year. Forecast 
expenditure includes £160K of property works at Rosemount and Loirston CLD as previously approved by 
committee.

 

The year to date underspend reflects a range of savings following a review of this area of the budget.

The favourable year to date position reflects unbudgeted grants received which will be utilised during the 
remainder of the financial year.

Income - Government Grants

Income - Fees & Charges
The reduction in expected income relates to creches. This is offset by reduced staffing costs.

The annual forecast includes a small under recovery of costs associated with the common good fund.

Income - Other Grants
The estimated variance reflects a reduction in grants in relation to creches. This is offset by reduced staffing 

Income - Other Income

A review of commitments in respect of payments to external bodies has confirmed there will be an underspend of 
approximately £290K offset by additional expenditure in respect of the Bon Accord Bowling site.

The favourable year to date position reflects grants already received which will be utilised during the remainder 
of the financial year.

The year to date underspend mainly represents Management Committee funds held by the authority on their 

Commissioning Services
Both the year to date spend and the annual forecast reflect the estimated final position in respect of Out Of 
Authority Placements at the end of November.

Transfer payments

Page 32



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012/2013

DIRECTORATE :Education Culture & Sport
HEAD OF SERVICE : D Leng

FULL YEAR 
REVISED 
BUDGET

REVISED 
BUDGET

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE

VARIANCE
FORECAST 

ACTUAL

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

100,429 66,895 64,505 (2,390) 100,466 37 0.0% 155
23,137 17,113 16,930 (183) 22,910 (227) -1.0% (327)

306 204 130 (74) 298 (8) -2.6% (3)
217 144 133 (11) 193 (24) -11.1% (19)

6,352 4,293 2,820 (1,473) 6,337 (15) -0.2% 31
2,715 1,810 1,724 (86) 2,551 (164) -6.0% (47)
1,249 833 613 (220) 1,176 (73) -5.8% 0
6,099 0 0 0 6,099 0 0.0% 0

140,504 91,292 86,855 (4,437) 140,030 (474) -0.3% (210)

(347) (231) (210) 21 (347) 0 0.0% 0
(130) (87) (100) (13) (160) (30) 22.8% 0
(927) (618) (640) (22) (981) (54) 5.8% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0
(3,906) (2,428) (1,137) 1,291 (4,170) (264) 6.8% (15)
(5,310) (3,364) (2,087) 1,277 (5,658) (348) 6.5% (15)

135,194 87,928 84,768 (3,160) 134,372 (822) -0.6% (225)

YEAR TO DATE PROJECTED
VARIANCE VARIANCE CHANGE

BUDGET TO DATE  MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000 £'000

Staff Costs
(2,390) 37 155

Property Costs
(183) (227) (327)

Administration costs
(74) (8) (3)

 
(11) (24) (19)

(1,473) (15) 31

(86) (164) (47)

(220) (73) 0

21 0 0

(13) (30) 0

(22) (54) 0

Income - Other Income
1,291 (264) (15)

(3,160) (822) (225)

NET EXPENDITURE

GROSS EXPENDITURE

TOTAL INCOME

RECHARGES 
OTHER INCOME

OTHER GRANTS 
GOVERNMENT GRANTS

PROPERTY COSTS

LESS: INCOME

ADMINISTRATION COSTS
TRANSPORT COSTS
SUPPLIES & SERVICES

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

COMMISSIONING SERVICES
TRANSFER PAYMENTS TOTAL

The year to date underspend mainly represents establishments holding posts vacant in order to meet annual 
target savings. In addition the staff vacancy factor savings annual budget of  £50K has already been 
surpassed. Backdated regrading costs in respect of Education Social Workers totalling £130K have been 
included in the forecast. Teachers Long Term absence costs are now expected to be approx £300K based 
upon period 8 payroll figures.

 

BUDGET TO DATE PROJECTION TO YEAR END

VARIANCE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 8

As At 30 November 2012 

STAFF COSTS

FEES & CHARGES

Forecast Income includes greater than budgeted parental contributions at the School Of Music, £40K, 
increased premises recoveries income in relation to Swimming Pools. £90K, plus unbudgeted recharges of 
£100K in respect of Police and NHS offices in 3 R's schools.

Commissioning Services

Transfer payments

The full year income forecast mainly represents greater than budgeted letting income offset by a small under 
recovery in respect of Music Fees.

A small underspend is projected in relation to travel and subsistence budgets.

The forecast final position reflects expected savings in Vandalism costs at the 3Rs schools (£48k), plus  
expected rebates totalling  £200K in respect of unused  letting hours and lower than expected malicious 
damage costs at 3R's schools. Corporate adjustments in respect of rates charges have now been made and 
this has negated the £100K additional rates costs previously reported.

Income - Fees & Charges

Income - Government Grants

Both the year to date underspend and  final outturn estimate relate to the closure of the Raeden Nursery 
which has released the property rental costs.

Supplies & Services
The year to date underspend is in relation to Schools devolved teaching materials budgets is £780K,  this is 
expected to be fully utilised by year end. In addition, there are year to date underspends of £150K in relation 
to the City Campus monies and £120K in relation to equipment repairs & maintenance contracts.

Transport costs

Other Grants

An underspend is projected in Pupil Clothing budgets. This is in line with previous years expenditure figures.

Page 33



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL
REVENUE MONITORING 2012/ 2013

DIRECTORATE :Education Culture & Sport
HEAD OF SERVICE : C Penman

FULL 
YEAR 

REVISED 
BUDGET

REVISED 
BUDGET

ACTUAL 
EXPENDITURE

VARIANCE
FORECAST 

ACTUAL

CHANGE 
FROM 
LAST 

REPORT
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000
2,723 1,807 1,479 (328) 2,346 (377) -13.8% (52)

188 137 88 (49) 181 (7) 0.0% 1
445 297 210 (87) 433 (12) -2.7% 9
49 33 28 (5) 52 3 6.1% 3

668 446 304 (142) 653 (15) -2.2% (4)
0 0 0 0 0 (0) 0.0% (0)

325 217 194 (23) 325 0 0.0% 0
1,227 0 0 0 1,227 0 0.0% 0
5,625 2,937 2,303 (634) 5,217 (408) -7.3% (43)

(366) (244) (176) 68 (366) 0 0.0% 0
0 0 (30) (30) 0 0 0.0% 0

(56) (38) (16) 22 (12) 44 -78.6% (1)
0 0 (37) (37) (52) (52) 0.0% 0

(25) (17) (35) (18) (25) 0 0.0% 0
(447) (299) (294) 5 (455) (8) 1.8% (1)

5,178 2,638 2,009 (629) 4,762 (416) -8.0% (44)

YEAR TO DATE PROJECTED
VARIANCE VARIANCE CHANGE

BUDGET TO DATE  MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000 £'000

Staff Costs
(328) (377)  (52)

Property Costs
(49) (7) 1

`
Administration costs

(87) (12) 9

(5) 3 3

(142) (15) (4)

24 45 (1)

Other Income  - Recharges
(26) (52) 0

(613) (415) (44)

NET EXPENDITURE

TOTAL INCOME

LESS: INCOME

FEES & CHARGES

OTHER INCOME

OTHER GRANTS

RECHARGES

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 8

GROSS EXPENDITURE

STAFF COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

PROPERTY COSTS
ADMINISTRATION COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

COMMISSIONING SERVICES
TRANSFER PAYMENTS 
TOTAL

BUDGET TO DATE PROJECTION TO YEAR END

VARIANCEAs At 30 November 2012 

The projected variance reflects expected income from the Non Housing Capital Plan in respect of staff 
time associated with the MIS Capital programme implementation.

Supplies & Services
The year to date position reflects underspends in the Staff Development Programme  of £50K plus a 
year to date underspend of £100K in relation to the budget held for property related works.

Transport costs

Income - Fees & Charges
This reduced income is that associated with swimming pool charges for Tullos Pool.

The year to date underspend expenditure reflects the early achievement of the annual Vacancy target 
saving of £117K, plus a year to date saving of £90K in relation to Tullos Pool staff costs

The final projected variance reflects staff savings of £180K in relation to the Tullos Pool, plus expected 
staff vacancy savings from within this part of the service, including a share of the staffing savings 
arising as a result of the EC&S Directors post vacancy.

The main reason for the year to date underspend is in relation to School Security costs which is 
expected to be fully spent by year end.

£76K of the year to date underspend relates to costs associated with Staff development and it is 
expected that this will be utilised later in the year. The remaining balance is mainly in relation to the 
budget for PVG checks; corporately, a programme of retrospective checking of employees 
commenced in November 2012 with related costs now likely to be received later in the year.

Page 34



Glossary

Staff Costs

Property Costs

Administration Costs

Transport Costs

Supplies & Services Costs

Commissioning Services

Transfer Payments

Capital Financing Costs

Income - Fees & Charges

Income - Other Income

The following glossary refers to terms used within the body of the report and its appendices

This heading includes all costs associated with the upkeep of buildings and grounds. This 
includes such expenditure as rates, energy, property repairs,  and the 3 R's unitary charge.

This heading relates to the administrative functions associated with the service. This 
includes such expenditure as courses, printing & stationery, telephones, disclosure checks 
and advertising.

This heading includes payment for services carried out by external agencies. This includes 
payments in respect of External Placements, swimming pools, Grampian Health Board.

This cost category includes all direct staff costs such as salaries and wages as well as 
indirect staff costs such as pension and lump sum payments.

This heading relates to a number of types of expenditure, and includes purchase, hire, 
repair and maintenance of equipment, exam fees,  Community Centre management funds 
purchases, schools per capita budgets.

This heading includes the costs of day to day travel for all staff, car parking passes, and 
any relocation travel expenses.

This is income generated from the sale of services. This includes admission charges, 
premises hire, music and coaching fees catering sales and the sale of season tickets.

This tends to encompass expenditure recoveries and includes education maintenance 
allowance reclaims from the Scottish Government, DEM Target Savings, funding carried 
forward from previous years and miscellaneous income categories.

This is the repayment costs associated with projects previously approved within the Non 
Housing Capital Programme. The budget reflects the planned repayment of both capital 
and interest elements.

This mainly reflects payments to third parties such as clothing grants, free school meal 
costs and education maintenance allowance payments, grants and contributions to external 
bodies.

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMITTEE    Education, Culture & Sport  

DATE      31 January 2013 

DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 

TITLE OF REPORT  Capital Monitoring – Education, Culture & 
Sport Projects 

REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/12/293 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To advise the Committee of the capital spend to date for the Education, 
Culture & Sport projects included within the Non-Housing Capital 
Programme.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 The Committee note the current position. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

The monies required to fund these projects are achieved through 
external borrowing, capital receipts and grant income. These projects 
are all accommodated within the Non-Housing Capital Programme. Any 
underspend, carry forward or overspend will have implications for the 
programme. At present, Tullos Pool refurbishment has authorisation to 
overspend by £77,832, provided by the Head of Asset Management & 
Operations delegated authority.  Details of the overspend are provided 
in Appendix A of this report. 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

There are no other implications at this time but as projects progress or 
indeed fail to progress then other implications may arise and will be 
reported at an appropriate Committee. 

5. BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 

As reported at the Finance & Resources Committee in December 2011 
the overall responsibility for the monitoring / management of the Capital 
Programme lies with the Head of Asset Management & Operations. 
The Planning & Monitoring Officer within Asset Management & 
Operations is in regular contact with the Service Representative and 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 37



the Capital Accountant, reporting in the first instance to the Corporate 
Asset Group. This ensures that the spend figures are always up to date 
and accurate. 

Education, Culture & Sport has a total of 6 projects, totaling £2.537 
million allocated to it from the Non-Housing Capital Programme in 
2012/13. The projects and total budget committed to each project 
included in the programme are:- 

1) Information Communication Technology Connectivity 
£34,000

2) Replacement of Education Management Information System 
£167,000

3) School Estate Strategy - Bucksburn / Newhills 
£522,000

4) School Estate Strategy – Riverbank 
£172,000

5) Provision for Children with Complex Needs 
£771,000

6) Tullos Pool Refurbishment 
£871,000

Spend for all projects to end of December is £79,000. Variances in 
monthly spend compared to predicted spend have been identified in 
some cases, which has resulted in spend profiles being amended.

Appendix A provides a breakdown of this spend to date and relevant 
supporting information as necessary. 

An update on the capital position will be reported to this Committee on 
28 March 2013.

6. IMPACT 

Corporate - The capital programme encompasses projects which link to 
the Community Plan, Single Outcome Agreement, Corporate and 
Individual Service Plans. 

Public - This report will be of interest to the public as it outlines the 
Council’s capital spending to date on Education, Culture & Sport 
projects.

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Page 38



Non-Housing Capital Programme 2012/13 – Capital Monitoring Report 
approved at Finance & Resources Committee on 19 June 2012 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

David Marshall 
Planning & Monitoring Officer 
  damarshall@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
! 01224 523191 

Page 39



Appendix A: Spend to date 

Project Description Budget Holder Total 
Budget 
12/13

Budget 
13/14

Budget 
14/15

Spend 
to end 
Dec.

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Information Communication Technology 
Connectivity 

Rosaleen 
Rentoul 

34 0 0 34

Replacement Education Management 
Information System 

David Wright 167 0 0 36

School Estate Strategy - Bucksburn / Newhills Sharon McNut 522 1,215 7,638 0
School Estate Strategy - Riverbank Sharon McNut 172 1,490 88 8
Provision for Children with Complex Needs Sharon McNut 771 5,722 6,393 0
Tullos Pool Refurbishment David Wright 871 100 0 0

Totals 2,537 8,527 14,119 79

  The budget holder for The Replacement Education Management 
Information System has advised Asset Management a number of orders 
will be raised in January. A range of mobile devices for use in schools will 
be ordered, costing approximately £100,000. 

  School Estate Strategy – Bucksburn / Newhills project still does not have a 
detailed project plan. This will be made available when the budget holder 
has finalised this with HubCo North. 

  A site is still to be selected for the Provision for Children with Complex 
Needs project.

  Tullos Pool Refurbishment has now had a contract accepted, totaling 
£1.049 million. The additional spend on this item is 7% over the approved 
capital budget. The overspend has been authorised by the Head of Asset 
Management & Operations under his delegated authority. 

  It has been necessary to accept the contract over budget as the approved 
sum was based on a three year old probable cost with no opportunity to 
check the cost against the cost of living increases before committee 
approval. In addition, changes to the design requested by the future 
operator, Sport Aberdeen, have been adopted and approved by Education, 
Culture & Sport. Pool tank works have increased due to the length of time 
empty following discussions with pool specialists

  Mitigating measures to minimize the overspend have been employed: 
Provisional sums have been omitted or reduced; contingencies have been 
reduced and a Bill of Reduction has been agreed with Education, Culture 
& Sport and the Preferred Contractor. 

  The budget holder has provided a reprofiled plan of works in line with the 
accepted contract sum. The project has now been profiled for slippage to 
13/14 as part of the three year capital plan. 

Page 40



 

  1 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Education, Culture and Sport      
 
DATE     31 January 2013    
 
DIRECTOR    Gayle Gorman   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  City Campus – Travel Afternoons 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  ECS/13/005    
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report provides an update, following the first full year of implementation, of the 
Travel Afternoon initiative.  An interim report was taken to the ECS Committee on 23 
February 2012.   

  
The Travel Afternoon initiative is part of a wide range of approaches to enhancing 
learning opportunities for pupils, through the City Campus, initially in the upper 
stages of secondary school education. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
It is recommended that Committee  
 
• notes the content of this report; 
• instructs officers to continue to develop the City Campus project which will open 

up learning opportunities for pupils, particularly in the upper stages of secondary 
schools; 

• instructs officers to complete a further evaluation of travel afternoon provision 
following the completion of the courses in 2013. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are none at this stage, other than the costs of completing a further review 
which can be met from existing budgets.   

 
 
4. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
In session 2011-12, fourteen Advanced Higher courses in addition to courses at 
Higher, Intermediate 1&2 and Access level in English for Speakers of Other 
Languages (ESOL) were offered to pupils attending all city secondary schools and 
delivered at Aberdeen Grammar School and Harlaw Academy. 
 
This was intended to enhance curricular choice for pupils and these courses were 
provided in addition to those offered in each ‘home’ school. 
   

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 41



 

  2 

In order to facilitate planning for courses in session 2012-13, an interim review of the 
provision of these centrally delivered courses was carried out in December 2011 and 
January 2012.  As courses had been running for only half the school year, this 
review was limited in its scope although a range of positive and negative issues 
were raised. 
 
 
As part of the delivery of the Senior Phase within Curriculum for Excellence, it is 
intended that pupils are provided with access to a far broader range of appropriate 
courses and options than a single school could provide.  
 
These include working in partnership with  
• immediate neighbouring schools in four local consortia; 
• local providers from business and industry as well as the voluntary sector; 
• schools across the city, such as in the travel afternoon initiative; 
• other educational providers – Aberdeen College, Aberdeen University and 

Robert Gordon University; 
• schools in other Local Authorities – e.g. a partnership with Shetland Islands 

Council has already been established. 
 

It is intended to provide equity of access to these opportunities by ensuring that they 
will be open to all pupils, regardless of their ‘home’ school or where they live. 

 
For session 2012-13, the same courses were on offer as in 2011-12 and a range of 
others were added, including Mandarin at Advanced Higher, Higher and Int 2 levels; 
Advanced Higher Accounting & Finance; Advanced Higher German; the Access to 
Creative Education in Scotland (ACES) Project delivered by RGU and an 
employability option delivered by Station House Media Unit (SHMU) 
  

5. IMPACT 
 

This report is likely to be of interest to the public. It will affect those with children and 
those working in schools. It will also be of interest to those involved in lifelong 
learning and to other public provider partners.  

 
  
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

The Evaluation (Appendix 1) describes the views of participants from 2011-12 and 
progress made by the ECS service following recommendations made in the interim 
evaluation of January 2012. 

 
In summary, the aim of ensuring equity of access to AH courses was supported and 
welcomed by staff and students across all schools and the introduction of the Travel 
Afternoon initiative did widen subject choice significantly for young people. Students 
attending courses were generally positive about the experience.   

 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Grahame Whyte 
Acting Service Manager Schools (12-18) and Curriculum 

 01224 522707 
gwhyte@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

Page 42



Aberdeen City Council 
 

Education, Culture & Sport 
 

Evaluation of Travel Afternoons 
 
 
 

Section 1 -  Evaluation of 2011-12 Provision – Full Year 
 
Young people who had participated in the Travel Afternoon programme during session 
2011-12 were invited to respond to the following six questions in September and October 
2012.   The following responses represent the range of comments which were made. 
 

1. Having spent session 2011-2012 participating in an Advanced Higher course    
which was delivered in Aberdeen Grammar School or Harlaw Academy to 
students from across the city, what do you consider were the advantages in 
this approach? 
 
Responses 

• Good to mix with students from other schools 
• Increased range of subjects available 
• Good to experience a different learning environment 
• Keen to represent my ‘home school’ positively 
• It was a breath of fresh air to be away from ‘home’ school 
• Access to very helpful staff who gave good guidance 
• I got to do the courses I wanted. 
 

2. What do you consider were the disadvantages of this approach which need to  
be addressed by Aberdeen City Council? 
 
Responses 

• Time and cost of travel were issues.  (part of almost all responses) 
• The Graphic Communication equipment in Harlaw was in a poorer condition 
than in our own school. 

• It was difficult to send project work by e-mail. 
• Difficult to receive help from the teacher outwith travel times. 
• I attended a course at Harlaw which had more Cults pupils in it.  Could make 
sense to run courses in the schools with the most participants. 

• More communication between schools is needed 
• Study leave between schools was difficult to manage as it took place at 
different times. 

 
3. Did you achieve the grade you expected in your Advanced Higher Course(s)? 

 
Responses 

• Most responses indicated that what was predicted was achieved 
• Some respondents enjoyed just trying the courses. 
 

4. Now that you have left school, what are your plans for session 2012-13? 
 
Responses 

• Almost all respondents are following courses at university 

Page 43



• Taking a gap year then applying for Biomedical Sciences 
• To work before I decide which university course to apply for 

 
. 

 
5. What impact did your Advanced Higher course(s) have on your intended 

destination beyond school? 
 
Responses 

• Had received unconditional offers from universities so Advanced Highers had 
no direct impact 

• Had an unconditional offer but had I not received this they would have been 
vital. 

• The Advanced Higher History course set me on a good path of study habits. 
 
 

6. Are there any additional comments you would like to make? 
 
Responses 

• Better selling of the programme so that young people are not reluctant to go 
to other schools. 

• I think the grades we achieved should be credited to the teacher who taught 
us rather than the school we come from 

• My own teacher had taught the Advanced Higher for 10 years compared to 
the one year’s experience of the teacher we got. 

• I am pleased this is being audited so that improvements can be made 
• This is a worthwhile project but all teachers must be prepared to put the 
effort in for all pupils 

• This is a good way of keeping Advanced Higher course on offer within the 
city. 

 
 

 
Section 2 – Progress by ACC since the Interim Evaluation (January 2012) 
 
Following the interim evaluation of the Travel Afternoons undertaken in December 2011 
and January 2012, various recommendations were made to the ECS service.  These 
recommendations fell into four areas – communication, support, staffing and transport 
costs.  The following statements describe progress which has been made 
 
Communication 
 

• The ECS Service has produced and distributed to all schools a clear overview of 
the Travel Afternoon programme so that there is consistency of information.  This 
has helped to ensure that young people and their families understand what is 
involved before they make course choice decisions. 

• A key contact for the Travel Afternoons has been identified in each school. 
• Clear criteria for gaining a place in a Travel Afternoon class have been established 
in the event that it is over-subscribed. 

• ‘Home’ schools have undertaken to share information regarding any additional 
support needs of young people attending Travel Afternoon classes. 

• Clear procedures have been established to provide ‘home’ schools with prompt 
information on attendance, concerns, progress and predicted grades.  

Page 44



• Responsibilities have been agreed for writing pupil reports and contributing to 
UCAS applications. 

• Expectations of support have been agreed for students with investigations and 
dissertations have been planned in both the ‘home’ and ‘host’ schools. 

• Roles and responsibilities have been identified to manage and communicate any 
student disciplinary issues. 

• Arrangements are in place to ensure that young people do not travel unnecessarily 
in the event of teacher absence. 

• Inclement weather procedures have been introduced. 
• The flow of information to parents has been improved, particularly in relation to 
parents’ evenings. 

Support 
 

• Induction meetings took place in June 2012 in order that young people feel 
welcome in the ‘host’ schools. 

 
Staffing 
 

• The ECS Service has considered enhancing staff professional development by 
inviting expressions of interest from teachers who are keen to deliver AH courses 
as part of the Travel Afternoon programme.  For the time being, these courses will 
continue to be delivered by a slightly enhanced staffing complement at Aberdeen 
Grammar School and Harlaw Academy. 

 
Transport Costs 
 

• The ECS service has organised travel cards in negotiation with First Aberdeen for 
all young people attending Travel Afternoon classes during 2012-13.  

 
 
 
Section 3 – Next steps (Session 2013-2014) 
 
Plans are in place for the City Campus Travel Afternoons to continue in session 2013-14 
with continued provision and further learning opportunities for pupils, particularly in the 
upper stage of secondary schools.   
 
Work would continue under the above broad headings of Communication, Support, 
Staffing and Transport Costs to ensure that the City Campus provision and success was 
enhanced.  One significant development will be the proposed launch of an e Prospectus 
and booking system for staff and students which will enhance the operational effectiveness 
of the programme.  
 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Education, Culture and Sport   
  
DATE     31 January 2013 
 
DIRECTOR    Gayle Gorman  
 
TITLE OF REPORT Nursery/Primary School Estate Review – 

Feedback from Engagement Exercise 
   
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/13/004   
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report describes the extent and content of the feedback received 
during informal engagement on Nursery and Primary School Estate, 
carried out between 24 September and 7 December 2012. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
It is recommended that Committee  
 
� notes the content of the report and in particular that the summary of 

the points raised in the facilitated discussion groups at the 
engagement events is placed on the Council website and that 
copies of all submissions are placed in the Members’ Library and  

 
� instructs officers to consider the major issues raised when 

formulating proposals on the development of the school estate 
which will be included in the report to a special meeting of 
Education, Culture and Sport Committee in February, 2013. 

 
  
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
There are no specific revenue or capital implications for current and 
future years, any financial risk directly arising from this report. There 
may be significant financial implications if any of the proposals are 
taken forward. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no legal, resource, personnel, property, equipment, 
sustainability and environmental, health and safety and/or policy 
implications or risks related to this report. 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 47



 

 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 Background 
 
Education, Culture and Sport Committee on 7/6/12 (item 8.1) instructed 
officers to bring a report to Committee that describes the feedback from 
the informal engagement on Review of the Nursery and Primary School 
Estate.   
 
The format and extent of the engagement was planned with input from 
stakeholders, elected members and officers. 
 
Headteachers were initially informed of the engagement in spring 2012 
and again in August, 2012. 
 
An information letter was provided for schools to circulate to parents 
and carers. A leaflet was circulated to schools, community centres and 
other public buildings to provide a synopsis of the engagement 
process. 
 
Corporate communications were briefed on the process and a press 
release issued.   
 
5.2 The Engagement Scope 
 
The engagement consisted of two main strands: the provision of 
information to stakeholders and the opportunity for stakeholders to 
submit their views. 
 
5.2.1 Provision of Information 

 
A broad range of information was made available to stakeholders in the 
following ways: 

 
(i) a comprehensive section of the Aberdeen City Council 

website; 
 
(ii) the engagement document, available from the website or for 

consultation at school, community centres and other public 
buildings; 

 
(iii) displays at nineteen engagement events (Associated 

Schools Groups, denominational provision, Additional 
Support Needs, city-wide at Marischal College). 

 
5.2.2 Submission of Views 

 
Stakeholders were able to submit their views by a variety of means: 

Page 48



 

 

 
(i) by completing the electronic survey accessible directly or via 

the Aberdeen City Council website; 
 
(ii) by submitting an email to a dedicated email address;  
 
(iii) by participating in the facilitated discussion groups at the 

engagement events;  
 

(iv) by completing a comment card at the engagement events or 
the city-wide, drop-in events;  

 
(v) by writing to the Council. 

 
5.2.3 Summary of submissions 
 

325 submissions via the electronic survey 
298 emails were received 
585 participants attended the engagement events* 
  17 comment cards 
    7 written letter submissions 
 
Some submissions were made in more than one format. 
 
*including parents/carers and staff (some of whom may also 
have been parents/carers). This figure does not include officers 
or Group Leaders attending the events. 

 
5.2.4 General Points Raised 
 
The majority of submissions concerned maintaining service delivery, 
unchanged, on a local basis. There was a significant number of 
suggestions which contributors felt would improve educational 
provision. These were often linked to continuing current provision, but 
suggesting changes to delivery where new housing developments were 
proposed or being delivered. 
 
This was helpful and these will be considered when the report to 
Committee with proposals on named schools/ASGs is written.  
 
There were few submissions on possible new approaches to delivery of 
education or on how to resolve issues on a city-wide basis. 
 
5.2.5 Publicising the Feedback 
 
A list of the recorded points raised by each of the facilitated discussion 
groups at all engagement events has been placed on the Council’s 
website. 
 

Page 49



 

 

A folder containing a paper copy of all submissions received in any 
format has been placed in the Elected Members’ Library.  
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - The first high-level priority within Smarter People (Social 
and Human Capital) of the administration’s policy document ‘Aberdeen 
– the Smarter City’ states, 
‘We will provide a high quality education service within our schools and 
communities which will improve attainment and life chances of our 
children and young people to achieve their full potential in education, 
employment or training’.  
 
Members of the Committee will be interested in the submissions made 
by stakeholders and will use this information when considering the 
proposals in the Report on the Review of the Primary and Nursery 
Estate, which will be presented to Committee in February, 2013. 
 
Public – There will be significant public interest in this report. Firstly, 
individuals will be keen to establish that their submissions are included. 
Secondly, there will be interest in the range of views submitted by other 
stakeholders.  

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Appendix 1: Synopsis of Submissions 
 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Derek Samson 
Service Manager, Schools (12-18) and Curriculum  
dsamson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(52)3817 

 

Page 50



S
u
m
m
ar
y
o
f

E
n
g
ag
em
en
t
E
m
ai
l

S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
s
20
12

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
1
S
yn
o
p
si
s
o
f

S
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
s

S
ch
o
o
l

F
o
rm

o
f

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n

C
o
n
ce
rn
s
-
C
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m

C
o
n
ce
rn
s
-
P
u
p
ils

C
o
n
ce
rn
s
-
R
eg
ar
d
in
g
P
ro
p
o
sa
l

C
o
n
ce
rn
s
-
R
eg
ar
d
in
g
In
fr
as
tr
u
ct
u
re

O
th
er

C
o
n
ce
rn
s

V
ie
w
s
o
n
D
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
/V
en
u
es

O
th
er
C
o
m
m
en
ts

E
m

ai
l

R
eq

ue
st

ed
co

py
of

E
ng

ag
em

en
t

D
oc

um
en

t
E

m
ai

l
R

eq
ue

st
ed

co
py

of
E

ng
ag

em
en

t
D

oc
um

en
t

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

C
om

m
en

tC
ar

d
Id

o
no

tw
an

tT
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
zo

ne
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

ch
an

ge
.

T
he

re
ar

e
so

m
an

y
ou

to
fz

on
e

ch
ild

re
n.

If
yo

u
ke

ep
to

in
zo

ne
th

er
e

w
ill

be
no

pr
ob

le
m

w
ith

nu
m

be
rs

.
D

o
no

tw
an

t6
th

F
or

m
C

ol
le

ge
.

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

C
om

m
en

tC
ar

d
T

he
re

is
no

ro
om

to
ex

te
nd

M
ile

E
nd

S
ch

oo
lt

o
m

ak
e

ro
om

fo
r

ov
er

ca
pa

ci
ty

.I
f

yo
u

al
lo

w
ed

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

to
em

pl
oy

m
or

e
te

ac
he

rs
th

at
w

ou
ld

m
ak

e
ro

om
fo

r
ov

er
-

ca
pa

ci
ty

in
ot

he
r

sc
ho

ol
s.

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

C
om

m
en

tC
ar

d
R

e-
zo

ni
ng

w
on

't
so

lv
e

th
e

pr
ob

le
m

of
ov

er
-c

ap
ac

ity
as

ou
to

fz
on

es
ca

n
ta

ke
up

ad
di

tio
na

lp
la

ce
s.

T
he

on
ly

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
so

lu
tio

n
is

to
im

pr
ov

e
th

e
un

de
si

ra
bl

e
sc

ho
ol

s
e.

g.
m

ak
e

sc
ho

ol
s

lik
e

N
or

th
fie

ld
to

be
de

si
re

d
by

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

/r
eb

ui
ld

in
g/

st
at

is
tic

s
po

si
tiv

e.

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

Le
tte

r
O

ut
of

zo
ne

pu
pi

ls
w

ou
ld

in
cr

ea
se

cl
as

s
si

ze
s.

Ia
m

ha
pp

y
w

ith
th

e
zo

ni
ng

/c
at

ch
m

en
ts

of
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
S

ch
oo

la
nd

its
fe

ed
er

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

do
n'

ts
ee

an
y

st
ro

ng
ar

gu
m

en
te

du
ca

tio
na

lly
,f

in
an

ci
al

ly
or

ot
he

rw
is

e
fo

r
re

-z
on

in
g.

If
pu

pi
ls

w
er

e
en

co
ur

ag
ed

to
at

te
nd

th
ei

r
lo

ca
ls

ch
oo

l
th

en
yo

u
co

ul
d

m
ak

e
de

ci
si

on
s

ba
se

d
on

a
m

or
e

co
nc

re
te

fo
ot

in
g.

T
he

lo
ca

le
ffe

ct
s

of
ou

to
fz

on
e

pu
pi

ls
in

cl
ud

e
in

cr
ea

se
d

tr
af

fic
an

d
co

ng
es

tio
n

ac
ro

ss
th

e
ci

ty
,d

an
ge

ro
us

pa
rk

in
g

is
su

es
ar

ou
nd

th
e

sc
ho

ol
s.

A
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

ou
r

lo
ca

l
nu

rs
er

y
is

fil
le

d
w

ith
ou

to
fz

on
e

pr
e

sc
ho

ol
ch

ild
re

n
re

su
lti

ng
in

m
an

y
fa

m
ili

es
w

ith
an

te
pr

e
sc

ho
ol

ch
ild

re
n

no
t

re
ce

iv
in

g
pl

ac
es

.

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

Le
tte

r
F

ee
de

r
sc

ho
ol

s
en

su
re

co
nt

in
ui

ty
fo

r
pu

pi
ls

.I
fa

sm
al

l
m

in
or

ity
ha

ve
to

at
te

nd
an

ot
he

r
sc

ho
ol

,p
up

ils
w

ill
be

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

d
as

th
ey

w
ill

be
is

ol
at

ed
fr

om
th

ei
r

fr
ie

nd
s,

ha
ve

no
lin

ks
w

ith
th

e
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

an
d

lo
ca

lc
om

m
un

ity
.

A
re

qu
ire

m
en

tt
ha

tp
up

ils
liv

e
in

zo
ne

fo
r

th
e

w
ho

le
of

th
ei

r
ac

ad
em

ic
ca

re
er

is
a

se
ns

ib
le

w
ay

to
co

nt
ro

ln
um

be
rs

an
d

an
em

ba
rg

o
on

ou
to

fc
at

ch
m

en
tp

up
ils

un
le

ss
sc

ho
ol

is
un

de
r

ca
pa

ci
ty

.T
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
co

ul
d

be
op

en
ed

ci
ty

w
id

e
w

ith
en

tr
an

ce
by

ab
ili

ty
.

A
dv

an
ta

ge
s

ar
e

th
is

is
ba

se
d

on
pu

pi
ls

'a
bi

lit
y

no
tw

he
th

er
pa

re
nt

s
ha

ve
en

ou
gh

m
on

ey
.

A
qu

ic
k

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
w

ill
le

ad
to

th
os

e
w

ho
ca

n
af

fo
rd

to
m

ov
e

ho
us

e. J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 51



C
ar

e
sh

ou
ld

be
ta

ke
n

no
tt

o
re

zo
ne

et
hn

ic
m

in
or

ity
gr

ou
ps

e.
g.

F
or

es
te

rh
ill

H
os

pi
ta

l
st

af
fr

es
id

en
ce

s.
R

ez
on

in
g

et
hn

ic
m

in
or

ity
fa

m
ili

es
w

ou
ld

be
an

ex
am

pl
e

of
su

ch
in

di
re

ct
di

sc
rim

in
at

io
n.

T
in

ke
rin

g
w

ith
zo

ne
s

an
d

bo
un

da
rie

s
w

ill
fa

il
to

im
pr

ov
e

th
e

qu
al

ity
of

ed
uc

at
io

n,
w

ill
fa

vo
ur

th
os

e
w

ho
ar

e
fin

an
ci

al
ly

w
el

l
of

fa
nd

w
ill

be
co

st
ly

fo
r

ta
xp

ay
er

s.

It
is

a
pr

io
rit

y
th

at
pu

pi
ls

ca
n

w
al

k
to

sc
ho

ol
fo

r
pu

pi
ls

'
he

al
th

,r
oa

d
sa

fe
ty

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

an
d

th
e

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.

P
up

ils
w

ill
be

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

d
if

re
zo

ni
ng

is
ap

pl
ie

d
qu

ic
kl

y
e.

g.
th

os
e

in
fin

al
ye

ar
s

of
pr

im
ar

y.

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

E
m

ai
l

i.e
.T

he
�a

no
m

al
y�

of
ha

vi
ng

tw
o

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

s
ne

ar
to

ea
ch

ot
he

r.
T

hi
s

sh
ou

ld
be

pu
tt

o
re

st
.I

ti
s

w
ha

ti
ti

s;
th

e
tw

o
sc

ho
ol

s
ar

e
cl

os
e,

Iw
ou

ld
n'

t
ba

se
w

id
e

af
fe

ct
in

g
de

ci
si

on
s

on
th

is
fa

ct
.t

he
m

os
tv

ia
bl

e

so
lu

tio
n

to
th

e
�o

ut
of

zo
ne

rs
is

su
e�

(p
ut

tin
g

co
st

as
id

e)
is

to
im

pr
ov

e
th

e
�u

nd
er

ca
pa

ci
ty

�
sc

ho
ol

s,
th

us
m

ak
in

g
th

em
de

si
ra

bl
e

to
ne

w
fa

m
ili

es
.

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

Le
tte

r

O
ft

he
ba

si
s

of
th

e
pr

oj
ec

te
d

ro
ll

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

,t
he

re
se

em
s

lit
tle

or
no

ne
ed

to
ch

an
ge

th
is

sc
ho

ol
.

O
n

th
e

co
nt

ra
ry

m
os

t
pa

re
nt

s
se

em
to

be
ha

pp
y

w
ith

th
e

pr
es

en
tc

irc
um

st
an

ce
s

an
d

w
ou

ld
be

un
ha

pp
y

w
ith

an
d

ob
je

ct
to

an
y

ch
an

ge
s.

T
he

4
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

s
in

th
e

A
S

G
ar

e
al

so
al

lc
lo

se
to

th
ei

r
m

ax
im

um
ca

pa
ci

ty
).

T
he

si
m

pl
es

ts
ol

ut
io

n
is

to
re

du
ce

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
ch

ild
re

n
ta

ke
n

in
fr

om
ou

to
f

zo
ne

In
th

e
A

S
G

on
ly

S
ke

ne
S

qu
ar

e
go

es
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 52



It
is

un
cl

ea
r

w
he

th
er

th
is

is
si

m
pl

y
be

ca
us

e
of

ex
pe

ct
ed

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

th
e

si
m

pl
es

ts
ol

ut
io

n
fo

r
th

at
sc

ho
ol

w
ou

ld
se

em
to

be
,t

o
m

ov
e

so
m

e
of

th
e

fo
rm

er
C

au
se

w
ay

E
nd

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a
to

an
ot

he
r

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
.th

e
N

or
th

fie
ld

A
S

G
pe

rh
ap

s
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s

th
e

bi
gg

es
t

is
su

e-
T

he
on

ly
re

al
so

lu
tio

n
is

to
en

su
re

th
at

si
m

ila
r

ed
uc

at
io

n
st

an
da

rd
s

ar
e

pr
ov

id
ed

ac
ro

ss
th

e
sc

ho
ol

es
ta

te
.

O
bv

io
us

ly
th

is
sh

ou
ld

be
ai

m
in

g
to

re
ac

h
th

e
hi

gh
es

ts
ta

nd
ar

d.

U
nt

il
th

e
co

un
ci

li
s

ab
le

to
ac

hi
ev

e
th

is
ob

je
ct

iv
e

un
de

r-
ut

ili
sa

tio
n

w
ill

co
nt

in
ue

.
A

iry
ha

ll
E

m
ai

l
T

he
fr

ie
nd

sh
ip

gr
ou

ps
th

at
m

y
ch

ild
ha

s
m

ad
e

w
ith

ot
he

rs
in

hi
s

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d
of

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
an

d
A

iry
ha

ll
at

th
e

lo
ca

l
co

m
m

un
ity

C
en

tr
e,

pl
ay

gr
ou

ps
an

d
nu

rs
er

y
w

ill
su

ffe
r

if
he

do
es

no
ta

tte
nd

th
e

sa
m

e
sc

ho
ol

A
s

a
co

nc
er

ne
d

pa
re

nt
liv

in
g

in
M

ac
au

la
y

P
la

ce
Ia

m
sh

oc
ke

d
an

d
di

sm
ay

ed
th

at
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
liv

in
g

in
M

ac
au

la
y

ho
us

in
g

ed
iti

on
di

re
ct

ly
op

po
si

te
A

iry
ha

ll
S

ch
oo

l
ar

e
no

ti
n

zo
ne

to
at

te
nd

A
iry

ha
ll

S
ch

oo
l-

so
m

e
10

0m
fr

om
ou

r
ho

us
e.

T
hi

s
is

su
e

sh
ou

ld
be

co
ns

id
er

ed
fo

r
re

-z
on

in
g.

1)
M

ac
au

la
y

D
riv

e
is

a
'n

o
th

ro
ug

h
ro

ad
'.

T
o

ge
tt

o
H

az
le

he
ad

S
ch

oo
l(

fo
r

w
hi

ch
w

e
ar

e
zo

ne
d)

on
e

ha
s

to
co

m
e

ba
ck

ou
to

nt
o

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
ro

ad
an

d
w

al
k

pa
st

A
iry

ha
ll

S
ch

oo
lo

n
ro

ut
e

an
d

w
al

k
a

2m
ile

jo
ur

ne
y.

2)
T

he
re

ar
e

m
an

y
m

aj
or

ro
ad

s
to

cr
os

s,
in

cl
ud

in
g

C
ra

ig
ie

bu
ck

le
r

av
en

ue
,H

az
le

de
ne

R
oa

d,
a

bu
sy

ju
nc

tio
n

at
K

in
gs

ga
te

an
d

Q
ue

en
s

R
oa

d
to

na
m

e
bu

ta
fe

w
to

re
ac

h
H

az
le

he
ad

S
ch

oo
l.

A
ll

w
ith

ou
tp

ed
es

tr
ia

n
cr

os
si

ng
s.

as
hi

s
pe

er
s

liv
in

g
ar

ou
nd

hi
m

.T
he

lo
ng

jo
ur

ne
y

on
da

rk
w

in
te

r
m

or
ni

ng
s

an
d

af
te

rn
oo

ns
po

se
a

he
al

th
an

d
sa

fe
ty

ris
k

th
at

Iw
ou

ld
no

t
be

w
ill

in
g

to
le

ta
P

rim
ar

y
ag

e
ch

ild
m

ak
e.

T
hi

s
is

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
at

th
is

tim
e

of
ye

ar
,

w
he

n
th

e
lo

ng
jo

ur
ne

y
in

su
ch

co
ld

,
da

rk
co

nd
iti

on
s

pu
t

th
e

w
el

fa
re

of
th

e
ch

ild
in

da
ng

er
.

A
iry

ha
ll

If
ou

r
ch

ild
re

n
w

er
e

no
tt

o
ge

ti
nt

o
th

e
sc

ho
ol

th
en

th
ey

w
ou

ld
re

qu
ire

to
w

al
k

ap
pr

ox
20

m
in

s
an

d
cr

os
s

se
ve

ra
lb

us
y

m
ai

n
ro

ad
s

on
a

da
ily

ba
si

s
w

hi
ch

se
em

s
ra

th
er

un
pr

ac
tic

al
fr

om
a

he
al

th
an

d
sa

fe
ty

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e.

W
e

ar
e

cu
rr

en
tly

liv
in

g
in

M
ac

au
la

y
P

la
ce

an
d

fe
el

th
at

th
e

zo
ne

al
lo

ca
tio

n
fo

r
A

iry
ha

ll
P

rim
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

sh
ou

ld
in

cl
ud

e
ou

r
M

ac
au

la
y

ho
us

in
g

es
ta

te
.O

ur
ho

us
e

is
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y

20
0m

w
al

ki
ng

di
st

an
ce

fr
om

th
e

sc
ho

ol
an

d
ap

pr
ox

.
2m

in
s

w
al

ki
ng

pa
ce

to
th

e
ga

te
s

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 53



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d/
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
S

ch
oo

l

E
m

ai
l

A
sh

le
y

pa
re

nt
s

ar
e

pa
ss

io
na

te
ab

ou
t

re
ta

in
in

g
th

ei
r

lin
ks

to
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
S

ch
oo

l.
T

he
re

is
a

da
ng

er
th

at
a

re
zo

ni
ng

de
ci

si
on

co
ul

d
be

se
en

as
a

kn
ee

je
rk

re
ac

tio
n

to
fig

ur
es

cu
rr

en
tly

av
ai

la
bl

e,
in

cl
ud

in
g

nu
m

be
rs

fo
r

S
ke

ne
S

qu
ar

e
S

ch
oo

l,
in

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
,t

ha
th

av
e

ta
ke

n
in

to
ac

co
un

ta
pl

an
ni

ng
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
th

at
m

ay
no

te
ve

n
co

m
e

to
fr

ui
tio

n.
A

s
th

e
fig

ur
es

sh
ow

th
is

to
be

th
e

bi
gg

es
t

re
as

on
fo

r
co

nc
er

n
w

ith
in

th
e

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

S
ch

oo
lA

S
G

in
th

e
ne

xt
se

ve
n

ye
ar

s
w

e
w

ou
ld

be
di

sa
pp

oi
nt

ed
to

se
e

un
du

e
co

nc
er

n
ov

er
th

e
A

G
S

ha
vi

ng
to

op
er

at
e

ov
er

ca
pa

ci
ty

w
he

n
it

is
un

lik
el

y
th

is
w

ill
ha

ve
an

im
pa

ct
.

A
ny

re
zo

ni
ng

w
ou

ld
di

st
ur

b
a

w
el

le
st

ab
lis

he
d

co
m

m
un

ity
.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l

A
ga

in
fo

r
se

ve
ra

l
ye

ar
s

w
e

ha
ve

po
in

te
d

ou
t

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

to
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
as

th
ei

r
fu

tu
re

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

.
B

ot
h

ou
r

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

P
1

ha
ve

be
en

at
te

nd
in

g
A

ct
iv

e
S

po
rt

s
&

A
be

rd
ee

n
A

qu
at

ic
s

at
G

ra
m

m
ar

-

W
e

no
te

th
at

w
hi

ls
tp

ar
en

ts
ha

ve
th

e
rig

ht
to

m
ak

e
a

re
qu

es
tf

or
ou

to
fz

on
e

ad
m

is
si

on
th

at
th

e
au

th
or

ity
on

ly
ha

s
to

ag
re

e
to

su
ch

re
qu

es
ts

w
he

ne
ve

r
po

ss
ib

le
an

d
th

er
e

is
al

re
ad

y
a

lis
to

f
pr

io
rit

ie
s

fo
r

gr
an

tin
g

pl
ac

es
w

he
n

th
e

sc
ho

ol
's

ca
pa

ci
ty

is
lik

el
y

to
be

ex
ce

ed
ed

.
T

he
lo

ca
la

ut
ho

rit
y

al
re

ad
y

ha
s

th
e

rig
ht

to
re

fu
se

pl
ac

in
g

re
qu

es
ts

on
th

e
gr

ou
nd

s
th

at
ac

ce
pt

in
g

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

ou
to

fz
on

e
w

ou
ld

re
su

lt
in

th
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

be
in

g

no
tj

us
tf

or
th

e
en

jo
ym

en
to

fs
po

rt
s

bu
ta

ls
o

w
ith

th
e

lo
ng

er
te

rm
ai

m
to

m
ak

e
th

e
tr

an
si

tio
n

to
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
le

ss
da

un
tin

g
by

al
re

ad
y

ha
vi

ng
so

m
e

fa
m

ili
ar

ity
w

ith
th

e
sc

ho
ol

an
d

ha
vi

ng
m

ad
e

fr
ie

nd
s

w
ith

ot
he

r
ch

ild
re

n
fr

om
th

e

ex
ce

ed
ed

or
if

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

w
ou

ld
be

re
qu

ire
d

to
ex

te
nd

th
e

sc
ho

ol
�s

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n

an
d/

or
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

(E
du

ca
tio

n
(S

co
tla

nd
)

A
ct

19
80

(a
m

en
de

d)
).

T
he

ex
is

tin
g

zo
ne

st
ru

ct
ur

e
is

w
el

le
st

ab
lis

he
d.

T
he

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p

be
tw

ee
n

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
S

ch
oo

la
nd

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

S
ch

oo
li

s
lo

ng
es

ta
bl

is
he

d
an

d
su

cc
es

sf
ul

.

fe
ed

er
sc

ho
ol

s.
T

he
ef

fe
ct

w
hi

ch
re

-
zo

ni
ng

w
ill

ha
ve

on
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
af

fe
ct

ed
by

th
e

ch
an

ge
s

m
us

t
be

co
ns

id
er

ed
.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
D

is
ap

po
in

te
d

th
at

th
e

re
vi

ew
do

es
no

ts
ee

m
to

be
fo

cu
si

ng
on

th
e

ex
ce

lle
nc

e
of

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

sc
ho

ol
et

ho
s

on
ly

fo
cu

si
ng

on
th

e
bu

ild
in

g.

C
on

ce
rn

ed
th

at
fr

ie
nd

s
w

ou
ld

be
al

te
rn

at
iv

el
y

zo
ne

d.

D
an

ge
ro

us
pr

ec
ed

en
ti

n
lo

ok
in

g
at

pr
op

er
ty

m
at

te
rs

al
on

e
an

d
m

ay
le

ad
to

po
or

an
d

su
b-

op
tim

al
de

ci
si

on
s

th
at

do
no

tm
ee

tt
he

be
st

ed
uc

at
io

na
ln

ee
ds

of
ch

ild
re

n.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 54



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
fe

at
ur

es
at

no
.1

0
an

d
H

ar
la

w
do

es
n'

tf
ea

ur
e

in
th

e
to

p
50

.

E
xt

en
d

or
re

du
ce

zo
ne

s
to

ad
dr

es
s

ov
er

/u
nd

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
is

su
es

.
R

ev
ie

w
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

si
te

s
w

he
re

ad
di

tio
na

l
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n
ca

n
be

bu
ilt

.
D

ea
lw

ith
du

al
zo

ne
s

to
al

le
vi

at
e

co
nf

us
io

n.
E

ns
ur

e
ne

w
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
ar

e
pl

an
ne

d
fo

r.
D

is
ag

re
e

w
ith

re
zo

ni
ng

of
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

to
H

ar
la

w
.

P
ro

pe
rt

y
pr

ic
es

co
ul

d
be

ad
ve

rs
el

y
af

fe
ct

ed
.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
fe

at
ur

es
at

no
.1

1
in

th
e

H
er

ld
to

p
50

st
at

e
sc

ho
ol

s
an

d
H

ar
la

w
do

es
n'

t
fe

au
re

.
T

he
S

ec
on

da
ry

S
ch

oo
lI

ns
pe

ct
io

n
fo

llo
w

-
th

ro
ug

h
re

po
rt

of
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
lis

ts
so

m
e

of
th

e
st

re
ng

th
s

as
th

e
hi

gh
le

ve
ls

of
yo

un
g

pe
op

le
's

at
ta

in
m

en
t.

O
ur

da
ug

ht
er

s
cu

rr
en

tc
on

ce
rn

is
ar

ou
nd

at
te

nd
in

g
th

e
sa

m
e

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

as
he

r
fr

ie
nd

s
bu

ta
s

pa
re

nt
s

w
e

w
ou

ld
lik

e
to

gi
ve

ou
r

ch
ild

re
n

th
e

be
st

ed
uc

at
io

n
av

ai
la

bl
e.

O
ur

ch
ild

re
n

ar
e

at
te

nd
in

g

R
ez

on
in

g
w

ou
ld

le
ad

to
a

hi
gh

le
ve

lo
fo

ut
of

zo
ne

re
qu

es
ts

fo
r

ch
ild

re
n

to
at

te
nd

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

S
ch

oo
l.

T
he

cu
rr

en
t

hi
gh

le
ve

lo
fi

n-
zo

ne
at

te
nd

an
ce

at
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

an
d

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

S
ch

oo
li

s
a

re
fle

ct
io

n
of

th
e

ex
ce

lle
nt

re
pu

ta
tio

n
th

es
e

sc
ho

ol
s

ha
ve

.

A
ct

iv
e

S
ch

oo
ls

an
d

A
be

rd
ee

n
C

ity
A

qu
at

ic
s

at
A

G
S

.
S

af
e

ro
ut

es
to

sc
ho

ol
fo

r
pu

pi
ls

m
us

tb
e

a
m

aj
or

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

he
re

is
no

ed
uc

at
io

na
l

ba
si

s
fo

r
m

ov
in

g
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

to
H

ar
la

w
.

It
w

ou
ld

be
ed

uc
at

io
na

lly
de

tr
im

en
ta

lf
or

ch
ild

re
n

w
ith

br
ok

en
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
ha

s
a

ve
ry

st
ro

ng
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p
w

ith
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
an

d
is

re
fle

ct
ed

in
th

e
hi

gh
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
ch

ild
re

n
ch

oo
si

ng
to

go
to

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

fr
om

A
sh

le
y.

T
hi

s
en

su
re

s
fr

ie
nd

sh
ip

gr
ou

ps
ar

e

Iw
ou

ld
di

sa
gr

ee
w

ith
an

y
pr

op
os

al
to

bu
ild

a
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

.
M

on
ey

w
ou

ld
be

be
tte

r
sp

en
to

n
te

ac
he

r
su

pp
or

t.
Id

o
no

t
su

pp
or

ta
re

-z
on

in
g

of
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

to
H

ar
la

w
.

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d.

C
hi

ld
re

n
ha

ve
al

so
fo

rm
ed

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

th
ro

ug
h

A
ct

iv
e

S
ch

oo
ls

.
O

ne
th

ird
of

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

is
si

tu
at

ed
N

or
th

si
de

of
Q

ue
en

's
R

oa
d,

th
er

ef
or

e,
cl

os
es

t
an

d
sa

fe
st

sc
ho

ol
fo

r
th

em
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 55



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
Is

tr
on

gl
y

w
is

h
th

at
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
li

s
N

O
T

R
E

Z
O

N
E

D
to

be
in

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

tz
on

e
fo

r
H

ar
la

w
A

ca
de

m
y.

O
ne

of
th

e
re

as
on

s
w

e
bo

ug
ht

a
ho

us
e

in
th

e
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

ar
ea

w
as

so
m

y
ch

ild
re

n
co

ul
d

at
te

nd
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
S

ch
oo

l,
w

hi
ch

ha
s

a
ve

ry
go

od
re

pu
ta

tio
n.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
B

y
vi

ew
in

g
th

e
S

ec
on

da
ry

sc
ho

ol
s

In
sp

ec
tio

n
R

ep
or

ts
an

d
S

co
tla

nd
S

ch
oo

ls
Le

ag
ue

T
ab

le
Id

on
�t

w
an

tt
he

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
to

be
re

zo
ne

d
to

H
ar

la
w

A
ca

de
m

y
fr

om
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
an

d
w

ou
ld

lik
e

m
y

ch
ild

re
n

co
nt

in
ue

th
ei

r
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
ed

uc
at

io
n

in
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
S

ch
oo

l.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

he
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n
ex

er
ci

se
in

cl
ud

es
no

pr
op

os
al

s
fo

r
pa

re
nt

s
to

co
m

m
en

tu
po

n.
In

ap
pr

op
ria

te
to

so
ur

ce
id

ea
s

fr
om

a
bl

an
k

sh
ee

t.
P

ar
en

ts
ha

ve
no

re
al

de
si

re
fo

r
ch

an
ge

un
le

ss
it

ca
n

of
fe

r
be

ne
fit

s
to

ed
uc

at
io

n.
R

ez
on

in
g

sh
ou

ld
be

ke
pt

to
a

m
in

im
um

to
av

oi
d

di
sr

up
tio

n
to

fa
m

ili
es

.
S

o
ca

lle
d

an
om

al
ie

s
m

ay
ex

is
tb

ut
it

ha
sn

't
be

en
a

pr
ob

le
m

in
m

y
lif

et
im

e.
M

os
tp

ar
en

ts
of

pu
pi

ls
at

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
w

ou
ld

fin
d

it
un

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
to

be
re

zo
ne

d
at

H
ar

la
w

Id
o

no
tb

el
ie

ve
an

y
ch

ild
sh

ou
ld

ha
ve

to
co

ns
id

er
be

in
g

dr
iv

en
bu

se
d

to
sc

ho
ol

.
T

he
ci

ty
ce

nt
re

sc
ho

ol
s

ar
e

lo
ca

te
d

w
he

re
th

ey
ar

e
fo

r
a

re
as

on
ie

ad
ja

ce
nt

to
th

e
po

pu
la

tio
n

w
hi

ch
ne

ed
s

th
em

.

A
ca

de
m

y.
O

fte
n

at
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
ex

pe
ns

e
re

la
te

d
to

ho
us

e
pr

ic
in

g.
T

he
m

ai
n

ke
y

is
th

e
qu

al
ity

of
ed

uc
at

io
n

no
t

th
e

fa
br

ic
qu

al
ity

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

gs
.

A
ll

ef
fo

rt
s

sh
ou

ld
be

m
ad

e
to

m
ai

nt
ai

n
an

d
im

pr
ov

e
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
tr

ad
iti

on
al

(h
is

to
ric

)
sc

ho
ol

s
w

ith
in

A
be

rd
ee

n.
A

ll
fu

tu
re

ho
us

in
g

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

at
th

e
ou

ts
et

sh
ou

ld
re

qu
ire

to
pl

an
fo

r
po

te
nt

ia
l

sc
ho

ol
in

g
ne

ed
s.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
G

ra
m

m
ar

�s
at

ta
in

m
en

t
le

ve
ls

ar
e

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

hi
gh

er
th

an
H

ar
la

w
A

ca
de

m
y�

s.
T

he
co

un
ci

l
m

ay
w

el
le

nd
up

lo
si

ng
ac

ad
em

ic
al

ly
ab

le
pu

pi
ls

to
th

e
pr

iv
at

e
se

ct
or

,
re

du
ci

ng
th

e
at

ta
in

m
en

t
le

ve
ls

it
so

pr
id

es
its

el
fo

n,
an

d
ha

st
en

in
g

a
fu

rt
he

r
ex

od
us

.

If
A

sh
le

y
is

re
zo

ne
d

fo
r

G
ra

m
m

ar
,m

y
so

n
m

ay
w

el
le

nd
up

in
a

pr
iv

at
e

sc
ho

ol
(w

he
re

w
e

ha
ve

be
en

to
ld

he
w

ou
ld

ex
ce

l).
T

ha
tw

ou
ld

be
re

gr
et

ta
bl

e
be

ca
us

e
he

w
ou

ld
lo

se
th

e
fr

ie
nd

sh
ip

s
he

ha
s

T
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
re

m
ai

ns
a

je
w

el
in

th
e

ci
ty

�s
sc

ho
ol

s
es

ta
te

;I
�m

su
re

th
e

co
un

ci
lw

an
ts

to
ke

ep
it

th
at

w
ay

.

bu
ilt

up
ov

er
th

e
ye

ar
s.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 56



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

o
m

ak
e

an
in

fo
rm

ed
ju

dg
em

en
to

n
re

zo
ni

ng
,t

he
ou

to
fz

on
e

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

m
ay

ne
ed

m
or

e
an

al
ys

is
w

ith
re

ga
rd

to
tr

en
ds

in
re

si
de

nt
ia

ll
oc

at
io

ns
of

ou
to

fz
on

e
pu

pi
ls

fo
r

th
e

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s.

Iw
ou

ld
be

st
ro

ng
ly

ag
ai

ns
ta

ny
m

ov
e

to
re

zo
ne

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
P

rim
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

aw
ay

fr
om

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

sc
ho

ol
as

it
ha

s
a

hi
gh

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
of

in
-z

on
e

pu
pi

ls
an

d
is

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

ly
be

st
su

ite
d

to
G

ra
m

m
ar

fo
r

m
os

tp
up

ils
re

si
de

nt
ia

ll
oc

at
io

n.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

he
tr

an
si

tio
n

fr
om

pr
im

ar
y

to
se

co
nd

ar
y

ha
s

be
en

im
pr

ov
ed

as
ch

ild
re

n
ar

e
be

in
g

en
co

ur
ag

ed
to

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e

in
A

ct
iv

e
S

ch
oo

ls
ac

tiv
iti

es
.

C
hi

ld
re

n
ha

ve
m

ad
e

fr
ie

nd
s

w
ith

si
m

ila
r

in
te

re
st

s
be

fo
re

th
ey

st
ar

t

T
he

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ith

m
aj

or
is

su
es

sh
ou

ld
be

ad
dr

es
se

d
di

re
ct

ly
ra

th
er

th
an

st
irr

in
g

up
al

lt
he

ci
ty

ar
ea

s.
W

he
re

an
ex

is
tin

g
zo

ni
ng

ar
ra

ng
em

en
tw

or
ks

w
e

sh
ou

ld
no

t
lo

ok
to

de
st

ro
y

th
is

.
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

is
no

t
an

an
om

al
y

in
th

e
sy

st
em

,t
hi

s
is

si
m

pl
y

a
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
sp

lit
th

at
w

or
ks

.T
he

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p

be
tw

ee
n

A
G

S
an

d
A

sh
le

y
is

w
el

le
st

ab
lis

he
d

he
nc

e
th

e
le

ve
lo

f
at

te
nd

an
ce

at
th

e
re

ce
nt

A
S

G
pa

re
nt

s
m

ee
tin

g.
T

he
re

is
a

da
ng

er
th

at
re

zo
ni

ng
co

ul
d

be
se

en
as

a
kn

ee
je

rk

se
co

nd
ar

y.
P

ar
en

ts
do

no
tw

an
to

ne
ch

ild
at

te
nd

in
g

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

an
d

on
e

at
te

nd
in

g
H

ar
la

w
ow

in
g

to
re

zo
ni

ng
.

re
ac

tio
n

to
fig

ur
es

cu
rr

en
tly

av
ai

la
bl

e.
A

ny
ch

an
ge

s
to

fe
ed

er
sc

ho
ol

s
w

ill
re

su
lt

in
pe

op
le

ap
pl

yi
ng

to
A

G
S

fr
om

ou
tw

ith
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
Is

tr
on

gl
y

fe
el

th
at

it
co

ul
d

be
ve

ry
de

tr
im

en
ta

lt
o

m
y

yo
un

ge
r

ch
ild

's
ed

uc
at

io
n

w
er

e
sh

e
to

be
pl

ac
ed

in
a

sc
ho

ol
se

pa
ra

te
d

fr
om

he
r

si
bl

in
g.

S
he

is
no

ta
ch

ild
th

at
co

pe
s

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

w
el

lw
ith

tr
an

si
tio

n,
an

d

ha
vi

ng
en

du
re

d
se

ve
ra

ly
ea

rs
w

he
re

sh
e

ha
s

fo
un

d
it

ve
ry

di
ffi

cu
lt

to
se

ttl
e

in
to

ne
w

su
rr

ou
nd

in
gs

,
w

e
ha

ve
al

w
ay

s
ha

d
th

e
co

m
fo

rt
of

kn
ow

in
g

th
at

w
he

n
th

e
tim

e
ca

m
e

to
m

ov
e

on
to

th
e

"b
ig

sc
ho

ol
",

sh
e

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 57



w
ou

ld
ha

ve
he

r
br

ot
he

r
th

er
e

to
lo

ok
ou

tf
or

he
r,

to
he

lp
an

d
en

co
ur

ag
e

he
r.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
A

co
m

pa
ris

on
of

th
e

sc
ho

ol
s

re
su

lts
sh

ow
be

tte
r

at
ta

in
m

en
ta

tt
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
sc

ho
ol

-
Id

o
no

t
w

is
h

m
y

ch
ild

re
n

to
at

te
nd

a
sc

ho
ol

th
at

ha
s

po
or

er
ed

uc
at

io
na

lo
ut

co
m

es
th

an
th

e
sc

ho
ol

th
ey

ar
e

cu
rr

en
tly

zo
ne

d
to

.

R
ev

ie
w

th
e

us
e

of
th

e
F

re
nc

h
sc

ho
ol

at
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

sc
ho

ol
,m

ov
e

th
e

G
ae

lic
un

it
at

G
ilc

om
st

ou
n

S
ch

oo
lt

o
pr

ov
id

e
in

cr
ea

se
d

ca
pa

ci
ty

at
th

at
sc

ho
ol

,a
nd

co
ns

id
er

th
e

vi
ab

ili
ty

of
S

tJ
os

ep
hs

.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l1
It

w
ou

ld
be

us
ef

ul
to

di
ffe

re
nt

ia
te

be
tw

ee
n

th
e

in
-z

on
e

sc
ho

ol
s

fo
re

ca
st

s
an

d
th

e
pl

an
ne

d
ou

to
fz

on
e

sp
ar

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
fo

r
ea

ch
of

th
e

sc
ho

ol
s

in
st

ea
d

of
th

is
si

ng
le

fo
re

ca
st

nu
m

be
r.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l2
C

an
't

he
lp

th
in

ki
ng

th
at

in
st

ea
d

of
m

or
e

su
rv

ey
s

be
in

g
pe

rf
or

m
m

or
e

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
ac

tio
n

w
ou

ld
ha

ve
be

en
to

ac
tu

po
n

th
e

in
de

pe
nd

en
tr

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
m

ad
e

6
ye

ar
s

ag
o

in
th

e
fir

st
pl

ac
e.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

o
ch

an
ge

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

t
zo

ne
w

ou
ld

je
op

ar
di

se
G

ra
m

m
ar

's
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
.

T
he

re
zo

ni
ng

of
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

to
H

ar
la

w
(a

sh
ift

fr
om

a
hi

gh
pe

rf
or

m
in

g
sc

ho
ol

to
on

e
w

hi
ch

pe
rf

or
m

s
le

ss
w

el
l)

w
ou

ld
be

of
gr

ea
tc

on
ce

rn
to

pa
re

nt
s

an
d

co
ul

d
po

te
nt

ia
lly

je
op

ar
di

se

A
po

ss
ib

le
so

lu
tio

n
to

th
is

ci
ty

w
id

e
pr

ob
le

m
w

ou
ld

be
th

e
re

du
ct

io
n

in
ou

to
f

zo
ne

pl
ac

es
of

fe
re

d.
T

hi
s

al
la

pp
ea

rs
to

be
as

a
re

su
lt

of
th

e
pa

re
nt

al
rig

ht
to

ch
oo

se
a

sc
ho

ol
an

d
th

e
al

lo
ca

tio
n

po
lic

y
of

A
be

rd
ee

n
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il.

ou
r

ch
ild

re
n'

s
fu

tu
re

s.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
W

e
w

an
te

d
ou

r
so

n
to

at
te

nd
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
du

e
to

th
e

st
an

da
rd

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

an
d

th
e

le
ve

lt
ha

ti
th

ad
ac

hi
ev

ed
in

th
e

S
ch

oo
l

E
xa

m
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
T

ab
le

s,
w

he
re

as
H

ar
la

w
do

es
no

th
av

e
th

e
sa

m
e

st
at

ur
e.

O
ur

so
n

is
a

se
ns

iti
ve

bo
y

an
d

he
ha

s
bu

ilt
up

a
lo

to
f

fr
ie

nd
s

at
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

w
ho

al
so

liv
e

in
th

e
cl

os
e

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d
an

d
in

te
nd

to
co

nt
in

ue
th

ei
r

ed
uc

at
io

n
at

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

.

T
he

de
tr

im
en

tw
ou

ld
be

a
re

du
ce

d
va

lu
at

io
n

to
ou

r
ho

m
e,

th
e

co
st

of
se

lli
ng

an
d

bu
yi

ng
re

su
lti

ng
in

a
m

uc
h

sm
al

le
r

ho
m

e
in

an
ar

ea
su

ch
as

C
ul

ts
to

en
su

re
th

e
sa

m
e

le
ve

lo
fs

ch
oo

lin
g.

T
o

up
ro

ot
hi

m
fr

om
hi

s
fr

ie
nd

s
an

d
ho

m
e

co
ul

d
be

po
te

nt
ia

lly
da

m
ag

in
g

em
ot

io
na

lly
to

hi
s

gr
ow

in
g

up
lif

e.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 58



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
H

av
in

g
ou

r
ch

ild
re

n
ed

uc
at

ed
th

er
e

is
in

ou
r

ca
se

hi
st

or
ic

,b
ut

ba
se

d
on

th
e

sc
ho

ol
�s

pe
rf
or

m
an

ce
an

d
ex

ce
lle

nt
re

su
lts

ov
er

th
e

ye
ar

s

T
he

re
is

lit
tle

do
ub

tt
he

re
is

a
co

rr
el

at
io

n
be

tw
ee

n
ho

us
e

pr
ic

es
an

d
ed

uc
at

io
na

l
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
as

.I
ti

s
hi

gh
ly

lik
el

y
th

at
re

zo
ni

ng
w

ou
ld

ad
ve

rs
el

y
af

fe
ct

ho
us

e
pr

ic
es

in
th

e
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

ca
tc

hm
en

t
ar

ea
.I

n
th

is
ec

on
om

ic
pe

rio
d

of
fin

an
ci

al
an

xi
et

ie
s,

de
va

lu
at

io
n

of
ev

er
yo

ne
�s

m
ai

n
as

se
ts

ur
el

y
m

us
tb

e
so

m
et

hi
ng

to
co

ns
id

er
av

oi
di

ng
.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
R

ez
on

in
g

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
to

H
ar

la
w

w
ou

ld
se

rv
e

no
us

ef
ul

pu
rp

os
e

in
te

rm
s

of
so

lv
in

g
ca

pa
ci

ty
is

su
es

at
ei

th
er

H
ar

la
w

or
G

ra
m

m
ar

,u
nl

es
s

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

is
ho

pi
ng

to
m

ov
e

to
dr

iv
e

de
m

an
d

do
w

n
at

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
w

hi
ch

w
ou

ld
m

ov
e

a
cu

rr
en

tly
no

n-
ex

is
te

nt
pr

ob
le

m
el

se
w

he
re

.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
S

ee
do

cu
m

en
t-

F
or

re
as

on
s

w
e

ha
ve

ou
tli

ne
d,

w
e

ca
n

se
e

no
re

as
on

to
ch

an
ge

th
e

lo
ng

st
an

di
ng

an
d

su
cc

es
sf

ul
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p
be

tw
ee

n
A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
an

d
A

G
S
.N

ei
th

er
sc

ho
ol

is
fo

re
ca

st
to

ex
ce

ed
it'

s
ca

pa
ci

ty
an

d
it

is
cl

ea
r
th

at
an

y
pr

op
os

al
to

re
-z

on
e

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
w

ou
ld

be
dr

iv
en

by
ot

he
r
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

ra
th

er
th

an
ed

uc
at

io
na

lb
en

ef
it.

C
on

sq
ue

nt
ly

th
e

pa
re

nt
s

of
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

S
ch

oo
lw

ill
vi

go
ur

os
ly

op
po

se
an

y
ch

an
ge

to
th

ei
r
cu

re
nt

zo
ni

ng
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
C

hi
ld

re
n

w
ith

ad
di

tio
na

ls
up

po
rt

ne
ed

s
w

ou
ld

fe
el

vu
ln

er
ab

le
w

ith
ch

an
gi

ng
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.I

n
ad

di
tio

n
th

ey
m

ay
ha

ve
ol

de
r
si

bl
in

gs
at

th
e

G
ra

m
m

ar
an

d
th

ei
r
st

re
ss

w
ou

ld
be

in
cr

ea
se

d
be

in
g

zo
ne

d
to

an
ot

he
r

sc
ho

ol
or

ha
vi

ng
to

le
av

e
fr
ie

nd
s.

P
ar

en
ts

al
so

w
ill

st
ru

gg
le

to
lia

is
e

an
d

at
te

nd
to

2
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

if
th

ey
ha

ve
ch

ild
re

n
al

re
ad

y
at

th
e

G
ra

m
m

ar
.T

he
su

pp
or

tf
or

yo
un

ge
r

ch
ild

re
n

w
ith

in
th

e
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

J:
\S

ch
o
ol

_E
st

at
e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a
il

o
r
C

o
m

m
e
nt

C
a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e
e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 59



w
ill

be
re

m
ov

ed
,

tr
an

sp
or

tt
o

2
di

ffe
re

nt
sc

ho
ol

s
w

ill
be

di
ffi

cu
lt

an
d

th
er

e
w

ill
be

ad
de

d
ex

pe
ns

e
in

te
rm

s
of

2
di

ffe
re

nt
se

ts
of

un
ifo

rm
et

c
in

th
es

e
tim

es
of

re
ce

ss
io

n.
T

he
ch

ild
re

n
th

em
se

lv
es

ha
ve

al
so

lo
ng

kn
ow

n
th

ey
w

ill
be

at
te

nd
in

g
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

an
d

to
ch

an
ge

w
ill

ca
us

e
a

de
gr

ee
of

st
re

ss
.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
It

is
no

te
d

th
at

th
e

ne
w

M
ile

E
nd

S
ch

oo
l

ha
s

ha
d

a
ve

ry
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

in
ve

st
m

en
ti

nt
o

it
an

d
to

su
gg

es
tu

si
ng

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
as

a
fe

ed
er

to
H

ar
la

w
A

ca
de

m
y

ap
pe

ar
s

to
be

un
fa

ir
i.e

.n
ot

on
ly

le
ss

in
ve

st
ed

in
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

(a
nd

th
er

ef
or

e
to

th
os

e
pu

pi
ls

)
th

an
M

ile
E

nd
(A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

sc
or

ed
po

or
ly

in
re

la
tio

n
to

bu
ild

in
g

su
ita

bi
lit

y
an

d
co

nd
iti

on
in

la
te

st
re

po
rt

s)
th

os
e

pu
pi

ls
at

te
nd

in
g

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
ap

pe
ar

th
en

to
be

fu
rt

he
r

pe
na

lis
ed

if
on

ly
gr

an
te

d
ac

ce
ss

to
th

e
le

ss
pr

es
tig

io
us

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

.
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

ha
s

a
lo

ng
hi

st
or

y
of

be
in

g
a

so
ur

ce
sc

ho
ol

fo
r

th
e

G
ra

m
m

ar
sc

ho
ol

no
le

ss
th

an
an

y
ot

he
r

sc
ho

ol
an

d
it

ap
pe

ar
s

M
y

w
ife

an
d

I
ac

tu
al

ly
on

ly
ha

ve
kn

ow
le

dg
e

of
th

e
pr

op
os

al
th

ro
ug

h
a

ne
ig

hb
ou

r
w

ho
ha

pp
en

s
to

ha
ve

a
le

tte
r

fr
om

th
e

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
P

ar
en

t
co

un
ci

l.
I

ca
n

fin
d

no
cl

ea
r

id
ea

ev
en

on
th

e
A

C
C

w
eb

si
te

of
w

ha
t

is
ac

tu
al

ly
ha

pp
en

in
g.

W
hy

ha
s

th
e

co
un

ci
l

no
t

go
ne

ou
t

an
d

pr
ov

id
ed

re
si

de
nt

s
w

ith
th

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
th

at
th

ey

ne
ed

/
de

se
rv

e?
I

no
te

on
th

e
le

tte
r

it
is

st
at

ed
th

at
th

e
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n
pe

rio
d

is
su

pp
os

ed
ly

cl
os

ed
on

30
th

N
ov

em
be

r
bu

ti
t

se
em

s
lik

e
it

ha
s

ne
ve

r
be

en
op

en
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 60



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
D

es
pi

te
pr

ed
ic

tio
ns

of
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
am

on
gs

tG
ra

m
m

ar
fe

ed
er

sc
ho

ol
s

th
e

ro
le

of
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

is
no

te
xp

ec
te

d
to

be
ex

ce
ed

ed
,t

he
re

fo
re

th
er

e
se

em
s

no
va

lid
re

as
on

to
ch

an
ge

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

tz
on

e.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
D

es
pi

te
pr

ed
ic

tio
ns

of
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
am

on
gs

tG
ra

m
m

ar
fe

ed
er

sc
ho

ol
s

th
e

ro
le

of
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

is
no

te
xp

ec
te

d
to

be
ex

ce
ed

ed
,t

he
re

fo
re

th
er

e
se

em
s

no
va

lid
re

as
on

to
ch

an
ge

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

tz
on

e.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

he
fa

ct
th

at
H

ar
la

w
A

ca
de

m
y

is
si

tu
at

ed
w

ith
in

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a
fo

r
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

is
irr

el
ev

an
tt

o
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

pu
pi

ls
as

G
ra

m
m

ar
is

si
tu

at
ed

w
ith

in
w

al
ki

ng
di

st
an

ce
of

al
lp

up
ils

liv
in

g
in

th
e

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a.

T
he

on
ly

"a
no

m
al

y"
Ic

an
se

e
is

th
at

of
th

e
lo

ca
tio

n
of

H
ar

la
w

in
re

la
tio

n
to

its
fe

ed
er

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

th
at

ha
s

al
w

ay
s

be
en

th
e

ca
se

.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
P

et
iti

on
E

m
ai

lo
fS

up
po

rt
fo

r
no

tr
ez

on
in

g
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

-
24

em
ai

ls
of

su
pp

or
t

at
ta

ch
ed

to
th

e
pe

tit
io

n

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
P

ro
bl

em
s

w
ith

th
e

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
es

ta
te

w
ill

no
tb

e
so

lv
ed

by
re

zo
ni

ng
,b

ut
by

in
ve

st
in

g
m

or
e

in
to

th
e

bu
ild

in
gs

an
d

re
so

ur
ce

s
of

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
s.

If
ee

l
th

at
al

th
ou

gh
th

is
w

ou
ld

co
st

m
or

e
it

w
ou

ld
gi

ve
ou

r
ch

ild
re

n
a

be
tte

r
sc

ho
ol

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
Ih

av
e

on
e

ch
ild

in
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

,a
nd

tw
o

in
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

an
d

Iw
ou

ld
lik

e
al

lo
ft

he
m

to
go

to
th

e
sa

m
e

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

.

T
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
ha

s
a

be
tte

r
ac

ad
em

ic
re

co
rd

an
d

be
tte

r
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

th
an

H
ar

la
w

an
d

na
tu

ra
lly

Iw
ou

ld
lik

e
m

y
ch

ild
re

n
to

go
w

he
re

th
ey

ha
ve

th
e

be
st

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

.

If
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

w
as

re
zo

ne
d

th
en

ov
er

tim
e

it
m

ay
be

co
m

e
an

ot
he

r
"c

om
m

ut
er

"
sc

ho
ol

ra
th

er
th

an
a

co
m

m
un

ity
on

e.
H

ar
la

w
is

in
a

go
od

W
es

tE
nd

lo
ca

tio
n

an
d

se
lli

ng
it

w
ou

ld
pr

ob
ab

ly
ge

ne
ra

te
en

ou
gh

m
on

ey
fo

r
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
to

bu
ild

an
ex

te
ns

io
n

to
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

to
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e

in
-z

on
e

pu
pi

ls
fr

om
bo

th
sc

ho
ol

s.
R

e-
zo

ni
ng

w
ou

ld
ju

st
tr

an
sf

er
an

y
is

su
es

fr
om

H
ar

la
w

to
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

an
d

re
su

lt
in

tw
o

m
ed

io
cr

e
sc

ho
ol

s.
P

ar
en

ts
fe

el
th

at
th

e

di
sc

us
si

on
ar

ou
nd

re
zo

ni
ng

to
H

ar
la

w
is

be
in

g
dr

iv
en

by
a

vo
ci

fe
ro

us
ca

m
pa

ig
n

to
ke

ep
H

ar
la

w
op

en
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 61



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
Le

tte
r

H
ar

la
w

do
es

no
tm

an
ag

e
to

ge
ta

s
m

an
y

pu
pi

ls
to

as
hi

gh
a

le
ve

lo
f

at
ta

in
m

en
ta

s
A

G
S

.
R

es
ea

rc
h

sh
ow

s
to

ra
is

e
st

an
da

rd
s

in
sc

ho
ol

s
co

nc
en

tr
at

e
on

th
e

m
an

ag
em

en
ta

nd
te

ac
hi

ng
ab

ili
ty

in
th

at
sc

ho
ol

s.
A

ny
re

zo
ne

is
lik

el
y

to
fa

il
to

m
ee

tt
he

ob
je

ct
iv

e
of

ed
uc

at
io

n
la

w
.

T
he

cu
rr

en
ta

nx
ie

ty
is

ca
us

in
g

so
m

e
di

sc
om

fo
rt

fo
r

pu
pi

ls
cu

rr
en

tly
at

te
nd

in
g

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d,
m

an
y

of
w

ho
m

ha
ve

si
bl

in
gs

at
A

G
S

.

T
he

re
is

no
pr

ob
le

m
co

nc
er

ni
ng

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
as

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

ca
n

ca
te

r
fo

r
th

e
nu

m
be

rs
in

fe
ed

er
sc

ho
ol

s.
It

is
po

ss
ib

le
fo

r
A

C
C

to
re

fu
se

a
re

pl
ac

em
en

t
as

ou
tli

ne
d

in
A

C
C

's
ow

n
do

cu
m

en
ts

.I
ti

s
M

ile
E

nd
th

at
re

qu
ire

s
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

-
re

zo
ne

so
m

e
st

re
et

s/
lo

ca
tio

ns
to

S
ke

ne
S

qu
ar

e.
If

lin
ks

ha
d

to
be

fo
rm

ed
/d

ev
el

op
ed

w
ith

H
ar

la
w

th
er

e
w

ou
ld

be
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

co
st

an
d

ef
fo

rt
re

qu
ire

d.
In

th
e

21
st

C
en

tu
ry

S
ch

oo
l

P
ro

vi
si

on
R

ep
or

t2
01

0
it

st
at

ed
th

er
e

w
ou

ld
be

su
ffi

ci
en

ts
pa

re
ca

pa
ci

ty
in

ot
he

r
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

to
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e

al
lH

ar
la

w
pu

pi
ls

so
is

th
er

e
st

ill
a

ne
ed

fo
r

th
is

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

?

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
Ih

av
e

on
e

ch
ild

in
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

,a
nd

tw
o

in
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

an
d

Iw
ou

ld
lik

e
al

lo
ft

he
m

to
go

to
th

e
sa

m
e

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

.

T
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
ha

s
a

be
tte

r
ac

ad
em

ic
re

co
rd

an
d

be
tte

r
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

th
an

H
ar

la
w

an
d

na
tu

ra
lly

Iw
ou

ld
lik

e
m

y
ch

ild
re

n
to

go
w

he
re

th
ey

ha
ve

th
e

be
st

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

.
C

hi
ld

re
n

sh
ou

ld
liv

e
w

ith
in

If
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

w
as

re
zo

ne
d

th
en

ov
er

tim
e

it
m

ay
be

co
m

e
an

ot
he

r
"c

om
m

ut
er

"
sc

ho
ol

ra
th

er
th

an
a

co
m

m
un

ity
on

e.
H

ar
la

w
is

in
a

go
od

W
es

tE
nd

lo
ca

tio
n

an
d

se
lli

ng
it

w
ou

ld
pr

ob
ab

ly
ge

ne
ra

te
en

ou
gh

m
on

ey
fo

r
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
to

bu
ild

an
ex

te
ns

io
n

to
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

to
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e

in
-z

on
e

pu
pi

ls
fr

om
bo

th
sc

ho
ol

s.
R

e-
zo

ni
ng

w
ou

ld
ju

st
tr

an
sf

er
an

y
is

su
es

fr
om

H
ar

la
w

to
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

an
d

re
su

lt
in

tw
o

m
ed

io
cr

e
sc

ho
ol

s.
P

ar
en

ts
fe

el
th

at
th

e

A
sh

le
y

w
ou

ld
be

ne
fit

fr
om

in
ve

st
m

en
tf

or
re

pa
irs

to
th

e
bu

ild
in

g
an

d
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
to

th
e

to
ile

ts
an

d
pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

.

w
al

ki
ng

di
st

an
ce

of
th

ei
r

sc
ho

ol
.

di
sc

us
si

on
ar

ou
nd

re
zo

ni
ng

to
H

ar
la

w
is

be
in

g
dr

iv
en

by
a

vo
ci

fe
ro

us
ca

m
pa

ig
n

to
ke

ep
H

ar
la

w
op

en
.R

ez
on

e
K

ai
m

hi
ll

to
C

ul
ts

as
it

is
cl

os
er

fo
r

pu
pi

ls
.

O
ne

bi
gg

er
sc

ho
ol

(G
ra

m
m

ar
w

ith
an

ex
te

ns
io

n)
w

ith
a

hi
gh

er
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

of
in

zo
ne

pu
pi

ls
w

ol
d

be
th

e
be

st
so

lu
tio

n.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
Id

o
no

ts
ee

an
y

va
lu

e
in

th
e

re
-

zo
ni

ng
of

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

l,
th

e
fu

tu
re

ro
le

of
A

be
rd

ee
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
is

se
tt

o
be

st
ab

le
or

de
cl

in
e

th
er

ef
or

e
th

er
e

is
no

ne
ed

to
al

lo
ca

te
d

zo
ne

d
pu

pi
ls

fr
om

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
to

an

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 62



al
te

rn
at

iv
e

sc
ho

ol
.

T
he

an
om

al
y

of
H

ar
la

w
A

ca
de

m
y

is
th

e
is

su
e;

it
is

cl
ea

r
th

at
th

is
sc

ho
ol

is
no

tl
oc

at
ed

in
th

e
be

st
pl

ac
e

fo
r

th
e

pu
pi

ls
at

te
nd

in
g.

G
iv

en
th

e
lo

ca
tio

n
of

th
e

sc
ho

ol
it

m
us

tb
e

of
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

co
m

m
er

ci
al

va
lu

e.

Is
ug

ge
st

th
at

it
is

so
ld

an
d

an
al

te
rn

at
iv

e
bu

ilt
to

se
rv

e
th

e
ne

ed
s

of
th

e
pu

pi
ls

an
d

fa
m

ili
es

w
ith

in
its

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l

S
ke

ne
S

q
an

d
G

ilc
om

st
ou

n;
al

so
pr

oj
ec

te
d

to
go

ov
er

ca
pa

ci
ty

an
d

ye
t

w
he

n
yo

u
lo

ok
at

th
e

cu
rr

en
tp

er
ce

nt
ag

e
of

in
zo

ne
pu

pi
ls

(5
4%

an
d

36
%

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y)

th
is

is
a

no
n

is
su

e
as

th
e

co
un

ci
li

s
w

el
lw

ith
in

its
rig

ht
s

to
lim

it
ou

t
of

zo
ne

pl
ac

em
en

ts
to

th
es

e
sc

ho
ol

s.
D

ua
lZ

on
in

g;
T

he
re

is
on

ly
a

sm
al

l
nu

m
be

r
of

st
re

et
s

in
vo

lv
ed

an
d

Ia
gr

ee
th

is
ca

us
es

co
nf

us
io

n
an

d
di

ffi
cu

lty
in

ca
pa

ci
ty

pl
an

ni
ng

so
th

is
sh

ou
ld

be
st

op
pe

d
A

no
m

al
y

of
H

ar
la

w
:I

fin
d

th
is

a
no

n
is

su
e

as
di

d
pa

re
nt

s
at

bo
th

.

Ih
av

e
tw

o
m

ai
n

is
su

es
w

ith
th

is
ex

er
ci

se
.

F
irs

tly
it

is
ve

ry
di

ffi
cu

lt
to

co
ns

ul
to

n
a

do
cu

m
en

tw
hi

ch
in

cl
ud

es
no

pr
op

os
al

s
or

su
gg

es
tio

ns
fr

om
w

hi
ch

to
st

ar
tf

ro
m

.W
e

ar
e

in
th

e
m

aj
or

ity
pa

re
nt

s
an

d
th

er
ef

or
e

do
no

th
av

e
th

e
ex

pe
rt

is
e

or
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

to
co

m
m

en
to

n
su

ch
a

w
id

e
ra

ng
in

g
do

cu
m

en
t,

al
lI

kn
ow

is
m

y
ow

n
ch

ild
re

n'
s

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
T

he
do

cu
m

en
t

is
ov

er
10

0
pa

ge
s

lo
ng

an
d

as
bu

sy
w

or
ki

ng
pa

re
nt

s
th

is
ha

s
be

en
a

tim
e

co
ns

um
in

g

T
he

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

an
d

H
ar

la
w

A
ca

de
m

y
en

ga
ge

m
en

te
ve

nt
s.

In
a

ci
ty

ce
nt

re
yo

u
w

ill
al

w
ay

s
fin

d
sc

ho
ol

s
cl

os
e

to
ea

ch
ot

he
r

an
d

ev
er

yo
ne

is
aw

ar
e

of
th

is
-

ca
tc

hm
en

ts
ar

e
on

m
os

th
ou

si
ng

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

w
he

n
yo

u
pu

rc
ha

se
an

d
co

m
e

as
no

su
rp

ris
e.

In
te

rm
s

of
m

or
e

pu
pi

ls
co

m
in

g
fr

om
in

zo
ne

,i
fy

ou
m

ov
e

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
to

th
e

H
ar

la
w

ca
tc

hm
en

ty
ou

w
ill

si
m

pl
y

re
du

ce
th

e
in

zo
ne

pr
op

or
tio

n
at

G
ra

m
m

ar
as

th
er

e
w

ill
be

a
la

rg
e

nu
m

be
r

of
si

bl
in

g
re

qu
es

ts
.

ex
er

ci
se

w
hi

ch
w

ill
no

do
ub

th
av

e
pu

t
m

an
y

pe
op

le
of

fg
et

tin
g

in
vo

lv
ed

.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
Ia

m
in

to
ta

ld
is

ap
pr

ov
al

of
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

sc
ho

ol
w

ith
ot

he
r

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

so
th

at
st

ud
en

ts
w

ill
at

te
nd

H
ar

la
w

A
ca

de
m

y.
T

he
cu

rr
en

td
es

ig
na

tio
n

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

zo
ne

s
fo

r
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

S
ch

oo
ls

ho
ul

d
be

ke
pt

th
e

sa
m

e.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 63



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

he
tr

an
si

tio
n

fr
om

pr
im

ar
y

to
se

co
nd

ar
y

ha
s

be
en

im
pr

ov
ed

as
ch

ild
re

n
ar

e
be

in
g

en
co

ur
ag

ed
to

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e

in
A

ct
iv

e
S

ch
oo

ls
ac

tiv
iti

es
.

T
hi

s
ha

s
al

lo
w

ed
m

an
y

ch
ild

re
n

to
m

ak
e

fr
ie

nd
s

fr
om

ou
tw

ith
th

ei
r

ow
n

G
ra

m
m

ar
is

no
te

xp
ec

te
d

to
be

ex
ce

ed
ed

,t
he

re
fo

re
th

er
e

se
em

s
no

va
lid

re
as

on
to

ch
an

ge
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
tz

on
e.

I
se

e
th

at
m

ov
in

g
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

S
ch

oo
lt

o
H

ar
la

w
w

ou
ld

se
rv

e
no

pu
rp

os
e

ot
he

r
th

an
to

pu
sh

th
e

ou
to

fz
on

e
is

su
e

fr
om

H
ar

la
w

to
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

.A
lth

ou
gh

th
e

sc
ho

ol
is

ol
d

an
d

w
ou

ld
be

ne
fit

fr
om

so
m

e
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
(in

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

an
d

to
ile

tf
ac

ili
tie

s)
,I

th
in

k
it

is
a

w
on

de
rf

ul
en

vi
ro

nm
en

tf
or

th
e

ch
ild

re
n

to
le

ar
n.

T
hi

s
is

re
fle

ct
ed

in
th

e
go

od
in

sp
ec

tio
n

re
po

rt
s

it
ha

s
re

ce
iv

ed
in

re
ce

nt
ye

ar
s.

W
e

w
on

de
re

d
w

ha
tb

en
ef

its
ha

vi
ng

a
hi

gh
er

in
-z

on
e

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
gi

ve
s

T
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
an

d
H

ar
la

w
ar

e
bo

th
sc

ho
ol

s
in

th
e

ci
ty

ce
nt

re
an

d
th

er
ef

or
e

ha
ve

go
od

an
d

co
nv

en
ie

nt
pu

bl
ic

tr
an

sp
or

ts
er

vi
ce

s
to

re
ac

h
th

em
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r

sc
ho

ol
s.

A
s

a
re

su
lt

th
ey

ar
e

al
w

ay
s

go
in

g
to

ha
ve

a
bi

gg
er

is
su

e
w

ith
ou

to
fz

on
e

ch
ild

re
n

w
is

hi
ng

to
at

te
nd

.

pr
im

ar
y

ca
tc

hm
en

t
be

fo
re

th
ey

st
ar

t
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
.I

t
w

as
m

ad
e

cl
ea

r
to

us
at

A
S

G
m

ee
tin

g
th

at
th

e
tr

an
si

tio
n

fr
om

pr
im

ar
y

to
se

co
nd

ar
y

is
a

ke
y

on
e

fo
r

ch
ild

re
n

an
d

th
er

ef
or

e
an

yt
hi

ng
th

at
ca

n
be

do
ne

to
pr

ot
ec

te
xi

st
in

g
re

la
tio

ns
sh

ou
ld

be
do

ne
.W

hy
ch

an
ge

so
m

et
hi

ng
th

at
w

or
ks

w
el

la
nd

th
at

co
ul

d
re

su
lt

in
de

tr
im

en
ta

l
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
an

d
ed

uc
at

io
n

fo
r

th
e

ch
ild

re
n

liv
in

g
w

ith
in

a
ch

os
en

zo
ne

?

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

-m
ai

l
W

e
ca

nn
ot

th
in

k
of

an
y

ed
uc

at
io

na
l

be
ne

fit
s

w
hi

ch
co

ul
d

be
ac

hi
ev

ed
fo

r
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

ch
ild

re
n

as
a

re
su

lt
of

th
e

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n
of

su
ch

a
pr

op
os

al
.

G
ra

m
m

ar
is

no
te

xp
ec

te
d

to
be

ex
ce

ed
ed

,t
he

re
fo

re
th

er
e

se
em

s
no

va
lid

re
as

on
to

ch
an

ge
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
tz

on
e.

B
as

ed
on

th
e

ou
to

fz
on

e
da

ta
m

ad
e

av
ai

la
bl

e
Is

ee
th

at
m

ov
in

g
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

S
ch

oo
lt

o
H

ar
la

w
w

ou
ld

se
rv

e
no

pu
rp

os
e

ot
he

r
th

an
to

pu
sh

th
e

ou
to

fz
on

e
is

su
e

fr
om

H
ar

la
w

to
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

.T
he

G
ra

m
m

ar
an

d
H

ar
la

w
ar

e
bo

th
sc

ho
ol

s
in

th
e

ci
ty

ce
nt

re
an

d
th

er
ef

or
e

ha
ve

go
od

an
d

co
nv

en
ie

nt
pu

bl
ic

tr
an

sp
or

ts
er

vi
ce

s
to

re
ac

h
th

em
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r

W
e

al
so

no
te

d
fr

om
th

e
E

ng
ag

em
en

t
D

oc
um

en
tt

ha
tt

he
C

ou
nc

il
pr

ed
ic

ts
th

at
3

of
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

fe
ed

er
pr

im
ar

ie
s

w
ill

be
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
w

ith
in

th
e

ne
xt

5
ye

ar
s.

H
ow

ev
er

on
in

sp
ec

tio
n

of
th

e
ou

to
fz

on
e

nu
m

be
rs

at
ea

ch
of

th
e

af
fe

ct
ed

sc
ho

ol
s

(M
ile

E
nd

,
G

ilc
om

st
on

an
d

S
ke

ne
S

qu
ar

e)
,i

tw
ou

ld
ap

pe
ar

th
at

th
is

pr
ob

le
m

co
ul

d
be

re
so

lv
ed

by
re

st
ric

tin
g

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
ou

to
fz

on
e

pl
ac

em
en

tr
eq

ue
st

s
w

hi
ch

ar
e

ac
ce

pt
ed

.

P
ar

en
ts

ne
ed

to
be

ab
le

to
pl

an
ch

ild
ca

re
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
fo

r
af

te
r

sc
ho

ol
et

c
an

d
th

is
is

m
ad

e
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
di

ffi
cu

lt
if

w
e

do
no

th
av

e
a

de
gr

ee
of

ce
rt

ai
nt

y

It
is

im
po

rt
an

tt
o

re
co

gn
is

e
th

at
du

e
to

th
e

lo
ca

tio
n

an
d

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

of
bo

th
G

ra
m

m
ar

an
d

H
ar

la
w

,t
he

re
w

ill
al

w
ay

s
be

re
qu

es
ts

fo
r

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

ot
he

r
ca

tc
hm

en
ts

to
at

te
nd

th
es

e
sc

ho
ol

s.
W

e
ar

e
no

tc
on

vi
nc

ed
th

at
re

-
zo

ni
ng

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
to

H
ar

la
w

w
ill

do
an

yt
hi

ng
to

al
le

vi
at

e
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
pr

ob
le

m
of

ou
to

fz
on

e
re

qu
es

ts
be

in
g

m
ad

e
to

at
te

nd
th

e
ci

ty
ce

nt
re

sc
ho

ol
s.

It
is

lik
el

y
th

at
th

e
bu

rd
en

of
ou

to
fz

on
e

T
he

ex
is

tin
g

ca
tc

hm
en

tb
ou

nd
ar

ie
s

ar
e

w
el

lu
nd

er
st

oo
d

by
pe

op
le

w
ho

bu
y

pr
op

er
ty

in
th

is
ar

ea
,

so
th

er
e

is
no

co
nf

us
io

n
ov

er
w

ha
t

sc
ho

ol
ch

ild
re

n
ar

e
zo

ne
d

to
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 64



sc
ho

ol
s.

A
s

a
re

su
lt

th
ey

ar
e

al
w

ay
s

go
in

g
to

ha
ve

a
bi

gg
er

is
su

e
w

ith
ou

to
f

zo
ne

ch
ild

re
n

w
is

hi
ng

to
at

te
nd

.A
s

pa
rt

of
th

e
re

vi
ew

In
ot

ed
th

at
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

sc
or

ed
qu

ite
po

or
ly

in
re

la
tio

n
to

bu
ild

in
g

su
ita

bi
lit

y
an

d
co

nd
iti

on
.A

lth
ou

gh
th

e
sc

ho
ol

is
ol

d
an

d
w

ou
ld

be
ne

fit
fr

om
so

m
e

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

(in
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
an

d
to

ile
tf

ac
ili

tie
s)

,I
th

in
k

it
is

a
w

on
de

rf
ul

en
vi

ro
nm

en
tf

or
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
to

le
ar

n.
T

hi
s

is
re

fle
ct

ed
in

th
e

go
od

in
sp

ec
tio

n
re

po
rt

s
it

ha
s

re
ga

rd
in

g
w

he
th

er
ou

r
da

ug
ht

er
is

lik
el

y
to

ge
ta

P
1

pl
ac

e
at

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
ne

xt
ye

ar
.I

n
co

nc
lu

si
on

,w
e

st
ro

ng
ly

op
po

se
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
lr

e-
zo

ni
ng

of
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

w
ill

si
m

pl
y

sh
ift

fr
om

H
ar

la
w

to
G

ra
m

m
ar

.

re
ce

iv
ed

in
re

ce
nt

ye
ar

s.
W

e
w

on
de

re
d

w
ha

tb
en

ef
its

ha
vi

ng
a

hi
gh

er
in

-z
on

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

gi
ve

s
an

d
if

th
er

e
is

an
y

ev
id

en
ce

of
an

in
cr

ea
se

in
at

ta
in

m
en

t
so

le
ly

be
ca

us
e

of
th

is
ra

th
er

th
an

ot
he

r
fa

ct
or

s.

S
ch

oo
lf

ro
m

G
ra

m
m

ar
to

H
ar

la
w

.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
T

he
ca

tc
hm

en
tz

on
e.

G
ra

m
m

ar
an

d
H

ar
la

w
ar

e
bo

th
sc

ho
ol

s
in

th
e

ci
ty

ce
nt

re
an

d
th

er
ef

or
e

ha
ve

go
od

an
d

co
nv

en
ie

nt
pu

bl
ic

tr
an

sp
or

ts
er

vi
ce

s
to

re
ac

h
th

em
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r

sc
ho

ol
s.

A
s

a
re

su
lt

th
ey

ar
e

al
w

ay
s

go
in

g
to

ha
ve

a
bi

gg
er

is
su

e
w

ith
ou

to
fz

on
e

ch
ild

re
n

w
is

hi
ng

to
at

te
nd

.

W
e

ha
ve

ha
d

to
m

ak
e

so
m

e
ha

rd
fin

an
ci

al
ch

oi
ce

s
an

d
sa

cr
ifi

ce
s

so
th

at
w

e
co

ul
d

af
fo

rd
to

liv
e

in
th

is
ar

ea
w

he
re

w
e

se
e

ou
r

ch
ild

re
n

w
ill

re
ce

iv
e

th
e

be
st

ed
uc

at
io

n.

It
is

no
w

ve
ry

up
se

tti
ng

th
at

th
ey

m
ay

no
w

ha
ve

op
po

rt
un

ity
ta

ke
n.

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
A

ny
re

-z
on

in
g

of
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

to
H

ar
la

w
w

ou
ld

no
t

ha
ve

an
y

cl
ea

r
ed

uc
at

io
n

ad
va

nt
ag

e
to

th
e

pu
pi

ls
as

th
e

at
ta

in
m

en
tl

ev
el

s
at

G
ra

m
m

ar
fa

r
ex

ce
ed

th
os

e
of

H
ar

la
w

,a
nd

an
y

pu
pi

lm
ov

in
g

fr
om

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
to

H
ar

la
w

w
ill

ha
ve

be
en

fa
ile

d
by

th
e

co
un

ci
li

n
no

t
pr

ov
id

in
g

th
at

ch
ild

a

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 65



A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
E

m
ai

l
W

e
w

er
e

ad
vi

se
d

at
th

e
en

ga
ge

m
en

t
ev

en
to

n
30

O
ct

ob
er

th
at

ce
rt

ai
n

ch
an

ge
s

to
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
ts

co
ul

d
be

im
pl

em
en

te
d

in
tim

e
fo

r
th

e
ne

xt
ac

ad
em

ic
ye

ar
.A

s
th

e
pa

re
nt

s
of

a
ch

ild
at

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
nu

rs
er

y,
w

e
w

ill
be

ap
pl

yi
ng

fo
r

a
P

1
pl

ac
e

at
sc

ho
ol

in
Ja

nu
ar

y.
It

is
th

er
ef

or
e

m
os

tu
ns

et
tli

ng
to

kn
ow

th
at

w
e

w
ill

be
m

ak
in

g
ou

r
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
fo

r
a

pl
ac

e
at

A
sh

le
y

R
oa

d
w

ith
ou

ta
ny

cl
ar

ity
ar

ou
nd

w
he

th
er

w
e

w
ill

be
�in

zo
ne

�
or

�o
ut

of
zo

ne
�.

P
ar

en
ts

ne
ed

to
be

ab
le

to
pl

an
ch

ild
ca

re
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
fo

r
af

te
r
sc

ho
ol

et
c

an
d

th
is

is
m

ad
e

pa
rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
di

ffi
cu

lt
if

w
e

do
no

th
av

e
a

de
gr

ee
of

ce
rt
ai

nt
y

G
ra

m
m

ar
an

d
H

ar
la

w
ar

e
bo

th
sc

ho
ol

s
in

th
e

ci
ty

ce
nt

re
an

d
th

er
ef

or
e

ha
ve

go
od

an
d

co
nv

en
ie

nt
pu

bl
ic

tr
an

sp
or

ts
er

vi
ce

s
to

re
ac

h
th

em
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r
sc

ho
ol

s.
A

s
a

re
su

lt
th

ey
ar

e
al

w
ay

s
go

in
g

to
ha

ve
a

bi
gg

er
is

su
e

w
ith

ou
to

fz
on

e
ch

ild
re

n
w

is
hi

ng
to

at
te

nd
.

B
rid

ge
of

D
on

E
m

ai
l

S
ec

on
dl

y
If

in
d

it
sa

d
an

d
a

lit
tle

un
be

lie
va

bl
e

th
at

no
w

he
re

in
th

e
do

cu
m

en
td

oe
s

it
m

en
tio

n
at

ta
in

m
en

t
or

th
e

st
an

da
rd

of
ed

uc
at

io
n

be
in

g
de

liv
er

ed
in

th
es

e
bu

ild
in

gs
.y

es
yo

u
ne

ed
to

sa
ve

m
on

ey
an

d
re

du
ce

th
e

sc
ho

ol
es

ta
te

bu
ts

ur
el

y
th

e
le

ve
lo

f
ed

uc
at

io
n

ne
ed

s
to

co
m

e
in

to
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n

no
tj

us
ts

iz
e,

ag
e

an
d

ca
pa

ci
ty

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

gs
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
C

on
ve

ni
en

tp
ub

lic
tr
an

sp
or

ts
er

vi
ce

s
to

re
ac

h
th

em
co

m
pa

re
d

to
ot

he
r
sc

ho
ol

s.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
T
he

y
ar

e
al

w
ay

s
go

in
g

to
ha

ve
a

bi
gg

er
is

su
e

w
ith

ou
to

fz
on

e
ch

ild
re

n
w

is
hi

ng
to

at
te

nd
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
(in

pa
rt
ic

ul
ar

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
an

d
to

ile
tf

ac
ili

tie
s)

,I
th

in
k

it
is

a
w

on
de

rf
ul

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
A

fte
r
a

m
ee

tin
g

w
ith

te
ac

he
rs

at
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
la

st
w

ee
k,

it
w

as
co

nf
irm

ed
to

m
e

th
at

th
e

cl
as

s
si

ze
is

cu
rr

en
tly

30
.

T
hi

s
is

al
re

ad
y

a
hi

gh
ra

tio
�

no
t

be
ne

fic
ia

lt
o

pu
pi

l
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
or

te
ac

he
r
co

nd
iti

on
s.

A
ny

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
to

in
cr

ea
se

th
is

ra
tio

w
ou

ld
be

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

.

G
oo

d
en

vi
ro

nm
en

tf
or

th
e

ch
ild

re
n

to
le

ar
n.

T
hi

s
is

re
fle

ct
ed

in
th

e
go

od
in

sp
ec

tio
n

re
po

rt
s

it
ha

s.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
W

e
w

on
de

re
d

w
ha

tb
en

ef
its

ha
vi

ng
a

hi
gh

er
in

-z
on

e
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

gi
ve

s
an

d
if

th
er

e
is

an
y

.

J:
\S

ch
o
ol

_E
st

at
e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a
il

o
r
C

o
m

m
e
nt

C
a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e
e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 66



C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
E

m
ai

l
T

he
ro

ad
ar

ou
nd

C
ul

ts
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

is
in

a
te

rr
ib

le
st

at
e

(p
ot

ho
le

s)
an

d
th

e
co

un
ci

lh
as

fa
ile

d
to

do
an

yt
hi

ng
ab

ou
ti

t.
Iu

nd
er

st
an

d
th

e
sc

ho
ol

ha
s

al
re

ad
y

ra
is

ed
co

nc
er

ns
he

re
bu

ta
pp

ar
en

tly
th

e
ro

ad
ha

s
no

tb
ee

n
ad

op
te

d
by

th
e

co
un

ci
l.

Q
ui

te
w

hy
a

ro
ad

ar
ou

nd
a

sc
ho

ol
,a

lm
os

te
nt

ire
ly

fo
r

th
e

us
e

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

pa
tr

on
s,

ha
s

no
tb

ee
n

ad
op

te
d

by
th

e
co

un
ci

lI
do

no
tk

no
w

.
H

ow
ev

er
,t

he
re

is
a

sa
fe

ty
is

su
e

he
re

fo
r

pu
pi

ls
,c

ou
nc

il
em

pl
oy

ee
s

an
d

pa
re

nt
s

an
d

th
e

ro
ad

sh
ou

ld
be

re
pa

ire
d

w
ith

ou
td

el
ay

.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l

I'm
ex

tr
em

el
y

co
nc

er
ne

d
to

he
ar

th
at

on
e

op
tio

n
un

de
r

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
is

th
e

re
-

zo
ni

ng
of

ho
us

in
g

w
ith

in
ou

r
vi

lla
ge

of
C

ul
ts

.
It'

s
to

ta
lly

ab
ho

rr
en

ta
nd

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

th
at

th
is

(t
he

co
m

m
un

ity
)

co
ul

d
po

te
nt

ia
lly

be
th

re
at

en
ed

.
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
(a

nd
po

ss
ib

ly
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y)

w
on

't
ha

ve
th

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
to

ab
so

rb
th

e
re

si
de

nt
s

of
th

e
ne

w
ho

us
in

g
bu

tI
fe

el
ve

ry
st

ro
ng

ly
th

at
an

y
so

lu
tio

n
fo

r
ed

uc
at

io
n

pr
ov

is
io

n
to

sa
tis

fy
th

e
ne

ed
s

of
th

is
ne

w
ho

us
in

g
an

d
its

re
si

de
nt

s
sh

ou
ld

N
O

T
in

cl
ud

e

th
e

br
ea

k
up

of
ou

r
co

m
m

un
ity

no
r

th
e

th
e

re
-z

on
in

g
of

th
os

e
ho

us
es

cu
rr

en
tly

w
ith

in
C

ul
ts

.I'
d

al
so

st
ro

ng
ly

ad
vo

ca
te

th
at

th
e

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ar
e

N
O

T
zo

ne
d

fo
r

th
e

C
ul

ts
sc

ho
ol

s
an

d
sh

ou
ld

be
m

ad
e

cl
ea

r
as

su
ch

fr
om

th
e

ou
ts

et
of

th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

.
C

ul
ts

E
m

ai
l

Iw
ou

ld
al

so
lik

e
so

m
e

re
as

su
ra

nc
e

th
at

if
re

zo
ni

ng
do

es
go

ah
ea

d
th

en
ex

is
tin

g
pu

pi
ls

an
d

th
ei

r
si

bl
in

gs
w

ho
m

ay
no

th
av

e
st

ar
te

d
th

e
sc

ho
ol

co
ul

d
co

nt
in

ue
in

th
e

sc
ho

ol
th

e
fa

m
ily

ha
s

st
ar

te
d

in
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
Ju

st
a

br
ie

fc
om

m
en

t
af

te
r

co
ns

id
er

in
g

th
e

co
m

pl
ex

iti
es

of
zo

ni
ng

w
ith

re
sp

ec
tt

o
ne

w
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
in

an
d

ar
ou

nd
C

ul
ts

:I
ha

ve
th

re
e

ch
ild

re
n

an
d

ou
r

ad
dr

es
s

is
C

ul
ts

.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 67



It
is

m
y

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n

th
at

al
lt

hr
ee

w
ill

go
to

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
(t

w
o

al
re

ad
y

do
)

an
d

th
en

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y.

Iw
ou

ld
be

m
or

e
th

an
di

sa
pp

oi
nt

ed
if

an
y

re
zo

ni
ng

to
ok

pl
ac

e
w

hi
ch

m
ov

ed
ou

r
st

re
et

ou
to

fz
on

e
fo

r
C

ul
ts

sc
ho

ol
s,

be
ca

us
e

of
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
in

an
d

ar
ou

nd
C

ul
ts

an
d/

or
fa

lli
ng

ro
lls

el
se

w
he

re
.

W
e

ha
ve

de
vo

te
d

a
lo

to
ft

im
e,

ef
fo

rt
an

d
m

on
ey

to
m

ak
e

ou
r

ho
us

e
a

ho
m

e
fo

r
ou

r
th

re
e

ch
ild

re
n,

se
cu

re
in

th
e

kn
ow

le
dg

e
(o

r
so

I
th

ou
gh

t)
th

at
th

ey
w

ou
ld

al
l

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
go

to
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

an
d

A
ca

de
m

y.

In
fa

ct
m

y
5-

ye
ar

ol
d

ca
lls

it
"h

is
A

ca
de

m
y"

w
he

n
w

e
pa

ss
it

on
th

e
w

ay
to

th
e

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
l!

It
is

ve
ry

un
se

ttl
in

g
to

he
ar

th
at

re
zo

ni
ng

co
ul

d
be

re
qu

ire
d.

H
av

in
g

se
en

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
fo

r
bo

th
th

e
pr

im
ar

y
an

d
th

e
se

co
nd

ar
y

re
ac

hi
ng

ca
pa

ci
ty

ow
in

g
to

ho
us

in
g

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

,I
w

ou
ld

fin
d

it
ha

rd
to

ex
pl

ai
n

to
m

y
ch

ild
re

n
if

th
ey

w
er

e
sq

ue
ez

ed
ou

to
w

in
g

to
ou

r
ho

us
e

be
in

g
ne

ar
er

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 68



C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
S

pe
ci

fic
ca

pa
ci

ty
w

ith
in

sc
ho

ol
s

(e
g

-
sc

ie
nc

e
la

b)
,

Is
ug

ge
st

th
at

5t
h

an
d

6t
h

ye
ar

pu
pi

ls
ar

e
ab

le
to

ac
ce

ss
th

es
e

re
so

ur
ce

s
(s

ay
3-

4p
m

)
w

he
n

th
es

e
re

so
ur

ce
s

ar
e

fr
ee

.T
he

5t
h/

6t
h

ye
ar

s
co

ul
d

re
co

up
th

e
la

te
r

da
ys

as
ea

rly
F

rid
ay

fin
is

he
s

or
in

so
m

e
ot

he
r

w
ay

.

to
A

iry
ha

ll
th

an
so

m
e

of
th

e
ne

w
ho

us
es

ar
e.

E
ve

n
if

al
lm

y
ch

ild
re

n
ar

e
O

K
,I

w
ou

ld
no

tw
an

tn
ew

fa
m

ili
es

in
th

e
st

re
et

to
be

ex
cl

ud
ed

fr
om

th
ei

r
lo

ca
l

co
m

m
un

ity
sc

ho
ol

s,
w

hi
ch

ar
e

in
w

al
ki

ng
di

st
an

ce
of

th
is

st
re

et
.

A
nd

as
a

ho
m

eo
w

ne
r

Iw
ou

ld
no

tw
an

tm
y

pr
op

er
ty

to
dr

op
in

va
lu

e
if

it
be

ca
m

e
ou

to
fz

on
e

fo
r

C
ul

ts
sc

ho
ol

s.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
C

ul
ts

E
m

ai
l

E
xt

en
d

th
e

us
e

of
vi

rt
ua

l
ca

m
pu

se
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e
C

ity
H

ig
h

S
ch

oo
ls

/A
ca

de
m

ie
s

fo
r

m
or

e
se

ni
or

su
bj

ec
ts

an
d

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
N

ot
ha

pp
y

if
th

e
sc

ho
ol

w
as

ov
er

su
bs

cr
ib

ed
w

ith
st

ud
en

ts
fr

om
'n

ew
'a

re
as

an
d

di
lu

tin
g

th
e

qu
al

ity
of

ed
uc

at
io

n
du

e
la

rg
e

cl
as

s
nu

m
be

rs
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
E

xt
en

d
th

e
us

e
of

vi
rt

ua
l

ca
m

pu
se

s
ac

ro
ss

th
e

C
ity

H
ig

h
S

ch
oo

ls
/A

ca
de

m
ie

s
fo

r
m

or
e

se
ni

or
su

bj
ec

ts
an

d
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
E

xt
en

d
th

e
us

e
of

vi
rt

ua
l

ca
m

pu
se

s
ac

ro
ss

th
e

C
ity

H
ig

h
S

ch
oo

ls
/A

ca
de

m
ie

s
fo

r
m

or
e

se
ni

or
su

bj
ec

ts
an

d
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
.

W
e

m
us

te
ns

ur
e

th
at

co
m

m
un

iti
es

us
e

th
ei

r
lo

ca
ls

ch
oo

ls
an

d
th

at
la

rg
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

in
cl

ud
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
fo

r
ap

pr
op

ria
te

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
to

su
pp

or
tt

he
pr

op
os

ed
ad

di
tio

na
ld

em
an

d
fo

r
se

rv
ic

es
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 69



C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
Id

o
no

ta
gr

ee
th

at
th

e
C

ou
nc

il
sh

ou
ld

ex
te

nd
th

e
us

e
of

vi
rt

ua
lc

am
pu

se
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e
C

ity
H

ig
h

S
ch

oo
ls

/A
ca

de
m

ie
s

fo
r

m
or

e
se

ni
or

su
bj

ec
ts

an
d

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

.

It
w

ou
ld

no
tb

e
he

lp
fu

lt
o

th
e

co
m

m
un

ity
by

re
-z

on
in

g
pa

rt
of

it,
ea

st
of

K
irk

B
ra

e,
in

de
ed

it
co

ul
d

ca
us

e
m

or
e

pr
ob

le
m

s
by

cr
ea

tin
g

a
riv

al
ry

be
tw

ee
n

th
e

tw
o

w
hi

ch
cu

rr
en

tly
do

es
no

te
xi

st
.T

he
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tw

ill
no

tb
e

zo
ne

d
to

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

la
nd

ho
m

eb
uy

er
s

w
ill

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
is

at
tim

e
of

pu
rc

ha
se

.P
la

nn
er

s
m

us
t

en
su

re
E

A
R

LY
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
of

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

ot
he

r
su

pp
or

tiv
e

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
fo

r
th

e

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

to
m

ak
e

su
re

th
at

it
ha

s
pr

op
er

pl
an

s
to

m
ak

e
su

re
th

at
th

e
ne

w
ho

us
in

g
es

ta
te

s
be

in
g

bu
ilt

ar
ou

nd
th

e
F

ria
rs

fie
ld

,
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

an
d

M
ill

tim
be

r
ar

ea
s

ar
e

ca
te

re
d

fo
r

in
te

rm
s

of
S

ch
oo

ls
an

d
ot

he
r

fo
rm

s
of

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
re

qu
ire

d

re
si

de
nt

s
of

th
e

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
th

e
ci

ty
.T

em
po

ra
ry

ed
uc

at
io

na
lp

ro
vi

si
on

co
ul

d
be

a
pr

ov
id

ed
at

H
az

le
he

ad
P

rim
ar

y.
C

re
at

e
a

ca
m

pu
s

ho
us

in
g

S
ec

on
da

ry
an

d
P

rim
ar

y
pr

ov
is

io
n

in
C

ul
te

r
or

M
ill

tim
be

r.
T

hi
s

w
ou

ld
be

zo
ne

d
fo

r
th

e
C

ul
te

r
an

d
M

ill
tim

be
r

co
m

m
un

iti
es

an
d

w
ou

ld
no

ti
nv

ol
ve

sp
lit

tin
g

an
ex

is
tin

g
co

m
m

un
ity

.S
to

p
ch

ild
re

n
fr

om
La

irh
ill

oc
k

P
rim

ar
y

fr
om

at
te

nd
in

g
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
E

xt
en

d
th

e
us

e
of

vi
rt

ua
l

ca
m

pu
se

s
ac

ro
ss

th
e

C
ity

H
ig

h
S

ch
oo

ls
/A

ca
de

m
ie

s
fo

r
m

or
e

se
ni

or
su

bj
ec

ts
an

d
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns

W
e

ha
ve

de
vo

te
d

a
lo

to
ft

im
e,

ef
fo

rt
an

d
m

on
ey

to
m

ak
e

ou
r

ho
us

e
a

ho
m

e

T
he

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tw
ill

no
t

be
zo

ne
d

to
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
la

nd
ho

m
eb

uy
er

s
w

ill
be

m
ad

e
aw

ar
e

of
th

is
at

tim
e

of
pu

rc
ha

se
.T

em
po

ra
ry

ed
uc

at
io

na
lp

ro
vi

si
on

co
ul

d
be

a
pr

ov
id

ed
at

H
az

le
he

ad
P

rim
ar

y.
A

ll
sc

ho
ol

s
ac

ro
ss

th
e

ci
ty

sh
ou

ld
on

ly
ac

ce
pt

ch
ild

re
n

in
zo

ne
an

d
th

os
e

ch
ild

re
n

w
ho

m
ov

e
w

ith
in

th
e

ci
ty

,s
ho

ul
d

m
ov

e
to

th
e

sc
ho

ol
w

ith
in

th
ei

r
ne

w
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a.

C
re

at
e

a
ca

m
pu

s
ho

us
in

g
S

ec
on

da
ry

an
d

P
rim

ar
y

pr
ov

is
io

n
in

C
ul

te
r

or
M

ill
tim

be
r.

T
hi

s
w

ou
ld

be
zo

ne
d

fo
r

th
e

C
ul

te
r

an
d

M
ill

tim
be

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.S

to
p

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

La
irh

ill
oc

k
P

rim
ar

y
fr

om
at

te
nd

in
g

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y.

.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
fo

r
ou

r
th

re
e

ch
ild

re
n,

se
cu

re
in

th
e

kn
ow

le
dg

e
(o

r
so

It
ho

ug
ht

)
th

at
th

ey

R
e-

zo
ni

ng
w

ith
in

C
ul

ts
vi

lla
ge

w
ou

ld
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y
di

vi
de

ou
r

co
m

m
un

ity
.O

ne
of

th
e

op
tio

ns
is

th
at

th
e

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
zo

ne
w

ou
ld

en
d

at
K

irk
B

ra
e.

T
he

se
ho

m
es

in
cl

ud
e

so
m

e
of

th
e

m
os

tw
el

l
es

ta
bl

is
he

d
pa

rt
s

of
th

e
vi

lla
ge

.T
he

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tw
ill

no
tb

e
zo

ne
d

to
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
la

nd
ho

m
eb

uy
er

s
w

ill
be

m
ad

e
aw

ar
e

of
th

is
at

tim
e

of
pu

rc
ha

se
.T

em
po

ra
ry

ed
uc

at
io

na
lp

ro
vi

si
on

co
ul

d
be

pr
ov

id
ed

at
H

az
le

he
ad

P
rim

ar
y

fo
r

Im
po

rt
an

tt
o

ha
ve

a
go

od
sc

ho
ol

cl
os

e
by

th
at

ou
r

ki
ds

co
ul

d
w

al
k

to
,n

ot
to

st
ay

in
on

e
vi

lla
ge

w
hi

ch
w

ill
be

sp
lit

do
w

n
th

e
m

id
dl

e
an

d
de

sp
ite

th
e

sc
ho

ol
be

in
g

ap
pr

ox
1

m
ile

aw
ay

be
in

g
bu

ss
ed

to
so

m
e

ot
he

r
sc

ho
ol

.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 70



th
e

ne
w

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
ho

us
es

.
S

ch
oo

ls
sh

ou
ld

on
ly

ac
ce

pt
ch

ild
re

n
in

zo
ne

an
d

th
os

e
ch

ild
re

n
w

ho
m

ov
e

w
ith

in
th

e
ci

ty
,

sh
ou

ld
m

ov
e

to
th

e
sc

ho
ol

w
ith

in
th

ei
r

ne
w

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a.
C

re
at

e
a

ca
m

pu
s

ho
us

in
g

S
ec

on
da

ry
an

d
P

rim
ar

y
pr

ov
is

io
n

in
C

ul
te

r
or

M
ill

tim
be

r.
S

to
p

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

La
irh

ill
oc

k
P

rim
ar

y
fr

om
at

te
nd

in
g

C
ul

ts
.

P
or

tle
th

en
A

ca
de

m
y

is
cl

os
er

.
P

la
nn

er
s

m
us

te
ns

ur
e

E
A

R
LY

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

of
ne

w
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

s
an

d
ot

he
r

su
pp

or
tiv

e

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
fo

r
th

e
re

si
de

nt
s

of
th

e
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

th
e

ci
ty

.

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

N
ew

ho
m

e
bu

ye
rs

in
th

e
F

ria
rs

fie
ld

an
d

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
sh

ou
ld

no
t

ha
ve

th
e

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n

th
at

th
ei

r
ch

ild
re

n
w

ill
go

to
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lo

r
A

ca
de

m
y.

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

N
o

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
ki

ds
to

go
to

C
ul

ts
.

If
ou

to
fa

re
a

ki
ds

w
an

tt
o

co
m

e
to

C
ul

ts
-

th
ei

r
pa

re
nt

s
sh

ou
ld

bu
y

a
ho

us
e

in
C

ul
ts

.

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
ex

is
tin

g
pr

ov
is

io
n

at
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

or
bu

ild
ne

w
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

to
re

pl
ac

e
C

ul
ts

pr
im

ar
y.

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

If
yo

u
ha

ve
a

C
ul

ts
ad

dr
es

s
an

d
ca

n
w

al
k

to
th

e
C

ul
ts

S
ch

oo
ls

(A
ca

de
m

y
an

d
P

rim
ar

y)
yo

u
sh

ou
ld

be
zo

ne
d

fo
r

th
at

sc
ho

ol
(2

m
ile

s
is

w
al

ki
ng

).

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

C
on

di
tio

n
sc

or
in

g:
w

ha
ti

s
be

hi
nd

sc
or

es
-

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
ho

w
is

an
A

ar
riv

ed
at

fo
r

sa
ni

ta
ry

se
rv

ic
es

at
C

ul
te

r
S

ch
oo

l.

C
ul

ts
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

C
at

ch
m

en
ta

re
as

:c
an

it
be

cl
ar

ifi
ed

th
at

cu
rr

en
tp

up
ils

at
"X

"
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

w
ill

go
to

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

A
S

G
.

T
he

re
fo

re
if

th
er

e
is

a
zo

ne
ch

an
ge

it
w

ill
on

ly
ap

pl
y

to
th

e
ne

w
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

ca
tc

hm
en

ti
nt

ak
e

-
m

ov
in

g
up

th
ro

ug
h

th
e

sy
st

em
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
W

e
re

ga
rd

th
is

po
ss

ib
le

ch
an

ge
of

zo
ni

ng
/s

pl
itt

in
g

th
e

vi
lla

ge
as

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

.W
e

do
n'

tw
an

to
ur

co
m

m
un

ity
ca

rv
ed

up
!

W
e

ha
ve

w
or

ke
d

ha
rd

to
lin

k
w

ith
ot

he
r

ch
ild

re
n

an
d

pa
re

nt
s

in
th

e
co

m
m

un
ity

an
d

se
e

th
e

lo
ca

ls
ch

oo
la

s
a

fo
ca

lp
oi

nt
an

d
in

te
gr

al
to

th
e

co
m

m
un

ity
sp

iri
t.

T
he

fa
ire

st
so

lu
tio

n
se

em
s

to
be

to
ke

ep
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a
as

it
is

no
w

.
T

he
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

no
tb

e
zo

ne
d

to
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
la

nd

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 71



ho
m

eb
uy

er
s

m
ad

e
aw

ar
e

of
th

is
at

tim
e

of
pu

rc
ha

se
.C

hi
ld

re
n

cu
rr

en
tly

at
C

ul
ts

sh
ou

ld
re

m
ai

n
at

th
e

sc
ho

ol
an

d
ha

ve
pr

ov
is

io
n

m
ad

e
fo

r
th

em
to

re
m

ai
n

th
er

e
un

til
P

7.
T

he
y

sh
ou

ld
al

so
be

in
cl

ud
ed

in
fu

tu
re

pl
an

ni
ng

fo
r

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
T

he
co

un
ci

ls
ho

ul
d

re
qu

ire
th

at
sc

ho
ol

s
ar

e
bu

ilt
an

d
re

ad
y

be
fo

re
pe

op
le

ar
e

ab
le

to
m

ov
e

in
to

th
e

ne
w

ho
us

in
g

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

.
D

o
no

tg
ra

nt
co

m
pl

et
io

n
ce

rt
ifi

ca
te

s
fo

r
ho

us
es

un
til

th
e

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
in

cl
ud

in
g

sc
ho

ol
s

is
in

pl
ac

e
(r

el
ev

an
tt

o
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t)

.
O

n
th

e
F

ria
rs

fie
ld

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

th
e

pl
an

ni
ng

pe
rm

is
si

on
sh

ou
ld

ha
ve

ta
ke

n
th

is
in

to
ac

co
un

t�
if
it

tu
rn
s
ou

tt
ha
tt
hi
s
w
as

no
tt
ak
en

in
to

ac
co
un

t,
th
en

pl
an

ni
ng

sh
ou

ld
be

re
vo
ke
d,

an
d
th
e

bu
ild
er
s
sh
ou

ld
be

re
qu
ire

d
to

bu
ild

sc
ho

ol
s
to

su
pp

or
tt
hi
s
ho

us
in
g
st
oc
k.

If
th
is
do

es
no

th
ap

pe
n,
th
en

th
e
bu

ild
er
s

w
ill
es
se
nt
ia
lly

m
ak
e
a
lo
to

fm
on
ey

by
ha

vi
ng

th
e
co
un

ci
ls
ol
ve

th
ei
r
pr
ob
le
m
s.

C
ul
ts

E
m
ai
l

E
xt
en
d
th
e
us
e
of

vi
rt
ua

l
ca
m
pu
se
s
ac
ro
ss

th
e
C
ity

H
ig
h
S
ch
oo

ls
/A

ca
de

m
ie
s

fo
r
m
or
e
se
ni
or

su
bj
ec
ts

an
d
qu

al
ifi
ca
tio
ns

T
hi
s
w
ill
im
pa
ct
lo
ca
ls
oc
ia
lm

ob
ili
ty
an

d
fin
an

ci
al
ly
af
fe
ct
th
e
fa
m
ili
es

co
nc
er
ne

d.
A
ffe

ct
ed

fa
m
ili
es

w
ill
be

fo
rc
ed

to
m
ov
e

fu
rt
he
r
aw

ay
fr
om

C
ul
ts
to

be
ab

le
to

at
te
nd

th
e
C
ul
ts
sc
ho
ol
s!
T
he

C
ou
nt
es
sw

el
ls
de
ve
lo
pm

en
ti
s
no
tz
on

ed
to

C
ul
ts
P
rim

ar
y
S
ch
oo

la
nd

ho
m
eb

uy
er
s

w
ill
be

m
ad

e
aw

ar
e
of

th
is
at

tim
e
of

pu
rc
ha

se
.O

ut
of

zo
ne

ch
ild
re
n,

al
re
ad
y

at
te
nd

in
g
th
e
sc
ho

ol
,r
et
ur
n
to

th
ei
r
in

zo
ne

sc
ho
ol
s.
W
e
sh
ou

ld
al
so

st
op

ch
ild
re
n
fr
om

La
irh
ill
oc
k

P
rim

ar
y
fr
om

at
te
nd

in
g
C
ul
ts
A
ca
de

m
y.

In
zo
ne

ch
ild
re
n
al
re
ad
y
in
th
e
C
ul
ts

sy
st
em

ar
e
gu
ar
an

te
ed

pl
ac
es

in
C
ul
ts

pr
im
ar
y
an

d
on

to
th
e
se
co
nd
ar
y
af
te
r
th
e

zo
ne

ch
an

ge
s.
P
la
nn

er
s
m
us
te

ns
ur
e

E
A
R
LY

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n
of

ne
w
pr
im
ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s
an

d
ot
he
r
su
pp

or
tiv
e

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

fo
r
th
e
re
si
de

nt
s
of

th
e
ne

w
de

ve
lo
pm

en
ts
th
ro
ug

ho
ut

th
e
ci
ty
.

A
no

th
er

id
ea

w
ou

ld
be

to
cr
ea

te
a

ca
m
pu
s
ho

us
in
g
se
co
nd

ar
y
an

d
pr
im
ar
y

pr
ov
is
io
n
in
C
ul
te
r
or

M
ill
tim

be
r.
T
hi
s
w
ou
ld
be

zo
ne

d
fo
r
th
e

C
ul
te
r
an

d
M
ill
tim

be
r
co
m
m
un

iti
es
.

J:
\S
ch
o
ol
_E

st
at
e
s\
2
01
2
P
ri
m
ar
y
S
ch
oo
lR

e
vi
ew

\E
m
a
il
o
r
C
o
m
m
e
nt
C
a
rd
fe
ed
b
ac
k\
E
ng
ag
em

en
tF
e
e
db
ac
k
a
no
ny
m
is
ed

an
d
la
rg
er

te
xt
.x
ls

Page 72



C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
A

ny
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
th

at
ca

n�
tu

til
is
e

ex
is
tin
g
sc
ho

ol
in
g
re
qu

ire
ne
w
sc
ho

ol
in
g

to
be

bu
ilt
,a

nd
ut
ili
se

ot
he

r
sc
ho

ol
s
w
ith

sp
ar
e
ca
pa

ci
ty
.
T
he

ne
w
C
ou

nt
es
sw

el
ls

de
ve
lo
pm

en
tb
e
lo
ok
ed

at
se
pa

ra
te
ly
.

T
he

B
ui
ld
in
g
of

a
ne

w
3R

�s
M
ill
tim

be
r

P
rim

ar
y
to
ac
co
m
m
od

at
e
ex
is
tin
g
ro
ll
an

d
in
cl
ud

e
fo
r
an

y
ad

di
tio
na
lp
la
nn

ed
de

ve
lo
pm

en
ts
,O

ld
fo
rd

et
c.

N
ew

pr
im
ar
y

sc
ho

ol
in
g
to

be
pr
ov
id
ed

to
ac
co
m
m
od

at
e
ex
is
tin
g
ro
ll
an

d
in
cl
ud
e
fo
r

an
y

ad
di
tio
na

lp
la
nn

ed
de

ve
lo
pm

en
ts
,

F
ria

rs
fie
ld
et
c
w
he

th
er

th
is
is
to

bu
ild

on
e

la
rg
e
sc
ho

ol
on

th
e
ex
is
tin
g
cu
lts

pr
im
ar
y

si
te
,o

n
th
e
ne

w
F
ria

rs
fie
ld
si
te

or
ke
ep

C
ul
ts
pr
im
ar
y
as

is
an

d
pr
ov
id
e
a
sm

al
le
r

pr
im
ar
y
at

F
ria

rs
fie
ld
.
P
ro
vi
de

a
ne
w

ac
ad

em
y
at

ei
th
er

C
ul
te
r
or

M
ill
tim

be
r,

th
is
w
ou

ld
fr
ee

-u
p
th
e
co
ng

es
tio
n
an

d
pr
oj
ec
te
d
ov
er
-c
ap

ac
ity

at
C
ul
ts

A
ca
de
m
y.
T
hi
s
co
ul
d
al
so

ta
ke

La
irh

ill
oc
k

pu
pi
ls
or

bu
ild

an
ex
te
ns
io
n
of

C
ul
ts

A
ca
de
m
y
w
he
re

C
ul
ts
P
rim

ar
y
cu
rr
en

tly
is
.T

hi
s
co
ul
d
be

us
ed

fo
r
ol
de

r
pu

pi
ls
or

sp
ec
ia
lis
ts
ub

je
ct

in
cl
ud

in
g
vi
rt
ua

lc
am

pu
s
w
he

re
ea

ch
ac
ad

em
y
sp
ec
ia
lis
es

in
ce
rt
ai
n
su
bj
ec
ts
,

al
lo
w
in
g
pu

pi
ls
to

at
te
nd

fr
om

an
y

S
ch
oo
l.

C
ul
ts

E
m
ai
l

P
os
si
bi
lit
y
th
at

ch
ild
re
n
liv
in
g
ea
st
of

K
irk

B
ra
e
co
ul
d
be

re
-z
on

ed
to

a
di
ffe

re
nt

sc
ho

ol
w
hi
ls
tc
hi
ld
re
n
fu
rt
he

r
aw

ay
in

P
et
er
cu
lte
r
w
ou

ld
st
ill
go

to
C
ul
ts

A
ca
de
m
y,
th
e
vi
lla
ge

sh
ou

ld
no

tb
e
sp
lit

in
th
is
w
ay
.
T
he

ex
is
tin
g
C
ul
ts
P
rim

ar
y

ca
tc
hm

en
ta

re
a
re
m
ai
ns

as
it
ex
is
ts
no

w
.

T
he

C
ou
nt
es
sw

el
ls
de
ve
lo
pm

en
tw

ill
no

t
be

zo
ne
d
to

C
ul
ts
P
rim

ar
y
S
ch
oo

la
nd

ho
m
eb

uy
er
s
w
ill
be

m
ad

e
aw

ar
e
of

th
is

at
tim

e
of

pu
rc
ha

se
.P

la
nn

er
s
m
us
t

en
su
re

E
A
R
LY

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n
of

ne
w
pr
im
ar
y
sc
ho
ol
s
an

d
ot
he

r
su
pp

or
tiv
e

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
.
T
em

po
ra
ry

ed
uc
at
io
na
l

pr
ov
is
io
n
co
ul
d
be

pr
ov
id
ed

at
H
az
le
he

ad
P
rim

ar
y.

A
ll
sc
ho

ol
s
sh
ou

ld
on

ly
ac
ce
pt

ch
ild
re
n
in
zo
ne

an
d
ch
ild
re
n
w
ho

m
ov
e

w
ith
in
th
e
ci
ty
,s
ho

ul
d
m
ov
e
to

th
e
sc
ho
ol

w
ith
in
th
ei
r
ne

w
ca
tc
hm

en
ta

re
a.

C
re
at
e

a
ca
m
pu
s
ho

us
in
g
S
ec
on

da
ry

an
d

P
rim

ar
y
pr
ov
is
io
n
in
C
ul
te
r
or

M
ill
tim

be
r.

T
hi
s
w
ou
ld
be

zo
ne

d
fo
r
th
e
C
ul
te
r
an

d
M
ill
tim

be
r
co
m
m
un

iti
es

an
d
w
ou

ld
no
t

in
vo
lv
e

J:
\S
ch
o
ol
_E

st
at
e
s\
2
01
2
P
ri
m
ar
y
S
ch
oo
lR

e
vi
ew

\E
m
a
il
o
r
C
o
m
m
e
nt
C
a
rd
fe
ed
b
ac
k\
E
ng
ag
em

en
tF
e
e
db
ac
k
a
no
ny
m
is
ed

an
d
la
rg
er

te
xt
.x
ls

Page 73



sp
lit

tin
g

an
ex

is
tin

g
co

m
m

un
ity

.
S

to
p

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

La
irh

ill
oc

k
P

rim
ar

y
at

te
nd

in
g

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y.

E
xt

en
d

th
e

us
e

of
vi

rt
ua

lc
am

pu
se

s
ac

ro
ss

th
e

C
ity

H
ig

h
S

ch
oo

ls
/A

ca
de

m
ie

s
fo

r
m

or
e

se
ni

or
su

bj
ec

ts
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
W

e
cu

rr
en

tly
liv

e
in

th
e

W
oo

dl
an

ds
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
T

hi
s

ar
ea

is
w

ith
in

w
al

ki
ng

/c
yc

lin
g

di
st

an
ce

to
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s
an

d
re

-z
on

in
g

th
e

ar
ea

ou
to

ft
he

C
ul

ts
ca

tc
hm

en
tc

ou
ld

ev
en

be
co

ns
id

er
ed

gi
ve

n
th

at
ch

ild
re

n
fr

om
4

or
5

m
ile

s
aw

ay
fr

om
sc

ho
ol

ar
e

bu
ss

ed
th

er
e

cu
rr

en
tly

.
A

pl
an

m
us

tb
e

pu
ti

n
pl

ac
e

to
de

al
w

ith
po

te
nt

ia
ln

ew
ch

ild
re

n
in

ad
di

tio
n

to
th

os
e

cu
rr

en
tly

in
zo

ne
no

ti
ns

te
ad

of
th

em
.I

t
w

ou
ld

be
m

or
al

ly
w

ro
ng

to
re

m
ov

e

ex
is

tin
g

re
si

de
nt

s,
w

ho
ha

ve
m

ad
e

a
ho

m
e

fo
r

th
em

se
lv

es
w

ith
in

a
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

sc
ho

ol
ca

tc
hm

en
t,

in
or

de
r

to
m

ak
e

ro
om

fo
r

ne
w

re
si

de
nt

s.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
T

he
ex

is
tin

g
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

ca
tc

hm
en

t
ar

ea
re

m
ai

ns
as

it
ex

is
ts

no
w

.T
he

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tw
ill

N
O

T
be

zo
ne

d
to

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

la
nd

ho
m

eb
uy

er
s

w
ill

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
is

at
tim

e
of

pu
rc

ha
se

.
P

la
nn

er
s

m
us

t
en

su
re

E
A

R
LY

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

of
ne

w
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

s
an

d
ot

he
r

su
pp

or
tiv

e
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

fo
r

th
e

re
si

de
nt

s
of

th
e

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
th

e
ci

ty
.

T
em

po
ra

ry
ed

uc
at

io
na

lp
ro

vi
si

on
co

ul
d

be
pr

ov
id

ed
at

H
az

le
he

ad
P

rim
ar

y,

cu
rr

en
tly

ac
ce

pt
in

g
17

1
ou

to
fz

on
e

ch
ild

re
n.

A
ll

sc
ho

ol
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e
ci

ty
sh

ou
ld

on
ly

ac
ce

pt
ch

ild
re

n
in

zo
ne

an
d

th
os

e
ch

ild
re

n
w

ho
m

ov
e

w
ith

in
th

e
ci

ty
,

sh
ou

ld
m

ov
e

to
th

e
sc

ho
ol

w
ith

in
th

ei
r

ne
w

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
E

xc
lu

di
ng

ar
ea

s
fr

om
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
zo

ne
w

ill
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y
pu

to
ur

ch
ild

re
n

at
an

ed
uc

at
io

n
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
.

T
he

re
zo

ne
w

ill
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y
go

up
K

irk
B

ra
e.

I,
an

d
a

lo
to

fo
th

er
pa

re
nt

s,
liv

e
E

as
to

ft
ha

t.
T

he
re

zo
ne

w
ill

br
ea

k
up

th
e

co
m

m
un

ity
an

d
im

pa
ct

ho
us

e
pr

ic
es

et
c.

T
he

se
ar

e
re

al
an

d
se

rio
us

co
nc

er
ns

sh
ar

ed
by

a
nu

m
be

rs
of

re
si

de
nt

s.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 74



C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
A

s
a

re
si

de
nt

of
A

bb
ot

sh
al

lG
ar

de
ns

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
of

m
ov

in
g

th
e

�b
ou

nd
ar

y�
fo

r
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
to

K
irk

B
ra

e
w

ou
ld

ha
ve

a
pr

of
ou

nd
ef

fe
ct

on
m

y
ch

ild
re

n�
s

ed
uc

at
io

n.
T

he
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

of
th

em

T
he

ex
is

tin
g

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
ca

tc
hm

en
t

ar
ea

re
m

ai
ns

as
it

ex
is

ts
no

w
.T

he
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tw

ill
no

tb
e

zo
ne

d
to

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

la
nd

ho
m

eb
uy

er
s

w
ill

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
is

at
tim

e
of

pu
rc

ha
se
.

P
la

nn
er

s
m

us
t

en
su

re
E

A
R

LY
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
of

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

ot
he

r
su

pp
or

tiv
e

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
fo

r
th

e
re

si
de

nt
s

of
th

e
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

th
e

ci
ty

.C
re

at
e

a
ca

m
pu

s
ho

us
in

g
S

ec
on

da
ry

an
d

P
rim

ar
y

pr
ov

is
io

n
in

C
ul

te
r

or
M

ill
tim

be
r.

T
hi

s
w

ou
ld

be
zo

ne
d

fo
r

th
e

C
ul

te
r

an
d

M
ill

tim
be

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.N

ot
on

ly
ne

ar
er

fo
r

th
em

(h
en

ce
gr

ee
ne

r)
bu

tw
ou

ld
no

t

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
no

tb
ei

ng
ab

le
to

co
nt

in
ue

th
ei

r
ed

uc
at

io
n

w
ith

th
es

e
fr

ie
nd

s
si

m
pl

y
be

ca
us

e
so

m
eo

ne
dr

aw
s

a
ne

w
lin

e
on

a
m

ap
is

at
be

st
un

fa
ir

an
d

at
w

or
st

di
sc

rim
in

at
or

y.
O

ur
ch

ild
re

n
ar

e
ab

le
to

w
al

k
to

sc
ho

ol
fr

om
ou

r

T
he

ex
is

tin
g

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
ca

tc
hm

en
t

ar
ea

re
m

ai
ns

as
it

ex
is

ts
no

w
.T

he
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tw

ill
no

tb
e

zo
ne

d
to

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

la
nd

ho
m

eb
uy

er
s

w
ill

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
is

at
tim

e
of

pu
rc

ha
se
.

P
la

nn
er

s
m

us
t

en
su

re
E

A
R

LY
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
of

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

ot
he

r
su

pp
or

tiv
e

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
fo

r
th

e
re

si
de

nt
s

of
th

e
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

th
e

ci
ty

.C
re

at
e

a
ca

m
pu

s
ho

us
in

g
S

ec
on

da
ry

an
d

P
rim

ar
y

pr
ov

is
io

n
in

C
ul

te
r

or
M

ill
tim

be
r.

T
hi

s
w

ou
ld

be
zo

ne
d

fo
r

th
e

C
ul

te
r

an
d

M
ill

tim
be

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.N

ot
on

ly
ne

ar
er

fo
r

th
em

(h
en

ce
gr

ee
ne

r)
bu

tw
ou

ld
no

t

G
et

th
e

ro
ad

s
an

d
sc

ho
ol

s
so

rt
ed

be
fo

re
ap

pr
ov

in
g

an
y

m
or

e
ho

su
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
in

C
ul

ts
an

d
th

e
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g
ar

ea
.

ho
us

e.
B

ui
ld

er
s

sh
ou

ld
be

ob
lig

ed
to

pr
ov

id
e

ed
uc

at
io

n
op

tio
ns

fo
r

re
si

de
nt

s.
M

ak
in

g
it

im
po

ss
ib

le
fo

r
ch

ild
re

n
to

at
te

nd
sc

ho
ol

w
ith

fr
ie

nd
s

th
ey

ha
ve

m
ad

e
du

rin
g

th
e

pr
im

ar
y

ed
uc

at
io

n
sy

st
em

an
d

w
ith

w
ho

m
th

ey
ca

n
st

ill
cr

os
s

th
e

ro
ad

to
pl

ay
w

ith
w

ill
be

se
rio

us
ly

de
tr

im
en

ta
l

to
th

e
ed

uc
at

io
n

of
m

an
y

ch
ild

re
n,

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y

di
vi

di
ng

th
e

co
m

m
un

ity
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
In

m
ak

in
g

fo
re

ca
st

s
fo

r
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y-
w

er
e

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
an

d
O

ld
fo

ld
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ti
nc

lu
de

d?
In

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

la
sy

ye
ar

,r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

fr
om

C
al

a
an

d
ot

he
r

te
nd

er
er

s
st

at
ed

th
at

th
ey

be
lie

ve
d

th
at

lo
ca

ls
ch

oo
ls

di
d

ha
ve

su
ffi

ci
en

tc
ap

ac
ity

to
ac

co
m

od
at

ed
ch

ild
en

fr
om

th
e

F
ria

rs
fie

ld
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
T

he
y

st
at

ed
th

at
,i

ft
hi

s
tu

nr
ed

ou
tn

ot
to

be
th

e
ca

se
th

en
th

ey
w

ou
ld

co
nt

rib
ut

e
to

th
e

ex
te

ns
io

n
of

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 75



sc
ho

ol
s?

Is
th

is
no

tt
he

ca
se

?
R

ep
or

ts
to

E
nt

er
pr

is
e,

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

C
om

m
itt

ee
(3

1
Ja

n
12

)
re

:p
ro

po
se

d
P

rim
ar

y
in

O
ld

fo
ld

m
ak

es
no

re
fe

re
nc

e
to

th
e

po
te

nt
ia

li
m

pa
ct

on
se

co
nd

ar
y

ed
uc

at
io

n
in

th
e

ar
ea

.A
re

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
ob

lid
ge

d
to

co
nt

rib
ut

e
to

th
is

,a
nd

to
w

ha
te

xt
en

t?
T

he
en

ga
ge

m
en

td
oc

um
en

t
al

so
re

fe
rs

to
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
as

th
e

la
rg

es
ts

ch
oo

lt
ha

tc
ou

ld
be

bu
ilt

on
th

at
si

te
-

as
th

is
si

te
ha

s
so

m
an

y
pl

ay
in

g
fie

ld
s

an
d

ou
ts

id
e

sp
ac

e
ca

n

yo
u

ex
pl

ai
n

w
hy

th
is

is
m

is
st

at
ed

/m
is

ta
ke

n?
C

ul
ts

E
m

ai
l

O
th

er
co

m
m

un
iti

es
ou

tw
ith

C
ul

ts
its

el
f

cu
rr

en
tly

ar
e

w
ith

in
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

na
m

el
y

M
ill

lti
m

be
r,

P
et

er
cu

lte
r

an
d

La
irh

ill
oc

k-
it

w
ou

ld
m

ak
e

se
ns

e
fo

r
th

os
e

co
m

m
un

iti
es

to
ha

ve
a

sc
ho

ol
w

ith
in

th
ei

r
ow

n
ar

ea
ra

th
er

th
an

ex
cl

ud
e

ex
is

tin
g

ar
ea

s
in

C
ul

ts
w

hi
ch

is
be

in
g

co
ns

id
er

ed
.

If
in

d
it

di
ffi

cu
lt

to
co

m
pr

eh
en

d
th

at
th

is
op

tio
n

of
ex

cl
ud

in
g

se
ve

ra
lw

el
l

es
ta

bl
is

he
d

ho
us

in
g

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

in
th

e
vi

lla
ge

of
C

ul
ts

w
ith

in
th

e
cu

rr
en

t
ca

tc
hm

en
t

ar
ea

is
be

in
g

co
ns

id
er

ed
w

hi
ch

w
ou

ld
m

ea
n

is
ol

at
in

g
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
co

nc
er

ne
d

fr
om

th
ei

r
fr

ie
nd

s
an

d
th

e
co

m
m

un
ity

as
a

w
ho

le
w

hi
le

ot
he

rs
fr

om
fu

rt
he

r
af

ie
ld

w
ou

ld
st

ill
be

en
tit

le
d

to
re

ce
iv

e
th

ei
r

ed
uc

at
io

n
at

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y.

I'd
al

so
st

ro
ng

ly
ad

vo
ca

te
th

at
th

e
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
ar

e
no

tz
on

ed
fo

r
th

e
C

ul
ts

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

th
is

sh
ou

ld
be

m
ad

e
cl

ea
r

fr
om

th
e

ou
ts

et
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
Is

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

go
in

g
to

be
fu

ll
of

B
ie

ld
si

de
,M

ill
tim

be
r

an
d

C
ul

te
r

ch
ild

re
n,

w
hi

ls
td

ue
to

a
la

ck
of

lo
ca

lp
la

nn
in

g
lo

ca
lC

ul
ts

ch
ild

re
n

w
ill

ha
ve

to
be

tr
an

sp
or

te
d

el
se

w
he

re
fo

r
th

ei
r

ed
uc

at
io

n?
A

pa
rt

fr
om

th
e

ca
rv

in
g

up
of

a
w

el
l-e

st
ab

lis
he

d
co

m
m

un
ity

,i
ti

s
w

ho
lly

co
nc

ei
va

bl
e

th
at

fa
m

ili
es

,p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

in
th

e
ar

ea
to

th
e

ea
st

of
K

irk
B

ra
e,

m
ay

fin
d

th
em

se
lv

es
in

a
si

tu
at

io
n

w
he

re
si

bl
in

gs
en

d
up

at
te

nd
in

g
di

ffe
re

nt
sc

ho
ol

s.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 76



F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
it

is
cl

ea
r

th
at

th
e

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

lr
ol

li
s

ex
pe

ct
ed

to
ris

e
to

14
0%

of
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

S
o

am
It

o
pr

es
um

e
th

at
its

pu
pi

ls
w

ill
be

ed
uc

at
ed

in
su

bs
ta

nd
ar

d
te

m
po

ra
ry

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n?

If
in

d
th

e
si

tu
at

io
n

w
he

re
by

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
ar

e
gi

ve
n

pe
rm

is
si

on
to

bu
ild

on
gr

ee
n

sp
ac

es
,a

dd
to

tr
af

fic
co

ng
es

tio
n,

w
hi

ls
t

gi
vi

ng
va

gu
e

pr
om

is
es

ab
ou

tc
re

at
in

g
sc

ho
ol

pr
ov

is
io

n
to

be
un

te
na

bl
e-

no
t

go
od

en
ou

gh
th

at
nu

m
be

rs
in

cu
rr

en
t

sc
ho

ol
s

sh
ou

ld
be

ex
pe

ct
ed

to
fil

l

be
yo

nd
bu

rs
tin

g
po

in
tb

ef
or

e
ad

di
tio

na
l

bu
ild

in
gs

ar
e

cr
ea

te
d.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
W

ith
re

ga
rd

to
th

e
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

re
m

ai
ns

as
it

is
cu

rr
en

tly
.

T
he

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tw
ill

no
t

be
zo

ne
d

to
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

S
ch

oo
la

nd
th

is
w

ill
be

ac
tiv

el
y

po
in

te
d

ou
t

to
ho

m
eb

uy
er

s
fr

om
th

e
ou

ts
et

.A
ny

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

ot
he

r
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

fo
r

th
e

re
si

de
nt

s
of

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ar
ou

nd
th

e
ci

ty
sh

ou
ld

be
bu

ilt
at

th
e

sa
m

e
tim

e
as

/in
ad

va
nc

e
of

ne
w

ho
us

es
,n

ot
le

ft
un

til

ho
us

in
g

is
co

m
pl

et
e.

O
bv

io
us

ly
on

ce
a

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ti

s
po

pu
la

te
d

th
er

e
is

a
ne

ed
fo

r
sc

ho
ol

s
th

at
ar

e
up

an
d

ru
nn

in
g,

no
ti

n
th

e
m

id
dl

e
of

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

P
ro

vi
de

bo
th

a
ne

w
S

ec
on

da
ry

an
d

P
rim

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
in

th
e

C
ul

te
r/

M
ill

tim
be

r
ar

ea
.

T
hi

s
co

ul
d

be
zo

ne
d

fo
r

th
e

C
ul

te
r

an
d

M
ill

tim
be

r
ar

ea
s

an
d

ar
ea

s
re

ac
hi

ng
to

w
ar

ds
B

an
ch

or
y.

T
hi

s
w

ou
ld

ca
te

r
fo

r
th

e
pr

op
os

ed
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ti
n

th
e

M
ill

tim
be

r
ar

ea
an

d
sh

ou
ld

re
so

lv
e

th
e

is
su

es
of

ex
ce

ed
in

g

ca
pa

ci
ty

at
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y.
T

hi
s

w
ou

ld
al

so
m

ak
e

se
ns

e
fr

om
an

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
po

in
to

fv
ie

w
as

th
os

e
fr

om
C

ul
te

r
an

d
M

ill
tim

be
r

w
ou

ld
lik

el
y

ha
ve

to
tr

av
el

le
ss

.
P

er
ha

ps
it

w
ou

ld
be

po
ss

ib
le

to
us

e
th

e
ol

d
In

te
rn

at
io

na
lS

ch
oo

l?

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
La

irh
ill

oc
k

is
ev

id
en

ce
th

at
C

ity
an

d
S

hi
re

ca
n

co
lla

bo
ra

te
.I

s
it

po
ss

ib
le

to
lo

ok
at

th
e

pr
ob

le
m

/s
ol

ut
io

n
in

C
ul

ts
in

a
w

id
er

co
nt

ex
t?

C
ul

ts
an

d
C

ul
te

r
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

s
ar

e
ex

pe
ns

iv
e

to
ru

n
su

gg
es

t
re

bu
ild

on
e

or
bo

th
w

ith
gr

ea
te

r
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

(a
)

D
ur

in
g

th
e

re
zo

ni
ng

,y
ou

ng
er

si
bl

in
gs

in
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

m
us

tb
e

of
fe

re
d

a
pl

ac
e

at
th

e
ac

ad
em

y
th

ei
r

ol
de

r
si

bl
in

g
cu

rr
en

tly
/p

re
vi

ou
sl

y
at

te
nd

ed
;(

b)
R

ez
on

in
g

m
us

tp
la

ce
th

e
sc

ho
ol

at
th

e
ce

nt
re

of
th

e
ci

rc
le

(i.
e.

ch
ild

re
n

in

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 77



C
ul

ts
m

us
tb

e
el

ig
ib

le
fo

r
en

ro
lm

en
ta

t
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y)
;(

c)
La

irh
ill

oc
k

sc
ho

ol
is

in
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

(S
to

ne
ha

ve
n

A
S

G
)

is
no

tm
en

tio
ne

d
in

th
e

en
ga

ge
m

en
t

do
cu

m
en

tb
ut

ac
co

rd
in

g
to

th
e

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

w
eb

si
te

is
on

e
of

th
e

fe
ed

er
sc

ho
ol

s.
C

hi
ld

re
n

at
La

irh
ill

oc
k

sh
ou

ld
be

re
zo

ne
d

to
S

to
ne

ha
ve

n.
A

be
rd

ee
n

C
ity

co
un

ci
ls

ho
ul

d
ha

ve
th

e
co

nf
id

en
ce

an
d

vi
si

on
to

se
ll

of
fp

ro
pe

rt
ie

s
to

fu
nd

ne
w

bu
ild

s
ac

ro
ss

A
be

rd
ee

n
to

ca
te

r
fo

r
th

e
fu

tu
re

ed
uc

at
io

n
of

ch
ild

re
n.

A
be

rd
ee

n
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il
m

us
to

bl
ig

e
bu

ild
er

s
to

co
ns

tr
uc

t
sc

ho
ol

s
as

pa
rt

of
th

e
ag

re
em

en
tt

o
bu

ild
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
T

o
po

te
nt

ia
lly

re
-z

on
e

pa
rt

of
C

ul
ts

w
ith

re
ga

rd
to

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ou

ld
sp

lit
th

e
vi

lla
ge

.
R

ez
on

e
pu

pi
ls

to
on

e
of

th
e

pr
op

os
ed

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

at
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

.W
e

be
lie

ve
th

is
w

ou
ld

be
a

hu
ge

ba
ck

w
ar

d
st

ep
an

d
w

ou
ld

af
fe

ct
th

e
ex

ce
lle

nt
co

m
m

un
ity

,t
he

co
un

ci
l

sh
ou

ld
be

lo
ok

in
g

at
im

pr
ov

in
g

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
an

d
en

su
rin

g
it

is
av

ai
la

bl
e

to
lo

ca
lc

hi
ld

re
n

by
el

im
in

at
in

g
th

e
hi

gh
pr

op
or

tio
n

of
ou

to
fz

on
e

ch
ild

re
n.

T
he

co
un

ci
l

al
so

ne
ed

to
en

su
re

th
at

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
bu

ild
in

g
is

an
ea

rly
pa

rt
of

an
y

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ta

tC
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
.E

ns
ur

e
th

e
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

A
ca

de
m

y
is

bu
ilt

ea
rly

in
th

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
W

e
be

lie
ve

th
er

e
is

a
hi

gh
pr

op
or

tio
n

of
ou

to
fz

on
e

pu
pi

ls
at

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

an
d

th
at

th
is

si
tu

at
io

n
sh

ou
ld

be
st

op
pe

d.
W

e
al

so
th

in
k

th
at

a
ne

w
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
fo

r
M

ill
tim

be
r/

C
ul

te
r

sh
ou

ld
be

co
ns

id
er

ed
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
T

he
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ho
ul

d
no

tb
e

zo
ne

d
to

C
ul

ts
sc

ho
ol

s.
H

om
eb

uy
er

s
to

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
is

at
pu

rc
ha

se
.

T
he

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
sh

ou
ld

be
re

qu
ire

d
to

bu
ild

pr
im

ar
y

an
d

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

s
fr

om
in

ce
pt

io
n.

T
he

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
to

be
ch

al
le

ng
ed

w
ith

th
e

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

fu
nd

in
g

to
bu

ild
a

ne
w

C
ul

ts
N

ur
se

ry
an

d
P

rim
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

w
hi

ch
w

ill
su

pp
or

tg
ro

w
th

fr
om

th
ei

r
F

ria
rs

fie
ld

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

T
he

pl
an

ne
rs

sh
ou

ld
no

tp
as

s
fin

al
co

ns
en

t
w

ith
ou

t

T
he

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
re

si
de

nt
s

ar
e

m
or

e
lik

el
y

to
ha

ve
th

ei
r

pl
ac

e
of

em
pl

oy
m

en
ta

tW
es

th
ill

or
K

in
gs

w
el

ls
an

d
he

nc
e

tr
av

el
lin

g
to

th
e

no
rt

h
of

th
e

ci
ty

to
sc

ho
ol

pr
ov

is
io

n.
Iw

ou
ld

ha
ve

th
ou

gh
ta

dd
re

ss
es

tr
af

fic
is

su
es

th
at

ar
e

al
re

ad
y

st
re

tc
he

d
w

ith
in

th
e

N
or

th
D

ee
si

de
co

rr
id

or
.

C
hi

ld
re

n
fr

om
La

irh
ill

oc
k

P
rim

ar
y

sh
ou

ld
no

tb
e

al
lo

w
ed

to
at

te
nd

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y.

T
he

y
sh

ou
ld

at
te

nd
a

ne
w

"M
ill

tim
be

r/
P

et
er

cu
lte

r
"

S
ec

on
da

ry
.T

he
D

ev
el

op
er

s
hu

rd
le

fo
r

su
pp

or
tin

g
th

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

to
fn

ew
sc

ho
ol

bu
ild

s
sh

ou
ld

no
tb

e
so

le
ly

ba
se

d
on

nu
m

be
r

of
ho

us
es

bu
ilt

bu
ta

ls
o

on
th

e

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 78



pr
ov

is
io

n
of

th
is

fu
nd

in
g.

N
ew

sc
ho

ol
s

co
ul

d
be

bu
ilt

on
ex

is
tin

g
pr

im
ar

y
pl

ay
in

g
fie

ld
s

w
ith

bu
ild

in
gs

cl
os

e
to

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
w

ith
th

e
ol

d
sc

ho
ol

be
in

g
de

m
ol

is
he

d
an

d
tu

rn
ed

in
to

pl
ay

in
g

fie
ld

s
fo

r
th

e
us

e
of

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

an
d

th
e

P
rim

ar
y.

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

sh
ou

ld
be

ex
te

nd
ed

on
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
si

te
re

su
lti

ng
in

th
e

lo
ss

of
th

e
pl

ay
in

g
fie

ld
s.

A
ll

sc
ho

ol
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e
ci

ty
sh

ou
ld

on
ly

ac
ce

pt
ch

ild
re

n
in

zo
ne

.T
ho

se
ch

ild
re

n
w

ho
m

ov
e

w
ith

in
th

e
ci

ty
,s

ho
ul

d
m

ov
e

to

th
e

sc
ho

ol
w

ith
in

th
ei

r
ne

w
ca

tc
hm

en
t.

T
he

re
sh

ou
ld

be
th

e
cr

ea
tio

n
of

S
ec

on
da

ry
an

d
P

rim
ar

y
pr

ov
is

io
n

in
C

ul
te

r
or

M
ill

tim
be

r.
T

hi
s

w
ou

ld
be

zo
ne

d
fo

r
th

e
C

ul
te

r,
M

ill
tim

be
r

an
d

O
ld

fo
ld

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
It

do
es

n'
ta

pp
ea

r
lo

gi
ca

lt
o

ru
n

sc
ho

ol
s

at
or

ne
ar

ca
pa

ci
ty

w
he

n
it

is
kn

ow
n

th
at

fu
tu

re
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
w

ill
pu

tu
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

pr
es

su
re

on
sc

ho
ol

to
ex

ce
ed

ca
pa

ci
ty

.I
su

gg
es

tt
ha

tn
o

fu
rt

he
r

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ar
e

ap
pr

ov
ed

by
A

be
rd

ee
n

C
ity

C
ou

nc
il

un
til

an
ap

pr
op

ria
te

pl
an

ni
ng

sy
st

em
th

at
fu

lly
co

ns
id

er
s

th
e

im
pa

ct
on

lo
ca

ls
ch

oo
ls

is
es

ta
bl

is
he

d,
th

e
fa

ili
ng

s
of

th
e

cu
rr

en
ts

ys
te

m
ap

pe
ar

s
ob

vi
ou

s.
W

he
n

ne
w

ho
us

in
g

be
co

m
es

av
ai

la
bl

e
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

s
sh

ou
ld

be
pr

ov
id

ed
.

R
eg

ar
di

ng
po

lic
y

th
at

pr
ev

en
ts

ho
us

in
g

es
ta

te
s

be
in

g
al

lo
ca

te
d

to
m

ul
tip

le
sc

ho
ol

ca
tc

hm
en

t
ar

ea
s.

It
ap

pe
ar

s
th

at
it

is
th

e

M
od

ul
ar

S
ch

oo
ls

sh
ou

ld
be

a
ne

w
ru

le
fo

r
sc

ho
ol

s
in

ar
ea

s
w

he
re

th
er

e
w

ill
be

a
de

m
an

d
fo

r
fu

tu
re

ho
us

in
g

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

.
A

llo
w

in
g

an
y

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

th
e

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tt
o

at
te

nd
an

y
C

ul
ts

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ou

ld

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
w

ho
su

pp
or

tt
hi

s
ap

pr
oa

ch
to

m
ax

im
is

e
th

e
va

lu
e

of
th

e
pr

op
er

tie
s

ra
th

er
th

an
a

co
un

ci
lp

ol
ic

y
th

at
co

ns
id

er
s

th
e

ne
ed

s
of

th
e

ge
ne

ra
l

ap
pe

ar
to

be
im

pr
ac

tic
al

an
d

w
ou

ld
on

ly
su

it
th

e
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

po
ck

et
s

ra
th

er
th

an
th

e
co

m
m

un
ity

as
a

w
ho

le
.S

ug
ge

st
th

at
an

in
de

pe
nd

en
t

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
st

ud
y

is
co

nd
uc

te
d

to
co

ns
id

er
if

an
d

ho
w

ex
is

tin
g

af
fe

ct
ed

sc
ho

ol
s

co
ul

d
be

pu
bl

ic
.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
Iu

nd
er

st
an

d
th

e
pr

es
su

re
s

on
lo

ca
l

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
an

d
th

e
ne

ed
fo

r
ne

w
ho

us
in

g
bu

tI
do

no
tb

el
ie

ve
an

ar
bi

tr
ar

y
re

-z
on

in
g

of
th

e
C

ul
ts

sc
ho

ol
s

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a
di

re
ct

ly
sp

lit
tin

g
th

e
vi

lla
ge

in
w

hi
ch

th
e

sc
ho

ol
s

re
si

de
is

th
e

rig
ht

so
lu

tio
n.

A
s

a
fa

m
ily

w
e

m
ov

ed
to

C
ul

ts
to

be
pa

rt
of

th
e

vi
lla

ge
co

m
m

un
ity

an
d

to
en

su
re

ou
r

ch
ild

re
n

at
te

nd
ed

w
ha

tw
e

be
lie

ve
to

be
ex

ce
lle

nt
sc

ho
ol

s.

ex
pa

nd
ed

to
in

cr
ea

se
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 79



C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

E
m

ai
l

If
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
co

m
m

un
ity

ha
s

to
be

sp
lit

,t
he

n
sp

lit
is

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

ly
.K

ee
pi

ng
vi

lla
ge

s
to

ge
th

er
.

N
o

ex
is

tin
g

C
ul

ts
ho

us
es

sh
ou

ld
be

re
zo

ne
d

ou
to

fC
ul

ts
pr

im
ar

y
or

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

-
it

is
th

e
re

as
on

w
hy

pe
op

le
ha

ve
m

ov
ed

to
C

ul
ts

an
d

pe
op

le
ha

ve
w

or
ke

d
ha

rd
to

bu
ild

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

w
ith

in
th

ei
r

vi
lla

ge
.

T
he

ne
w

ho
us

in
g

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

sh
ou

ld
be

zo
ne

d
fo

r
ou

tw
ith

C
ul

ts
be

fo
re

th
e

ho
us

es
ar

e
so

ld
.T

he
ho

us
e

bu
ye

rs
w

ou
ld

th
en

kn
ow

at
th

e
ou

ts
et

w
ha

ts
ch

oo
ls

th
ei

r
ch

ild
re

n
w

ou
ld

at
te

nd
.

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

-C
ul

ts
pr

im
ar

y
co

ul
d

be
co

m
e

bi
el

ds
id

e
pr

im
ar

y,
ne

w
pr

im
ar

y
bu

ilt
at

fr
ia

rs
fie

ld
fo

r
cu

lts
pr

im
ar

y,
ne

w
pr

im
ar

y/
s

at
co

un
te

ss
w

el
ls

co
ul

d
fe

ed
in

to
C

ul
ts

ac
ad

em
y.

R
ez

on
e

la
irh

ill
oc

k
pu

pi
ls

in
th

e
fu

tu
re

to
ke

ep
th

em
in

ab
er

de
en

sh
ire

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

s
ra

th
er

th
an

C
ul

ts
ac

ad
em

y.
O

ut
of

Z
on

e
pu

pi
ls

-
ei

th
er

st
op

ou
t

of
zo

ne
pu

pi
ls

or
lo

ok
at

th
e

pr
oj

ec
te

d
ro

ll
ov

er
al

lt
he

ye
ar

s
th

e
ch

ild
w

ou
ld

be
at

a

sp
ec

ifi
c

sc
ho

ol
an

d
on

ly
al

lo
w

th
em

in
at

th
e

st
ar

ti
ft

he
re

is
en

ou
gh

sp
ac

e
ov

er
al

l
th

e
ye

ar
s.

C
ul

te
r

A
ca

de
m

y
-

N
ew

ac
ad

em
y

bu
ilt

at
m

ill
tim

be
r/

cu
lte

r
(in

th
e

in
te

rim
us

e
ex

is
tin

g
un

oc
cu

pi
ed

in
te

rn
at

io
na

ls
ch

oo
la

t
M

ill
tim

be
r)

to
ho

us
e

pu
pi

ls
fr

om

m
ill

tim
be

r,
cu

lte
r

an
d

la
irh

ill
oc

k.
C

ul
ts

E
m

ai
l

It
hi

nk
th

at
th

e
w

ho
le

V
ill

ag
e

ar
ea

ne
ed

s
to

be
zo

ne
d

to
on

e
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
.A

s
C

ul
ts

w
ill

no
th

av
e

th
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

,i
tw

ou
ld

ne
ed

to
be

H
az

le
he

ad
or

B
uc

ks
bu

rn
.T

hi
s

ne
ed

s
to

ha
pp

en
be

fo
re

an
y

pl
an

ni
ng

co
ns

en
ti

s
gr

an
te

d
so

th
e

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
an

d
pu

rc
ha

se
rs

un
de

rs
ta

nd
th

e
si

tu
at

io
n.

Iu
nd

er
st

an
d

th
at

th
e

F
ria

rs
fie

ld
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
in

C
ul

ts
is

28
0

ho
us

es
,a

nd
M

ill
tim

be
r

is
55

0.
Ib

el
ie

ve
th

at
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
w

ill
no

th
av

e
th

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
to

w
ith

st
an

d
th

e
ex

tr
a

se
co

nd
ar

y
pu

pi
ls

th
is

w
ill

ge
ne

ra
te

,l
et

al
on

e
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

V
ill

ag
e.

T
hi

s
co

nc
er

n
is

m
ag

nn
ifi

ed
as

Ih
av

e
le

ar
ne

d
th

at
it

is
im

po
ss

ib
le

to
in

cr
ea

se
th

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

th
e

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

by
ex

te
ns

io
n

or
P

or
ta

ca
bi

ns
fo

r
al

m
os

t3
0

ye
ar

s.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
E

xt
en

d
th

e
us

e
of

vi
rt

ua
l

ca
m

pu
se

s
ac

ro
ss

th
e

C
ity

H
ig

h
S

ch
oo

ls
/A

ca
de

m
ie

s
fo

r
m

or
e

se
ni

or
su

bj
ec

ts
an

d
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
(i.

e.
in

di
vi

du
al

sc
ho

ol
s

fo
cu

s
on

sp
ec

ifi
c

su
bj

ec
ts

an
d

ch
ild

re
n

lo
ok

in
g

to
sp

ec
ia

lis
e

m
ay

ne
ed

to
tr

av
el

to
an

ot
he

r
sc

ho
ol

fo
r

an

P
la

nn
er

s
m

us
te

ns
ur

e
E

A
R

LY
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
of

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

ot
he

r
su

pp
or

tiv
e

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
fo

r
th

e
re

si
de

nt
s

of
th

e
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

th
e

ci
ty

.

A
ll

sc
ho

ol
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e
ci

ty
sh

ou
ld

on
ly

ac
ce

pt
ch

ild
re

n
in

zo
ne

an
d

th
os

e
ch

ild
re

n
w

ho
m

ov
e

w
ith

in
th

e
ci

ty
,s

ho
ul

d
m

ov
e

to
th

e
sc

ho
ol

w
ith

in
th

ei
r

ne
w

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a.

W
he

n
w

e
ha

d
at

te
nd

ed
pr

ev
io

us
pl

an
ni

ng
/

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

m
ee

tin
gs

ab
ou

t
th

e
F

ria
rs

fie
ld

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

th
e

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
/

pl
an

ne
rs

se
em

ed
to

be

T
he

ex
is

tin
g

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
ca

tc
hm

en
t

ar
ea

re
m

ai
ns

as
it

ex
is

ts
no

w
.T

he
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tw

ill
no

t
be

zo
ne

d
to

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

la
nd

ho
m

eb
uy

er
s

w
ill

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
is

at
tim

e
of

pu
rc

ha
se

.(
T

he
pl

an
ne

rs
al

lu
de

d
to

th
is

bu
ti

ti
s

im
po

rt
an

t
to

co
nf

irm
th

is
po

in
t

an
d

so
it

is
cl

ea
r

to
al

l

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 80



af
te

rn
oo

n
or

m
or

ni
ng

to
re

ce
iv

e
th

ei
r

le
ss

on
s)

.
su

gg
es

tin
g

th
at

th
e

nu
m

be
rs

th
ey

an
tic

ip
at

ed
w

ou
ld

on
ly

am
ou

nt
to

ab
ou

t5
0

ch
ild

re
n,

an
d

su
gg

es
te

d
su

re
ly

th
ey

co
ul

d
ju

st
bu

ild
on

an
ex

tr
a

cl
as

sr
oo

m
!(

th
is

w
as

C
ul

ts
pr

im
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

w
e

di
sc

us
se

d)
.

T
hi

s
se

em
s

a
ve

ry
lo

w
pr

oj
ec

tio
n

fo
r

28
0

ho
us

es
w

ith
4/

5
be

dr
oo

m
s!

T
he

de
ve

lo
pe

rs

m
us

tp
ro

vi
de

fin
an

ci
al

as
si

st
an

ce
to

up
gr

ad
e

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
if

its
to

ac
co

m
m

m
od

at
e

th
e

ad
di

tio
na

l
ch

ild
re

n
fr

om
th

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
It

ha
s

be
en

pr
ov

en
in

nu
m

er
ou

s
st

ud
ie

s
th

at
th

e
le

ng
th

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

co
m

m
ut

e
ha

s
an

im
pa

ct
on

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

-
re

-
lo

ca
tin

g
C

ul
ts

ch
ild

re
n

to
a

sc
ho

ol
fu

rt
he

r
aw

ay
w

ill
in

cr
ea

se
th

ei
r

jo
ur

ne
y

tim
e

an
d

co
ul

d

Ia
m

w
rit

in
g

to
yo

u
w

ith
m

y
co

nc
er

ns
re

la
tin

g
to

on
e

of
yo

ur
pr

op
os

al
s

to
re

du
ce

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
pu

pi
ls

at
C

ul
ts

pr
im

ar
y

an
d

C
ul

ts
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s:

re
-

zo
ni

ng
of

th
e

C
ul

ts
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

T
hi

s
pr

op
os

al
gi

ve
m

e
gr

av
e

co
nc

er
n,

th
e

m
ai

n
re

as
on

be
in

g
th

at
yo

u
w

ou
ld

sp
lit

an
d

di
vi

de
th

e
C

ul
ts

co
m

m
un

ity
,w

hi
ch

ov
er

tim
e

w
ill

re
su

lt
in

th
e

de
gr

ad
at

io
n

of
a

w
el

le
st

ab
lis

he
d

an
d

th
riv

in
g

co
m

m
un

ity
.

K
irk

B
ra

e
an

d
th

e
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g
ar

ea
s

lie
s

at
th

e
he

ar
to

ft
he

C
ul

ts
co

m
m

un
ity

an
d

ch
an

gi
ng

In
ad

di
tio

n,
m

an
y

of
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
lo

ca
te

d
at

th
e

ea
st

of
cu

lts
w

al
k

to
an

d
fr

om
sc

ho
ol

.
T

hi
s

is
go

od
fo

r
a

nu
m

be
r

of
re

as
on

s:
it

pr
ov

id
es

th
e

ch
ild

re
n

w
ith

ex
er

ci
se

,
im

pr
ov

es
so

ci
al

ne
tw

or
ki

ng
be

tw
ee

n
ch

ild
re

n
bu

tm
os

ti
m

po
rt

an
tly

it
re

du
ce

s
th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

ca
rs

pi
ck

in
g

up
an

d
dr

op
pi

ng
of

fa
nd

th
er

ef
or

e
ea

se
s

co
ng

es
tio

n.
R

e-
lo

ca
tin

g
C

ul
ts

pu
pi

ls
to

a
sc

ho
ol

fu
rt

he
r

w
ay

w
ill

ha
ve

a
do

ub
le

im
pa

ct
on

co
ng

es
tio

n:
m

or
e

ca
rs

dr
op

pi
ng

ch
ild

re
n

of
fa

tt
he

C
ul

ts
sc

ho
ol

s
an

d
m

or
e

ca
rs

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 81



po
te

nt
ia

lly
be

a
co

nt
rib

ut
or

y
fa

ct
or

in
th

ei
r

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

as
w

ou
ld

ha
ve

hu
ge

de
tr

im
en

ta
li

m
pa

ct
on

co
m

m
un

ity
lif

e.
dr

op
pi

ng
C

ul
ts

ch
ild

re
n

of
fa

tt
he

ot
he

r
sc

ho
ol

s.
O

ne
of

th
e

re
as

on
s

th
at

C
ul

ts
re

si
de

nt
s

ha
ve

ch
os

en
C

ul
ts

to
liv

e
is

th
e

pr
ox

im
ity

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s.
W

ha
tw

ou
ld

be
a

m
or

e
se

ns
ib

le
pr

op
os

al
w

ou
ld

be
to

sh
rin

k
th

e
cu

rr
en

tc
at

ch
m

en
ta

re
a

an
d

re
m

ov
e

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
of

ch
ild

re
n

ly
in

g
at

th
e

ed
ge

of
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a.

R
em

ov
in

g
th

es
e

pu
pi

ls
w

ill
ha

ve
no

im
pa

ct
on

co
m

m
un

ity
lif

e
an

d
w

ill
go

a
lo

ng
w

ay
in

ea
si

ng
co

ng
es

tio
n

at
th

e
C

ul
ts

sc
ho

ol
s.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
·N

o
ch

an
ge

to
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
C

ul
ts

P
rim

ar
y

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

a:
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
th

om
e

bu
ye

rs
to

be
be

m
ad

e
aw

ar
e

of
th

is
at

tim
e

of
pu

rc
ha

se
.�
P
la
n

ea
rly

co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n
of

ne
w
pr
im
ar
y
sc
ho

ol
s

an
d
re
la
te
d
in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

fo
r
ab

ov
e

m
en

tio
ne

d
ne

w
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t.
In

th
e

m
ea

nt
im
e,

H
az
le
he

ad
/A

iry
ha
ll
P
rim

ar
ie
s

co
ul
d
be

us
ed

.
�
S
ch
oo

ls
to

de
cr
ea

se
an
d
lim

it
nu
m
be

rs
of

ou
t-
of
-z
on

e
in
ta
ke

(ie
ch
ild
re
n
to
m
ov
e

to
ne

w
sc
ho

ol

au
to
m
at
ic
al
ly
if
pa

re
nt
s
m
ov
e
ou

to
f

zo
ne

).
C
ul
ts

E
m
ai
l

�
N
ew

S
ec
on

da
ry

an
d
P
rim

ar
y

es
ta
bl
is
hm

en
ts
co
ve
rin

g
th
e
C
ul
te
r
or

M
ill
tim

be
r
ar
ea

(s
av
in
g
on

bu
s
tr
an

sp
or
t

to
C
ul
ts
A
ca
de

m
y
fo
r
al
la
s
w
el
la
s

de
cr
ea

si
ng

pu
pi
ls
nu

m
be
r)
.

C
ul
ts

E
m
ai
l

P
ot
en

tia
lf
or

re
-z
on

in
g
le
ad

in
g
to
pu

pi
ls
of

ex
is
tin
g
pr
im
ar
y
sc
ho

ol
s
w
ith
in
th
e
C
ul
ts

A
S
G
be

in
g
se
nt

to
an

ac
ad

em
y
ot
he

r
th
an

C
ul
ts
A
ca
de

m
y
If
th
is
w
er
e

pr
ec
ip
ita
te
d
by

th
e
ne

w
de
ve
lo
pm

en
ts
at

C
ou
nt
es
sw

el
ls
,F

ria
rs
fie
ld
an

d
O
ld
fie
ld

F
ar
m
,d

is
ru
pt
io
n
of

ex
is
tin
g
co
m
m
un
iti
es

an
d
so
ci
al
re
la
tio
ns
hi
ps

fo
r
th
e
be

ne
fit
of

ne
w
,y
et

to
be

fo
rm

ed
co
m
m
un
iti
es
.d
is
ru
pt
io
n
of

ex
is
tin
g

co
m
m
un
iti
es

an
d
so
ci
al
re
la
tio
ns
hi
ps

fo
r

th
e
be

ne
fit
of

ne
w
,y
et

to
be

fo
rm

ed
co
m
m
un
iti
es
.)
di
sa
dv
an

ta
gi
ng

cu
rr
en
th

om
eo

w
ne

rs
to

ha
nd

w
in
df
al
l

pr
of
its

to
de

ve
lo
pe

rs
-
th
er
e
is
no

do
ub

t
th
at

ho
m
es

zo
ne

d
to

C
ul
ts
A
ca
de

m
y

at
tr
ac
ta

pr
em

iu
m

as
th
ey

gi
ve

ac
ce
ss

to
th
is
po

pu
la
r
sc
ho
ol
w
ith

an
es
ta
bl
is
he

d
cu
ltu
re

an
d
re
co
rd

of
ac
hi
ev
em

en
t.
A
ny

m
ov
e
to
re
-z
on

e
C
ul
te
r
to
a
sc
ho

ol
ot
he

r
th
an

C
ul
ts
A
ca
de

m
y
(e
ith
er

an
ex
is
tin
g
or

ne
w
sc
ho

ol
)
w
ill
be

se
en

as
so
ci
al

cl
ea
ns
in
g
to

m
ak
e
w
ay

fo
r
th
e
oc
cu
pa

nt
s

of
ne

w
pr
iv
at
e
ho

us
in
g
de
ve
lo
pm

en
ts
.

T
hi
s
is
cl
ea
rly

un
ac
ce
pt
ab

le
.

J:
\S
ch
o
ol
_E

st
at
e
s\
2
01
2
P
ri
m
ar
y
S
ch
oo
lR

e
vi
ew

\E
m
a
il
o
r
C
o
m
m
e
nt
C
a
rd
fe
ed
b
ac
k\
E
ng
ag
em

en
tF
e
e
db
ac
k
a
no
ny
m
is
ed

an
d
la
rg
er

te
xt
.x
ls

Page 82



C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l

It
he

re
fo

re
,s

tr
on

gl
y

op
po

se
an

y
pr

op
os

al
to

di
vi

de
th

e
vi

lla
ge

fo
r

nu
m

er
ic

al
re

as
on

.
It

is
im

pe
ra

tiv
e

th
at

sc
ho

ol
ca

tc
hm

en
t

ar
ea

s
ta

ke
ac

co
un

to
fc

om
m

un
ity

ar
ea

s
an

d
av

oi
ds

di
vi

di
ng

co
m

m
un

iti
es

th
er

eb
y

w
ea

ke
ni

ng
th

e
bo

nd
s

de
sc

rib
ed

ab
ov

e.
It

is
rid

ic
ul

ou
s

th
at

w
e

co
ul

d
liv

e
in

th
e

he
ar

to
fC

ul
ts

an
d

no
tg

o
to

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

w
hi

le
ch

ild
re

n
ar

e
tr

an
sp

or
te

d
in

to
C

ul
ts

fo
rm

La
irh

ill
oc

k,
M

ill
tim

be
r

an
d

P
et

er
cu

lte
r.

C
hi

ld
re

n
sh

ou
ld

no
tb

e
tr

an
sp

or
te

d
to

ot
he

r
vi

lla
ge

s
w

he
n

th
er

e
is

a
sc

ho
ol

in
th

ei
r

ho
m

e
vi

lla
ge

w
ith

in
w

al
ki

ng
di

st
an

ce
.

W
e

ar
e

ve
ry

ke
en

th
at

ou
r

ch
ild

re
n

w
al

k/
cy

cl
e

to
sc

ho
ol

an
d

ou
r

ch
oi

ce
of

ho
m

e
w

as
ba

se
d

on
th

e
ab

ili
ty

to
w

al
k

to
th

e
C

ul
ts

sc
ho

ol
s.

It
is

w
or

th
no

tin
g

th
at

Iw
ou

ld
ra

th
er

ex
pl

or
e

an
ex

te
ns

io
n

to
th

e
vi

rt
ua

l
ca

m
pu

s
sy

st
em

th
an

m
od

ify
zo

ne
bo

un
da

rie
s.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l

It
hi

nk
it

is
im

po
rt

an
tt

ha
tn

ew
ho

us
es

ar
e

zo
ne

d
ou

to
ft

he
ex

is
tin

g
C

ul
ts

ca
tc

hm
en

t,
ra

th
er

th
an

zo
ni

ng
th

em
in

at
th

e
ex

pe
ns

e
of

ho
us

es
al

re
ad

y
in

th
e

vi
lla

ge
ar

ea
.I

th
in

k
th

at
th

is
sh

ou
ld

be
do

ne
as

ap
so

th
at

bu
ye

rs
in

th
e

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

kn
ow

-
Ia

m
co

nc
er

ne
d

th
at

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

th
e

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ap
pe

ar
to

be
be

in
g

of
fe

re
d

pl
ac

es
in

C
ul

ts
un

til
th

er
e

is
cr

iti
ca

lm
as

s
in

th
e

ne
w

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

,b
ut

th
ey

w
on

't
be

m
ad

e
to

m
ov

e
It

hi
nk

th
at

if
ch

ild
re

n
at

te
nd

th
e

sc
ho

ol
to

w
hi

ch
th

ey
ar

e
zo

ne
d

th
is

w
ou

ld
im

pr
ov

e
at

ta
in

m
en

t
Iu

nd
er

st
an

d
th

at
th

is
w

ou
ld

al
so

fr
ee

up
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
sp

ac
e

a
H

az
el

he
ad

P
rim

ar
y.

-
Id

on
't

un
de

rs
ta

nd
w

hy
La

irh
ill

oc
k

is
zo

ne
d

to
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y-
su

re
ly

it
w

ou
ld

m
ak

e
m

or
e

se
ns

e
fo

r
it

to
be

zo
ne

d
to

S
to

ne
ha

ve
n.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
It

ha
s

be
en

pr
ov

en
in

nu
m

er
ou

s
st

ud
ie

s
th

at
th

e
le

ng
th

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

co
m

m
ut

e
ha

s
an

im
pa

ct
on

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

-
re

-
lo

ca
tin

g
C

ul
ts

ch
ild

re
n

to
a

sc
ho

ol
fu

rt
he

r
aw

ay
w

ill
in

cr
ea

se
th

ei
r

jo
ur

ne
y

tim
e

an
d

co
ul

d

Ih
av

e
he

ar
d

ab
ou

ta
n

op
tio

n
to

bu
ild

a
ne

w
S

ec
on

da
ry

S
ch

oo
la

ro
un

d
C

ul
te

r
or

M
ill

tim
be

r,
w

hi
ch

se
em

s
to

m
ak

e
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
ls

en
se

an
d

w
ou

ld
ea

se
pr

es
su

re
on

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y.

R
e-

lo
ca

tin
g

C
ul

ts
pu

pi
ls

to
a

sc
ho

ol
fu

rt
he

r
w

ay
w

ill
ha

ve
a

do
ub

le
im

pa
ct

on
co

ng
es

tio
n:

m
or

e
ca

rs
dr

op
pi

ng
ch

ild
re

n
of

fa
tt

he
C

ul
ts

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

m
or

e
ca

rs
dr

op
pi

ng
C

ul
ts

ch
ild

re
n

of
fa

tt
he

ot
he

r
sc

ho
ol

s.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 83



po
te

nt
ia

lly
be

a
co

nt
rib

ut
or

y
fa

ct
or

in
th

ei
r

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.
In

ad
di

tio
n,

m
an

y
of

th
e

ch
ild

re
n

lo
ca

te
d

at
th

e
ea

st
of

cu
lts

w
al

k
to

an
d

fr
om

sc
ho

ol
.

T
hi

s
is

go
od

fo
r

a
nu

m
be

r
of

re
as

on
s:

it
pr

ov
id

es
th

e

ch
ild

re
n

w
ith

ex
er

ci
se

,
im

pr
ov

es
so

ci
al

ne
tw

or
ki

ng
be

tw
ee

n
ch

ild
re

n
bu

tm
os

t
im

po
rt

an
tly

it
re

du
ce

s
th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

ca
rs

pi
ck

in
g

up
an

d
dr

op
pi

ng
of

fa
nd

th
er

ef
or

e
ea

se
s

co
ng

es
tio

n.
O

ne
of

th
e

re
as

on
s

th
at

C
ul

ts
re

si
de

nt
s

ha
ve

ch
os

en
C

ul
ts

to
liv

e
is

th
e

pr
ox

im
ity

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l
Id

o
no

tb
el

ie
ve

it
m

ak
es

se
ns

e
to

zo
ne

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
to

C
ul

ts
,a

s
th

is
re

su
lts

in
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ov
er

-c
ap

ac
ity

,a
nd

te
m

po
ra

ry
cl

as
sr

oo
m

.
Ib

el
ie

ve
th

at
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
fr

om
th

e
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

D
ev

sh
ou

ld
be

zo
ne

d
to

A
iry

ha
ll

,w
hi

ch
is

pr
oj

ec
te

d
to

be
un

de
r-

ca
pa

ci
ty

.C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
sh

ou
ld

st
op

ac
ce

pt
in

g
ou

to
fz

on
e

ch
ild

re
n.

R
eg

ar
di

ng
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

,t
he

sa
m

e
ar

gu
m

en
ts

Ih
av

e
gi

ve
n

ab
ov

e
fo

r
pr

im
ar

y
ed

uc
at

io
n

ca
n

be
ap

pl
ie

d,
bu

t
H

az
le

he
ad

A
ca

de
m

y
is

th
e

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

th
at

it
pr

oj
ec

te
d

to
be

un
de

r-
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

It
co

ul
d

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
fr

om
C

ou
nt

es
sw

el
ls

pe
nd

in
g

th
e

co
m

pl
et

io
n

of
a

ne
w

ac
ad

em
y

fo
r

th
at

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tI

un
de

rs
ta

nd
th

at
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
is

th
e

la
rg

es
tt

ha
tc

ou
ld

be
bu

ilt
on

th
e

si
te

,
ow

in
g

to
re

gu
la

tio
ns

go
ve

rn
in

g
m

in
im

um
am

ou
nt

si
ze

of
gr

ou
nd

s
an

d
pl

ay
in

g
fie

ld
s.

H
ow

ev
er

,t
he

pl
ay

in
g

fie
ld

s
us

ed
by

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
co

ul
d

pr
ov

id
e

th
e

so
lu

tio
n.

A
n

al
te

rn
at

iv
e

so
lu

tio
n

to

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 84



ov
er

-c
ap

ac
ity

at
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
w

ou
ld

be
to

bu
ild

an
an

ne
xe

on
a

di
ffe

re
nt

si
te

to
pr

ov
id

e
ad

di
tio

na
lc

ap
ac

ity
A

no
th

er
op

tio
n

w
ou

ld
be

to
ho

us
e

a
ne

w
ac

ad
em

y
w

ith
in

th
e

P
et

er
cu

lte
r

an
d

M
ill

tim
be

r
co

m
m

un
ity

C
ul

ts
A

ca
de

m
y

sh
ou

ld
st

op
ac

ce
pt

in
g

ou
to

fz
on

e.

C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l

T
he

ex
is

tin
g

ca
tc

hm
en

tz
on

es
sh

ou
ld

re
m

ai
n

fo
r

th
e

C
ul

ts
/B

ie
ld

si
de

ar
ea

s,
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s
ar

e
at

th
e

he
ar

to
f

th
es

e
co

m
m

un
iti

es
an

d
fr

ag
m

en
tin

g
th

es
e

ar
ea

s
w

ou
ld

de
fin

ite
ly

ha
ve

a
ne

ga
tiv

e
im

pa
ct

on
th

e
co

m
m

un
ity

an
d

ch
ild

re
ns

ac
ce

ss

to
lo

ca
lly

pr
ov

id
ed

ed
uc

at
io

n.
se

em
s

rid
ic

ul
ou

s
to

se
e

ch
ild

re
n

liv
in

g
w

ith
in

w
al

ki
ng

di
st

an
ce

to
th

e
pr

im
ar

y
co

ul
d

po
te

nt
ia

lly
be

re
qu

ire
d

to
tr

av
el

so
m

e
di

st
an

ce
to

a
pr

im
ar

y
in

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
-

m
ak

es
no

se
ns

e
an

d
is

no
ti

n
ke

ep
in

g
w

ith
pr

om
ot

in
g

he
al

th
y

liv
in

g
.W

e
fe

el
th

at
ne

w
oc

cu
pa

nt
s

m
ov

in
g

in
to

F
ria

rs
fie

ld
in

C
ul

ts
sh

ou
ld

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
th

at
th

e
zo

ne
d

sc
ho

ol
is

no
t

C
ul

ts
P

rim
ar

y
or

A
ca

de
m

y,
th

er
ef

or
e

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

ar
e

cl
ea

r
fr

om
th

e
ou

ts
et

.A
pr

op
os

al
ha

s
be

en
m

ad
e

fo
r

a
C

ul
ts

E
m

ai
l

T
he

ex
is

tin
g

C
ul

ts

P
rim

ar
y

ca
tc

hm
en

t

ar
ea

re
m

ai
ns

as
it

ex
is

ts
no

w
.T

he

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tw

ill
no

t

be
zo

ne
d

to
C

ul
ts

an
d

ho
m

eb
uy

er
s

w
ill

be
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
is

at
tim

e
of

pu
rc

ha
se

.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 85



T
em

po
ra

ry

ed
uc

at
io

na
lp

ro
vi

si
on

co
ul

d
be

a
pr

ov
id

ed

at
H

az
le

he
ad

.A
ll

sc
ho

ol
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e

ci
ty

sh
ou

ld
on

ly

ac
ce

pt
ch

ild
re

n
in

zo
ne

.U
na

cc
ep

ta
bl

e

th
at

ch
ild

re
n

ou
to

f

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

tz
on

e

ar
e

gi
ve

n
a

pl
ac

e
at

ou
r

lo
ca

l
sc

ho
ol

w
he

n

ch
ild

re
n

re
si

di
ng

in

C
ul

ts
m

ay
be

m
ov

ed

.C
re

at
e

a
ca

m
pu

s

ho
us

in
g

S
ec

on
da

ry

an
d

P
rim

ar
y

pr
ov

is
io

n
in

C
ul

te
r

or

M
ill

tim
be

r.
.S

to
p

ch
ild

re
n

fr
om

La
irh

ill
oc

k
P

rim
ar

y

fr
om

at
te

nd
in

g
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y.
T

he
y

ar
e

cl
os

er
to

ot
he

r
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

it
w

ou
ld

ea
se

th
e

pr
es

su
re

on

nu
m

be
rs

he
re

at

C
ul

ts
.E

xt
en

d
th

e

us
e

of
vi

rt
ua

l

ca
m

pu
se

s
ac

ro
ss

th
e

A
ca

de
m

ie
s

fo
r

m
or

e
se

ni
or

su
bj

ec
ts

an
d

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

F
ut

ur
e

pl
an

s
to

bu
ild

a
ne

w
C

ul
ts

pr
im

ar
y

on
th

e
ex

is
tin

g

pl
ay

in
g

fie
ld

s
th

en

us
e

th
e

si
te

of
th

e

cu
rr

en
ts

ch
oo

lf
or

pl
ay

in
g

gr
ou

nd
s,

to

ab
so

rb
th

e
F

ria
rs

fie
ld

de
ve

lo
pm

en
th

om
es

.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 86



C
ul

ts
E

m
ai

l

it
w

as
co

nf
irm

ed
to

m
e

th
at

th
e

cl
as

s
si

ze
is

cu
rr

en
tly

30
.

In
cr

ea
si

ng
th

at
nu

m
be

r
w

ou
ld

no
tb

e
su

ita
bl

e
fo

r
te

ac
hi

ng
st

af
fo

r
pu

pi
ls

.I
s

th
er

e
th

e
lim

it
of

th
e

m
ax

im
um

nu
m

be
r

of
pu

pi
ls

in
th

e
cl

as
s?

W
ou

ld
st

ro
ng

ly
ob

je
ct

/b
e

ve
ry

di
sa

pp
oi

nt
ed

if
he

w
as

pr
ev

en
te

d
in

at
te

nd
in

g
th

e
A

ca
de

m
y

du
e

to
an

ar
bi

tr
ar

y
di

vi
si

on
of

th
e

vi
lla

ge
of

C
ul

ts
�

as
su
gg

es
te
d
in
th
e
re
-z
on

in
g
m
en

tio
ne

d
be

lo
w
�
ie
pr
op

er
tie
s
E
as
to

fK
irk

B
ra
e
to

be
ex
cl
ud
ed

.F
irs
tly
,t
he

de
lin
ea

tio
n
of

C
ul
ts
sh
ou

ld
be

cl
ea

rly
de

fin
ed

:M
y

in
te
rp
re
ta
tio
n
w
ou

ld
be
:B

ai
rd
s
B
ra
e
to

th
e
E
as
t,
C
ra
ig
to
n
R
oa
d
/F

ria
rs
fie
ld

R
oa
d
to

th
e
N
or
th
,B

ai
lli
es
w
el
lR

oa
d
to

th
e
W
es
t,
an

d
al
lp
ro
pe

rt
ie
s
be

lo
w
th
at

ar
ea

to
th
e
riv
er

D
ee
.T

hi
s
w
ou

ld
be

th
e

gu
ar
an

te
ed

ca
tc
hm

en
ta

re
a
fo
r
C
ul
ts

A
ca
de
m
y.
If
th
er
e
ha

s
to
be

so
m
e

lim
ita
tio
n
of

in
ta
ke

of
pu

pi
ls
,t
he

n
pr
io
rit
y

sh
ou

ld
be

gi
ve
n
to
fa
m
ili
es

w
ho

liv
e

w
ith
in
th
e
ar
ea

as
de

sc
rib

ed
ab

ov
e.
A

fu
rt
he
r
cr
ite
ria

w
ou
ld
be

th
e
nu

m
be

r
of

ye
ar
s
fa
m
ili
es

ha
ve

st
ay
ed

in
C
ul
ts
�
w
ith

lo
ng

te
rm

re
si
de

nt
s
ta
ki
ng

pr
io
rit
y.

C
ul
ts

E
m
ai
l

A
s
re
si
de

nt
s
of

A
bb

ot
sh
al
l

D
riv
e,

w
e
ar
e
gr
ea

tly
co
nc
er
ne

d
re
ga

rd
in
g
th
e

im
pa

ct
of

su
ch

a
ch
an

ge
on

th
e
so
ci
al
w
el
lb
ei
ng

an
d
ed

uc
at
io
na
l

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

of
th
e

ch
ild
re
n
w
ho

liv
e
he

re
.

W
e
pu

rc
ha
se
d
th
is

pr
op
er
tie
s
tw
o
ye
ar
s
ag
o

an
d
pa

rt
of

w
ha

ta
ttr
ac
te
d

us
to

th
e
ar
ea

T
he

ch
ild
re
n
in
th
e

A
bb

ot
sh
al
la
re
a
liv
e

an
d
pl
ay

in
cu
lts
.

R
ez
on

in
g
th
em

to
an

ot
he

r
ca
tc
hm

en
t

ar
ea

m
ea

ns
tr
an

sp
or
ti
ss
ue
s
to

a
di
st
an

tl
oc
at
io
n

w
he
n
C
ul
ts
P
rim

ar
y

an
d
C
ul
ts
A
ca
de

m
y

ar
e
cl
os
er
,t
he

po
te
nt
ia
li
na

bi
lit
y

W
e
fe
el
th
at

it
is
co
m
pl
et
el
y

ill
og

ic
al
to

ex
pe

ct
pe

op
le

w
ho

ar
e

cu
rr
en
tly

re
si
de

nt
in
th
e

lo
ca
la
re
a
to

fa
ce

th
is

di
sr
up

tio
n,

w
hi
le
pe

op
le

w
ho

w
ill
no

tb
e

liv
in
g
in
C
ul
ts
,

or
th
os
e
w
ho

�s
ho

us
es

ar
e
no

t
w
er
e
th
e
ex
ce
lle
nt

sc
ho

ol
in
g
pr
os
pe
ct
s
bo

th
at

pr
im
ar
y
an
d
se
co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
le
ve
l.

to
fu
lly

ut
ili
se

ex
tr
ac
ur
ric
ul
ar

ac
tiv
iti
es

w
ith
in
th
e

pr
op
os
ed

sc
ho
ol
as

a
re
su
lt
of

th
is

in
cr
ea

se
d
di
st
an

ce
an

d
di
sr
up

tio
n
to

so
ci
al
in
te
ra
ct
io
n

w
ith

ch
ild
re
n
of

th
ei
r

ow
n
ag

e
in
C
ul
ts
.

D
en
om

in
at
io
na

l
E
m
ai
l

(s
ee

le
tte

r
sa
ve
d
as

H
ol
y
F
am

ily
-
P
ar
en

ts
F
ee

db
ac
k
in
D
en
om

in
at
io
na

lF
ol
de

r)

J:
\S
ch
o
ol
_E

st
at
e
s\
2
01
2
P
ri
m
ar
y
S
ch
oo
lR

e
vi
ew

\E
m
a
il
o
r
C
o
m
m
e
nt
C
a
rd
fe
ed
b
ac
k\
E
ng
ag
em

en
tF
e
e
db
ac
k
a
no
ny
m
is
ed

an
d
la
rg
er

te
xt
.x
ls

Page 87



D
em

on
in

at
io

na
l

E
m

ai
l

It
is

w
id

el
y

fe
lt

th
at

ex
pa

ns
io

n
of

th
e

bu
ild

in
g

w
ou

ld
be

of
be

ne
fit

to
te

ac
hi

ng
an

d
le

ar
ni

ng
at

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

P
rim

ar
y.

A
t

pr
es

en
t,

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

S
ch

oo
ld

oe
s

no
t

ha
ve

its
ow

n
nu

rs
er

y.
T

he
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t

of
a

nu
rs

er
y

w
ou

ld
he

lp
in

ta
ke

to
th

e
sc

ho
ol

an
d

al
lo

w
fo

r
sm

oo
th

er
tr

an
si

tio
n

to
th

e
P

rim
ar

y.
S

uc
h

a
se

em
le

ss
tr

an
si

tio
n

w
ou

ld
al

so
as

si
st

in
th

e
de

liv
er

y
of

te
ac

hi
ng

an
d

le
ar

ni
ng

,i
n

ac
co

rd
w

ith
th

e
C

ur
ric

ul
um

fo
r

E
sx

ce
lle

nc
e.

Z
on

in
g

is

O
th

er
fa

m
ili

es
w

ith
in

th
e

zo
ne

ha
ve

tr
an

sp
or

t
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

,a
s

th
ey

ar
e

no
to

n
a

bu
s

ro
ut

e
th

at
w

ou
ld

ta
ke

th
em

to
H

ol
y

F
am

ily
P

rim
ar

y.
T

he
se

fa
m

ili
es

th
er

ef
or

e
op

tt
o

en
ro

lt
he

ir
ch

ild
re

n
at

C
or

nh
ill

,
M

ui
rf

ie
ld

,K
in

gs
fo

rd
or

ot
he

r
sc

ho
ol

s
in

th
e

N
or

th
fie

ld
A

S
G

.G
re

at
er

tr
an

sp
or

ta
ss

is
ta

nc
e

w
ou

ld
he

lp
m

or
e

fa
m

ili
es

us
e

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

S
ch

oo
l.

al
so

an
is

su
e

at
H

ol
y

F
am

ily
an

d
at

th
e

ot
he

r
C

at
ho

lic
sc

ho
ol

s
in

th
e

ci
ty

.A
nu

m
be

r
of

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

C
hu

rc
h

pa
ris

hi
on

er
s

ha
ve

ch
ild

re
n

w
ho

w
ou

ld
w

is
h

to
at

te
nd

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

S
ch

oo
l,

bu
t

ar
e

zo
ne

d
fo

r
S

tP
et

er
's

.
W

ou
ld

it
be

po
ss

ib
le

to
re

vi
ew

th
e

zo
ni

ng
?

R
ed

ef
in

in
g

th
e

zo
ne

s
w

ou
ld

he
lp

al
le

vi
at

e
ov

er
cr

ow
di

ng
at

S
tP

et
er

's
an

d
m

ak
e

be
tte

r
us

e
of

th
e

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
at

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

S
ch

oo
l.

D
en

om
in

at
io

na
l

E
m

ai
l

P
la

n
ea

rly
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
of

ne
w

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

re
la

te
d

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
fo

r
ab

ov
e

m
en

tio
ne

d
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
In

th
e

m
ea

nt
im

e,
H

az
le

he
ad

/A
iry

ha
ll

P
rim

ar
ie

s
co

ul
d

be
us

ed
.

T
ra

ns
po

rt
in

g
ch

ild
re

n
to

an
d

fr
om

sc
ho

ol
w

ou
ld

be
gr

ea
tly

ex
ac

er
ba

te
d;

th
e

w
id

e-
sp

re
ad

em
er

ge
nc

e
of

�b
us

si
ng

�w
ou

ld
no

t
en

ha
nc

e
a

m
od

er
n

an
d

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

co
sm

op
ol

ita
n

ci
ty

;

D
en

om
in

at
io

na
l

E
m

ai
l

A
ll

th
es

e
ch

an
ge

s
w

ou
ld

af
fe

ct
th

e
sc

ho
ol

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

of
th

os
e

ch
ild

re
n

w
ho

w
ou

ld
be

ex
po

se
d

to
so

m
uc

h
m

or
e

ha
ss

le

S
ch

oo
ls

to
de

cr
ea

se
an

d
lim

it
nu

m
be

rs
of

ou
t-

of
-z

on
e

in
ta

ke
(ie

ch
ild

re
n

to
m

ov
e

to
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

au
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
if

pa
re

nt
s

m
ov

e
ou

to
fz

on
e)

.

A
m

al
ga

m
at

in
g

th
e

C
at

ho
lic

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ou

ld
in

cr
ea

se
pr

es
su

re
on

pe
op

le
ie

pe
ak

tim
e

tr
af

fic
.T

hi
s

ca
n

be
re

ga
rd

ed
as

an
un

in
te

nt
io

na
ld

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n
ag

ai
ns

tt
ho

se
pr

ef
er

rin
g

C
at

ho
lic

sc
ho

ol
s.

Lo
ng

er
jo

ur
ne

ys
al

so
in

cr
ea

se
fr

us
tr

at
io

n
an

d
th

e
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

of
ac

ci
de

nt
s.

T
he

pr
op

os
ed

id
ea

of
am

al
ga

m
at

io
n

w
ou

ld
al

so
af

fe
ct

em
pl

oy
m

en
t.

If
th

e
co

un
ci

lc
lo

se
s

do
w

n
sc

ho
ol

s
w

or
ki

ng
pa

re
nt

s
w

ill
fin

d
th

em
se

lv
es

in
di

ffi
cu

lty
w

ith
re

ga
rd

s
to

ta
ki

ng
th

ei
r

ch
ild

re
n

to
sc

ho
ol

an
d

ba
ck

ho
m

e.
M

an
y

pe
op

le
ar

e
al

re
ad

y

fa
ci

ng
hu

ge
fin

an
ci

al
pr

ob
le

m
s,

w
hy

fu
rt

he
r

in
cr

ea
se

pr
es

su
re

on
th

em
!

F
er

ry
hi

ll
E

m
ai

l

N
ew

S
ec

on
da

ry
an

d
P

rim
ar

y
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
ts

co
ve

rin
g

th
e

C
ul

te
r

or
M

ill
tim

be
r

ar
ea

(s
av

in
g

on
bu

s
tr

an
sp

or
t

to
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y
fo

r
al

la
s

w
el

la
s

de
cr

ea
si

ng
pu

pi
ls

nu
m

be
r

F
er

ry
hi

ll
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

P
le

as
e

ca
re

fu
lly

co
ns

id
er

"r
ep

ai
r"

co
st

fig
ur

es
/r

at
in

g
(w

e
fe

el
th

at
th

is
sh

ou
ld

be
la

be
lle

d
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t)

.L
oo

k
at

ca
re

fu
lly

fo
r

ex
am

pl
e

ha
ve

yo
u

in
cl

ud
ed

a
on

e
of

f
co

st
e.

g.
m

ov
in

g
an

of
fic

e
(B

ro
om

hi
ll)

,
re

m
ov

in
g

as
be

st
os

(F
er

ry
hi

ll)
-

no
tr

ea
lly

a
re

pa
ir.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 88



F
er

ry
hi

ll
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

C
on

si
de

r
ou

r
co

m
m

un
iti

es
in

cl
ud

in
g

D
ut

hi
e

P
ar

k,
C

hu
rc

h,
F

er
ry

hi
ll

S
ch

oo
l,

H
ar

la
w

A
ca

de
m

y
vi

si
ts

,L
oc

al
H

ot
el

/b
us

in
es

s
vi

si
ts

,L
un

ch
C

lu
bs

,
F

er
ry

hi
ll

C
om

m
un

ity
C

en
tr

e,
A

lb
ur

y
S

po
rt

s
C

en
tr

e
(c

om
m

un
ity

ru
n

w
ith

S
po

rt
A

be
rd

ee
n)

,F
er

rh
ill

Li
br

ar
y,

N
ur

se
ry

V
is

its
,B

oo
ks

fo
r

cl
as

s
pr

oj
ec

ts
.

F
er

ry
hi

ll
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

S
ui

ta
bi

lit
y:

co
ns

id
er

cl
os

e
sp

or
ts

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
-

A
lb

ur
y

S
po

rt
s,

C
om

m
un

ity
C

en
tr

e,
H

M
IE

re
po

rt
s.

F
er

ry
hi

ll
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

E
ne

rg
y

ra
tin

g
fo

r
F

er
ry

hi
ll

ba
se

d
on

20
09

re
po

rt
s

ie
pr

e
do

ub
le

gl
az

in
g,

pr
e

so
la

r
po

w
er

.

F
er

ry
hi

ll
C

om
m

en
tC

ar
d

In
ve

st
in

F
er

ry
hi

ll
an

d
B

ro
om

hi
ll

to
pr

ov
id

e
w

he
el

ch
ai

r
ac

ce
ss

-
tr

y
fo

r
fu

nd
s

ou
tw

ith
E

C
&

S
m

on
ie

s.

H
an

ov
er

S
tr

ee
t

E
-m

ai
l

H
an

ov
er

is
fe

ed
er

fo
r

S
tM

ac
ha

rr
-

fa
m

ili
es

w
an

tt
hi

s
re

vi
se

d
as

H
ar

la
w

an
d

G
ra

m
ar

ar
e

cl
os

er

P
ar

en
ts

pr
ef

er
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
to

fo
ld

gr
an

ite
bu

ild
in

gs
as

op
po

se
d

to
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

s,
as

th
er

e
is

lit
tle

sp
ac

e
in

th
e

ce
nt

re
fo

r
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
P

ar
en

ts
w

ou
ld

no
tl

ik
e

to
tr

av
el

fa
r

w
ith

yo
un

g
ch

ild
re

n.

A
s

it
is

th
e

ca
se

fo
r

al
l

sc
ho

ol
s,

th
e

va
lu

e
of

F
er

ry
hi

ll
P

rim
ar

y
S

ch
oo

la
s

pa
rt

of
th

e
es

ta
te

ca
n

si
m

pl
y

no
t

be
as

se
ss

ed
by

lo
ok

in
g

at
m

at
er

ia
l

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s
lik

e
su

ita
bi

lit
y,

co
nd

iti
on

,
re

pa
ir

co
st

s
an

d
en

er
gy

ra
tin

g
al

on
e.

T
he

ed
uc

at
io

na
l

su
cc

es
s

in
ou

r
ch

ild
re

n
is

m
uc

h
m

or
e

de
pe

nd
en

to
n

te
ac

hi
ng

qu
al

ity
an

d
ge

ne
ra

la
tm

os
ph

er
e

of
th

e
sc

ho
ol

ra
th

er
th

an
op

tim
al

sp
ac

ia
ll

ay
ou

t,
sh

in
y

ne
w

fu
rn

itu
re

,
et

c.
A

nd
th

is
is

of
co

ur
se

di
ffi

cu
lt

to
pi

n
do

w
n

in
fig

ur
es

.

S
ch

oo
ls

lik
e

D
an

es
to

ne
or

F
or

eh
ill

se
em

to
be

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

oc
cu

pi
ed

un
de

r
ca

pa
ci

ty
w

ith
ou

t
ch

an
ge

s
in

th
e

sc
ho

ol
ro

ll
in

co
m

in
g

ye
ar

s.
U

nl
es

s
in

ta
ke

ar
ea

bo
un

da
rie

s
ca

n
be

re
dr

aw
n,

w
ou

ld
it

be
po

ss
ib

le
in

so
m

e

ca
se

s
to

us
e

pa
rt

of
th

e
bu

ild
in

gs
fo

r
ot

he
r,

no
n-

sc
ho

ol
pu

rp
os

e,
su

ch
as

ci
ty

co
un

ci
l

us
e?

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 89



H
ar

la
w

E
m

ai
l

S
to

p
ch

ild
re

n
fr

om
La

irh
ill

oc
k

P
rim

ar
y

fr
om

at
te

nd
in

g
C

ul
ts

A
ca

de
m

y.
T

he
y

ar
e

cl
os

er
to

ot
he

r
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

it
w

ou
ld

ea
se

th
e

pr
es

su
re

on
nu

m
be

rs
he

re
at

C
ul

ts
.

It
w

ou
ld

m
ak

e
se

ns
e

to
'g

iv
e'

m
or

e
K

ai
m

hi
ll

pu
pi

ls
to

B
ro

om
hi

ll.
S

to
p

th
e

du
al

zo
ni

ng
to

A
iry

ha
ll

an
d

B
ro

om
hi

ll.
S

en
d

K
ai

m
hi

ll
pu

pi
ls

up
to

H
az

le
he

ad
A

ca
de

m
y.

S
to

p
th

e
A

sh
le

y
R

oa
d

pu
pi

ls
w

al
ki

ng
pa

st
H

ar
la

w
A

ca
de

m
y

an
d

m
ak

e
th

em
at

te
nd

it
in

st
ea

d.

H
ar

la
w

E
m

ai
l

In
ve

st
in

th
e

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

of
B

ro
om

hi
ll

an
d

th
e

en
er

gy
ra

tin
g

w
ou

ld
im

pr
ov

e.
A

n
ev

al
ua

tio
n

of
a

sc
ho

ol
sh

ou
ld

lo
ok

at
no

t
ju

st
in

pu
ts

bu
to

ut
pu

ts
.

A
s

pa
re

nt
s

w
e

ha
ve

be
en

su
pp

or
tiv

e
of

th
e

S
ch

oo
la

nd
in

th
e

la
st

co
up

le
of

ye
ar

s
ha

ve
so

ug
ht

gr
an

tm
on

ie
s

an
d

ra
is

ed
fu

nd
s

to
im

pr
ov

e
th

e
ou

td
oo

r
le

ar
ni

ng
.

W
hi

ls
t

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
in

g
th

e
cl

os
e

pr
ox

im
ity

of
H

ar
la

w
an

d
th

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

,u
nl

es
s

th
e

C
ou

nc
il

se
ek

to
fin

d
a

sp
ac

e
an

d
bu

ild
a

re
pl

ac
em

en
tf

or
H

ar
la

w
w

ith
in

th
e

A
S

G
lo

ca
tio

n,
th

e
sl

ig
ht

an
om

al
y

of
H

ar
la

w
be

in
g

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

tf
or

A
sh

le
y

(a
nd

th
er

ef
or

e
G

ra
m

m
ar

)
is

no
ta

re
al

is
su

e
th

at
re

qu
ire

s
ac

tio
n.

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fS
up

po
rt

fo
r

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fS
up

po
rt

fo
r

H
ol

y
F

am
ily

K
in

gs
w

el
ls

E
m

ai
l

K
in

gs
w

el
ls

P
rim

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
ca

nn
ot

be
ex

te
nd

ed
an

y
fu

rt
he

r.
K

in
gs

w
el

ls
is

al
re

ad
y

a
ve

ry
la

rg
e

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
an

d
ou

r
co

m
m

un
ity

w
ou

ld
st

ro
ng

ly
op

po
se

an
y

ac
tio

n
by

A
C

C
w

hi
ch

w
ill

ad
ve

rs
el

y
co

m
pr

om
is

e
th

e
qu

al
ity

of
ed

uc
at

io
n

at
th

e
sc

ho
ol

.K
C

C
re

qu
es

ts
th

at
ho

us
e

bu
ild

in
g

at
W

es
tH

ux
te

rs
to

ne
co

m
m

en
ce

s
in

20
16

an
d

is
ph

as
ed

so
K

in
gs

w
el

ls
P

rim
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

do
es

no
tg

o
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

A
C

C
E

du
ca

tio
n

D
ep

ar
tm

en
tm

us
tb

e
m

ad
e

aw
ar

e
of

th
e

ac
cu

ra
te

nu
m

be
rs

of
pr

op
os

ed
ho

us
in

g
be

fo
re

pl
an

ni
ng

pe
rm

is
si

on
is

gr
an

te
d.

K
in

gs
w

el
ls

P
rim

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
re

zo
ne

d
to

C
ou

nt
es

sw
el

ls
S

ec
on

da
ry

S
ch

oo
l.

K
itt

yb
re

w
st

er
Le

tte
r

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 90



M
id

dl
et

on
P

ar
k

E
m

ai
l

T
he

cu
rr

en
t

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

t
M

id
dl

et
on

P
ar

k
is

fr
ie

nd
ly

an
d

hi
gh

ac
hi

ev
in

g.
T

he
po

ss
ib

le
ch

an
ge

s
di

sc
us

se
d

ha
ve

th
e

po
te

nt
ia

lt
o

be
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
de

tr
im

en
ta

lt
o

th
is

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

nd
to

th
e

ed
uc

at
io

n
of

m
y

da
ug

ht
er

.

T
he

im
m

in
en

td
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
t

G
ra

nd
ho

m
e

w
ou

ld
pu

sh
th

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

th
e

lo
ca

ls
ch

oo
ls

in
th

e
ne

ar
fu

tu
re

an
d

I
w

ou
ld

ur
ge

th
is

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tt

o
be

ta
ke

n
in

to
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

Iw
ou

ld
th

er
ef

or
e

lik
e

to
re

gi
st

er
m

y
vi

ew
th

at
th

e
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

of
re

zo
ni

ng
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s
to

fr
ag

m
en

tt
he

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ou

ld
be

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

de
tr

im
en

ta
lt

o
th

e
ed

uc
at

io
n

of
m

y
ch

ild
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
if

fo
llo

w
ed

by
a

fu
rt

he
r

ch
an

ge
as

pa
rt

of
th

e
G

ra
nd

ho
m

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t

M
id

dl
et

on
P

ar
k

E
m

ai
l

T
he

cu
rr

en
t

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

t
M

id
dl

et
on

P
ar

k
is

fr
ie

nd
ly

an
d

hi
gh

ac
hi

ev
in

g.
T

he
po

ss
ib

le
ch

an
ge

s
di

sc
us

se
d

ha
ve

th
e

po
te

nt
ia

lt
o

be
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
de

tr
im

en
ta

lt
o

th
is

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

nd
to

th
e

ed
uc

at
io

n
of

m
y

ch
ild

.

T
he

im
m

in
en

td
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
t

G
ra

nd
ho

m
e

w
ou

ld
pu

sh
th

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

th
e

lo
ca

ls
ch

oo
ls

in
th

e
ne

ar
fu

tu
re

an
d

I
w

ou
ld

ur
ge

th
is

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tt

o
be

ta
ke

n
in

to
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

Iw
ou

ld
th

er
ef

or
e

lik
e

to
re

gi
st

er
m

y
vi

ew
th

at
th

e
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

of
re

zo
ni

ng
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s
to

fr
ag

m
en

tt
he

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ou

ld
be

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

de
tr

im
en

ta
lt

o
th

e
ed

uc
at

io
n

of
m

y
ch

ild
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
if

fo
llo

w
ed

by
a

fu
rt

he
r

ch
an

ge
as

pa
rt

of
th

e
G

ra
nd

ho
m

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t

M
id

dl
et

on
P

ar
k

Le
tte

r
fr

om
M

id
dl

et
on

P
ar

k
P

ar
en

tC
ou

nc
il

W
e

st
ro

ng
ly

re
si

st
an

y
at

te
m

pt
to

re
zo

ne
th

e
sc

ho
ol

an
d

fr
ag

m
en

tt
he

ch
ild

re
n

to
th

e
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g
3

sc
ho

ol
s

(D
an

es
to

ne
,

G
la

sh
ie

bu
rn

an
d

F
or

eh
ill

).
W

e
fe

el
th

at
to

se
pa

ra
te

th
em

fr
om

th
ei

r
fr

ie
nd

s
an

d
th

e

W
e

w
ou

ld
be

am
en

ab
le

to
2

or
al

l3
of

th
e

Je
sm

on
d

D
riv

e
sc

ho
ol

s
am

al
ga

m
at

in
g

in
to

a
ne

w
bu

ild
.

W
e

w
ou

ld
al

so
lik

e
to

ur
ge

th
e

de
ci

si
on

m
ak

er
s

to
co

ns
id

er
th

e
40

0
ho

us
es

so
on

to
be

bu
ilt

as
th

e
fir

st
sm

al
lp

ha
se

of
th

e
G

ra
nd

ho
m

e
P

ro
je

ct
an

d
th

e
fa

ct
th

at
th

es
e

w
ill

pr
ob

ab
ly

be
en

ou
gh

to
ha

ve
th

e
ex

is
tin

g
sc

ho
ol

s
be

yo
nd

ca
pa

ci
ty

st
af

ft
he

y
ar

e
fa

m
ili

ar
w

ith
w

ou
ld

be
de

ep
ly

un
se

ttl
in

g
du

rin
g

a
ke

y
pa

rt
of

th
ei

r
ed

uc
at

io
na

lj
ou

rn
ey

.

M
id

dl
et

on
P

ar
k

E
m

ai
l

W
e

w
ou

ld
st

ro
ng

ly
re

si
st

an
y

at
te

m
pt

to
re

zo
ne

th
e

sc
ho

ol
an

d
fr

ag
m

en
tt

he
ch

ild
re

n
to

th
e

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g

3
sc

ho
ol

s.
W

e
fe

el
th

at
to

se
pa

ra
te

th
em

fr
om

th
ei

r
fr

ie
nd

s
an

d
th

e
st

af
f

th
ey

ar
e

fa
m

ili
ar

w
ith

w
ou

ld

W
e

w
ou

ld
be

am
en

ab
le

to
2

or
al

l3
of

th
e

Je
sm

on
d

D
riv

e
sc

ho
ol

s
am

al
ga

m
at

in
g

in
to

a
ne

w
bu

ild
.W

e
w

ou
ld

al
so

lik
e

to
ur

ge
th

e
de

ci
si

on
m

ak
er

s
to

co
ns

id
er

th
e

40
0

ho
us

es
so

on
to

be
bu

ilt
as

th
e

fir
st

sm
al

lp
ha

se
of

th
e

G
ra

nd
ho

m
e

P
ro

je
ct

an
d

th
e

fa
ct

th
at

th
es

e
w

ill
pr

ob
ab

ly
be

en
ou

gh
to

ha
ve

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
s

be
yo

nd
ca

pa
ci

ty
.F

in
al

ly
,

w
e

ar
e

de
ep

ly
sc

ep
tic

al
ab

ou
tt

he
va

lid
ity

of
th

e
fig

ur
es

th
at

w
er

e
pr

es
en

te
d

on
th

e
fu

ll
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

th
e

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 91



be
de

ep
ly

un
se

ttl
in

g
du

rin
g

a
ke

y
pa

rt
of

th
ei

r
ed

uc
at

io
na

l
jo

ur
ne

y.

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

ho
w

re
al

is
tic

th
es

e
fig

ur
es

w
ou

ld
be

in
pr

ac
tic

e.

M
id

dl
et

on
P

ar
k

E
m

ai
l

W
hi

le
Iu

nd
er

st
an

d
th

e
ne

ed
to

co
ns

id
er

ch
an

ge
,t

he
cu

rr
en

t
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
t

M
id

dl
et

on
P

ar
k

is
fr

ie
nd

ly
an

d
hi

gh
ac

hi
ev

in
g.

T
he

po
ss

ib
le

ch
an

ge
s

di
sc

us
se

d
ha

ve
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
lt

o
be

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

de
tr

im
en

ta
lt

o
th

is

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

nd
to

th
e

ed
uc

at
io

n
of

m
y

ch
ild

re
n.

T
he

im
m

in
en

t
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
t

G
ra

nd
ho

m
e

w
ou

ld
pu

sh
th

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

th
e

lo
ca

ls
ch

oo
ls

in
th

e
ne

ar
fu

tu
re

an
d

I
w

ou
ld

ur
ge

th
is

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tt

o
be

ta
ke

n
in

to

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
I

w
ou

ld
th

er
ef

or
e

lik
e

to
re

gi
st

er
m

y
vi

ew
th

at
th

e
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

of
re

zo
ni

ng
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s
to

fr
ag

m
en

tt
he

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ou

ld
be

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

de
tr

im
en

ta
lt

o
th

e
ed

uc
at

io
n

of
m

y

ch
ild

re
n

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

if
fo

llo
w

ed
by

a
fu

rt
he

r
ch

an
ge

as
pa

rt
of

th
e

G
ra

nd
ho

m
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

M
id

dl
et

on
P

ar
k

E
m

ai
l

T
he

im
m

in
en

td
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
t

G
ra

nd
ho

m
e

w
ou

ld
pu

sh
th

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

th
e

lo
ca

ls
ch

oo
ls

in
th

e
ne

ar
fu

tu
re

an
d

I
w

ou
ld

ur
ge

th
is

de
ve

lo
pm

en
tt

o
be

ta
ke

n
in

to
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

Iw
ou

ld
th

er
ef

or
e

lik
e

to
re

gi
st

er
m

y
vi

ew
th

at
th

e
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

of
re

zo
ni

ng
th

e
sc

ho
ol

s
to

fr
ag

m
en

tt
he

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
s

w
ou

ld
be

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

de
tr

im
en

ta
lt

o
th

e
ed

uc
at

io
n

of
m

y
ch

ild
re

n
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
if

fo
llo

w
ed

by
a

fu
rt

he
r

ch
an

ge
as

pa
rt

of
th

e
G

ra
nd

ho
m

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
J:

\S
ch

o
ol

_E
st

at
e

s\
2

01
2

P
ri

m
ar

y
S

ch
oo

lR
e

vi
ew

\E
m

a
il

o
r

C
o

m
m

e
nt

C
a

rd
fe

ed
b

ac
k\

E
ng

ag
em

en
tF

e
e

db
ac

k
a

no
ny

m
is

ed
an

d
la

rg
er

te
xt

.x
ls

Page 92



M
ile

E
nd

E
m

ai
l

O
ur

ch
ild

re
n

ha
ve

lo
st

th
e

us
e

of
an

im
po

rt
an

tl
ib

ra
ry

fa
ci

lit
y

to
m

ak
e

ro
om

fo
r

an
ot

he
r

cl
as

sr
oo

m
w

hi
ch

w
e

ar
e

al
lv

er
y

co
nc

er
ne

d
ab

ou
t.

A
ls

o
w

e
fe

el
it

is
im

po
rt

an
tt

ha
ti

f
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
as

ar
e

ch
an

ge
d

th
at

yo
un

ge
r

W
e

ar
e

aw
ar

e
th

at
th

er
e

ar
e

ch
ild

re
n

at
te

nd
in

g
th

is
sc

ho
ol

fr
om

ou
tw

ith
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

an
d

al
so

th
er

e
ar

e
a

su
rg

e
of

pa
re

nt
s

w
is

hi
ng

to
ge

tt
he

ir
ch

ild
re

n
in

to
th

is
sc

ho
ol

an
d

ap
pl

yi
ng

fo
r

a
nu

rs
er

y
pl

ac
e

to
ad

d
w

ei
gh

tt
o

th
ei

r
ca

se
.A

no
co

st
so

lu
tio

n
to

th
is

pr
ob

le
m

w
ou

ld
be

to
re

fu
se

en
tr

y
to

al
lc

hi
ld

re
n

ou
ts

id
e

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

t.
P

la
nn

in
g

pe
rm

is
si

on
to

ne
w

ho
us

in
g

et
c

is
gi

ve
n

on
ly

af
te

r
ca

re
fu

lc
on

si
de

ra
tio

n
to

th
e

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
w

ith
in

th
e

lo
ca

la
re

a.
S

om
e

pa
re

nt
s

si
bl

in
gs

of
ch

ild
re

n
al

re
ad

y
at

te
nd

in
g

a
sc

ho
ol

w
hi

ch
w

as
w

ith
in

th
ei

r
or

ig
in

al
ca

tc
hm

en
tz

on
e

ha
ve

th
e

rig
ht

to
at

te
nd

th
e

sa
m

e
sc

ho
ol

as
th

ei
r

ol
de

r
si

st
er

or
br

ot
he

r.
S

en
di

ng
si

bl
in

gs
to

di
ffe

re
nt

sc
ho

ol
s

go
to

th
e

ex
tr

em
e

of
ta

ki
ng

on
an

ad
di

tio
na

ls
ho

rt
te

rm
1

x
be

dr
oo

m
le

t
w

ith
in

th
e

ar
ea

to
gu

ar
an

te
e

th
ei

r
ch

ild
�s

pl
ac

e.
If

th
ey

m
ov

e
aw

ay
fr

om
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

th
en

th
ei

r
ch

ild
/c

hi
ld

re
n

sh
ou

ld
al

so
ha

ve
to

be
re

lo
ca

te
d.

C
or

nh
ill

S
ch

oo
li

s
op

er
at

in
g

at
un

de
r

ca
pa

ci
ty

�
ch

an
gi

ng
th

e
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

eg
,t

he
ho

sp
ita

ls
id

e
of

W
es

tb
ur

n
R

oa
d

to
re

lo
ca

te
to

C
or

nh
ill

S
ch

oo
la

s
pa

rt
of

th
ei

r
ca

tc
hm

en
tz

on
e

w
ou

ld
he

lp
al

le
vi

at
e

th
e

pr
es

su
re

at
M

ile
E

nd
.

du
e

to
an

im
po

se
d

ch
an

ge
of

a
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
a

w
ou

ld
be

un
fa

ir
an

d
to

ta
lly

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

.

M
ile

E
nd

E
m

ai
l

P
rio

rit
y

m
us

tb
e

gi
ve

n
to

ch
ild

re
n

w
ith

si
bl

in
gs

at
a

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
sc

ho
ol

if
th

at
ad

dr
es

s
pr

ev
io

us
ly

be
lo

ng
ed

w
ith

in
th

e
or

ig
in

al
ca

tc
hm

en
tz

on
e.

It
w

ou
ld

be
un

fa
ir

an
d

un
w

or
ka

bl
e

if
si

bl
in

gs
w

er
e

fo
rc

ed
to

at
te

nd

W
e

ar
e

co
nc

er
ne

d
at

th
e

ev
er

in
cr

ea
si

ng
cl

as
s

in
ta

ke
s

an
d

nu
m

be
r

of
ch

ild
re

n
be

in
g

en
ro

lle
d.

A
lib

ra
ry

ha
s

be
en

lo
st

to
m

ak
e

ro
om

fo
r

an
ad

di
tio

na
lc

la
ss

.A
ls

o
th

e
ne

w
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
tO

ak
ba

nk
w

ill
al

so
ad

d
pr

es
su

re
.W

e
pr

op
os

e
th

at
th

e
co

un
ci

ll
oo

k
in

to
th

e
be

ne
fit

s
of

ke
ep

in
g

al
lc

hi
ld

re
n

w
ith

in
th

ei
r

ca
tc

hm
en

tz
on

e
(a

s
ha

pp
en

s
in

th
e

ce
nt

ra
lb

el
t)

w
ith

re
gu

la
r

an
nu

al
ch

ec
ks

of
pr

oo
fo

ff
ul

lt
er

m
pe

rm
an

en
ta

dd
re

ss
es

w
hi

ch
ar

e
on

ly
ev

er
ch

ec
ke

d
w

he
n

tr
yi

ng
to

en
ro

la
ch

ild
in

to
sc

ho
ol

.T
hi

s
w

ill
cl

os
e

th
es

e
�lo

op
ho

le
s�

th
at

pa
re

nt
s

m
an

ip
ul

at
e

to
ga

in
a

pl
ac

e
at

th
ei

r
pr

ef
er

re
d

sc
ho

ol
.T

he
di

ffe
re

nt
sc

ho
ol

s.
S

om
e

pa
re

nt
s

tr
y

to
m

an
ip

ul
at

e
th

e
sy

st
em

by
en

ro
lli

ng
th

ei
r
ch

ild
re

n
in

th
e

nu
rs

er
y,

ta
ke

on
sh

or
tt

er
m

le
ts

w
ith

in
th

e
ar

ea
.P

ar
en

ts
ha

ve
pu

td
ow

n
fa

m
ily

or
fr
ie

nd
s

na
m

es
as

th
ei

r
ch

ild
�s

m
ai

n

J:
\S

ch
o
ol

_E
st

at
e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a
il

o
r
C

o
m

m
e
nt

C
a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e
e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 93



ca
re

r
w

ho
m

ha
ve

ho
us

es
in

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
ga

in
to

tr
y

an
d

gu
ar

an
te

e
a

pl
ac

e.
S

om
e

pa
re

nt
s

al
so

m
ov

e
aw

ay
fr

om
ca

tc
hm

en
tb

ut
de

ci
de

to
ke

ep
th

ei
r

ch
ild

re
n�

s
pl

ac
e

at
th

is
sc

ho
ol

.T
he

se
ar

e
ex

am
pl

es

w
hy

th
e

en
ro

lm
en

t
nu

m
be

rs
re

m
ai

n
ve

ry
hi

gh
an

d
w

e
no

w
ha

ve
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
lf

or
th

is
sc

ho
ol

to
be

co
m

e
ov

er
cr

ow
de

d
w

hi
ch

w
ill

af
fe

ct
al

lo
fo

ur
ch

ild
re

n�
s

ed
uc

at
io

n!

M
ile

E
nd

E
m

ai
l

Is
tr

on
gl

y
fe

el
th

at
ch

ild
re

n
sh

ou
ld

at
te

nd
th

e
sc

ho
ol

th
at

is
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
ly

cl
os

es
tt

o
th

em
an

d
th

at
ch

ild
re

n
go

in
g

to
a

sc
ho

ol
ou

tw
ith

th
ei

r
zo

ne
sh

ou
ld

be
an

ex
ce

pt
io

n.
Iw

ou
ld

su
gg

es
tt

ha
ti

ti
s

be
st

w
he

n
m

ov
in

g

fr
om

pr
im

ar
y

to
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
th

e
ch

ild
sh

ou
ld

go
to

th
ei

r
cl

os
es

t
sc

ho
ol

ev
en

if
th

is
m

ea
ns

sp
lit

in
g

th
e

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
.

G
oi

ng
to

sc
ho

ol
is

no
tj

us
ta

bo
ut

fo
rm

al
ed

uc
at

io
n

bu
ta

bo
ut

le
ar

ni
ng

to
be

pa
rt

of
so

ci
et

y.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 94



E
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g
an

d
Le

ar
ni

ng
ab

ou
t

co
m

m
un

ity
is

a
vi

ta
l

pa
rt

of
th

is
.O

ne
th

at
is

en
ha

nc
ed

by
ch

ild
re

n
at

te
nd

in
g

th
ei

r
cl

os
es

ts
ch

oo
l,

w
hi

ch
ev

er
th

at
m

ay
be

.I
w

ou
ld

be
ke

en
fo

r
du

al
zo

ni
ng

to
fin

is
h

as
Ic

an
no

t

se
e

ho
w

an
ov

er
-

su
bs

cr
ib

ed
sc

ho
ol

ca
n

"s
el

ec
t"

on
e

pu
pi

lf
ro

m
an

ot
he

r.

F
in

al
ly

th
e

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
th

at
ar

e
av

ai
la

bl
e

at
m

ile
-e

nd
sc

ho
ol

ar
e

fa
nt

as
tic

an
d

Ia
m

su
re

re
al

ly
en

ha
nc

e
th

e
le

ar
ni

ng
ex

pe
rie

nc
e.

B
rin

gi
ng

al
lA

be
rd

ee
n

sc
ho

ol
s

up
to

a
si

m
ila

r
st

an
da

rd
w

ou
ld

be
id

ea
l.

M
ile

E
nd

E
m

ai
l

Ia
m

st
ro

ng
ly

ag
ai

ns
ta

ny
ch

an
ge

s
to

th
e

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

S
ch

oo
lc

at
ch

m
en

t
ar

ea
.T

he
cu

rr
en

ts
ys

te
m

,i
n

ef
fe

ct
is

w
or

ki
ng

,h
ow

ev
er

th
e

sc
ho

ol
ha

s
so

m
an

y
ou

to
fz

on
e

ch
ild

re
n

an
d

re
qu

es
ts

w
hi

ch
is

pu
tti

ng
th

e
sc

ho
ol

at
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

A
be

rd
ee

n
G

ra
m

m
ar

S
ch

oo
l

sh
ou

ld
al

so
se

rio
us

ly
co

ns
id

er
us

e
of

th
e

re
nt

ed
F

re
nc

h/
T

ot
al

sc
ho

ol
bu

ild
in

gs
if

th
ey

ne
ed

m
or

e
ca

pa
ci

ty
.W

ith
re

ga
rd

to
M

ile
E

nd
pr

im
ar

y,
th

e
fa

ct
th

at
th

is
N

E
W

bu
ild

sc
ho

ol
is

at
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
,

is
a

di
sg

us
tin

g
ex

am
pl

e
of

po
or

vi
si

on
an

d
la

ck
of

pl
an

ni
ng

by
A

be
rd

ee
n

ci
ty

co
un

ci
l.

T
he

ne
w

sc
ho

ol
w

as
bu

ilt
fo

r
a

sm
al

le
r

sc
ho

ol
ro

ll
th

at
th

e
pr

ev
io

us
M

ile
E

nd
pr

im
ar

y.
P

ar
en

ts
w

er
e

fo
bb

ed
of

f
w

ith
st

at
is

tic
s

sh
ow

in
g

fa
lli

ng
sc

ho
ol

ro
le

s.
Ip

er
so

na
lly

fe
el

th
at

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

t
ar

ea
fo

r
M

ile
E

nd
sh

ou
ld

no
te

nc
om

pa
ss

A
R

IH
os

pi
ta

l,
th

is
is

of
te

n
a

ve
ry

m
ob

ile
po

pu
la

tio
n,

w
ith

st
af

fa
nd

fa
m

ili
es

in
iti

al
ly

st
ay

in
g

in
ho

sp
ita

la
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

/o
r

ch
ea

p

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 95



re
nt

al
fla

ts
-

ch
ild

re
n

be
in

g
en

ro
lle

d
in

to
M

ile
E

nd
an

d
th

en
af

te
r

6
m

on
th

s
th

ey
m

ov
e

ou
to

fc
at

ch
m

en
ta

re
a

to
ch

ea
pe

r
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n
bu

tt
he

ir
ch

ild
re

n
re

m
ai

n
at

M
ile

en
d.

O
fte

n
pr

ev
en

tin
g

ch
ild

re
n

w
ho

do
liv

e
in

th
e

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
dm

is
si

on
to

M
ile

E
nd

.

M
ile

E
nd

E
m

ai
l

Ia
m

ve
ry

co
nc

er
ne

d
ab

ou
t

fa
lli

ng
ed

uc
at

io
na

l
st

an
da

rd
s

an
d

th
e

da
m

ag
e

th
at

ch
an

ge
s

to
sc

ho
ol

s/
ca

tc
hm

en
ta

re
as

ca
n

m
ak

e.
M

ile
E

nd
ch

ild
re

n
ha

ve
ha

d
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
di

sr
up

tio
n

in
re

ce
nt

ye
ar

s
w

ith
th

e
m

ov
e

to
th

e
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

.

T
he

pr
ob

le
m

of
ov

er
-c

ap
ac

ity
m

ay
be

ea
se

d
by

th
e

re
m

ov
al

of
th

e
ho

sp
ita

ls
ite

be
ca

us
e

of
th

e
di

ffi
cu

lty
in

pr
ed

ic
tin

g
nu

m
be

rs
of

sh
or

tt
er

m
ch

ild
re

n
ar

riv
in

g
w

ith
m

ed
ic

al
st

af
f.

T
he

C
ou

nc
il

sh
ou

ld
lo

ok
at

th
e

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
of

ex
pa

nd
in

g
th

e
sc

ho
ol

to
m

ee
tt

he
de

m
an

d
su

ch
as

us
in

g
th

e
T

ot
al

F
re

nc
h

S
ch

oo
lp

re
m

is
es

w
he

re
th

e
le

as
e

is
to

ex
pi

re
in

th
e

ne
ar

fu
tu

re
.

S
ch

oo
lR

ol
lF

or
ec

as
ts

ne
ed

to
be

us
ed

w
ith

ca
ut

io
n

-
th

ey
ar

e
an

in
di

ca
tio

n
bu

ts
ho

ul
d

no
tb

e
re

lie
d

on

al
on

e
an

d
ne

ed
to

be
co

m
pa

re
d

ov
er

a
nu

m
be

r
of

ye
ar

s
be

fo
re

ch
an

ge
s

ar
e

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

M
ile

E
nd

E
m

ai
l

T
he

ov
er

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n

fo
r

th
is

ar
ea

co
m

es
m

ai
nl

y
fr

om
S

ke
ne

S
qu

ar
e

sc
ho

ol
,b

ut
th

at
in

co
rp

or
at

es
pr

oj
ec

tio
n

fo
r

a
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
W

e
su

gg
es

tt
he

A
S

G
ar

ea
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

ar
e

re
vi

si
te

d
in

th
is

lig
ht

,a
nd

th
at

th
is

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ta

s
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
sh

ou
ld

be
co

nt
in

ge
nt

on
sc

ho
ol

pr
ov

is
io

n
in

th
e

ar
ea

.W
e

su
gg

es
tt

ha
tp

rio
rit

y
fo

r
at

te
nd

an
ce

be
gi

ve
n

to
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

w
ho

ar
e

ac
tu

al
ly

liv
in

g
in

zo
ne

.O
ur

gr
ou

p
di

sc
us

se
d

th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

ite

O
P

94
(p

re
vi

ou
sl

y
a

ho
sp

ita
l).

W
e

su
gg

es
t

th
is

si
te

co
ul

d
be

us
ed

fo
r

a
ne

w
bu

ild
sc

ho
ol

:t
o

re
pl

ac
e

S
ke

ne
S

qu
ar

e;
or

ne
w

bu
ild

nu
rs

er
y

pr
ov

is
io

n,
w

hi
ch

w
ou

ld
ta

ke
pr

es
su

re
of

fp
rim

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

in
th

e
ar

ea
;

or
ne

w
bu

ild
si

xt
h

fo
rm

pr
ov

is
io

n.
O

ur
gr

ou
p

al
so

di
sc

us
se

d
th

e
si

te
of

th
e

F
re

nc
h.

W
e

su
gg

es
tc

on
si

de
ra

tio
n

be
gi

ve
n

to
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g

th
is

si
te

in
to

th
e

G
ra

m
m

ar
,w

hi
ch

w
ou

ld
di

re
ct

ly
ex

pa
nd

th
e

sc
ho

ol
ca

pa
ci

ty
.

W
e

su
gg

es
t

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
be

gi
ve

n

to
sh

ar
in

g
m

or
e

ca
pa

ci
ty

w
ith

pr
iv

at
e

sc
ho

ol
s

in
th

e
ar

ea
,a

nd
/o

r
w

ith
de

no
m

in
at

io
na

ls
ch

oo
ls

.T
he

la
tte

r
ha

ve
ab

ou
t1

50
st

ud
en

ts
un

de
r

ca
pa

ci
ty

D
en

om
in

at
io

na
lp

la
ce

s
m

ig
ht

be
of

fe
re

d
on

a
vo

lu
nt

ee
r

ba
si

s
in

cl
ud

in
g

no
n-

C
at

ho
lic

.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 96



M
ill

tim
be

r
E

m
ai

l
C

ov
er

in
g

le
tte

r
re

ce
iv

ed
fr

om
C

A
LA

H
om

es
an

d
a

re
po

rt
pr

ep
ar

ed
fo

r
C

A
LA

on
th

e
E

du
ca

tio
n

Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

fo
r

M
ill

tim
be

r
P

S
.

C
op

y
av

ai
la

bl
e

fo
r

E
le

ct
ed

M
em

be
rs

.

M
ill

tim
be

r
E

m
ai

l
40

0
ho

m
es

re
pr

es
en

t7
3%

of
th

e
pl

an
ne

d
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
nd

as
su

m
in

g
th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

(O
ld

fo
ld

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t)

pu
pi

ls
is

pr
op

or
tio

ne
d

on
a

si
m

ila
r

ra
tio

,t
he

n
th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

ad
di

tio
na

lp
up

ils
w

ou
ld

be
18

2.
T

hi
s

ca
nn

ot
be

ac
co

m
m

od
at

ed
w

ith
in

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
co

m
pl

ex
.

A
s

su
ch

Iw
is

h
to

ra
is

e
ob

je
ct

io
n

to
th

e
pr

op
os

ed
ph

as
in

g
an

d
re

qu
es

tA
be

rd
ee

n
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il
lo

ok
at

ph
as

in
g

th
e

ne
w

sc
ho

ol
su

ch
th

at
it

is
re

ad
y

to
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e

ne
w

pu
pi

ls

to
m

at
ch

th
e

st
ar

to
ft

he
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

tn
ot

th
re

e
qu

ar
te

rs
of

th
e

w
ay

th
ro

ug
h

it.
T

he
pr

op
os

ed
lo

ca
tio

n
fo

r
th

e
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

m
ak

es
th

is
en

tir
el

y
fe

as
ib

le
w

ith
sa

fe
ac

ce
ss

fo
r

pu
pi

ls
vi

a
B

in
gh

ill
R

oa
d.

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 97



S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

It
is

vi
ta

lt
ha

tp
ar

en
ts

ha
ve

th
e

op
tio

n
to

se
nd

th
ei

r
ch

ild
re

n
to

a
fa

ith
sc

ho
ol

.
E

m
ai

lo
fs

up
po

rt
fo

r
S

t
Jo

se
ph

's
pr

ov
is

io
n

co
nt

in
ui

ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l(

2n
d

em
ai

l)
E

m
ai

lo
fs

up
po

rt
fo

r
S

t
Jo

se
ph

's
pr

ov
is

io
n

co
nt

in
ui

ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

E
m

ai
lo

fs
up

po
rt

fo
r

S
t

Jo
se

ph
's

pr
ov

is
io

n
co

nt
in

ui
ng

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 98



S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

T
he

te
n

ne
w

3R
sc

ho
ol

s
w

ill
ha

ve
co

st
,a

t
th

e
en

d
of

20
39

,5
00

m
ill

io
n

po
un

ds
.T

ha
t

is
50

m
ill

io
n

po
un

ds
pe

r
sc

ho
ol

.I
ha

ve
be

en
in

fo
rm

ed
th

at
th

is
is

co
ns

id
er

ed
a

30
ye

ar
m

or
tg

ag
e

pa
ym

en
t,

an
d

at
th

e
en

d
of

th
e

30
ye

ar
s,

yo
u

ex
pe

ct
to

ha
ve

th
e

sc
ho

ol
s

ha
nd

ed
ov

er
to

yo
u

in
pr

im
e

co
nd

iti
on

,s
o

yo
u

ha
ve

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
th

at
th

ey
w

ill
la

st
60

ye
ar

s.
S

o,
50

m
ill

io
n

po
un

ds
fo

r
a

sc
ho

ol
to

la
st

60
ye

ar
s.

If
yo

u
va

lu
ed

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

sc
ho

ol
as

m
uc

h
as

yo
u

va
lu

e
th

es
e

ot
he

rs
,

yo
u

w
ou

ld
be

pa
yi

ng
,o

n
av

er
ag

e,
£8

00
00

0
pe

r
ye

ar
fo

r
60

ye
ar

s
be

fo
re

yo
u

go
t

ne
ar

to
th

e
co

st
of

£5
0

m
ill

io
n.

Is
th

er
e

so
m

e
re

as
on

yo
u

re
se

nt
ha

vi
ng

to
pa

y
fo

r
th

e
ed

uc
at

io
n

of
th

e
pu

pi
ls

at
S

t
Jo

se
ph

's
?

S
tJ

os
ep

h'
s

E
m

ai
l

T
he

is
su

e
of

S
tJ

os
ep

h�
s

be
in

g
le

as
ed

fr
om

th
e

S
ac

re
d

H
ea

rt
so

ci
et

y
is

m
en

tio
ne

d
as

a
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

co
st

.
M

an
y

of
A

be
rd

ee
n�

s
sc

ho
ol

s
(3

R
s

pr
oj

ec
tf

or
ex

am
pl

e)
an

d
in

de
ed

A
C

C
�s

he
ad

qu
ar

te
rs

ar
e

oc
cu

pi
ed

on
a

le
as

ed
ba

si
s.

T
he

le
as

in
g

fe
es

fo
r

ot
he

r
sc

ho
ol

s
ar

e
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

an
d

Is
us

pe
ct

th
at

on
a

lik
e-

fo
r-

lik
e

ba
si

s
(a

cc
ou

nt
in

g
fo

r
fin

an
ci

ng
co

st
s

of
a

re
pl

ac
em

en
tb

ui
ld

in
g)

th
e

ov
er

al
lc

os
to

fS
tJ

os
ep

h�
s

w
ou

ld
co

m
pa

re
w

el
l.

Ia
m

co
nf

id
en

tt
ha

tA
C

C
ca

n
co

nt
in

ue

A
ve

ra
ge

tr
av

el
lin

g
di

st
an

ce
s

fo
r

R
C

pu
pi

ls
an

d
pa

re
nt

s
ar

e
in

cr
ea

si
ng

an
d

ar
e

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

hi
gh

er
Is

ug
ge

st
th

an
th

os
e

w
ho

el
ec

tt
o

at
te

nd
th

ei
r

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d
sc

ho
ol

.
T

he
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

in
ac

ce
ss

in
g

R
C

sc
ho

ol
in

g
in

te
rm

s
of

tr
av

el
is

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
an

d
ca

n
af

fe
ct

fa
m

ili
es

in
di

ffe
re

nt
w

ay
s.

A
lth

ou
gh

tr
an

sp
or

t
is

pr
ov

id
ed

fo
r

pu
pi

ls
ou

ts
id

e
of

th
e

2
m

ile
ra

di
us

,t
he

re
re

m
ai

ns
a

ch
al

le
ng

e
fo

r
pa

re
nt

s
an

d
pu

pi
ls

to
at

te
nd

no
n-

co
re

ac
tiv

iti
es

R
ed

uc
in

g
th

e
nu

m
be

r
of

lo
ca

tio
ns

w
he

re
R

C
ed

uc
at

io
n

is
of

fe
re

d
in

th
e

ci
ty

w
ou

ld

to
le

as
e

S
tJ

os
ep

h�
s

at
a

le
ve

lt
ha

t
re

pr
es

en
ts

go
od

va
lu

e.
in

m
y

vi
ew

re
pr

es
en

ta
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

im
pa

irm
en

t
to

ac
ce

ss
fo

r
m

an
y

pa
re

nt
s

an
d

pu
pi

ls
.

S
tJ

os
ep

hs
E

m
ai

l
T

he
ca

pa
ci

ty
of

S
t

Jo
se

ph
�s

w
e

be
lie

ve
to

be
ov

er
st

at
ed

an
d

w
ou

ld
en

co
ur

ag
e

th
e

co
un

ci
lt

o
re

vi
ew

in
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n
w

ith
th

e
he

ad
te

ac
he

r
co

un
ci

l�s
pl

ac
in

g
po

lic
y

in
re

sp
ec

t
of

C
at

ho
lic

sc
ho

ol
s

.

T
he

pr
oc

es
s

ha
s

be
en

,i
n

th
e

fir
st

in
st

an
ce

to
of

fe
r

pl
ac

es
to

pr
io

rit
y

on
e

an
d

pr
io

rit
y

tw
o

ch
ild

re
n

an
d

to
re

je
ct

al
l

ot
he

r
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

.
T

hi
s

m
ay

no
tb

e
un

iq
ue

to
S

tJ
os

ep
h�

s
bu

tt
he

cr
ite

ria
fo

r
qu

al
ify

in
g

fo
r

pr
io

rit
y

on
e

ce
rt

ai
nl

y
is

w
he

n
co

m
pa

re
d

to
no

n-
de

no
m

in
at

io
na

l
sc

ho
ol

s.
O

ve
r

40
%

of
th

e
ch

ild
re

n
at

S
t

Jo
se

ph
�s

ar
e

no
tC

at
ho

lic
an

d
by

th
e

co
un

ci
l�s

de
fin

iti
on

,a
re

no
tc

at
eg

or
is

ed
as

pr
io

rit
y

on
e.

S
tP

et
er

's
E

m
ai

l
N

o
ac

tio
n

sh
ou

ld
be

ta
ke

n
to

re
du

ce
th

e
rig

ht
s

of
C

at
ho

lic
pa

re
nt

s
to

se
nd

th
ei

r
ch

ild
re

n
to

th
e

ex
is

tin
g

R
C

sc
ho

ol
s

in
A

be
rd

ee
n.

N
or

sh
ou

ld
C

at
ho

lic
ch

ild
re

n
be

de
ni

ed
th

is
rig

ht
.T

hi
s

m
ea

ns
th

at
th

es
e

sc
ho

ol
s

m
us

tr
em

ai
n

op
en

an
d

fu
nd

ed
at

th
e

cu
rr

en
tl

ev
el

.N
on

-c
at

ho
lic

pa
re

nt
s

al
so

ha
ve

th
ei

r
re

as
on

s
fo

r
se

nd
in

g
th

ei
r

ch
ild

re
n

to
th

es
e

sc
ho

ol
s

an
d

no
tw

ith
st

an
di

ng
th

e
te

ac
hi

ng
cu

rr
ic

ul
um

at
no

n-
ca

th
ol

ic
sc

ho
ol

s,
th

e
m

or
al

te
ac

hi
ng

av
ai

la
bl

e
in

C
at

ho
lic

sc
ho

ol
s

is
cl

ea
rly

a
m

aj
or

fa
ct

or
.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 99



S
tP

et
er

s
Le

tte
r

at
ta

ch
ed

to
em

ai
l

T
he

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n

of
C

fE
m

ea
ns

it
is

de
si

ra
bl

e
fo

r
S

tP
et

er
s

to
ha

ve
ea

rly
ye

ar
pr

ov
is

io
n

1.
S

ch
oo

lR
ol

lO
ve

r
ca

pa
ci

ty
-

It�
s

a
co

nc
er

n
th

at
A

C
C

de
ci

de
d

to
pe

rm
it

th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
ch

ild
re

n
en

te
rin

g
P

1
in

20
12

/1
3

to
in

cr
ea

se
re

su
lti

ng
in

ad
di

tio
na

lc
la

ss
es

w
ith

ou
ta

de
qu

at
e

cl
as

sr
oo

m
sp

ac
e.

U
rg

en
tn

ee
d

to
re

-
al

lo
ca

te
cl

as
sr

oo
m

sp
ac

e
w

hi
ch

is
m

or
e

pr
es

si
ng

si
nc

e
th

e
ro

le
s

fo
r

ne
ig

hb
ou

rin
g

sc
ho

ol
s

ar
e

ov
er

ca
pa

ci
ty

.A
C

C
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

sh
ow

fu
rt

he
r

in
cr

ea
se

du
e

to
ex

te
ns

iv
e

ho
us

in
g

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

in
B

rid
ge

of
D

on
an

d
T

ill
yd

ro
ne

.-

2.
La

ck
of

N
ur

se
ry

an
d

P
re

-S
ch

oo
l

pr
ov

is
io

n-
S

tP
et

er
s

is
th

e
on

ly
sc

ho
ol

w
ith

ou
tn

ur
se

ry
pr

ov
is

io
n-

cr
ea

tio
n

of
a

nu
rs

er
y

w
ou

ld
al

le
vi

at
e

de
m

an
d.

3.
S

t
P

et
er

s
is

ov
er

cr
ow

de
d,

ou
ts

id
e

sp
ac

e
ha

s
fa

lle
n

in
to

co
m

e
di

sr
ep

ai
r-

w
ou

ld
w

el
co

m
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
to

ff
ac

ili
tie

s
to

ai
d

de
liv

er
y

of
C

fE
.P

os
si

bl
e

S
ol

ut
io

ns
-

(1
)

de
ve

lo
pm

en
to

fO
ld

A
be

rd
ee

n
H

ou
se

-
re

ta
in

in
g

it
as

a
sc

ho
ol

(2
)

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

of
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

po
ss

ib
le

gr
ou

nd
s

of
fo

rm
er

D
un

ba
r

H
al

l.

S
tP

et
er

s
Le

tte
r

fr
om

P
up

ils
C

on
ce

rn
s

fr
om

P
up

ils
re

ga
rd

in
g

H
ea

tin
g

an
d

S
pa

ce
an

d
th

ei
r

su
gg

es
tio

ns
fo

r
im

pr
ov

em
en

t(
se

e
le

tte
r)

.

T
ill

yd
ro

ne
E

m
ai

l
P

ro
vi

si
on

of
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

in
T

ill
yd

ro
ne

G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
C

om
m

en
ts

C
ar

ds
F

or
ec

as
tin

g
-

be
w

ar
e.

If
ne

w
sc

ho
ol

s
ar

e
al

re
ad

y
ov

er
ca

pa
ci

ty
an

d
su

gg
es

tio
ns

be
in

g
m

ad
e

to
ex

te
nd

th
em

-
ho

w
ar

e
yo

u
m

ak
in

g
su

re
th

e
fo

re
ca

st
in

g
is

co
rr

ec
t?

G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
C

om
m

en
ts

C
ar

ds
W

hy
ar

e
w

e
di

sc
us

si
ng

pr
ov

is
io

n
of

ed
uc

at
io

n
w

he
n

th
e

le
ve

lo
fn

ew
ho

us
in

g
ha

s
al

re
ad

y
be

en
se

t?
T

he
ho

us
in

g
pl

an
is

no
tv

ia
bl

e
an

d
sh

ou
ld

no
tm

ov
e

ah
ea

d
un

til
th

e
ed

uc
at

io
n

an
d

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
pl

an
is

in
pl

ac
e.

W
he

n
th

e
de

ta
ile

d
pl

an
is

in
pl

ac
e,

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
m

us
tn

ot
ha

ve
le

ew
ay

to
cu

tt
he

ir
co

m
m

itm
en

tt
o

de
liv

er
w

ha
ti

s
re

qu
ire

d.

G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
C

om
m

en
ts

C
ar

ds
W

ith
ou

tf
in

an
ci

al
co

m
m

itm
en

t/a
ss

is
ta

nc
e

fr
om

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
,C

ou
nc

il
w

ill
no

tb
e

ab
le

to
bu

ild
/e

xt
en

d
sc

ho
ol

s.

G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
C

om
m

en
ts

C
ar

ds
C

ou
nc

il
ha

ve
he

ar
d

m
an

y
ob

je
ct

io
ns

to
th

es
e

pl
an

s
an

d
"lo

ca
lp

la
n"

,b
ut

w
e

st
ill

ha
ve

th
e

sa
m

e
ob

je
ct

io
ns

-
no

on
e

se
em

s
to

ta
ke

no
tic

e.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 100



G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
E

m
ai

l
O

ne
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

fa
ct

or
in

co
ns

id
er

ed
in

as
se

ss
in

g
sc

ho
ol

ca
tc

hm
en

ta
re

as
sh

ou
ld

be
th

e
co

un
ci

l's
po

lic
y

of
gr

ee
n

tr
an

sp
or

t-
pu

pi
ls

w
ith

in
w

al
ki

ng
di

st
an

ce
of

a
sc

ho
ol

sh
ou

ld
be

pr
io

rit
ie

d.

G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
E

m
ai

l(
pd

f)
T

ra
ve

ld
is

ta
nc

es
sh

ou
ld

id
ea

lly
be

ke
pt

to
a

m
in

im
um

an
d

th
e

lo
ca

tio
n

of
sc

ho
ol

s,
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
in

re
la

tio
n

to
ne

w
ho

us
in

g,
ne

ed
s

to
be

co
ns

id
er

ed
.

A
ny

ac
tio

n,
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t,
w

hi
ch

re
du

ce
s

un
de

r-
oc

cu
pa

nc
y

sh
ou

ld
be

w
el

co
m

ed
an

d
th

er
e

sh
ou

ld
be

fle
xi

bi
lit

y
in

pl
ac

em
en

ts
/

te
m

p
re

zo
ni

ng
to

en
co

ur
ag

e
th

e
us

e
of

C
ity

ed
uc

at
io

na
la

ss
et

s.
T

he
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
ac

ro
ss

th
e

C
ity

w
ill

m
ea

n
so

m
e

ex
is

tin
g

sc
ho

ol
s

ha
ve

an
in

cr
ea

se
d

in
ta

ke
an

d
th

is
w

ill
re

du
ce

le
ve

ls
of

in
ef

fic
ie

nc
y

fo
r

th
e

C
ity

.In
re

vi
ew

in
g

ex
is

tin
g

pr
ov

is
io

n
th

e
C

ity
w

ill
,n

o
do

ub
t,

gi
ve

fu
ll

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n

to
th

e
po

te
nt

ia
lf

or
ne

w
ho

us
in

g
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
to

m
ak

e
us

e
of

ex
is

tin
g

ed
uc

at
io

na
li

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e
an

d
sh

ou
ld

co
ns

id
er

th
e

w
ay

s
in

w
hi

ch
cu

rr
en

t
sc

ho
ol

pr
ov

is
io

n
ca

n
su

pp
or

tn
ew

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.W

e
ha

ve
no

vi
ew

on
th

e
th

re
sh

ol
d

at
w

hi
ch

oc
cu

pa
nc

y
le

ve
ls

sh
ou

ld
tr

ig
ge

r
a

re
vi

ew
,b

ut
be

lie
ve

,i
n

co
ns

id
er

in
g

th
e

vi
ab

ili
ty

of
sc

ho
ol

s,
th

at
th

e
br

oa
de

st
ra

ng
e

of
op

tio
ns

sh
ou

ld
be

co
ns

id
er

ed
,i

nc
lu

di
ng

th
e

pr
os

pe
ct

of
th

es
e

sc
ho

ol
s

pl
ay

in
g

a
ro

le
in

th
e

ph
as

in
g-

in
of

ne
w

sc
ho

ol
s

in
m

or
e

ap
pr

op
ria

te
lo

ca
tio

ns
.T

he
C

ity
sh

ou
ld

co
ns

id
er

th
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
to

fj
oi

nt
ca

m
pu

se
s,

or
th

e
pr

ov
is

io
n

of
'a

llt
hr

ou
gh

'
sc

ho
ol

s
w

hi
ch

,i
n

ad
di

tio
n

to
of

fe
rin

g
a

be
tte

r
us

e
of

la
nd

,w
ill

al
so

be
la

rg
e

en
ou

gh
to

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
.

G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
E

m
ai

l
M

id
dl

et
on

P
ar

k
is

a
sm

al
l

bu
tf

rie
nd

ly
an

d
hi

gh
ac

hi
ev

in
g

sc
ho

ol
,I

w
ou

ld
be

co
nc

er
ne

d
if

Ih
ad

to
m

ov
e

m
y

ch
ild

to
a

sc
ho

ol
th

at
do

es
no

tp
er

fo
rm

be
tte

r
or

as
w

el
la

s
M

id
dl

et
on

P
ar

k.
T

hi
s

m
ay

ha
ve

a
de

tr
im

en
ta

le
ffe

ct
on

th
e

pu
pi

ls
'e

du
ca

tio
n.

A
ll

of
th

e
fe

ed
er

pr
im

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
s

to
O

ld
m

ac
ha

r
A

ca
de

m
y

ar
e

of
a

si
m

ila
r

ag
e,

th
er

ef
or

e
Iw

ou
ld

be
co

nc
er

ne
d

if
sc

ho
ol

s
w

er
e

re
-z

on
ed

an
d/

or
so

m
e

of
th

em
cl

os
ed

on
ly

in
a

fe
w

ye
ar

s
do

w
n

th
e

lin
e

fo
r

th
es

e
sc

ho
ol

s
to

be
cl

os
ed

du
e

to
be

in
g

in
ad

eq
ua

te
an

d
no

tu
p

to
sp

ec
an

d
th

e
sa

m
e

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

pr
oc

es
s

to
be

un
de

rt
ak

en
ag

ai
n.

A
s

th
e

po
pu

la
tio

n
in

B
rid

ge
of

D
on

is
in

cr
ea

si
ng

an
d

w
ith

th
e

pr
op

os
ed

G
ra

nd
ho

lm
D

ev
el

op
m

en
tw

hi
ch

ha
s

pl
an

s
fo

r
ne

w

ho
us

in
g

an
d

sc
ho

ol
s

(4
50

ho
us

es
pr

op
os

ed
fo

r
20

14
),

ag
ai

n
th

is
w

ou
ld

be
a

co
nc

er
n

th
at

m
or

e
ch

an
ge

s
w

ou
ld

ta
ke

pl
ac

e
fu

rt
he

r
do

w
n

th
e

lin
e

th
at

m
ay

ca
us

e
m

or
e

di
sr

up
tio

n
fo

r
ou

r
ch

ild
re

n
an

d
ov

er
-r

id
e

an
y

ch
an

ge
s

an
d

re
-z

on
in

g
th

at
is

pr
op

os
ed

in
th

is
re

vi
ew

.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 101



G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
E

m
ai

l
1.

C
hi

ld
re

n
sh

ou
ld

be
zo

ne
d

to
th

e
sc

ho
ol

ne
ar

es
tt

o
th

ei
r

ho
m

e
(s

ub
je

ct
to

4
be

lo
w

).
2.

C
hi

ld
re

n
sh

ou
ld

be
en

co
ur

ag
ed

to
at

te
nd

th
ei

r
zo

ne
sc

ho
ol

w
he

re
at

al
l

po
ss

ib
le

.
3.

If
a

sc
ho

ol
zo

ne
is

to
ch

an
ge

su
ch

th
at

th
e

se
co

nd
ar

y
sc

ho
ol

ch
an

ge
s

fo
r

an
ad

dr
es

s
an

d
an

ol
de

r
si

bl
in

g
is

al
re

ad
y

in
se

co
nd

ar
y

sc
ho

ol
th

en
pr

io
rit

y
sh

ou
ld

be
gi

ve
n

fo
r

th
at

se
co

nd
(o

r
th

ird
et

c)
ch

ild
to

at
te

nd
th

e
sa

m
e

sc
ho

ol
as

th
e

ol
de

r
si

bl
in

g.

4.
W

e
al

le
nc

ou
ra

ge
ou

r
ch

ild
re

n
to

w
al

k
to

sc
ho

ol
-

th
ey

sh
ou

ld
be

zo
ne

d
to

a
sc

ho
ol

to
w

hi
ch

th
ey

ca
n

w
al

k
sa

fe
ly

.
T

he
y

sh
ou

ld
no

th
av

e
to

cr
os

s
m

ai
n

ro
ut

es
to

ge
tt

o
sc

ho
ol

-
re

ga
rd

le
ss

of
cr

os
si

ng
pr

ov
is

io
n.

G
en

er
al

C
om

m
en

ts
E

m
ai

ls
S

om
e

of
th

e
ab

ov
e

ca
n

be
ac

hi
ev

ed
by

co
lo

ca
tio

n
of

di
ffe

re
nt

se
rv

ic
es

w
ith

in
a

so
ca

lle
d

'c
om

m
un

ity
sc

ho
ol

',
a

co
nc

ep
t

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

po
pu

la
r

in
th

e
U

S
an

d
C

an
ad

a,
an

d
an

ap
pr

oa
ch

w
hi

ch
Ib

el
ie

ve
is

be
in

g
do

ne
in

so
m

e
of

th
e

ne
w

3r
s

sc
ho

ol
s

sh
ou

ld
al

so
be

co
ns

id
er

ed
in

ha
vi

ng
co

lo
ca

tio
n

of
se

rv
ic

es
in

sc
ho

ol
s,

th
ey

w
ou

ld
no

to
nl

y
ta

ke
sp

ac
e

(a
nd

th
us

re
du

ce
ca

pa
ci

ty
)

bu
tc

ou
ld

al
so

po
te

nt
ia

lly
co

nt
rib

ut
e

re
ve

nu
e

fr
om

ot
he

r
bo

di
es

us
in

g
th

e
sc

ho
ol

In
so

m
e

ca
se

s,
it

m
ay

S
ch

oo
lc

ap
ac

ity
,a

lo
ng

w
ith

th
e

po
ss

ib
le

pr
ob

le
m

s
ci

te
d

in
th

e
re

po
rt

,i
t

sh
ou

ld
al

so
be

bo
ur

ne
in

m
in

d
th

e
as

pi
ra

tio
n

of
N

at
io

na
la

nd
lo

ca
l

no
tb

e
th

e
m

os
tc

ru
de

ly
'e

ffi
ci

en
t'

co
ur

se
to

ke
ep

a
be

lo
w

ca
pa

ci
ty

sc
ho

ol
op

en
,

bu
ti

ft
he

sc
ho

ol
is

po
pu

la
r

an
d

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ot

he
rw

is
e

th
en

sh
ou

ld
pe

op
le

no
tb

e
gi

ve
n

th
e

ch
oi

ce
of

w
he

th
er

th
ey

w
ou

ld
ra

th
er

pa
y

th
e

ex
tr

a
th

ro
ug

h
sm

al
l

in
cr

ea
se

s
in

ta
xa

tio
n.

go
ve

rn
m

en
tt

o
lo

w
er

cl
as

s
si

ze
s

ac
ro

ss
th

e
bo

ar
d

fo
r

pr
im

ar
y

cl
as

se
s.

J:
\S

ch
o

ol
_E

st
at

e
s\

2
01

2
P

ri
m

ar
y

S
ch

oo
lR

e
vi

ew
\E

m
a

il
o

r
C

o
m

m
e

nt
C

a
rd

fe
ed

b
ac

k\
E

ng
ag

em
en

tF
e

e
db

ac
k

a
no

ny
m

is
ed

an
d

la
rg

er
te

xt
.x

ls

Page 102



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Education, Culture and Sport    
 
DATE     31st January 2013    
 
DIRECTOR    Gayle Gorman  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  EC&S Science, Technology, Engineering and 

Mathematics (STEM) Development Policy  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  ECS/13/007 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To seek the approval of the Education, Culture & Sport Committee to 
implement the new Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics 
(STEM) Development Policy for all staff within the Education, Culture & 
Sport Service. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
Members of the Committee are requested to approve the new policy and 
instruct officers to carry out the necessary work to ensure its successful 
implementation. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Any costs arising from the implementation of providing appropriate 
continuing professional development (CPD) opportunities for staff, will be 
met using existing funds within the directorate’s CPD budgets. 
Costs for some of the specific projects identified will be met by funding 
from partner organisations, some of which have been agreed for the next 
three years. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This policy cannot be sustainable without a Science Development Officer 

in place to co-ordinate and evaluate the initiatives.  
 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

Agenda Item 3.3

Page 103



 

 

A need has been identified to increase the uptake of science in primary 
schools and to improve the confidence of teachers in delivery of STEM 
subjects. 
 
There has been a downturn in numbers of pupils studying STEM 
subjects at secondary level which has resulted in a decline in post-school 
destinations within STEM subjects careers.  
 
There is a projected need for 23,000 employees over the next five years, 
in the Scottish oil & gas industry. Aberdeen, as the oil capital of Europe, 
will be at the forefront of this need. 
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Increased, and improved, teaching and learning of science in all city 
schools so improving the achievement of pupils in the STEM subjects 
and increasing the movement into STEM careers, particularly the oil & 
gas industry. 
 

7. MONITORING 
 

The implementation of the Science, Technology, Engineering and 
Mathematics (STEM) Development Policy will be regularly monitored to 
ensure the desired outcomes for the policy are achieved.  
 
Monitoring will be carried out using existing procedures, such as 
Covalent; educational attainment performance of pupils and other 
evaluative tools with all stakeholders. 
 
All CPD events and activities will be evaluated, with a focus on the 
impact that these activities have on employees’ professional practice. 

 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

The draft Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) 
Development Policy policy is attached to this report.   

 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Lynn Scanlon 
QIO with strategic lead for science 
lyscanlon@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
522044 
 
 

Page 104



 
 

  
 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
Education Culture and Sport 

 
 

Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Mathematics 
(STEM) Development Policy 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lead Officer: Lynn Scanlon 
Head of Service: Charlie Penman

Version Number: 4 
Date: Jan 2013 

Page 105



 

 - 1 -  

Contents 
 
Section 1  Introduction and Purpose of Policy (Rationale) 
 
1.1 Background 
1.2 Purpose of Policy 
1.3 Scope of Policy 
 
Section 2  Policy Principles 
 
Section 3  Expected Outcomes 
 
Section 4 Roles and Responsibilities 
 
Section 5  Links 
 
5.1 To Council Values and Priorities 
 
5.2 To Other Policies 
 
Section 6 Distribution and Publication 
 
Section 7 Review 
 
Section 8 Organisation and Responsibility 
 
8.1 Director 
8.2 Heads of Service/Service Managers/Head Teachers/Line Managers 
8.3 All Employees 
 
Section 9 Planning and Implementation 
 
Section 10 Communication 
 
Section 11 Strategic and Environmental Assessment 
 
Section 12 Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment 
 
Section 13 Approval 
 
Section 14 Agreed Review Date 
 
Appendices 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



 

 - 2 -  

1 INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF POLICY (Rationale) 
 
Aberdeen City Council has high aspirations for the development of quality 
learning and teaching of science and technology in all of our schools. This is a 
key priority in the Scottish curriculum and our strategy will promote greater 
partnership working, build capacity and support development of our staff’s skills 
 
It is important that the modern school curriculum reflect the dynamics of global 
change in technology and science.  Curriculum for Excellence will provide the 
platform for teachers to achieve this; however success in this area is unlikely to 
be achieved by schools alone.  It is therefore essential that we work closely with 
a wide range of partners to keep abreast of the changes taking place in the world 
of work and to support teaching staff to build a greater understanding of the 
demands of a workforce of the future. 
 
Our science and technology policy will support the implementation of the 
strategy. 
 
Purpose of Policy 
 
In taking this policy forward we will: 

• Increase the profile of science and technology across Aberdeen City 
Schools 

• Support the improvement of science learning and teaching, raise 
attainment and achievement and gain a clear understanding of standards 
and expectations across Aberdeen City schools. 

• Put in place STEM curriculum and subject support networks for 
practitioners 

• Build capacity and confidence of primary school staff in STEM curriculum 
areas 

• Support the development of learning, teaching and assessment materials 
for National Qualifications 

• Recognise, share and celebrate improvements and success in science 
and technology 

• Ensure best practice in science and technology is shared across 
Aberdeen City schools and nationally 

• Build effective partnerships and encourage a greater understanding of the 
applications of science and technologies in the world of work 

• Encourage more young people to consider a career in science or 
technology related disciplines 

• Encourage the development of positive attitudes towards science and 
technology 

• Work more closely with parents to help them understand the relevance of 
science and technology  

• Identify areas for further development in science and technology 
 
 
 

Page 107



 

 - 3 -  

2 POLICY PRINCIPLES 
 
 
We need teachers at all levels with the knowledge, skills, dispositions and 
readiness to be effective teachers of science and technology and who, by 
leading change and improvements, will increase the profile of science and 
technology and so improve the learning and teaching of these subjects 
across all city schools. 
 
The aims and objectives of our STEM Action Plan (Appendix 1) will articulate 
with those in our School Improvement Plan. We want to equip more individuals at 
all levels to be confident, enthusiastic practitioners in science and technologies. 
 
The key principles upon which this policy is based are: 
 
Supporting effective learning and support effective teaching in science and 
technologies  
 
High quality learning experiences are crucial in providing motivation to learn and 
achieve.  We will support teachers to develop teaching approaches which will 
actively engage young people in the science and technologies curriculum areas.   
 
We will do this through a range of approaches including: 

• Establishing primary science co-ordinators meetings 
• Providing specific and targeted support through provision of a dedicated  

Curriculum Development Officer 
• Introducing and supporting subject network meetings  
• Extending participation in Primary Science Quality Mark to all primary 

schools 
• Offering additional opportunities for personal and professional 

development in science and technology by offering a wide range of high 
quality CPD opportunities to teaching and support staff. 

• Developing high quality learning and assessment materials for science 
and technology courses and new qualifications 

• Fostering effective partnerships with business, industry and other local 
and national education organisations 

 
 
 
Raising standards and expectations 
 
We have high expectations of all of our learners.  We will work to support 
learners at all stages to develop and reach their full potential.  We will support 
learning by developing high quality learning and assessment materials.  We will 
use value added diagnostic assessments in primary and early secondary to 
assist with understanding the learner’s journey and to evaluate progress.  We will 
also continue to use analysis of performance in qualifications to target support 
and intervention. 

Page 108



 

 - 4 -  

We will do this through a range of approaches including: 
 

• Use analysis of SQA performance to monitor progress, identify areas for 
development and identify areas which need specific support 

• Encourage greater uptake of the Science Baccalaureate  
• Trial in a number of schools the use of e1 in the assessment process for 

science and technology. 
• Establish a working group to provide guidance to schools 3-14 in the 

assessment process 
• Establish science and technology specific moderation groups across 

sectors to help to understand share and apply standards consistently 
across City schools. 

• Establish discussion forums on National 4 and 5 courses. 
 
 
Recognise, share and celebrate improvements and success in science and 
technology 
It will be important to recognise achievements and success in science and 
technologies. 
 
We will do this through: 
 

• Organising science and technology awards ceremony which celebrates 
success and reflects business and other partner involvement 

• Introducing science and technology promotions, events and competition 
opportunities 

• Organise open door and professional exchange opportunities  
• Establish the 6th year science ambassador programme in all Secondary 

establishments. 
• Establish primary 6 and primary 7 science champions in schools.(specific 

to 2012/2013) 
• Continuing to identify aspects of good practice across our City schools 

and share this with all establishments. 
 
 
Develop partnership links which enhance the delivery of science education 
within schools 
 
We will work with a wide range of partner organisations and agencies to offer 
better opportunities to support teachers and to fulfil the needs of learners.  
Effective partnership working will assist in offering contextualised learning 
opportunities and provide varied experiences for learners.  It will also help to 
ensure that partnership working is recognised as a valued and essential element 
in securing success and improving achievement. 
 
We will do this through a range of approaches including: 
 

• Create termly newsletter for all schools 

Page 109



 

 - 5 -  

• Identify school initiatives linked to the British Science Festival (specific for 
2012) 

• Continue to develop relationships with external stakeholders and partners 
to develop exciting learning materials and quality CPD for teachers 

• Create a calendar of events and resources for schools which is co-
ordinated and in line with the Authority strategy. 

• Promote & work with city owned resources such as the Duthie Park; 
Maritime Museum; city archaeologists etc. 

 
 
 
3 EXPECTED OUTCOMES  
 
 
In implementing the policy statement we expect the following outcomes to be 
achieved: 
 
All staff accessing, using and benefiting from a meaningful programme of science 
CPD experiences, including: accredited training, open learning, learning on-the-
job, coaching and mentoring. This is to be sourced by the authority and made 
available for all staff through promotion in the CPD calendar and regular 
communication with schools. 
 
Expertise within our own staff is identified, shared and built upon to continue to 
develop and sustain excellent learning and teaching of science at all levels. 
Approaches for identifying expertise to be established by the Authority and 
shared with schools. 
 
The production of highly motivated and confident science teachers, delivering 
higher quality and more effective science lessons. This is to be achieved by the 
authority continuing to source high quality experiences and training in STEM 
subjects. 
 
The profile of science is raised across Aberdeen City Schools resulting in 
increased uptake in the STEM subjects. This will be achieved by the authority 
identifying schools where the uptake is low providing support and guidance as to 
how to raise the profile of STEM subjects to pupils. 
 
 
Learners have access to high quality teaching and learning in STEM subjects, 
raising the motivation and attainment of pupils. 
 
Parents and carers across the City view STEM subjects as valuable and leading 
to viable career opportunities. This will be achieved by schools and the authority 
informing parents of STEM opportunities and experiences across the City. 
 
. 

Page 110



 

 - 6 -  

All Partnership working will be co-ordinated by the Authority and in line with the 
City STEM Development Policy. A calendar of events and opportunities will be 
produced by the authority and distributed to schools. 
 
3b   MEASUREABLE OUTCOMES 
In implementing the policy statement we expect the following measureable 
outcomes to be achieved: 
 
PRIMARY SCHOOLS 
 
Increase in staff numbers participating in CPD events 

• Increased uptake of schools participating and gaining the PSQM 
• Increased uptake of schools and pupils participating in the P6/7 Science 

Champion Award 
• A named primary science co-ordinator in every school 
• Increase in schools developing specific approaches and policies to 

science 
• Increased motivation of pupils 
• Increased uptake in participation in local and national science initiatives 

and events 
• Increased attendance at Satrosphere by schools 

 
SECONDARY SCHOOLS 

• Increase in staff numbers participating in CPD events 
• A network co-ordinator for each subject network 
• Increase in the number of pupils studying science subjects beyond the 

broad general education phase 
• To have all schools involved in the S6 Science Ambassador scheme and 

so increase the number of pupils participating 
• To see a 3% increase, across the city, of attainment at Higher and 

Advanced Higher. (As National 4 and 5 rolls out, attainment will be 
measured and compared). 

• Increase in the quality of resources available to support courses 
• Increased uptake in participation in local and national science initiatives 

and events 
• Increased attendance at Satrosphere by schools 
 

 
 
 
4 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
We all have a responsibility to develop science learning and teaching. 
 
Specifically, teachers will: 
 

Page 111



 

 - 7 -  

• Be aware of and ensure any development priorities are in line with the 
STEM Development Policy 

 
• Be aware of the science development opportunities available to them, 

make best use of them and actively contribute to the evaluation and on-
going improvement of the development programme; 

 
• Take ownership of their own science development and actively seek out 

opportunities to develop themselves and others; 
 
• Be prepared to share information and expertise with others; 
 
• Embrace a positive culture which celebrates achievement and success. 

 
In addition, Faculty Heads and Primary Science Co-ordinators will: 
 

• Promote the Science Development Programme and support 
participation in appropriate development opportunities by all involved 
staff members. 

 
• Evaluate and feed back on the impact of science development 

activities on the work of their staff. 
 
 
 
5 LINKS  
 
5.1 To Council Values and Priorities 
 
The aims and objectives of this policy articulate with those in the Strategy for 
Learning and Service Plan.  
 
 
5.2 To Other Policies 
 
o  Corporate Employee Development Policy 

The corporate Employee Development Policy is the overarching document for 
staff training across the Council. This Education, Culture & Sport policy 
articulates with and compliments the corporate policy and procedures. The 
corporate Employee Development Policy can be found on the Zone: 
http://thezone/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=12872&sID=3241 

 
 
6 DISTRIBUTION AND PUBLICATION 
 
 

Page 112



 

 - 8 -  

This policy applies to all members of staff within the Education, Culture & Sport 
Service. It will be made available for colleagues to access electronically on the 
Zone and on Glow.  
 
Copies will be sent to all managers and head teachers, who will be asked to 
ensure that members of their teams are aware of the policy. All staff are 
expected to adhere to the policy with immediate effect. 
 
 
 
7 REVIEW 
 
This policy will be reviewed on a three year cycle. 
 
 
 
8 ORGANISATION AND RESPONSIBILITY 
 
8.1 Director 
 
The Director is responsible for: 
 

• The implementation and monitoring of this policy within the Directorate, 
and ensuring good communication with employees at all levels; 

• Motivating and empowering employees to actively seek out and take 
advantage of appropriate professional development opportunities. 

 
 
8.2 Heads of Service/Service Managers/Head Teachers/Line Managers 
 
Heads of Service are responsible for: 
 
 

• Implementing and complying with this policy as it relates to their areas of 
operation and control; 

• Ensuring that all of their staff are conversant with and accept their 
responsibilities under this policy, as outlined in Section 4 above, and are 
provided with adequate support and resources to undertake these 
responsibilities; 

• Motivating and empowering employees to actively seek out and take 
advantage of appropriate professional development opportunities. 

 
 
Service Managers/Head Teachers/Line Managers are responsible for: 
 
 

• Implementing and complying with this policy in their area of responsibility; 

Page 113



 

 - 9 -  

• Ensuring that all staff under their direct management acknowledge and 
accept their responsibilities under this policy, as outlined in Section 4 
above, and are provided with adequate support and resources to 
implement them; 

• Motivating and empowering employees to actively seek out and take 
advantage of appropriate professional development opportunities. 

 
 
8.3 All Employees  
 
All employees have a responsibility for:  
 
 

• Adhering to this policy at all times and ensuring they carry out their 
responsibilities listed in Section 4. 

 
 
9.0 PLANNING AND IMPLEMENTATION 
 
 
The implementation of this policy is managed and monitored by the Quality 
Improvement Officer with lead role for Science development 
 
The overall progress of policy implementation is monitored by the Head of 
Educational Development, Policy and Performance. 
 
 
10.0 COMMUNICATION 
 
 
A briefing note will be sent to all staff to inform them of the publication of this 
policy. The approved policy will also be shared with senior managers at 
improvement conferences and head teacher meetings and managers are asked 
to ensure that staff for whom they are responsible are aware of its existence. 
 
 
11.0 STRATEGIC AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
 
A strategic environmental assessment is not required for this policy, as its 
implementation will have no effect on the environment. 
 
 
12.0    EQUALITY AND HUMAN RIGHTS IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 
An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been carried out and no 
negative impacts has been identified.  
 

Page 114



 

 - 10 -  

 
13.0    APPROVAL 
 
 
Approval for this policy will be requested from the Education, Culture & Sport 
Committee on 31 Jan 2013. 
 
 
14.0 AGREED REVIEW DATE 
 
This policy will be reviewed on or before December 2013. 
 
 
 

Page 115



 

 - 11 -  

16.0    APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Science and Technology Action Plan 2012 - 14 
 
Improve learning and teaching in science and technology in all schools. 

• Establish primary science co-ordinators meetings 
• CDO attends subject network meetings  
• Increase the number and range of CPD courses on offer to both teaching and 

support staff. 
• 15 schools to take part in the pilot PSQM supported by science CDO and QIO 

(2012). 
• Extend participation of Primary Schools in PSQM – aspiration that all Primary 

Schools will become involved in Science curriculum development activity.  
• Easter/ Summer school to run for 20 staff. 
• Evaluation of impact of strategy 

 
Raise standards and increase pupil uptake in SQA science and technology 
courses. 

• From analysis of SQA results identify where raising the profile of science and 
technology is required. 

• Create a structured approach to supporting the Science Baccalaureate  
 
Develop systems for assessment in science and technology which are in line 
with the assessment strategy for the City. 
 

• Trial in a number of schools the use of e1 in the assessment process for 
science and technology. 

• Establish a working group to provide guidance to schools 3-14 in the 
assessment process. (sub group of assessment strategy group) 

• Establish discussion forums on National 4 and 5 courses. 
 
Develop partnership links which enhance the delivery of science education 
within schools and link to the City Strategy. 

• Create termly newsletter for both primary and Secondary. 
• Identify school initiatives linked to the British Science Festival (2012 only). 
• Meet all external stakeholders and partners in the area of science /education 

and create an overview of current provision in Aberdeen City. 
• Create a calendar of events and resources for schools which is co-ordinated 

and in line with the Authority strategy. 
 
Create a culture of ambition and achievement for the areas of science and 
technology in Aberdeen City. 

• Contribute to the Learning Festival in February providing a number of exhibits 
and presentations. 

• Organise an end of year science and technology awards ceremony. 
• Organise open door events and professional exchange opportunities in line 

with the Authority CPD strategy. 
• Establish the 6th year science ambassador programme in all Secondary 

establishments. 

Page 116



 

 - 12 -  

 

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Education Culture and Sport     
 
DATE     31 January 2013   
 
DIRECTOR   Gayle Gorman  
    
TITLE OF REPORT  Accreditation Application – Revision of Aberdeen 

Art Gallery & Museums Collections Development 
Policy  

 
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/13/001  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of the Accreditation 
Scheme for Museums and Art Galleries in the United Kingdom 2011 
Standard and to place before committee a Collections Development Policy. 
The Accreditation Standard, which sets national professional standards of 
care and management for Museums and Art Galleries, was revised in 2011 
and now requires all governing bodies of museums and galleries to adopt a 
‘Collections Development Policy’ in place of an ‘Acquisitions and Disposals 
Policy’ to achieve Accreditation status.  
 
 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 
 

That Committee adopts the Collections Development Policy   
  
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The Collections Development Policy acknowledges the current financial 
situation and available budget for acquisitions of works of art and artefacts. 
Where appropriate, the service will continue to seek matching grants from 
external organisations towards the cost of new acquisitions and delivering 
collections projects.    
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

If the Collections Development Policy is not adopted the Museums and 
Galleries service risks losing its Full Accreditation status. This would 
preclude the service from applying for external grants for revenue and 
capital projects, including applications to the Heritage Lottery Fund and 
Museums Galleries Scotland.  

 
 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 119



 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
In November 2004 the Museums Libraries and Archives Council (MLA) 
launched a new standard for museums, the Accreditation Scheme, which 
set nationally agreed minimum standards for all UK museum services. 
Accreditation benefits users of museum services and acts as a benchmark 
for grant-making organisations, sponsors and donors.  
 
The scheme is now administered by Arts Council England (ACE) following 
its merger with MLA in 2011. ACE administers the scheme  for the entire 
United Kingdom, in partnership with Museums Galleries Scotland, Northern 
Ireland Museums Council and CyMAL.   
 
Accreditation is a set of national standards for UK museums. To achieve 
these standards museums must meet published requirements in how they 
care for and document their collections, how they are governed and 
managed, and on the information and services they offer to their users. The 
standards are reviewed regularly to ensure that they continue to set 
appropriate benchmarks for the museums sector. The most recent review 
took place in 2011 and the Accreditation Scheme for Museums and Art 
Galleries in the United Kingdom 2011 Standard requires all new and 
returning applicants to provide increased evidence of professional 
standards and engagement with visitors.  
 
Aberdeen Art Gallery and Museums has held full Accreditation status since 
2006, which was renewed in 2010. Holders of Accreditation are required to 
submit a biennial return to retain this status. The service has been invited 
(as a returning applicant) to submit an application for Accreditation under 
the 2011 Standard in January 2013.   
 
Included in this application is the new requirement to submit a Collections 
Development Policy. This document describes how the collections cared 
for by Aberdeen Art Gallery and Museums are managed, conserved and 
developed and the processes in place to deal with exhibitions and loans. 
The Collections Development Policy encompasses the ‘Acquisitions and 
Disposal Policy 2010-2015’ approved by the Education Culture and Sport 
Committee on 16 September 2010.  
 
Although the format of the policy has changed to comply with the new 
template required for Accreditation, the substance of the policy has not 
been altered. 

6. IMPACT 
 

This report relates to “Aberdeen – the Smarter City” particularly: 
 
• We will improve access to and increase participation in arts and culture 

by providing opportunities for citizens and visitors to experience a broad 
range of high quality arts and cultural activities. 

• We aspire to be recognised as a City of Culture, a place of excellence 
for culture and arts by promoting Aberdeen as a cultural centre hosting 

Page 120



 

 

high quality and diverse cultural events for the whole community and 
beyond. 

• We will embrace the distinctive pride the people of Aberdeen take in 
their city and work with them to enhance the sense of well-being here, 
building strong communities which look out for, and look after one 
another.  

• We aim to leave a legacy which will make compelling reading in a new 
chapter in the history of Aberdeen and we aim to do this with one voice. 

• Working with our third, public and private sector partners, we will 
provide opportunities for lifelong learning which will develop knowledge, 
skills and attributes of our citizens to enable them to meet the changing 
demands of the 21st century. 

 
There are also links with the delivery of the city’s Cultural Strategy, “Vibrant 
Aberdeen” and the bid development to become UK City of Culture. It also 
has direct links to the city’s Learning Strategy and in supporting the 
experiences and outcomes of the Curriculum for Excellence. 
 
In terms of the Single Outcome Agreement, the development and 
interpretation of the Collections contribute to Outcome 3, “We are better 
educated, more skilled and more successful, renowned for our research 
and innovation” and Outcome 13, ‘We will take pride in a strong, fair and 
inclusive national identity’. 
 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

A copy of the Collections Development Policy has been placed in the 
Members Lounge. 
 
Report to Education Culture and Sport Committee 16 September 2010 item 
21 Acquisitions and Disposals Policy 2010-2015 ECS/10/067 
(http://councilcommittees/mgConvert2PDF.aspx?ID=9145) 
 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Christine Rew 
Art Gallery & Museums Manager 
chrisr@aberdeencity.gov.uk ( 523672 

 

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:  Education, Culture & Sport 
 
DATE:    31 January 2013     
 
DIRECTOR:   Gayle Gorman 
    
TITLE OF REPORT: Sports Grants   
 
REPORT NUMBER:  ECS/13/002 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report brings before the Committee an application for financial assistance 
from Aberdeen School Rowing Association and makes recommendations 
accordingly. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
 That the committee: 

 
(a) Considers the following application from the Aberdeen Schools Rowing 
      Association and approves the following recommendation: 

 
Organisation Amount Granted 

Aberdeen Schools Rowing Association £12,000 
 

(b) Notes the recent successes of Aberdeen Schools Rowing Association 
being named Local Club of the Year in the Sunday Mail Scottish Sports 
Awards which took place on 6th December 2012 in Glasgow.  

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The Sports Grants budget for the 2012/13 financial year is £98,181. If the 
recommendation is approved, there will be £41,413.50 remaining in this 
budget. Appendix 1 outlines the previous Sport Grant awards in the current 
financial year.   

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Local sports groups and organisations adopt a variety of methods to attract 
funding, however some groups would be unable to host an event or develop 
further without the financial assistance available from the City Council. Groups 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 123



 

who do not meet the criteria will be assisted by officers to source alternative 
solutions.  

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
Aberdeen City Council’s Sports Grants is a funding programme which is open 
to any voluntary or not-for-profit organisation or club who deliver sport or 
physical activity within the city. Grants of up to £10,000 are available and 
applications can be submitted throughout the year. In exceptional 
circumstances, we may consider applications above this level. The Sports 
Grants budget for 2012/13 has been set by the Council at £98,181.  

 
The grant criteria is aligned to the key objectives of “Fit for the Future” the 
Sport and Physical Activity Strategy for Aberdeen (2009-2015). Each 
application is assessed against the criteria, with recommendations developed 
and put forward to the relevant Committee for a decision. 

 
All applicants are provided with support from officers before and after 
applications have been considered. This includes the offer of individual 
support sessions, resulting in detailed feedback on how to improve the quality 
of their application. For more information about common reasons for 
resubmission, deferral or rejection please see Appendix 2. 

 
5.1 Aberdeen Schools Rowing Association   
  

Formed in 1973, Aberdeen Schools Rowing Association (ASRA) provides a 
wide range of rowing activities to school aged children and young people 
throughout the City. ASRA is set-up as a charitable trust and has a two tier 
governance and management structure. The Board of Trustees leads on long-
term planning while the ASRA Committee deals with the day to day running of 
the Association.  

 
The Associations objective is to create opportunities to become involved in 
rowing.  This is achieved by providing a pathway which allows beginners to 
undertake taster sessions, before progressing to indoor clubs and eventually 
outdoor club rowing on the River Dee. The club was recognised for its 
outstanding contribution that it makes to everyday life in the community by 
being named the Local Club of the year in Sunday Mail Scottish Sports 
Awards Ceremony in December 2012. This is a remarkable achievement 
which demonstrates the impact this programme is having whilst assisting the 
City in raising the profile of sport on a national level.  

  
Since 2007, ASRA have been running two main programmes with secondary 
schools in the City. The indoor (Dry Start) programme provides a minimum six 
week extra curricular training block within participating schools and ASRA 
have provided four rowing machines to participating schools that do not have 
their own. The outdoor (Wet Start) programme follows this up with the 
opportunity to participate in an eight to ten week training block on the River 
Dee.  ASRA currently have one paid development officer who is supported by 
a team of volunteer coaches all of whom contribute between five and twelve 
hours coaching per week.    

Page 124



 

  
The overall cost of running the schools rowing projects is approximately 
£35,200 per annum. The recommendation is to provide £12,000 of funding 
towards this project which will be matched by £22,200 from the Association. 
This covers a range of incurred costs including equipment, staff salaries, 
travel, insurance and administration. In order to meet this cost, ASRA have 
successfully received funding from external bodies. Furthermore, the 
Association also receives support through their own fund raising initiatives and 
corporate sponsorship.   

  
This application requests support to extend and improve the ongoing indoor 
and outdoor programmes. ASRA aim to use this funding to introduce the 
programmes into the majority of the city’s secondary schools.  As part of this 
over 1,000 primary seven and senior one pupils would receive taster sessions 
which are followed up by the opportunity to participate in lunch time indoor 
clubs. Furthermore, over 200 senior one – senior three pupils will enter the 
indoor programme and receive a 6 to 10 week block of specialised indoor 
rowing training. The funding will also be used to provide over 100 pupils with 
the opportunity to enter the outdoor programme and receive a 10 week 
training block on the River Dee.   

 
 

Funding Requested Funding Recommended 
 

£12,000 £12,000 
 
 
6. IMPACT 
 

This report relates to ‘Aberdeen – the Smarter City’: 
 
• We will promote and improve opportunities for physical activity and sport 

to enable Aberdeen’s citizens to lead more active, healthier lives. 
 
The report relates to the Arts, Heritage and Sport strand of the Community 
Plan, specifically in relation to the Sports, Leisure and Recreation vision of 
developing Aberdeen as an “Active City”. 

 
The report relates closely to the objectives of “Fit for the Future, the sport and 
physical activity strategy for Aberdeen City (2009-2015)”. These objectives 
are: 

 
• Promote and increase opportunities for participation in sport and physical 

activity for everyone in Aberdeen. 
• Provide a comprehensive and high quality range of sports facilities in 

Aberdeen. 
• Maximise social, educational, health and economic benefits of sport and 

physical activity in Aberdeen. 
• Develop and sustain pathways which nurture local, regional and national 

sporting people to reach their potential.  
• Raise the profile of sport in Aberdeen.  

 

Page 125



 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Aberdeen School Rowing Association Grant Application – available in the 
Members Lounge  

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
 Jo Conlon 

 Sports Policy and Partnership Officer 
 jconlon@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 (01224) 523798 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Summary Table of Financial Assistance Sports Awards 2012/13 
 
 
Sports Organisation Funding 

Awarded 
Committee Approval 

 
Aberdeen Rugby League Club  

 
£640 

 
Education, Culture & 
Sport 
07/06/12 
 

   

Page 126



 

Aberdeen Youth Rugby Association £13,000 Education, Culture & 
Sport 
07/06/12 
 

 
Active Aberdeen – Festival of Sport, 
Physical Activity and Dance 
 

 
£5,000 

 
Education, Culture & 
Sport  
20/09/12 
 

 
City of Aberdeen Gymnastics 
 

 
£2,260 

 
Education, Culture & 
Sport 
20/09/12 
 

 
Aberdeen Secondary Schools 
Football Association 

 
£1,000 

 
Culture & Sport Sub 
Committee 
07/11/12 
 

 
Hazlehead Netball Club 

 
£317.50 

 
Culture & Sport Sub 
Committee 
07/11/12 
 

 
Silver City Blues Swimming Club 

 
£1,700 

 
Culture & Sport Sub 
Committee 
07/11/12 
 

 
Special Olympics Grampian Area – 
Ski Group 

 
£4,900 

 
Culture & Sport Sub 
Committee 
07/11/12 
 

 
Coach and Volunteer Workforce 
Development Grants 

 
£4,500 

 
Education, Culture & 
Sport 
22/11/12 
 

Aberdeen Amateur Athletics Club £4,950 Culture & Sport Sub 
Committee  
10/01/13 
 

Aberdeen Dolphins Swimming Club £2,500 Culture & Sport Sub 
Committee  
10/01/13 
 

Adventure Aberdeen   £4,000 Culture & Sport Sub 
Committee  
10/01/13 
 

Aberdeen Schools Rowing Pending Education, Culture & 

Page 127



 

Association  Committee 
Approval 

Sport 
31/01/13 
 

 
Total Grant Funding Awarded to 
date 

 
£44,767.50 

 

 
Grant Funding Remaining 

 
£53,413.50 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 
 
Sports Grants – Please find below frequent reasons for resubmission, deferral or 
rejection of funding applications 
 

• Application forms not fully completed or illegible 
• The benefits of the initiative do not clearly show the primary benefit is to 

residents of the City, but to a wider demographic 
• Projects do not have clear outputs or outcomes  
• Match funding is either not confirmed (in which case an application is 

deferred) or indicated. 

Page 128



 

• There is no evidence of need ascertained, of  wider benefit, and/or there is 
evidence of duplication of services already supported by Aberdeen City 
Council 

• The organisation or Club has outstanding debt with Aberdeen City Council  
• The club cannot meet FTPP (Following the Public Pound) guidance and/or 

has not submitted reports against previous grant allocations  
• The group or club is not constituted as required by the grants criteria 
• The group or club does not have a bank account with two authorised 

signatories 
• Applications for transport represent a significant proportion of the grant with 

no evidence of participants subsidising travel 
• Requests to visit or train at facilities out with the City may be rejected if 

similar facilities are available locally 
• Projects or requests for staffing do not evidence any forward planning 

recognising future stability 
• Standards of coaching or volunteering do not meet acceptable standards 
• There are inadequate or no monitoring and evaluation plans  

 
Feedback and additional support 
 
Council Officers from a variety of backgrounds and knowledge work together to 
assess the wider value to the sports sector of each application. 
 
Where time permits, Aberdeen City Council staff will contact organisations on 
receipt of their applications to seek clarification or further information.  This is not 
always possible when applications are received very close to the deadline for 
Committee reports.  Organisations are offered a telephone call or a face to face 
meeting to help improve their applications. 
 
Where applications are recommended for deferral or rejection, organisations are 
contacted and offered verbal or written feedback to support a resubmission. 
 
In addition, Officers provide advice and support to sports organisations with 
application to Awards for All, and other small sports grants funding streams. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
COMMITTEE:   Education, Culture and Sport 
 
DATE:     31st January 2013 
 
DIRECTOR:    Gayle Gorman 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Rubislaw Field Agreement 
 
REPORT NUMBER:   ECS/13/010 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The report provides the Committee with information on ongoing 
discussions between the parties to the Rubislaw Field Agreement and 
efforts to ensure that the agreement in place is fit for its purpose, 
reflecting the changes and patterns of use since 1923. The Council’s 
assets, service delivery and responsibilities are potentially directly 
affected by the decisions taken. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
  

That the Committee –  
 
(i) note the current position, that the Rubislaw Field Committee has been 
unable to reach agreement on replacing the existing 1923 Agreement for 
the reasons outlined in the report and the appended minute;  
(ii) instruct officers to make a final effort to obtain the agreement of the 
Rubislaw Field Committee to implement a revised Agreement in the 
terms set out in the report at paragraph 5.8 and that, if this is successful, 
to receive a recommendation from the Field Committee that these terms 
be implemented; and 
(iii) agree that, if such agreement cannot be reached, officers be 
instructed to issue Conditions of Let restricted to the terms of the existing 
1923 Agreement with effect from 31st March, thereby preventing any 
additional, unauthorised usage from that date. 

  
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
At present there are budget implications to meet the terms of the current 
Field Agreement, mainly relating to staff costs, to make the grounds and 
pavilion available to Aberdeen Grammar School Former Pupils’ Club’s 
sporting sections, as well as additional costs to maintain the grounds for 
this use, which is in addition to the needs of Aberdeen Grammar School 
and the wider provision of sports pitches. At present, the power supply 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 131



for floodlighting, which was paid for and installed by the Grammar FP 
Rugby Club, is paid by the Council.  
 
The replacement Field Agreement will reflect a balance between 
recognising the historical relationship, while offsetting appropriate costs, 
including cleaning the pavilion and offering the potential for investment 
by the Council from income received. In particular, the Agreement has 
provisions for the Council to seek payments from the FP Club’s Sporting 
Sections for any advertising the Field Committee agrees to allow at 
Rubislaw. It also enables the Council to re-invest the income it receives 
in youth coaching, training or other related assistance provided by the 
Sports Sections for the benefit of the Grammar School or wider 
community.  
 
Revenue raised and paid by the Sport Sections to the Council under the 
provisions of this clause, not used to support youth sport as above, shall 
be used for current or future improvements to the facilities at Rubislaw, 
including debt repayment, as approved by the Education Authority 
managing Rubislaw Field. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are legal implications in that the Field Agreement is a formal 
agreement, reached in 1923, and which has operated till the present day. 
The agreement of all constituent parties to amend the Agreement is 
required, and is important to sustain the relationships and facilities. Its 
updating will also demonstrate good stewardship by the City Council. 
 
There is potential that sports development may be detrimentally affected 
by the process of change; the FP Club sporting sections do contribute to 
the participation, progression and performance in their respective sports. 
However, the intended result is intended to achieve a better overall 
situation, with proper recognition of the real costs to the Council, as well 
as identifying the costs and benefits of the sports development being 
provided at Rubislaw. 
 
As the Council wishes to review and replace the Field Agreement agreed 
by a predecessor authority, there may be a risk to its reputation, 
dependent on the extent of the process to resolve the issues currently 
outstanding. Should agreement not be reached and the proposed course 
of action is restricted to the terms of the 1923 Agreement, there may be 
implications for the FP Club’s sports sections. This in turn may result in 
the final results of the Leisure Asset Review and Pitch Strategy, currently 
under way, having to be amended to consider any resulting requirements 
they may have in order that they can continue to play in local and 
national leagues, on other pitches. 
 
 

 

Page 132



5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 The background to this report is that in 1914, the Grammar School’s 
Former Pupils Club made a financial contribution to Aberdeen School 
Board, to enable the latter to purchase the original Rubislaw Field. In 
return, an agreement was made that the Field would be used as a play 
field by both the pupils and former pupils of Aberdeen Grammar School. 
A Minute of Waiver was recorded in 1974, which enabled use of the Field 
by other persons. As successors to the School Board, the City Council, 
as Education Authority, own the Field. 
 
5.2 In 1923, following the erection of the Pavilion, funded by the FP Club 
and which included a War Memorial to former pupils who had given their 
lives during the First World War, a new agreement for the operation and 
management of the Field was agreed, with a Field Committee, which 
consists of the Education Authority (currently represented by Cllrs Laing, 
as Convener, Cllrs Greig and Thomson), three members of the FP Club 
and the Rector and one other member of staff from Aberdeen Grammar 
School. That pavilion, following the opening of the new pavilion, is no 
longer used for changing facilities. 
 
5.3 In consideration of the contributions made by the FP Club towards 
the purchase price of the play field, it has the exclusive use without 
charge of one grass (rugby) football pitch and one grass hockey pitch on 
Saturdays during the season and facilities for cricket and tennis during 
the summer if it chooses to use them. Additional facilities can and have 
been made available by the agreement of the Field Committee, and 
some are being used without agreement. In consideration of the FP 
Club’s contribution to the new Pavilion, the Field Committee can also 
determine its use of its facilities, but this is not so far the subject of any 
formal agreement.  
 
5.4 In March 2009, following discussions with the parties who are 
represented at the meetings of the  Field Committee, it was intended to 
take a report to the City Council’s then Policy and Resources Committee. 
At the request of the then Head of Legal Services, it was withdrawn so 
that the Council could obtain further legal advice. This was done; 
proposals to replace the current Agreement were scoped and then 
discussed between representatives of the FP Club, the Grammar School 
and officers. Subsequently, three meetings of the Field Committee have 
taken place this and last year.  
 
5.5 The main issues are a proposal to revoke the existing Rubislaw Field 
Agreement, which allows exclusive use without charge by the Grammar 
FP Club of certain parts of the Rubislaw Field and to conclude a fresh 
Agreement with the Grammar FP Club, regulating their current usage of 
Rubislaw Field, including compliance with the general Booking System, 
and a mechanism for calculation of payment to the Council of a share of 
advertising revenues and cleaning costs. 
 

Page 133



5.6 While the existing Users Agreement with the Grammar FP Club dates 
from 1923, over the intervening years, there have been a number of 
changes to the usage made of the Field and its environs, not least the 
introduction of the all-weather pitch surface, which was part 
sportscotland Lottery funded and which allows play over an extended 
period of the year. Although this pitch is not within the scope of the Field 
Agreement, the Committee has been involved from its inception and has 
been keen to ensure that as appropriate, access could be enabled for the 
school and FP Club. The Council’s normal bookings and lettings 
procedures have always applied to this pitch for all users. 
 
5.7 There are also instances of “custom and practice” over the period of 
the current Agreement, some which have been accepted by the Field 
Committee when explicitly requested, others which have been assumed 
through informal use. The proposed Field Agreement reflects current 
use, where there are cost implications for the Council and retains the 
overall relationship between itself, including the Grammar School, and 
the FP Club. The all-weather pitch, being on ground not covered by the 
Field Agreement is included in order to reflect that relationship, however 
it should be re-emphasised that it was funded by the Council, with 
sportscotland support. Any other historical use of the upper level in the 
past is not included within the Agreement. 

 
5.8 Following initial negotiations with the Grammar FP Club, the terms 
set out below are designed to protect the interests of school users and 
regulate fairly other uses of the Field in terms of current usage and 
entitlement. The new Agreement would also regulate payment for 
cleaning of the new pavilion, reflecting the usage made of it by the 
Grammar FP Club, and application of any income from Advertisements 
agreed by the Committee.   
 
The main terms would be as follows: 
 

1. Management of the Field and pavilion and facilities will be carried out by 
the Rubislaw Field Committee, comprising 3 Elected Members of the 
Council, 3 Members of the FP Club and 2 Members of the Grammar 
School staff. 

 
2. The Convener will be appointed by the Council Committee whose remit 

deals with Secondary Education in the City of Aberdeen.   
 
3. The Grammar FP Club shall have exclusive use without payment of two 

(grass) rugby pitches on Saturday afternoons. 
 
4. The Grammar FP Club shall have exclusive use without payment of 

cricket training nets for cricket training, and of that area also for rugby 
training. 

 

Page 134



5. The Grammar FP Club shall have exclusive use without payment of the 
cricket square on Tuesday and Thursday evenings, and on Saturday 
afternoons from April to August. 

 
6. The Grammar FP Club shall have exclusive use without payment of a 

football pitch for football matches on Tuesday and Thursday evenings 
and on Saturday afternoons, and shall advise the Central Booking Office, 
as directed by the Rubislaw Field Committee, of their intended use. 

 
7. The Grammar FP Club shall have a priority use, subject to normal 

charges, of the all-weather pitch for hockey training on Tuesday evenings 
and on Saturday afternoons and Sundays for hockey league games. 
(The exclusive use of one hockey pitch from the original Agreement has 
been removed in recognition of the changes to the needs of competitive 
hockey games) 

      
8. The Grammar FP Club shall have priority use, subject to normal letting 

charges, of the south western corner for training for mini and midi rugby. 
 
9. All bookings of the Field or facilities, whether paid or without payment, 

will be made through the general Booking Office and payments and 
timescales for booking made as per the arrangements in place at that 
time. Bookings will be only be accepted and access given if the lettings 
procedures are followed.  

 
10. If the Grammar FP Club do not require any pitches or facilities to which 

they are entitled to exclusive use and had booked, they shall if possible, 
advise the general Booking System so that if appropriate, the pitches can 
be re-let to other users.   

 
11.  The ground indicated for the Grammar FP Club priority use shall only be 

offered to another user once the deadline for the subsequent letting 
period has passed. 

       
12.  Payments for cleaning of the new Pavilion to enable Grammar FP Club 

use will be agreed within six months of this Agreement being put in place 
and payments will be due from the date of the Agreement. Payments will 
be revised annually and will include consideration of the then prevailing 
staff costs being paid by the Council. 

 
13. In the event of any section of the Grammar FP Club erecting advertising 

boards or hoardings on the Rubislaw Field, boundary fencing or gates, 
they shall only be erected with prior approval of the Rubislaw Field 
Committee and subject to the necessary planning permissions and 
consents being in place.  The Rubislaw Field Committee shall consider 
the revenue generated by such advertising, and also the value of 
coaching and other services provided by Grammar FP members to 
children and young adults, and shall set a fee to be due to the Council, 
which money shall be used wholly in connection with current or future 
improvements to the facilities at Rubislaw, including debt repayment 

Page 135



arising out of any works carried out to the facilities, as approved by the 
Committee. 

 
14. It is emphasised that payments to the City Council for any advertisement 

on site, all which will only be permitted by prior agreement, will be agreed 
within six months of this Agreement being put in place and will be 
effective from the date of the Agreement. This will include consideration 
of any advertising currently on site and the FP Club will also confirm for 
those that all necessary planning permissions are in place. 

 
15. The Council will endeavour to maintain at all times the facilities of 

Rubislaw Field and the pitches, facilities including the all-weather pitch to 
normal playing standards, with associating lighting, line painting and 
security of the pitch. Use of the all-weather pitch will be at the discretion 
of the Council and will include whatever sports are deemed to be 
appropriate. 

 
16. The Council will consider any proposals from the FP Club to improve use 

of the Field, however will not be bound by these. The Field Committee 
will consider any proposals to locate temporary or other accommodation 
at the Field, or equipment, however unless previously agreed, no such 
item should be put in place. The Council will contract any works to 
improve the Field and manage the contracts to undertake these. 

 
17. If the Grammar FP Club makes payment for facilities which are then 

deemed unplayable for any reason, a refund shall be made in 
accordance with the booking policy then prevailing. The Groundsman’s 
decision on playability is final. 

 
5.9 The proposed replacement Agreement is designed to be reviewed 
after ten years.  
 
5.10 The current situation is that the Grammar School has indicated a 
readiness to agree to the Agreement as currently scoped. The 
Headteacher has indicated that he is in agreement with the terms of this 
report. Following a period where they had indicated that the issues to be 
resolved were more procedural than principle, the Grammar FP Club has 
now indicated its wish that the existing Agreement not be superseded, 
but modified. Their representatives have indicated their wish to retain 
reference to the grounds being in use for all time by Aberdeen Grammar 
School pupils and the Former Pupils’ Club. The FP Club representatives 
indicated they saw this as a point of principle for their members.  
 
5.11 Officers have advised the Council’s representatives that the need to 
overhaul the Agreement is as a result of it not being flexible to respond to 
changing circumstances and in consequence it no longer meets the 
needs of the users. As the position of the Former Pupils’ Club is now that 
it could not accede to an Agreement which did not refer to rights in 
perpetuity, then no form of words could be found to resolve the issue, as 
the Council could not, in terms of Best Value, agree to these rights being 

Page 136



retained in perpetuity, as well as the additional rights being proposed 
under the draft revised Agreement.  
 
5.12 Officers advice is that if the proposed new Agreement can not be 
agreed by the FP Club, then there are two possible approaches which 
can be taken; the first is that the Field Committee could decide to 
continue the existing Agreement and the informal uses that have 
developed, without any recompense to the Council for the additional 
costs incurred (eg cleaning of the new pavilion) and without any share of 
revenue raised from use of the field (eg advertising) . In doing so, 
however, it should be recognised that this will represent an inconsistent 
approach, as compared to other sports users, or other sports 
development clubs, and may be criticised as not being Best Value in the 
use of Council assets. 
 
5.13 The second approach is that the Field Committee agrees to revert 
to the original terms of the 1923 Field Agreement; that all uses and 
arrangements since that date, specifically including those not previously 
formally agreed by the Field Committee, are cancelled from a date to be 
agreed, and such uses are stopped. Thereafter, the Field Committee 
would consider on a case by case basis if it is prepared to agree to other 
uses, including the terms of those uses currently made by Grammar FP 
Club and if appropriate, any other regular uses of the Field. The practical 
implications of this proposal will have a potentially detrimental effect on 
Grammar FP Rugby, as decisions about the current stand and defined 
rugby pitch, advertising and related matters will require a series of 
decisions about future terms of use. This may include a detrimental effect 
on the standing of Grammar FP Rugby nationally, as a league club. 
Similarly, this may also affect the Cricket and Hockey sections. This may 
also put at risk the long-standing relationship enjoyed by the Grammar 
School and its FP Club. Similarly, the ongoing development of sport will 
potentially have a period of disruption.  
 
5.14 The Deed of Trust setting up the Committee did not envisage a 
situation such as this where agreement could not be reached between 
the parties, therefore does not provide for the current impasse, and the 
resulting direct impact on the Council's assets and service delivery, 
which fall within the ECS account. 
 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

The report contributes to the Administration’s programme, Aberdeen the 
Smarter City, which includes, “We will promote and improve opportunities 
for physical activity and sport to enable Aberdeen's citizens to lead more 
active, healthier lives” and, “We will provide a high quality education 
service within our schools and communities which will improve 
attainment and life chances of our children and young people to achieve 
their full potential in education, employment or training.” 
 

Page 137



Public – there is likely to public interest in this report, including from 
those associated with Aberdeen Grammar School, both historically and 
present, and those interested in the sports played at Rubislaw. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Reports to Rubislaw Field Committee, 11th October 2012 and 10th June 
2011 on the Rubislaw Field Agreement. 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Neil M Bruce, Service Manager, Culture and Sport, 
neilbr@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
( 523144 

 
 
 

Page 138



 

 

RUBISLAW FIELD COMMITTEE 
 

 ABERDEEN, 4 DECEMBER 2012 – Minute of Meeting of the RUBISLAW FIELD 
COMMITTEE.  Present: - Councillor Laing, Chairperson; and Councillors Greig 
and Thomson; Mr A Hamilton, Mr J Hendry and Mr D McAllister (Aberdeen 
Grammar School Former Pupils’ Club); Mr G Legge and Mr I Stanger (Aberdeen 
Grammar School); and Ms V Mackie, Sport Aberdeen.  In Attendance: Neil 
Bruce, Service Manager, Culture and Sport, Education, Culture and Sport; 
Simon Williams, Facilities Manager, Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure; 
Fiona Selbie, Senior Solicitor, Legal and Democratic Services; and Vikki 
Cuthbert and Stephanie Dunsmuir, Legal and Democratic Services. 

 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
1. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 11 October 
2012. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
RUBISLAW FIELD AGREEMENT 
 
2. With reference to Article 3 of the minute of its previous meeting, the Chairperson 
stated that it had been decided that all members would consult with their organisations 
on the new Agreement.  She asked if Aberdeen Grammar School could confirm their 
position in relation to the new Agreement, and Mr Legge advised that following a couple 
of minor adjustments which they had conveyed to the Council, the School was content 
with the new document. 
 
The Chairperson then sought feedback from the Former Pupils’ Club.  Mr McAllister 
advised that the majority of changes they had suggested had been accepted, but that 
the Club representatives had proposed that the new Agreement build on the 1923 
document, rather than supersede it.  The 1923 Agreement stated that the ground would 
be in use for all time for Aberdeen Grammar School pupils and the Former Pupils’ Club, 
but this wording did not appear in the new version of the Agreement. 
 
The Chairperson explained that the Council was trying to prepare a new agreement 
which would reflect the current usage, and would be a moving document which 
therefore was not intended to convey rights in perpetuity.  She sought advice from Mrs 
Selbie on the implications of including this terminology in a new Agreement. 
 
Mrs Selbie explained that the new Agreement was not intended to be in perpetuity, but 
was designed to be flexible to set out what usage of the Field was at present, while 
allowing members to discuss and amend the document in future as usage changed.  
The 1923 Agreement had not allowed for any such amendments. 
 
Councillor Greig stated that he could understand the concerns of the Former Pupils’ 
Club, as at present, their rights were protected, however they felt there was a loss of 
this protection in the new Agreement if the rights in perpetuity were removed.  The 
Chairperson pointed out that the current usage went well beyond what was covered in 

Page 139



 

 

2

the 1923 Agreement, and therefore any rights the Former Pupils’ Club felt they had at 
present were not in fact covered by the existing Agreement. 
 
Mr Hendry stated that the Former Pupils’ Club felt that they had inherited what they had 
at present and did not want to see it lost for future generations, as they felt they had a 
duty to protect the arrangements.  The Chairperson reiterated that the current usage 
arrangements were not reflected in the 1923 document, and therefore if it was agreed 
to revert to the existing Agreement, the Council would have to look at the current 
arrangements in more detail. 
 
Councillor Greig asked if it was considered that the new Agreement would cancel out 
the 1923 version, and Mrs Selbie advised that this would be the case, in the same way 
that the 1914 Agreement had been revoked and cancelled by the 1923 version.  
Councillor Greig then enquired if it would be possible to write something in to the new 
Agreement to reflect the Former Pupils’ wish that the rights in perpetuity be retained.  
Mrs Selbie advised that it would not be in the best interests of the Council to include 
this in a new Agreement. 
 
The Chairperson explained that a lack of agreement would result in the Council having 
to revert to the 1923 Agreement, and asked if the Former Pupils’ Club could therefore 
consider going back to renegotiate the matter with their members.  Mr McAllister asked 
if reverting to the 1923 version would mean that only football would be affected, but Mrs 
Selbie advised that several elements were not included in the 1923 Agreement, such as 
the new pavilion, the advertising hoardings and the use of the hockey pitches.  Mr 
Bruce advised that it was proposed that the new Agreement would be reviewed in ten 
years, at which point any changes in circumstances and usage could be considered. 
 
The Chairperson explained that she understood that the Former Pupils’ Club was keen 
to have the current safeguards in place, but stated that the Council had to look at the 
change in circumstances which now existed, particularly in relation to the change in 
usage, as well as the current financial situation.  She explained that the Council could 
therefore not agree to an organisation having rights in perpetuity.  The Chairperson 
asked again if it would be possible for the Former Pupils’ representatives to go back to 
their members to discuss the matter further, or if they were content to state that their 
position was that they could not agree to the terms of the new Agreement.  She advised 
that if no agreement could be reached at the meeting, then officers would prepare a 
report for the January meeting of the Education, Culture and Sport Committee to enable 
the Council to take a decision on how to move forward with the situation. 
 
Mr Bruce referred to the wording used in the 1923 Agreement which stated that “the 
field shall be employed for use as a play field for the pupils and former pupils of 
Aberdeen Grammar School in all time coming”, and asked if this was something which 
could be incorporated into the new Agreement.  Councillor Greig stated that this 
wording recognised the goodwill and investment by the Former Pupils’ Club in the field.  
The Chairperson asked if the essence of this wording could perhaps be accommodated 
in the new document to give the Former Pupils’ Club some comfort.  Mrs Selbie again 
stated that the wording in the 1923 Agreement would be difficult for the Council in terms 
of Best Value and any future auditing of the disposal of assets which had been 
undertaken in perpetuity.  Mr Hendry advised that he did not consider that the Former 
Pupils’ Club had ever conceded that they were willing to give up the right to use the 
field in perpetuity.   Mrs Selbie noted that this had not been her understanding from the 
various meetings which had previously been held.  Mr McAllister advised that the new 

Page 140



 

 

3

Agreement would not have the sanction of the Former Pupils’ Club members if the 
rights in perpetuity were not included.  Councillor Greig asked if it would be possible to 
have some consideration of what the term ‘in perpetuity’ could mean, as perhaps a form 
of words could be found in relation to the term which would suit both sides.  Mrs Selbie 
advised that if the position of the Former Pupils’ Club was that they could not accede to 
an Agreement which did not refer to rights in perpetuity, then no form of words could be 
found to resolve the issue, as the Council could not, in terms of Best Value, agree to 
these rights being retained in perpetuity, as well as the additional rights being proposed 
under the draft revised Agreement. 
 
The Chairperson concluded the meeting by noting that the discussions appeared to 
have reached an impasse, and therefore the process outlined earlier whereby officers 
would prepare a report to the Education, Culture and Sport Committee stating the 
current position would apply.  She thanked all those present for their attendance at the 
meeting. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note that as it had not been possible to reach agreement, that officers would prepare 
a report for the Education, Culture and Sport Committee in January 2013 to allow the 
Council to take a decision on how to proceed. 
- JENNIFER LAING, Chairperson  
 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Education, Culture and Sport 
 
DATE     31st January 2013 
 
DIRECTOR Gayle Gorman 
 
TITLE OF REPORT Education, Culture and Sport 

Performance Report 
 
REPORT NUMBER   ECS/13/003 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to: 
• provide Elected Members with a summary of performance data for the 
period from July 2012 and up to and inclusive of December 2012 from the 
Education, Culture and Sport Directorate (ECS) 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 The Committee are asked to: 

• Approve the ECS Service Performance report for the period from July 2012 
and up to and inclusive of December 2012 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no direct financial implications arising directly from the report. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

There are no direct implications arising from this report however, the purpose 
of performance measurement and reporting is to manage improvement to 
services to the community.  The measures ensure linkage to the Single 
Outcome Agreement and the themes contained in “Improving Scottish 
Education.” Together with the Administration’s Policy Statement ‘Smarter 
Aberdeen’. Improvements in the services provided by Education, Culture and 
Sport impact positively on communities across the City. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
5.1 Members will recall that the Education, Culture and Sport Service Plan 2011-

16, approved at Committee on 15 September 2011, contained a number of 
performance indicators classified by the ten Service Plan priorities. 
 
The report attached at Appendix A outlines indicators as follows: 
• Monthly performance indicators for the period from July 2012 and up to 
and inclusive of December 2012 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 143



 

 
5.2      Key Analysis 
 
 Members should note the following performance this period: 
 
5.2.1 Communities, Culture and Sport 

 
Communities  
 
• Our Healthy Minds Team, in partnership with NHS has been delivering 
learning to vulnerable learners in recovery of mental health.  To date, 25 
first step classes have been delivered by December 2012 against our 
target of 30 for 2012/13 with 6 further classes started in January 2013 

• Out of the City’s 12 Learning Partnerships, 11 Partnerships have held a 
total of 50 meetings and sub-meetings in the period April to September 
2012 which is a significant increase in partnership activity from 2011-2012 

• In our Childcare Team, Roots of Empathy programmes have started within 
the Northfield area with 11 programmes running altogether against our 
target to June 2013 to deliver Roots of Empathy initiative in 7 primary 
schools across Northfield.  The programme has been extremely well 
received and is already showing positive impact 

• Our Lifelong Learning Team are working with our Arts Development Team 
to provide Accredited opportunities for volunteers via the new SQA 
Volunteer Awards. This is a significant achievement and Aberdeen City 
council are the first Local Authority to be approved to offer these Awards 

• Our Youth Work in Schools team have been busy delivering six award 
bearing classes, for 36 young people with behavioural, social and 
confidence/esteem development needs between the ages of 14 to 16, in 
the following City schools: 

o Bucksburn Academy (two Bronze Youth Achievement Award 
classes), a new course in the 2012/13 that has been developed and 
delivered by Aberdeen City Council staff 

o Northfield Academy (one Prince’s Trust xL class and one Bronze 
Youth Achievement Award class for Looked After Children) 

o Oldmachar Academy (one Prince’s Trust xL class and one Bronze 
Youth Achievement Award class with an Eco Development focus), 
where courses in both Northfield and Oldmachar are a successful 
continuation or development of our existing partnerships using 
bought or licensed courses. 

• Our Peer Support Training Programmes are being delivered to Senior 
Phase pupils. These short courses have been delivered by our teams to 
193 pupils at Bucksburn, Northfield, Oldmachar and Torry Academies and 
have been successful in developing employability and citizenship skills 
through peer support in three phases: supporting transition to secondary 
schools (Buddies), impacting on bullying (Bully Busters) and becoming 
Prefects.  

 
 
 
 

Page 144



 

 
Libraries 
Visits In Person 
• With the exception of the Media Centre, Kingswells and Woodside 
branches and the Overdrive service, the Library Service experienced a 
reduction in visits in comparison with December 2011 with a fall in 
recorded figures of 12.4%, although this is partly a reflection of the 
positioning of public holiday dates which reduced the overall monthly 
operating period by 37 hours 

 
• Visits to community based facilities, showed a slightly lower level of 
decrease, recording 33,310 attendances which equates to a reduction of 
5.0 % with this loss being reflected across almost all premises. 

 
• 52 events were delivered by the Service across the range of departments 
and branches, including adult and child programmes, with the Central 
Library hosting it’s first ever Human Library event on the theme of Faiths 
run in partnership with Aberdeen Interfaith Group attended by 35 
participants. Focusing on events for younger readers, 115 children 
attended Bookbug sessions and 140 nursery children and 536 children 
visited libraries during December, attended a variety of events and 
exhibitions throughout the month 

 
Book/Materials Issues 
• Although adult book issues increased at Woodside community library by 
14% despite showing a proportional decrease in visitors and there was a 
rise in children’s books issued at Airyhall, Cornhill, Ferryhill and Woodside 
community libraries, the overall figure for issues is marginally below that 
anticipated with a 13.5% fall in visitors, partly influenced by comparatively 
operating hours than in 2011.  As in November, the impact of the 
introduction of revised audio-visual charges for residents can be 
evidenced, with a 5% increase in issues recorded at the Media Centre in 
particular, alongside a rise in issues at four other community libraries. 

 
• Some 37.3% of issues at the 7 sites where self-service capacity has been 
implemented are now being processed through this system which is a 
small reduction on the previous month but likely reflects the relatively high 
initial usage levels linked to roll-out of the system at Mastrick in November. 
Roll out of the remaining schedule of self service provision will finish with 
installation of a machine in Bridge of Don library and the Service has 
purchased an additional unit to ease the pressure at Airyhall Community Library 
which has seen a large demand for this service. 

 
 

Use of PC terminals in Library Learning Centres and Learning Access 
Points 
• Computer usage in December gained some comparative ground against 
November with a lower decrease of just over 9% (-1375) against 2011 
figures and the proportionate reduction in monthly operating hours ( -37 

Page 145



 

hours) due to the timing of public holiday closures contributing, in part, to 
this loss. 

 
• However, as a direct contrast and counter-balance to this trend, the level of 
Wi-fi connections within establishments rose by a marked 64% (+ 1415) 
reflecting the trend towards people using their own laptops and smart 
devices to access on-line information and enquiry services within Library 
premises. 
 

Virtual Visits 
• With resolution of the technical accessibility issues around the Council’s 
introduction of a revised website cookie policy having been achieved in mid 
October, virtual visits during November, which are the most recently 
available are returning to levels approximating, but below that of 2011, 
having recorded some 34,573 visits (-14.3%) 

 
• It is anticipated that the impact of the loss of ‘connectivity’ over the 
extended period from June to September may continue to be reflected in a 
comparative reduction in visit figures in the short term 

 
 

          Museums and Galleries 
Visits In Person 
Monthly Comparison   
• 18,135 visits to Museums and Galleries facilities were recorded in 
December, representing a decrease of 24.7% on 2011. Of this reduction, 
the loss of admissions to the Maritime Museum and Provost Skene's 
House form the greatest percentage although both the Art Gallery and 
Cowdray Hall experienced reduced admissions, influenced to an extent by 
the pattern of public holidays which led to the equivalent loss of two 
additional 'trading' days.  

Cumulative Comparison  
• However, the Q1-3 position is only just behind on the comparable period in 
2011 and both the Cowdray Hall (+13.9%) and Art Gallery (+1.6%) being 
ahead of previous year's figures.. Whilst visit figures for the Maritime 
Museum, and the Tolbooth are around 8% down on Q3 in 2011 which 
might reflect both national trends and a relatively successful 2011/12, the 
position for Provost Skene's House covering the comparative period, being 
some 20.6% down on the previous year suggests that surrounding 
demolition works are continuing to negatively affect attendances.  

Number of Outreach Attendances/Participations 
• A total of five outreach events were delivered during the course of 
December, generating 32 attendances/participations  

Page 146



 

Virtual Visits 
Monthly Comparison  
• The decrease of 13,629 9 (-28.2%) in total visits across the Service’s 
various web presences, compared with December 2011 is due mainly to 
reductions in use of Aberdeen Quest site which is predominantly utilised in 
the context of the school environment and may require a dialogue to be 
entered into with schools to assess usage patterns/ adjustments necessary 
to upgrading of the website for this service to remain current and retain 
viewing capacities.  

Cumulative Comparison  
• Whilst cumulatively, the separate Aberdeen Art Gallery and Museums 
(AAGM) website has steadily grown its visitor numbers against the 
previous years position, the overall pattern of visits is some 25% below that 
of 2011/12.  

• However, it should be borne in mind that overall web visits in 2011/12 
achieved record levels against which the above reduction should be 
viewed as, proportionately, visits at the Quarter 3 period are still 
significantly in advance of those recorded for the comparative period in 
2010/11  

5.2.2 Sports 
 

Pools  
• Collation of Pools admissions data for November and December has been 
delayed as a result of technical issues around the phased introduction of 
the XN Leisure Management system across the range of Sport Aberdeen 
facilities the outcome of which requires that additional validation of 
information is completed to ensure the robustness of reporting. On this 
basis, Sport Aberdeen data is presently unavailable for the November and 
December Performance Indicators and Quarter 3 totals but will be reported 
at a later date as this information is provided by Sport Aberdeen.  
However, the most recent unreported data, relating to the period up to 31st 
October 2012 is reflected below: 

Monthly Comparison – October 2012 
 
• Sport Aberdeen Swimming Pool Facility attendances in October 2012 fell 
below that of 2011 with 16,906 fewer admissions (-32.9%) As with 
September 2012, a significant proportion of this reduction relates to the 
partial month closure of the Beach Leisure Centre wet-side facility to 
accommodate essential ventilation maintenance works resulting in a loss 
of approximately 10,000 admissions.  

 
 

Page 147



 

• Alongside this, and with particular impact on figures for Bucksburn Pool, 
there has been an element of 'data loss' arising from a technical issue 
involved in the roll-out of Sport Aberdeen's new Leisure Management 
Information System. (c.5,000 admissions)  

 
• When the impact of these issues are removed from the calculations, 
attendances for October 2012 show a material reduction of around 1,900 
admissions (-3.7%) against 2011. Bridge Of Don, Cults, Northfield and 
Kincorth Pools, by contrast, recorded monthly increases of 40%, 5%, 
25.3% and 51% respectively  

 
Cumulative Comparison – October 2012 
 

• Cumulatively, Bridge of Don, Cults Campus and Kincorth Pools 
demonstrated positive movement against 2011 and Northfield is now 
only marginally below last year's figures although the Beach Leisure 
Centre and Bucksburn, in part, due to the circumstances noted above 
are below that of 2011. 

 
• Hazlehead Pool continues to perform relatively poorly on paper in 
comparison with last year but there is some belief that this reflects a 
change in the data recording framework which is presently being 
examined by Sport Aberdeen.  

 
• Overall attendances for the seven month period from April to October, 
(300,325 admissions) represents a 14.6% decrease on the same point 
last year.  

 
• With the full reinstatement of the Beach Leisure Centre pool operations 
in mid October 2012 and reincorporation of figures linked to the LMIS 
data loss at a future date, the current levels of cumulative reduction in 
admissions should be mitigated to an extent by year's end  

 
Dry Facilities 
 
Attendances at our indoor sports and leisure facilities up to December 2012 
were as follows: 

           Sport Aberdeen 
• As with Pools information, collation of Sport Aberdeen admissions data 
for December has been delayed as a result of technical issues around 
the phased introduction of the XN Leisure Management system across 
the range of Sport Aberdeen facilities the outcome of which requires 
that additional validation of information is completed to ensure the 
robustness of reporting.  

• On this basis, Sport Aberdeen data is presently excluded from the 
December Performance Indicator and Quarter 3 totals but will be 
reported at a later date as this information is provided by Sport 

Page 148



 

Aberdeen and the admissions total for Dry Facilities should be viewed 
as a partial representation of attendances.  

• The most recent data, relating to the period up to 30th November 2012 
is reflected below: 

Monthly Comparison – November 2012 
• Sport Aberdeen admissions for November 2012 recorded an overall 
marginal decrease of 0.9% in admissions against 2011 with 621 fewer 
admissions and a total of 64,961 attendances for the month. 
Individually, six of the ten premises recorded monthly attendance 
growth ( Jesmond Centre +6.8%, Westburn +17.2%, Torry +2.1%, 
Kincorth +2.9%, Peterculter +8.2%% and Linx Ice Arena +9.4% )  

• Of the remaining facilities, Sheddocksley and the Beacon experienced 
nominal reductions of 0.3% and 0.9% respectively with Alex Collie and 
the Beach Leisure Centre recording falls of -13.7% and -15.9%.   

Cumulative Comparison – November 2012 
• The cumulative position,(April-November) remains substantially positive 
with 429181 admissions to date (+2.7%) and only the Beach Leisure 
Complex attendances being behind the figures for 2011/12, a situation 
which has arisen largely as a result of a maintenance related facility 
closure earlier in the year.  

• Of the remaining nine premises recording cumulative growth, Westburn 
Tennis Centre and Torry are furthest ahead of 2011/12 performance 
with percentage increases of +17.2% and +22.9% and the seven others 
all maintaining growth levels in single figures  

Aberdeen Sports Village – December 2012 
Monthly Comparison 

• Aberdeen Sports Village recorded 42,888 attendances in December 
2012, a 6.0% (+ 2590 admissions) increase in the year-on-year monthly 
figure.  

• Across the five admissions frameworks, whilst a fall in admission levels 
was recorded against Management Bookings (-7.2%), attendances 
across the four 'pay-to-play' groupings, Booked Activities, Courses 
Classes and Ticketed Activities rose by 9.4%, 37.1%, 38.2% and 8.4% 
respectively, indicating a continued growth in community based usage.  

Cumulative Comparison  
• Financial year to date admissions are recorded at 489,802 attendances 
which is 10.5% ahead of the 2011 position with 51,463 additional 
attendances.  

• Cumulative figures for the five months of the Village's operating year ( 
August-December) are showing a slightly lower percentage increase of 
just under 10.0% with 280,829 (+ 27,668) admissions to date.  

Page 149



 

 

5.2.3 Service Wide 
           

Absence Management 
• There was a decrease of 0.8 in the average number of days lost per employee for 

December 2012 across the ECS service 
• Education, Culture and Sport absence levels have increased by 0.2 for the last 12 

months to the end of December 2012, 7.6 days lost per employee over the 12 month 
period to date. There was an increase in long term and short term absence across all 
ECS service areas for this period which is not entirely unexpected given the 
prevalence of viruses, colds and influenza across Scotland.  This level of 
absence continues to compare well against other Council services and 
continues to show the ongoing commitment from our managers in the ECS 
Service to implement the Maximising Attendance policy and to support our 
employees.  

Enquiries 
• There were 69 Enquiries received by the Education, Culture and Sport Service 
between 1st July and 30th September 2012. 88% of these were answered 
within the required timescale of 20 working days. There was an increase in the 
number of enquiries reported to the communication team based at Marischal 
College in August 2012, these were received from our library service comment 
cards. In order to report on these more effectively and categorise the 
comments new guidance will be sent out across the service once development 
work, relating to the recording and reporting of enquiries and complaints, has 
been completed. 

Health and Safety 
• For the period of July 2012 to date 72% of the required inspections have been 

completed, with 17 inspections due to be completed by the end of the year. There are 
currently 28 inspections overdue, these are initially followed up  and then escalated to 
the relevant Head of Service for action, where appropriate.  

• There were 6 Health and Safety reportable incidents for the month of 
December 2012 across the Education, Culture and Sport service, with 5 
incidents within a school setting and the remaining 1 incident in a library setting 

• There were 5 Health and Safety reportable accidents for the month of December 
2012 across the Education, Culture and Sport service. These were all within a school 
setting.  

6. IMPACT 
Legal 
The Council is required to act as set out in the Statutory Performance 
Indicator Direction. 

 
Resources 
No additional resources are required to undertake performance management 
which is a core responsibility of managers. 

Page 150



 

 
Other 
There may be property, equipment or Health and Safety implications arising 
from the Service-wide Health and Safety update included in this report.  
Actions arising from this update are being taken forward by the ECS Service. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Appendix A: Monthly performance indicators from July 2012 up to 31st 
December 2012 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

Co-ordinated by Sarah Gear, Service Manager (Policy and Performance) 
Education, Culture & Sport 
� 01224 522865 
� sagear@aberdeencity.gov.uk   

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

EC
S 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 S
co

re
ca

rd
 

 Su
mm

ar
y s

co
re

ca
rd

 of
 se

rv
ice

 pl
an

 in
dic

at
or

s a
ga

ins
t s

er
vic

e p
lan

 th
em

es
  

Re
po
rt 
Au
th
or
: A

lex
 Pa

te
rso

n 
Ge
ne
ra
te
d 
on
: 1

6 
Ja

nu
ar

y 2
01

3 
 

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
Tr

af
fic

 Li
gh

t 
Re

d 
2 

Am
be

r 
1 

Gr
ee

n 
3 

Da
ta

 O
nl

y 
9 

 Pr
io
rit
y 
04
 - 
Te
ch
no
lo
gy

 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
 

No
ve

mb
er
 

20
12

 
De

ce
mb

er
 

20
12

 
Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
3 

Q3
 2
01

2/
13

 
Q4

 2
01

2/
13

 
H1

 2
01

2/
13

 
H2

 2
01

2/
13

 
Ta

rg
et 

St
at
us

 
Lo

ng
 

Tr
en

d  
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 ti
me

s t
ha

t P
C 
te
rm

ina
ls 

in 
Lib

ra
ry
 Le

ar
nin

g C
en

tre
s a

nd
 Le

ar
nin

g 
Ac

ce
ss
 Po

int
s a

re
 u
se
d 

16
,0
65

 
12

,5
19

 
 

45
,6
72

 
 

10
0,
35

0 
 

  
 

 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 vi
sit

s t
o l

ibr
ar
ies

 - 
vir

tu
al 

34
,5
73

 
 

 
 

 
82

,7
75

 
 

  
 

 
Nu

mb
er
 of

 vi
sit

s t
o/
us

ag
es
 of

 co
un

cil
 

fu
nd

ed
 or

 p
ar
t f
un

de
d m

us
eu

ms
 - 

vir
tu
al 

41
,7
88

 
34

,7
24

 
 

11
6,
92

5 
 

24
7,
24

1 
 

  
 

 
 Pr
io
rit
y 
05
 - 
He
al
th
 a
nd
 W
el
lb
ei
ng

 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
 

No
ve

mb
er
 

20
12

 
De

ce
mb

er
 

20
12

 
Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
3 

Q3
 2
01

2/
13

 
Q4

 2
01

2/
13

 
H1

 2
01

2/
13

 
H2

 2
01

2/
13

 
Ta

rg
et 

St
at
us

 
Lo

ng
 

Tr
en

d  
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 at
te
nd

an
ce

s a
t o

th
er
 

ind
oo

r s
po

rts
 an

d 
lei

su
re
 fa

cil
itie

s 
ex

clu
din

g p
oo

ls 
in 

a c
om

bin
ed

 
co

mp
lex

 
13

4,
97

5 
42

,8
88

 
 

30
9,
36

4 
 

60
9,
44

1 
 

  
 

 

Page 153



2 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
 

No
ve

mb
er
 

20
12

 
De

ce
mb

er
 

20
12

 
Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
3 

Q3
 2
01

2/
13

 
Q4

 2
01

2/
13

 
H1

 2
01

2/
13

 
H2

 2
01

2/
13

 
Ta

rg
et 

St
at
us

 
Lo

ng
 

Tr
en

d  
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 at
te
nd

an
ce

s a
t p

oo
ls 

(e
xc

lud
ing

 co
mm

un
ity

 po
ols

) 
0 

0 
 

34
,5
50

 
 

26
5,
77

5 
 

  
 

 
 Pr
io
rit
y 
06
 - 
En
ga
ge
m
en
t i
n 
Ar
ts
, H
er
ita
ge
, C
ul
tu
re
 a
nd
 S
po
rt 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
 

No
ve

mb
er
 

20
12

 
De

ce
mb

er
 

20
12

 
Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
3 

Q3
 2
01

2/
13

 
Q4

 2
01

2/
13

 
H1

 2
01

2/
13

 
H2

 2
01

2/
13

 
Ta

rg
et 

St
at
us

 
Lo

ng
 

Tr
en

d  
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

To
ta
l n

um
be

r o
f is

su
es
 fr

om
 lib

ra
rie

s 
68

,7
96

 
52

,2
68

 
 

19
5,
60

8 
 

42
8,
08

5 
 

  
 

 
Nu

mb
er
 of

 vi
sit

s t
o l

ibr
ar
ies

 - 
pe

rso
n 

89
,4
79

 
63

,8
10

 
 

24
3,
13

3 
 

52
1,
49

5 
 

  
 

 
Nu

mb
er
 of

 vi
sit

s t
o/
us

ag
es
 of

 co
un

cil
 

fu
nd

ed
 or

 p
ar
t f
un

de
d m

us
eu

ms
 - 

pe
rso

n 
23

,1
80

 
18

,1
35

 
 

65
,0
66

 
 

18
5,
31

2 
 

  
 

 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 vi
sit

s t
o/
us

ag
es
 of

 co
un

cil
 

fu
nd

ed
 or

 p
ar
t f
un

de
d m

us
eu

ms
 - 

ou
tre

ac
h 

11
0 

32
 

 
53

5 
 

50
7 

 
  

 
 

 Pr
io
rit
y 
08
 - 
Be
tte
r P
er
fo
rm
in
g/
Va
lu
e 
fo
r M
on
ey

 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
 

No
ve

mb
er
 

20
12

 
De

ce
mb

er
 

20
12

 
Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
3 

Q3
 2
01

2/
13

 
Q4

 2
01

2/
13

 
H1

 2
01

2/
13

 
H2

 2
01

2/
13

 
Ta

rg
et 

St
at
us

 
Lo

ng
 

Tr
en

d  
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Ed
uc

at
ion

, C
ult

ur
e a

nd
 S
po

rt 
-  

Cu
rre

nt
 A
va

ila
ble

 M
on

th
ly 

Ab
se
nc

e 
Da

ta
 

1.
6 

0.
8 

 
 

 
0.
8 

 
 

EC
S 
an

d C
or
po

ra
te 

Ab
se

nc
e s

ho
wi
ng

 
th
e A

ve
ra
ge

 N
um

be
r o

f D
ay

s L
os

t P
er
 

Em
plo

ye
e P

er
 S
er
vic

e 
7.
4 

7.
6 

 
 

 
10

.0 
 

 

%
 of

 co
mp

lai
nt
s a

nd
 en

qu
irie

s 
re
sp

on
de

d t
o w

ith
in 

cu
rre

nt
 co

rp
or
at
e 

tim
es

ca
le 

of 
20

 w
or
kin

g d
ay

s 
 

 
 

 
95

%
 

 
 

Nu
mb

er
 of

 E
CS

 W
or
kp

lac
e I

ns
pe

cti
on

s 
Co

mp
let

ed
 to

 D
at
e 

 
 

83
%
 

72
%
 

10
0%

 
 

 

Page 154



3 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
 

No
ve

mb
er
 

20
12

 
De

ce
mb

er
 

20
12

 
Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
3 

Q3
 2
01

2/
13

 
Q4

 2
01

2/
13

 
H1

 2
01

2/
13

 
H2

 2
01

2/
13

 
Ta

rg
et 

St
at
us

 
Lo

ng
 

Tr
en

d  
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

Va
lue

 
Va

lue
 

He
alt

h 
an

d 
Sa

fet
y R

ep
or
ta
ble

 
Ac

cid
en

ts 
4 

5 
 

 
 

3 
 

 
He

alt
h 
an

d 
Sa

fet
y R

ep
or
ta
ble

 
In
cid

en
ts 

30
 

6 
 

 
 

20
 

 
 

  
PI
 S
ta
tu
s 

 A
ler

t 

 W
ar
nin

g 

 O
K 

 U
nk

no
wn

 

 D
at
a O

nly
 

 

Lo
ng

 Te
rm

 Tr
en

ds
 

 I
mp

ro
vin

g 

 N
o C

ha
ng

e 

 G
et
tin

g 
W
or
se
 

 

Sh
or
t T

er
m 

Tr
en

ds
 

 I
mp

ro
vin

g 

 N
o C

ha
ng

e 

 G
et
tin

g 
W
or
se
 

 

 

Page 155



4 

ECS Performance Trend Charts 
 
Trend Charts demonstrating performance of monthly reportable indicators 
against service plan themes  
Report Author: Alex Paterson 
Generated on: 16 January 2013 
  

Priority 04 - Technology 
Number of times that PC terminals in Library Learning Centres and Learning Access Points are 
used 
This indicator monitors the number of times that PC terminals within Learning Centres and Learning 
Access Points of libraries are used. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates 
current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value 
= cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 12,519 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Library and Information 
Services  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
Computer usage in December gained some comparative ground against November with a lower decrease 
of just over 9% (-1375) against 2011 figures and the proportionate reduction in monthly operating hours ( -
37 hours) due to the timing of public holiday closures contributing, in part, to this loss.  
  
However, as a direct contrast to this trend, the level of Wi-fi connections rose by a marked 64% (+ 1415) 
reflecting the trend towards people using their own laptops and smart devices to access on-line 
information and enquiry services within Library premises.  
 

Page 156



5 

 
Number of visits to libraries - virtual 
This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to libraries. Trend calculation method is year on year- 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 
period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period November 

2012 
Value 34,573 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Library and Information 
Services  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
With resolution of the technical accessibility issues around the Council’s introduction of a revised website 
cookie policy having been achieved in mid October, virtual visits during November are returning to levels 
approximating, but below that of 2011, having recorded some 34,573 visits (-14.3%)  
  
It is anticipated that the impact of the loss of ‘connectivity’ over the extended period from June to 
September may continue to be reflected in a comparative reduction in visit figures in the short term  
 

Page 157



6 

 
Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - virtual 
This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 
trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long 
trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 34,724 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Museums & Galleries  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
Monthly Comparison  
 
The decrease of 13,629 9 (-28.2%) in total visits across the Service’s various web presences, compared 
with December 2011 is due mainly to reductions in use of Aberdeen Quest site which is predominantly 
utilised in the context of the school environment and may require a dialogue to be entered into with 
schools to assess usage patterns/ adjustments necessary to upgrading of the website for this service to 
remain current and retain viewing capacities.  
 
Cumulative Comparison  
 
Whilst cumulatively, the separate Aberdeen Art Gallery and Museums (AAGM) website has steadily grown 
its visitor numbers against the previous years position, the overall pattern of visits is some 25% below that 
of 2011/12.  
 
However, it should be borne in mind that overall web visits in 2011/12 achieved record levels against 
which the above reduction should be viewed as, proportionately, visits at the Quarter 3 period are still 
significantly in advance of those recorded for the comparative period in 2010/11  
 

Page 158



7 

 
Priority 05 - Health and Wellbeing 
Number of attendances at other indoor sports and leisure facilities excluding pools in a combined 
complex 
This indicator monitors the collective monthly attendance at indoor sports and leisure facilities excluding 
those with pools in a combined complex and including Aberdeen Sports Village. Trend calculation method 
is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates 
average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated 
over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 42,888 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Facility attendance records  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
Dry Facilities Analysis: Sport Aberdeen  
 
Collation of Sport Aberdeen admissions data for December has been delayed as a result of technical 
issues around the phased introduction of the XN Leisure Management system across the range of Sport 
Aberdeen facilities the outcome of which requires that additional validation of information is completed to 
ensure the robustness of reporting.  
 
On this basis, Sport Aberdeen data is presently excluded from the Performance Indicator total but will be 
reported at a later date as this information is provided by Sport Aberdeen and the admissions total for Dry 
Facilities should be viewed as a partial representation of attendances.  
 
Dry Facilities Analysis: Aberdeen Sports Village  
 
Aberdeen Sports Village recorded 42,888 attendances in December 2012, a 6.0% (+ 2590 admissions) 
increase in the year-on-year monthly figure. Across the five admissions frameworks, whilst a fall in 
admission levels was recorded against Management Bookings (-7.2%), attendances across the four 'pay-
to-play' groupings, Booked Activities, Courses Classes and Ticketed Activities rose by 9.4%, 37.1%, 
38.2% and 8.4% respectively, indicating a continued growth in community based usage.  
 
Financial year to date admissions are recorded at 489,802 which is 10.5% ahead of the 2011 position with 
51,463 additional attendances. Cumulative figures for the five months of the Village's operating year 
(August-December) are showing a slightly lower percentage increase of just under 10.0% with 280,829 (+ 
27,668) admissions to date.  

Page 159



8 

 
Number of attendances at pools (excluding community pools) 
This indicator monitors the number of pool attendances excluding community pools. Trend calculation 
method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 
calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is 
calculated over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 0 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Facility attendance records  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
Pool Facilities Analysis  
 
Collation of Sport Aberdeen Pool admissions data for November and December has been delayed as a 
result of technical issues around the phased introduction of the XN Leisure Management system across 
the range of Sport Aberdeen facilities the outcome of which requires that additional validation of 
information is completed to ensure the robustness of reported data  
  
On this basis, Sport Aberdeen data for these periods is presently excluded from the Performance Indicator 
total but will be reported at a later date as this information is provided by Sport Aberdeen  
 

Page 160



9 

 
Priority 06 - Engagement in Arts, Heritage, Culture and Sport 
Total number of issues from libraries 
This indicator reflects the total number of issues from libraries. Trend calculation method is year on year- 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates current period v 
average of previous 3 year periods. Annual value = cumulative monthly values  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 52,268 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Library and Information 
Services  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
Although adult book issues increased at Woodside community library by 14% despite showing a 
proportional decrease in visitors and there was a rise in children’s books issued at Airyhall, Cornhill, 
Ferryhill and Woodside community libraries, the overall figure for issues is marginally below that 
anticipated with a 13.5% fall in visitors, partly influenced by comparatively operating hours than in 2011. 
As in November, the impact of the introduction of revised audio-visual charges for residents can be 
evidenced, with a 5% increase in issues recorded at the Media Centre in particular, alongside a rise in 
issues at four other community libraries.  
  
Some 37.3% of issues at the 7 sites where self-service capacity has been implemented are now being 
processed through this system which is a small reduction on the previous month but likely reflects the 
relatively high initial usage levels linked to roll-out of the system at Mastrick in November. Roll out of the 
remaining schedule of self service provision will finish with installation of a machine in Bridge of Don 
library and the Service has purchased an additional unit to ease the pressure at Airyhall Community 
Library which has seen a large demand for this service.  
 

Page 161



10 

 
Number of visits to libraries - person 
This indicator monitors the number of visits to libraries in person. Trend calculation method is year on 
year- Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 
month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year 
period.  

 

Status  
Data Period H1 2012/13 
Value 521,495 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Library and Information 
Services  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
 
 

Page 162



11 

 
Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - person 
This indicator monitors the number of admissions to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 
trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long 
trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 18,135 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Museums & Galleries  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
Monthly Comparison  
 
18,135 visits to Museums and Galleries facilities were recorded in December, representing a decrease of 
24.7% on 2011. Of this reduction, the loss of admissions to the Maritime Museum and Provost Skene's 
House form the greatest percentage although both the Art Gallery and Cowdray Hall experienced reduced 
admissions, influenced to an extent by the pattern of public holidays which led to the equivalent loss of 
two additional 'trading' days.  
 
Cumulative Comparison  
 
However, the Q1-3 position is only just behind on the comparable period in 2011 and both the Cowdray 
Hall ( +13.9%) and Art Gallery ( +1.6%) being ahead of previous year's figures.. Whilst visit figures for the 
Maritime Museum, and the Tolbooth are around 8% down on Q3 in 2011 which might reflect both national 
trends and a relatively successful 2011/12, the position for Provost Skene's House covering the 
comparative period, being some 20.6% down on the previous year suggests that surrounding demolition 
works are continuing to negatively affect attendances.  
 

Page 163



12 

 
Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - outreach 
This indicator monitors the number of outreach visits to council funded or part funded museums - outreach 
visits are talks and events held outwith museum venues. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short 
trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 
period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 32 
Target   
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Museums & Galleries  
Service Manager 
Neil Bruce 
Head of Service 
Patricia Cassidy 

Narrative and Analysis 
A total of five outreach events were delivered during the course of December, generating 32 
attendances/participations  
 

Page 164



13 

 
Priority 08 - Better Performing/Value for Money 
Education, Culture and Sport -  Current Available Monthly Absence Data 
This indicator shows absence data for the latest monthly figure in relation to the average number of days 
lost per employee per month across the Education, Culture and Sport service.  
The chart also reflects the annual average number of days lost per employee per month. There has been 
an increase of 0.7 average days lost per employee in absence across the service comparing 2010/11 and 
2011/12 to date.  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 0.8 
Target 0.8 
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
PSe (HR/Payroll System)  
Service Manager 
Sarah Gear 
Head of Service 
Charlie Penman 

Narrative and Analysis 
There was a decrease of 0.8 in the average number of days lost per employee for December across the 
ECS service  
 

Page 165



14 

 
ECS and Corporate Absence showing the Average Number of Days Lost Per Employee Per Service 
ECS and Corporate Absence showing the Average Number of Days Lost Per Employee Per Service for a 
12 Month Rolling Period  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 7.6 
Target 10.0 
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
PSe (HR/Payroll System)  
Service Manager 
Sarah Gear 
Head of Service 
Charlie Penman 

Narrative and Analysis 
Education, Culture and Sport absence levels have increased by 0.2 for the last 12 months to the end of 
December, 7.6 days lost per employee over the 12 month period to date. There was an increase in long 
term and short term absence across all ECS service areas for this period.  
 

Page 166



15 

 
% of complaints and enquiries responded to within current corporate timescale of 20 working days 
This Education, Culture and Sport performance indicator monitors the percentage of formal enquiries and 
complaints received from the MP's, MSP's, government agencies, members of the public, elected 
members and the press which previously required a response within the corporate standard of 15 working 
days. This was revised in April 2012 and the corporate standard for a response is now 20 working days. 
Work is ongoing to ensure complaints and enquiries are correctly categorised, managed and reported to 
reflect the changes.  
On a day a to day basis the service also responds to a significant number of informal enquiries from these 
agencies.  
The chart shows quarterly data from April 2011 to date. Trend calculation method is ongoing - Short trend 
calculates current period v previous period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual 
value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

 

Status  
Data Period Q2 2012/13 
Value 88% 
Target 95% 
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Complaints, Rights & Enquiries 
Team  
Service Manager 
Lesley Kirk 
Head of Service 
Educational Development, 
Policy and Performance 

Narrative and Analysis 
There were 69 Enquiries received by the Education, Culture and Sport Service between 1st July and 30th 
September 2012. 88% of these were answered within the required timescale of 20 working days. There 
was an increase in the number of enquiries reported to the communication team based at Marischal 
College in August, these were received from the libraries and were from comment cards. In order to report 
on these more effectively and categorise the comments new guidance will be sent out across the service 
once development work, relating to the recording and reporting of enquiries and complaints, has been 
completed.  
 

Page 167



16 

 
Number of ECS Workplace Inspections Completed to Date 
Number of Workplace Inspections Completed to Date. Each ECS establishment is required to complete 2 
workplace inspections in each calendar year. They are requested and recorded in Jan to Jun and Jul to 
Dec. If an establishment does not comply with at least one inspection each year the relevant Head of 
Service is advised.  

 

Status  
Data Period H2 2012/13 
Value 72% 
Target 100% 
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
Complaints, Rights & Enquiries 
Team  
Service Manager 
Lesley Kirk 
Head of Service 
Educational Development, 
Policy and Performance 

Narrative and Analysis 
For the period of July to date 72% of the required inspections have been completed. There are 17 
inspections due to be completed by the end of the year. There are currently 28 inspections overdue, these 
are initially followed up the the health and safety administrator for ECS. Then escalated to the relevant 
Head of Service for action.  
 

Page 168



17 

 
Health and Safety Reportable Accidents 
Health and Safety Reportable Accidents  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 5 
Target 3 
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
  
Service Manager 
Lesley Kirk 
Head of Service 
Charlie Penman 

Narrative and Analysis 
There were 5 reportable accidents for the month of December across the Education, Culture and Sport 
service. These were all within a school setting.  
 

Page 169



18 

 
Health and Safety Reportable Incidents 
Health and Safety Reportable Incidents  

 

Status  
Data Period December 

2012 
Value 6 
Target 20 
Long Trend  
Short Trend  
Data Source 
  
Service Manager 
Lesley Kirk 
Head of Service 
Charlie Penman 

Narrative and Analysis 
Of the 6 incidents recorded for December 5 of them were in schools, the remaining 1 was in a library.  
 

Page 170



19 

 
PI Status 

 Alert 

 Warning 

 OK 

 Unknown 

 Data Only 
 

Long Term Trends 

 Improving 

 No Change 

 Getting Worse 
 

Short Term Trends 

 Improving 

 No Change 

 Getting Worse 
 

  

Page 171



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1.1 Minute of the Previous Meeting of 22 November 2012 - for approval
	1.2 Minute of Meeting of the Culture and Sport Sub Committee of 7 November, 2012 - for noting
	1.3 Committee Business Statement
	2.1 Revenue Monitoring
	Revenue Budget Monitoring - appendices

	2.2 Capital Monitoring
	3.1 City Campus Evaluation
	City Campus - Travel Afternoons appendix

	3.2 Primary School Estate Feedback from Engagement Exercise
	Primary School Estate appendix

	3.3 Science Policy
	Science Policy appendix

	4.1 Accreditation Status for Museums and Galleries
	5.2 Sports Grants
	5.3 Rubislaw Field Agreement
	Rubislaw Field Committee Minute 041212

	6.1 Performance Report
	Performance Report Scorecard


